
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Cabinet Members Meeting 

Date: 4 October 2011 

Time: 2.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Davey and West 

Contact: Tanya Davies 
Acting Democratic Services Manager 
01273 29-1227 
tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

 
Speaker 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Cabinet 
Member 

Lawyer 

Opposition 
Spokes- 
person 

(Conservative) 

Cabinet 
Member 

Public Seating 

Press 

Opposition 
Spokes- 

person (Labour 
& Co-operative) 

Lead 
Officer 

Opposition 
Spokes- 
person 

(Conservative) 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

19. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 

(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 

NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 

A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

20. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 12 

 Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 July 2011 (copy attached).  
 

21. MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING, 17 AUGUST 2011 13 - 16 

 Minutes of the Special Meeting held on 17 August 2011 (copy attached).  
 

22. CABINET MEMBERS' COMMUNICATIONS  

 

23. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION  

 (a) Items reserved by the Cabinet Members 

(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokespersons 

(c) Items reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet 
Members. 

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions from Councillors, Petitions, 
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be 
reserved automatically. 

 

 

24. PETITIONS 17 - 20 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Tanya Davies Tel: 29-1227  

 Ward Affected: All Wards   



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 

 
 

 

25. PETITIONS DEBATED AT COUNCIL  

a) Keep The Level a green open space  21 - 26 

 (i) Draft extract from the proceedings of Council on 21 July 2011 
(copy attached). 

(ii) Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached). 
 

 

b) Save The Big Lemon Bus  27 - 30 

 (iii) Draft extract from the proceedings of Council on 21 July 2011 
(copy attached). 

(iv) Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached). 
 

 

26. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 27 
September 2011) 
 
No public questions have been received as of 7 September 2011. 

 

 

27. DEPUTATIONS 31 - 32 

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 27 September 
2011) 
 
(a) Deputation concerning proposed yellow lines between 

Maresfield and Cowfield Roads – Mrs Jenny Gearing 
(Spokesperson). 

 

 

28. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received as of 7 September 2011.  
 

29. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received as of 7 September 2011.  
 

30. NOTICES OF MOTION  

 No Notices of Motion have been received.  
 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 

 
 

 TRANSPORT & PUBLIC REALM MATTERS 

31. Citywide Amendment Traffic Order: various traffic changes to 
Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) and areas outside of CPZ 

33 - 108 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Charles Field Tel: 29-3329  
 Ward Affected: Brunswick & Adelaide; 

Central Hove; East 
Brighton; Goldsmid; 
Hangleton & Knoll; 
Hanover & Elm Grove; 
Hollingdean & Stanmer; 
Hove Park; Moulsecoomb 
& Bevendean; North 
Portslade; Patcham; 
Preston Park; Queen's 
Park; Regency; 
Rottingdean Coastal; 
South Portslade; St 
Peter's & North Laine; 
Westbourne; Wish; 
Withdean; Woodingdean 

  

 

32. Speed Limit Review (A&B Class Roads) 109 - 114 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Phil Clarke Tel: 29-3705  
 Ward Affected: Hangleton & Knoll; 

Hollingdean & Stanmer; 
Hove Park; Moulsecoomb 
& Bevendean; 
Rottingdean Coastal; 
South Portslade; 
Woodingdean 

  

 

33. Speed Limit Review 20mph Speed Limits 115 - 122 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Len Holloway Tel: 29-2184  
 Ward Affected: Hove Park; Rottingdean 

Coastal; South Portslade 
  

 

34. Parking Annual Report 2010/11 123 - 184 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Paul Nicholls Tel: 29-3287  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 
 
 
 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 

 
 

35. George Street Petition - Consultation Results  

 Verbal update from the Project Manager, City Regulation & Infrastructure.  

 Contact Officer: Owen McElroy Tel: 29-0368  

 Ward Affected: Central Hove   
 

36. Citywide Parking Review 185 - 198 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Owen McElroy Tel: 29-0368  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

37. Old Shoreham Road Cycle Facilities 199 - 204 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Abby Hone Tel: 29-3813  
 Ward Affected: Goldsmid; Hove Park   
 

38. Permission to tender for supported bus network 205 - 214 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Nick Mitchell Tel: 29-2481  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

 ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS 

39. Highways Winter Service Plan 2011-12 215 - 282 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Christina Liassides Tel: 29-2036  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

40. Permission to Consult on Communal Recycling Trial 283 - 288 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Gillian Marston Tel: 29-4701  
 Ward Affected: Brunswick & Adelaide   
 

 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Tanya Davies, (01273 
29-1227, email tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 26 September 2011 

 
 





ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 20 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 
 

2.00PM 5 JULY 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor Davey (Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm) and West 
(Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability) 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Janio (Opposition Spokesperson), Mitchell (Opposition 
Spokesperson)and G Theobald (Opposition Spokesperson) 
 
Other Members present: Councillor MacCafferty 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
1(a) Declarations of Interests 

1a.1 There were none.  

1(b) Exclusion of Press and Public 

1b.1 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 
Cabinet Member considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press 
and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of 
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information 
(as defined in section 100I(I) of the Act).  

1b.1 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
2.1 RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
 
 
 
 

1



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

3. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 Councillor Davey paid tribute to Peter Bloxham, the council’s Traffic Manager, who had 

sadly and unexpectedly passed away. Peter had worked for the council and the former 
Hove Borough Council since 1988 working on many challenging transport projects and 
most recently managing the city’s traffic control centre. Peter had been a keen train 
enthusiast and enjoyed being involved in his local community; he had chaired the 
Durrington Festival Committee and the 20th Festival would be dedicated to his memory. 
Councillor Davey stated that Peter would be sadly missed by colleagues and friends and 
extended the council’s condolences to Peter’s family. 

 
3.2 Councillor Theobald stated that he had been shocked and saddened by Peter’s sudden 

and unexpected death. Peter had given a fantastic service to the council for many years 
in an important and challenging role that he had taken in his stride. Councillor Theobald 
added his condolences to those of the council. 

 
3.3 Councillor Mitchell echoed the sentiments expressed and offered her condolences to 

Peter’s family. She stated that Peter had led many challenging projects and would also 
be remembered for the excellent support and advice he had provided to elected 
Members.  

 
A minute’s silence was observed in remembrance of Peter by those in attendance. 

 
3.4 Councillor Davey advised that the ‘Investment in City Infrastructure - Car Park 

Improvements – Phase II’ report expected to be considered by the Cabinet on 14 July 
had been deferred to a later date to allow more consideration to be given to the need for 
changes to the surrounding road infrastructure in order that best value could be 
achieved from the £4 million investment agreed by the Council earlier in the year. 

 
3.5 Opposition councillors expressed disappointment at the deferral and hoped that the 

delay would not be too long. In response to the comments, Councillor Davey explained 
that the works needed to improve access to the Regency Square car park had not been 
included in the original scheme and that more consideration needed to be given to this 
before work could commence. 

 
3.6 Councillor Davey announced that the council’s bid to the Department for Transport’s 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund had been successful and the council would receive 
£4 million to invest in the Lewes Road area to improve one of the city’s busiest roads, 
cut air pollution and emissions. He thanked the previous Administration for submitting 
the bid. 

 
4. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
4.1 RESOLVED – That all items be reserved for discussion. 
 
5. PETITIONS 
 
5.1 There were none. 
 
 

2



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
6.1 Councillor Davey reported that three public questions had been received and would be 

addressed to Councillor West. 
 
 
6.2 Ms Ash Shelling asked the following question: 
 

“On what moral, and ethical grounds does the council justify sending out 28,000 
consultation forms in which the ‘Cons’ (as in 'pro's and con's) of having an open skate 
bowl on The Level's highly utilised open green were deliberately downplayed, and, in 
which the Public Health and Safety risks posed by Option 2 received not a single 
mention?” 

 
6.3 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“At the end of an extensive design and public engagement phase, which as a ward 
councillor you know I took great interest in, the project team issued detailed consultation 
documents to 28,000 households. Given the rigour of the design process, the many 
ideas explored and taken on board, I believe ultimately two equally viable design options 
were generated.  The Council did not have a preference for either Option 1 or 2. 
 
The consultation document was produced with the research team who are experienced 
in producing objective consultation documents. The draft document was sent to the 
Friends of the Level, the Triangle and representatives of Park Crescent and ward 
councillors for comment. Officers met with representatives from these groups to go 
through their proposed amendments to the consultation document on 15 February.  
Further email and phone conversations followed.  The majority of amendments put 
forward were incorporated into the document. I believe every effort was made to ensure 
the document was objective. 
 
I appreciate your concerns about safety posed by Option 2.  Risks to children and dogs 
wandering into the skatepark have been considered.  An independent risk assessment 
has been carried out and there are not considered to be any significant risks with the 
sunken skatepark in either location. Public health and safety risks in both options have 
been considered and will be mitigated.” 

 
6.4 Ms Shelling asked the following supplementary question: 
 

“If the skate park is to be located in a 'dogs off lead zone', would the council clearly 
indicate what measures will be taken to ensure dogs don't enter the 'dogs free' skating 
area?” 

 
6.5 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“A risk assessment has been conducted and concluded that no fencing is needed; 
however planting may be used to identify the skate park area and officers are working 
on the detail.” 
 

3



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

6.6 The Head of Strategy & Projects for CityClean and City Parks advised that the more 
detailed design work on the skate park and surrounding area could only begin once the 
location had been agreed. 

 
6.7 Mr Adrian Morris asked the following question: 
 

“The consultation sent out to 28,000 households showed the skatepark in the southern 
section of The Level from a bird’s eye view from the south. The same view from the 
south is taken of the skatepark in the northern section, but the trees and shrubs of the 
Rose Walk obscure it. Had the view been taken at ground level from the north it would 
have clearly shown the intrusiveness of the skatepark on the green open space. 

 
Would you agree that this was grossly misleading, favouring the northern option and the 
public couldn’t have realised what they were voting for?” 

 
6.8 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“Because the skatepark is sunken, if the two comparative “bird’s eye” images you 
referred to had been taken from ground level, the skatepark would have been less 
visible and the entirety of the layouts harder to compare. In addition to these 
comparative artists impressions, the consultation document contained maps of the two 
options clearly showing the extent and location of the skatepark. 
 
You will also note that the consultation document contained a further artists impression 
of what the skatepark might look like, and this was indeed taken from ground level. The 
impressions were designed to be clear and objective as possible, and I disagree that 
they were grossly misleading or favouring the northern option.” 

 
6.9 Mr Morris asked the following supplementary question: 
 

“As I have said the Council have promoted the skatepark as a sunken bowl, maintaining 
that it will not be visible. When collecting signatures from nearly 3,000 people who want 
to save the green open space, many hadn’t realised the intrusiveness of the skatepark. 
To quote one regular user of The Level: “It will look bloody awful.” The ramps will rise 
above the bowl, clearly visible. As recommended in similar council schemes, the 
skatepark will have to be fenced off to a height of 2.75 metres. Why was this not 
indicated in the artist’s impressions and presented in the consultation?” 

 
6.10 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“The petition is not here today so I can’t consider it at this point; you were given the 
choice to present it today and chose for it come to the next Full Council meeting instead. 
 
As I have said, the risk assessment has been done and I have to be guided by that in 
relation to the need for fencing; officers are considering whether planting will be used to 
reinforce the separation between the skate park and surrounding area. It is clear that the 
skate park has become the main issue; impressions of what the skate park would look 
like from both views was included in the consultation document and I feel that they were 
ample for people to see.” 
 

4



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

6.11 The Head of Strategy & Projects stated that clear and objective illustrations had been 
requested. 

 
6.12 Ms Julia Davis asked the following question: 
 

“In November, Parks Project Team (PPT) said the skatepark would be 1100m2. In 
workshop 2 (January 15), PPT changed this to 1600m2 costing £450k, although only 
£150k was available, enough for 700-900m2, stating a mistake was made in original 
measurements. The public consultation included the 1600m2 skatepark size, but not an 
artist impression of Option 2 looking North-South, nor fencing around the skatepark in 
either option, despite requests from residents. These actions resulted in Option 1 
looking both unsafe and congested. What skate funds will be available by August, 
including fencing, and how large will the skatepark be in the HLF bid plans?” 

 
6.13 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“As set out in the The Level – Heritage Lottery Bid and Masterplan report, Agenda item 
11, sections 1.11 and sections 6.16 to 6.20, skatepark funding is being pursued 
separately to the HLF bid. 
 
With the £97,000 from S106 and recommended £53,000 funding from existing Parks 
budgets, the total amount of secured funding is £150,000. Other sources of funding are 
being pursued, including grant aid from Viridor, Veolia and sponsorship. Decisions on 
these additional sources of funding are expected by January 2012. 
 
The final size and complexity of the skatepark will depend on the total amount of funding 
secured, but will not be any larger than the area identified in the Master Plan. 
 
The risk assessment carried out has identified that the skatepark and the boundary can 
be designed so as not to need fencing, mainly by ensuring there are no steep drops 
right on the boundary. I have asked officers further about this and there are no plans to 
use fencing, but officers have indicated that planting may be incorporated to help 
delineate the area.” 

 
6.14 Ms Davis asked the following supplementary question: 
 

“If the HLF bid fails and 3,000 signatories object to the skatepark in the north, will the 
skatepark still be moved and and how much will such a move cost in addition to the 
available funds to build the new skatepark?” 

 
6.15 Councillor West gave the following response: 
 

“The report says that we’ll do what we can, but recognises that funds will be limited if the 
bid is not successful, so at the moment we are relying on the bid succeeding.” 

 
6.16 The Head of Strategy & Projects advised that if the bid were to fail the amount of work 

would be very limited; some Section 106 monies were available, but it would be 
necessary to carefully consider how to prioritise the work required. 

 
 

5



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

7. DEPUTATIONS 
 
7.1 There were none. 
 
8. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
8.1 There were none. 
 
9. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
9.1 There were none. 
 
10. NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
10.1 There were none. 
 
11. THE LEVEL – HERITAGE LOTTERY BID AND MASTER PLAN 
 
11.1 The Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability considered a report of the 

Strategic Director, Place concerning the Heritage Lottery Bid and Masterplan for The 
Level, which would steer improvements to the park and any longer term development. 

 
11.2 Councillor West advised that The Level was a very popular park, but that it was in bad 

condition, suffered from anti-social behaviour, and was in desperate need of investment. 
A funding bid was being prepared for submission to the Heritage Lottery Fund and Big 
Lottery Fund ‘Parks for People’ grant to try to obtain investment to make significant 
physical improvements, as well as increasing use, and improving management and 
maintenance of the park. Proposals had also been developed to replace the existing 
skate park,  and funding for this was being pursued separately. 

 
Two extensive consultation exercises had taken place, with ward councillors taking on a 
key community leadership role to ensure the transparency and integrity of the process, 
and the final consultation document had been delivered to 28,000 households within a 
15 minute walk of the Level. Responses were received from 3,300 respondents, 
representing an excellent level of feedback, with 34% preferring to keep the skate park 
in its current location, and 55% preferring to move it to the north. Popular features were 
a café with indoor seating, water fountains, a sensory garden and new toilets, as well as 
the prospect of events, markets and arts in the park. 
 
Councillor West recognised that many people were concerned about the prospect of 
extending the built environment into the area north of the Rose Walk and stated that his 
own preference was the option with the skate park in its current location. However, he 
believed that the process had been thorough, fair, and engaging, and that everyone had 
been afforded a good opportunity to express their views and shape the outcomes, and 
therefore, it was recommended that the design with the skate park relocated to the 
northern area be submitted. 
 
Councillor West paid tribute to the diligence and flexibility of officers and designers, and 
to the time, effort and interest invested by many members of the public. He stated that 
he hoped that, despite individual reservations and preferences, all members of public, 

6



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

community groups and civic associations would join together to show support for the bid 
in order to secure the much needed bright new future for the Level and the thousands of 
people it should be better serving. 

 
11.3 Councillor Theobald welcomed the extensive nature of the consultation and stated that 

differing views were to be expected. 
 
11.4 In response to questions from opposition councillors the Head of Strategy & Projects for 

CityClean and City Parks made the following comments: 
 

§ there were no covenants over the green area in the north of The Level 
§ Both the council’s Events Manager and the manager of the fair that visited to The 

Level had been consulted and neither were concerned that the Masterplan would 
have a negative impact on events. He noted that respondents to the consultation 
were keen to see more events at The Level. 

§ The detailed view showing the skate park in the northern sectionof The Level was 
circulated as part of the original consultation document that was sent to 28,000 
people. 

§ The report was seeking approval of the Masterplan; more detailed design on some 
elements had not been worked out yet, but would be done with the involvement of 
local community groups. 

 
11.5 Councillor Janio queried whether the final detail of the scheme would be brought back to 

a future Cabinet Members Meeting or whether, if approved, the Masterplan as it stood 
would be submitted as part of the bid. 

 
11.6 Councillor West confirmed that the bid had to be submitted in August and as such, there 

would no further opportunity to consider the Masterplan at a Cabinet Members Meeting. 
However, he had requested that the recommendations in the report be amended to 
require the Strategic Director, Place to work closely with him to develop the final details 
of the bid so that he could ensure that the many good ideas that had come out of the 
public engagement exercise continued to be incorporated. He explained that a decision 
on the location of the skate park was required for the submission of the bid, but that as it 
was to be funded separately from the rest of the scheme, the final design would be 
worked up later. 

 
11.7 The Head of City Infrastructure explained that the Masterplan contained a lot of detail 

and that this was required to submit the bid, a long with the location of the skate park. 
Details such as fencing and planting would not ordinarily be brought back for formal 
decision, however, officers would be working closely with the Cabinet Member and 
community groups on those details. 

 
11.8 Councillor Mitchell stated that the Masterplan and bid presented an exciting opportunity 

and that the polarisation of views should not completely distract from the positives, such 
as the possibility of significant investment and how well the concept fitted with the 
historical setting.  

 
She advised, however, that she understood why consulting on two options had confused 
some residents and that they still did not have a clear idea of what the skate park would 
look like. She stated that her preference was to redevelop the skate park in its current 

7



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

location to prevent setting a precedent for encroaching on the green space in the 
northern part of The Level, which was used primarily by those looking to relax in the 
park; moving the skate park would encourage people to stay away from the northern 
area and would create another barrier within the park, which was intended to be an 
open space. 
 
She noted that the Cabinet Member’s own preference was to keep the skate park in its 
current location and stated that agreeing for it to be moved did not demonstrate good 
leadership. 

 
11.9 Councillor Theobald advised that he agreed with Councillor Mitchell’s comments. 
 
11.10 Councillor West stated that he had not taken the decision to go against his own 

preference for the location of the skate park lightly, but that it would be wrong to 
disregard the views of the majority in an extensive and thorough consultation process. 

 
11.11 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet accepted the following recommendations:  
 

(1) That the Masterplan for The Level be endorsed and the extensive consultation 
undertaken be noted. 

 
(2) That the match funding requirements for the HLF bid from existing budgets to a 

maximum value of £200,000 be endorsed.   
 
(3) That the allocation of funding for the skatepark from existing budgets to a 

maximum of £53,000 be endorsed. 
 
(4) That authority be delegated to the Strategic Director, Place to oversee the 

completion of the final details of the bid, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environment & Sustainability,  ready for submission by 31st August 
2011. 

 
(5) That it be agreed that, in the event of the bid being unsuccessful, the Masterplan 

be used to inform the long term development of the park, and that it be noted that 
delivery would be dependent on funding. 

 
12. NEW ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER 
 
12.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm considered a report of the Strategic 

Director, Place concerning a request from the leaseholder of 20 New Road to have 
disabled parking removed from outside his business. 

 
12.2 Councillor Davey explained that if the disabled parking bay outside 20 New Road was 

removed, the bay outside Number 21 would also have to be removed for safety reasons 
and that there were no viable alternative locations; concerns from the occupiers of 
Number 21 had been allayed by stipulating time restrictions for the bays. 

 
12.3 The Lead Commissioner for City Regulation & Infrastructure explained that the request 

had been made through a deputation to Cabinet in 2010 and the officers had spent a 

8



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

significant amount of time trying to identify alternative locations for the disabled bays, 
but had been unable to do so, partly due to  the redesign of New Road to create a 
shared space. He reported that the level of objections justified the recommendation not 
to proceed with removing the bays.  

 
12.4 Councillor Theobald noted that the bays had been installed to allow disabled people to 

go to the Theatre Royal and that the move had been supported by the theatre manager 
at the time. He explained that time restrictions were later added to the bays to ensure 
that they were used for the original purpose and stated that he supported the proposals 
if the bays continued to be used appropriately. 

 
12.5 Councillor Mitchell stated that she supported the recommendations. 
 
12.6 Councillor Davey stated that while he acknowledged that the leaseholder of 20 New 

Road would be disappointed, he was confident that the request had been dealt with 
appropriately using a thorough and open process. 

 
12.7 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet accepted the following recommendations: 
 

(1) That the objections to the proposed Traffic Order be upheld, and the disabled 
parking bay outside 20 New Road be maintained. 

 
13. TIVOLI CRESCENT - RESIDENT PARKING SCHEME FORMAL CONSULTATION 
 
13.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm considered a report of the Strategic 

Director, Place concerning proposals to include Tivoli Crescent into the Area A resident 
parking scheme. 

 
13.2 The Parking Infrastructure Manager explained that the inclusion of Tivoli Crescent was 

justified because it was the ‘missing link’ in the area. He noted that objections had been 
received from neighbouring roads and that such concerns many be considered as part 
of the planned citywide parking review. 

 
13.3 Councillor Mitchell stated that she supported the proposals and asked whether the 

timetable for future parking schemes had been put on hold until after the citywide 
parking review. She advised that if small areas continued to be looked at, wider areas 
would be affected; she hoped that the review would prevent further ad hoc work. 

 
13.4 The Lead Commissioner for City Regulation & Infrastructure explained that work on any 

new parking schemes would be built into the parking review, which would begin in the 
Autumn.  

 
13.5 Councillor Davey advised that there may be scope for tidying up parking arrangements 

in some areas and that he hoped the citywide review would not take too long to 
complete. He added that he hoped Members from all Groups would contribute once the 
scope of the review had been determined. 

 
13.6 Councillor Janio asked Councillor Davey to make a commitment not to consider any 

further changes to parking schemes until the parking review had been completed. 

9



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

 
13.7 Councillor Theobald stated that he had expected the parking review to be underway by 

now. 
 
13.8 Councillor Davey advised that the council had only recently undergone a change of 

Administration and that no terms of reference for the review had been agreed prior to 
this; work had now begun on this and it was anticipated that the terms of reference 
would be brought forward in the Autumn. 

 
13.9 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet accepted the following recommendations: 
 

(1) That, having taken account of all duly made representations and objections, the 
following order be approved as advertised: 

 
(a) Brighton & Hove Various Controlled Parking Zone Consolidation Order 2008 

Amendment Order No* 201* (Area A – Tivoli Crescent) 
 

(2) That any amendments included in the report and subsequent requests deemed 
appropriate by officers be added to the proposed scheme during implementation 
and advertised as an amendment Traffic Regulation Order. 

 
14. CHANGE OF TIMES TO SCHOOL KEEP CLEARS – STANDARDISING AND 

EXTENDING NO STOPPING TIMES 
 
14.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm considered a report of the Strategic 

Director, Place concerning proposals to standardise all School Keep Clear waiting 
restrictions across Brighton and Hove to provide a much more consistent approach that 
caters for the access needs and improves safety for all road users outside the school. 

 
14.2 Councillor Mitchell welcomed the proposals, but advised that they may cause problems 

for those who were unable to walk to school because they had been directed to a school 
further away due to the shortage of primary school places in some areas of the city. 

 
14.3 Councillor Janio reported that significant problems existed in his ward and that he hoped 

the proposals would address them. He stated that the new restrictions would, however, 
be ignored without effective enforcement and effective communication to residents. 

 
14.4 The Lead Commissioner for City Regulation & Infrastructure explained that the 

standardisation of restrictions would make enforcement easier and that resources could 
be directed to specific problem areas. He advised that an extensive publicity campaign 
was planned to communicate the new rules to residents. 

 
14.5 In response to a question from Councillor Theobald, The Lead Commissioner explained 

that it was proposed that schools where specific localised problems had been identified, 
they be removed from the traffic order to allow officers to work on suitable alternative 
arrangements. 

 
14.6 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet accepted the following recommendations: 

10



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

 
(1) That (having taken into account representations and objections) the Various 

Controlled Parking Zones Consolidation Order 2008  Amendment Order No.* 201* 
and  Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading Restrictions and Parking 
Places) Consolidation Order 2008 amendment Order No.* 201* be approved with 
the following amendments: 

 
(a) The proposed changes to times of the School Keep Clear on Holmes Avenue 

be removed from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.5. 
 
(2) That a decision be deferred on the proposed changes to times of the School Keep 

Clear around Down’s Junior School due to reasons outlined in section 3.5. 
 
15. FARMAN STREET (GATING) ORDER 2011 
 
15.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm considered a report of the Strategic 

Director, Place concerning proposals to make a Gating Order for Farman Street, 
following completion of a Management Agreement between the council and the Farman 
Street Resident’s Association, to combat anti-social and criminal behaviour. 

 
15.2 Councillor Davey noted that there was a long history to the issue and that ward 

councillors continued to be supportive of the residents’ desire for a Gating Order. 
 
15.3 The Environment Improvement Officer reported that the residents had been in contact 

with the council since 2005 and that the distress and disturbance experienced had been 
ongoing until the present time. He explained that the matter had been put on hold in 
order for the council to tackle a planning enforcement matter relating to a neighbouring 
development; measures were subsequently put in place to combat the problems, but 
residents continued to report incidences of criminal and anti-social behaviour. Work 
towards achieving a Gating Order began again, however, the council was unable to 
identify funding for the installation and maintenance of the gate, so officers were working 
with the residents and the local publican to develop proposals for the way forward. 

 
15.4 Councillor Mitchell welcomed the proposals and accepted that installing a gate at one 

end only would not prevent access by non-residents. She asked for confirmation that the 
council had received evidence of ongoing incidents after January 2010 as this was 
where the log stopped. She noted that Green councillors had not been supportive when 
legislation that allowed the creation of Gating Orders had been introduced. 

 
15.5 Councillor Theobald also noted that the proposals would not prevent access to the road, 

but reported that he had received some concerns from a resident that the proposals did 
not include an Environmental Impact Statement and did not mention the Equalities Act.  

 
15.6 The Environment Improvement Officer advised that the council was aware of the 

residents concerns and had addressed them within the report; he added that an 
Equalities Impact Assessment had been carried out. He reported that the council had 
received ongoing evidence of crime and disorder and explained the incident log included 
only those incidents that took place within the statutory consultation period. 

 

11



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

5 JULY 2011

15.7 Councillor Davey stated that as ward councillor for Brunswick Row, which became 
subject to a Gating Order in 2007, he had supported residents in their request. He 
advised that the installation of a gate at one end of Farman Street was the minimum 
restriction available and that he hoped it would provide the residents with some relief. 

 
15.8 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet accepted the following recommendations: 
 

(1) That agreement be given to the making of the Farman Street (Gating Order) 2011 
(see Appendix B) subject to and from the date of completion of a Management 
Agreement between the council and the Farman Street Resident's Association as 
referred to in paragraph 3.3 below. 

 
(2) That authority is delegated to the Strategic Director Place to enter into the 

Management Agreement and to advertise the Gating Order in accordance with the 
relevant Regulations. 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 3.22pm 
 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Members 

Dated this day of  
 

12



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 21 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET MEMBERS MEETING 
 

3.00PM 17 AUGUST 2011 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 3, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor Davey (Cabinet Member) 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Janio (Opposition Spokesperson) and Morgan 
(Opposition Spokesperson)  
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

16. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
16(a) Declarations of Interests 

16a.1 Councillor Janio declared a personal, but non-prejudicial interest in Item 18, a report of 
the Strategic Director, Place concerning proposals for a scheme for cycle facilities on 
Old Shoreham Road, as a family member lived in the vicinity of proposed scheme.  

16(b) Exclusion of Press and Public 

16b.1 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 
Cabinet Member considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press 
and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of 
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information 
(as defined in section 100I(I) of the Act).  

16b.2 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 

17. CABINET MEMBERS' COMMUNICATIONS 
 
17.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm thanked the opposition Members for 

making time to attend the Special Meeting. 
 
 
 
 

13



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

17 AUGUST 2011

18. OLD SHOREHAM ROAD (OSR) - 'LINKS TO SCHOOL' (LTS) CYCLE FACILITIES 
 
18.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm considered a report of the Strategic 

Director, Place seeking permission to re-consult on proposals for a scheme for cycle 
facilities on Old Shoreham Road. 

 
18.2 Councillor Davey explained that the proposed scheme would provide a high-quality 

segregated cycle route, which would be complimented by pedestrian improvements 
previously requested by residents and councillors. He welcomed the offer of Sustrans 
funding and thanked Abby Hone, Principal Transport Planning Officer, for her work 
towards securing the funding. 

 
18.3 Councillor Janio stated that he supported the linking up of good quality cycles lanes, but 

that he was not convinced that segregated cycle lanes were the best option; he asked 
that the city’s cycling community be fully consulted. He noted that £185,000 would come 
from Local Transport Plan 2012-13 funding and stated that he hoped money had not 
been redirected from other important schemes, such as Marine Parade and cycle links 
into the South Downs National Park. He also queried the timing and length of the 
consultation period and asked whether the Sustrans funding had been accepted despite 
the fact that the consultation had not yet taken place. 

 
18.4 The Cabinet Member confirmed that acceptance of the Sustrans funding was dependent 

on the scheme going ahead and that he would make a small amendment to the 
recommendations to reflect the fact that the offer of funding had been accepted. In 
response to questions from Councillor Janio, he explained that the timing of the 
consultation was due to the need to implement the scheme in the current financial year 
in order to take advantage of the funding secured from Sustrans. He stated that 
segregated cycle lanes on key routes were essential for encouraging cycling and 
ensuring cyclists felt safe on the roads, as well as preventing an increase in cycling 
casualties within the city. He added that Old Shoreham Road was different from the 
scheme in The Drive because parked vehicles were not an issue. 

 
18.5 The Principal Transport Planner advised that the council made an Expression of Interest 

to the Department for Transport for a joint bid to improve access to the SDNP alongside 
other local authorities within or adjoining the SDNP. She explained that the 2009 
consultation on a cycle scheme for Old Shoreham Road had been extensive, with 66% 
of respondents in favour of the a dedicated cycle facility; re-consultation was advised 
because of the addition of enhanced safety features and the proposal to fully segregate 
the route. 

 
18.6 Councillor Morgan welcomed the proposals and was supportive of the intention to 

provide better cycle links and improve junctions for pedestrians. He requested that the 
consultation be widely advertised so that all users have the opportunity to participate, 
not just those in the immediate vicinity of the proposed scheme. 

 
18.7 Councillor Davey advised that he would ask officers to ensure that the consultation 

process was given adequate publicity. 
 
18.8 Councillor Janio advised that he was concerned about the safety of segregated routes. 

He stated that congestion would be caused by cars waiting to turn into minor roads and 

14



 ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

17 AUGUST 2011

that this could pose a risk to cyclists. He advised of the importance of consulting with the 
emergency services, who may also be impeded when the road becomes congested. 

 
18.9 The Principal Transport Planner confirmed that there was a statutory duty to consult with 

the emergency services. 
 
18.10 RESOLVED - That, having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the following recommendations were accepted: 
 

(1) That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm gives approval to 
undertake a public consultation exercise with key stakeholders and residents in the 
direct vicinity of the proposed OSR cycle facilities as detailed in this report. 

 
(2) That Members be informed of the outcome of the consultation and findings be 

brought back to the Environment, Transport & Sustainability CMM on 4 October 
2011 for a decision on whether to proceed with the implementation of the scheme, 
including the advertising of any necessary traffic regulation orders. 

 
(3) That the Cabinet Member agrees to defer LTP Delivery Plan (2011/12-2013/14) 

funds of £125K for ‘Dyke Road cycle route’ in 2011/12 and to reallocate these 
funds to OSR cycle facilities subject to the outcome of the consultation exercise.  

 
(4) That the Cabinet Member formally accepts the offer of Sustrans LTS funding of 

£330K to implement OSR cycle facilities. 
 
(5) That the Cabinet Member agrees to commit £185K LTP Delivery Plan funding in 

financial year 2012/13 to implement traffic light controlled junction improvements to 
both junctions highlighted in this report, in order to further facilitate pedestrian 
crossing improvements and complete north/south links with existing cycle routes. 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 3.15pm 
 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member 

Dated this day of  
 

15



16



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 24 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tanya Davies Tel: 29-1227 

 E-mail: tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: Various  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions presented at Council, any petitions submitted directly 
to Democratic Services or any e-Petition submitted via the council’s website. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Cabinet Member responds to the  petition either by noting it or 
writing to the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is 
considered more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which 
may give consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

§ taking the action requested in the petition 
§ considering the petition at a council meeting 
§ holding an inquiry into the matter 
§ undertaking research into the matter 
§ holding a public meeting 
§ holding a consultation 
§ holding a meeting with petitioners 
§ referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
§ calling a referendum 

 

3. PETITIONS 
 

3. (i)  Parking Problems and Controlled Parking 
 
 To receive the following petition presented to the Cabinet Members Meeting 

by Mr Robert Rosenthal: 
 

 “We, the undersigned, find parking in our street much more difficult since 
the council introduced residents’ controlled parking in the area south of 
London Road Station in October 2010. This has made our quality of life 
north of the railway line significantly worse as a result of displacement. 
We call on the council to implement an urgent review of the parking 
problem and current policies in order to bring a solution to this problem.”  

 

17



3. (ii)  Bus stops at Wilson Avenue 
 
 To receive a petition presented at Council on 21 July by Councillor Gill 

Mitchell signed by 311 people calling for the provision of a bus shelter 
and accessible bus stop at the bus stops outside City College 
(southbound) in Wilson Avenue, and the Sadler Way bus stop.  The 
petition also asks for improvements to the 21 bus service.  

 
3. (iii)  Road safety, Chesham Street 
 
 To receive a petition presented at Council on 21 July by Councillor 

Turton and signed by 27 people calling for the Eastern Road end of 
Chesham Street to be blocked off for safety reasons due to the volume 
and speed of traffic in this small residential area. 

 
3. (iv)  A gardener for Withdean Park 
 
 To receive a petition presented at Council on 21 July by Mr Stuart Derwent on 

behalf of the Friends of Withdean Park, and signed by 435 people: 
 

 “The Friends of Withdean Park hereby petition Brighton and Hove City 
Council (City Parks) to provide Withdean Park with a regular gardener to 
help protect our former National Lilac Collection which has been sadly 
neglected by the council for many years.  

 
 The beds need regular weeding to keep the shrubs at their best. The 

older lilac beds, sycamore saplings, brambles and ivy have been 
allowed to grow and hence spoil the beautiful lilacs. 

 
 Withdean Park is more beautiful than any other Brighton park, with 35 

acres, with a large green space, woodland and a pond garden which 
brings pleasure to many different people and children and should be 
protected.” 

 
3. (v) Student Safety! Pedestrianise Pelham Street 
 
 To receive the following e-Petition submitted via the council’s website Ms 

Julia Horbaschk and signed by 189 people: 
 

 We the undersigned petition the council to Support the College 
financially to create a safe passage in form of a pedestrian zone with 
trees and seating. Having had several near misses in the last few years 
and a recorded accident this year, it is crucial to reconsider the traffic 
arrangements in this area. The road is extremely narrow making it 
impossible for two way traffic as well as aggravating drivers who force 
their way through. Having missed out on a huge redevelopment plan, 
which would have considered a change of road traffic we now feel it is 
time for a healthy change. We have evidence of a recorded accident 
which will be shown at the Council meeting in July. Sign this petition now 
to guarantee a safer crossing in Brighton. 

 
 

18



3. (vi) Residents’ parking in Round Hill conservation area 
 
 To receive the following Petition submitted presented directly to the 

Environment, Transport & Sustainability Cabinet Members Meeting by 
Councillor Deane and signed by 113 people: 

 
We, the undersigned, call on Brighton and Hove City Council to re-
consult residents in Round Hill on membership of the Area J Extension 
residents' parking scheme in the context of the problem of displacement 
from areas of the city where parking is no longer free. 
 
As new CPZs reach the boundaries of our city suburb, Round Hill cannot 
comfortably store the vehicles of outsiders wishing to avoid a fee of circa 
£2 per week. 
 
Preferential treatment is now needed for our own residents' parking 
needs as well as the other benefits (cleaner environment, clearer 
footways, more room on junctions for emergency services and recycling 
collection vehicles). Without a CPZ, the obstructions to our own 
residents' needs will get worse. 

 

19



20



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 25A(i) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

4.30pm 21 JULY 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, BRIGHTON TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Meadows (Chair), Wells (Deputy Chair), Barnett, Bennett, Bowden, 
Brown, Buckley, Carden, Cobb, Davey, Deane, Duncan, Farrow, Fitch, Follett, Gilbey, 
Hamilton, Hawtree, Janio, Jarrett, Jones, Kennedy, A Kitcat, J Kitcat, Lepper, Littman, 
MacCafferty, Marsh, Mears, Mitchell, A Norman, K Norman, Oxley, Peltzer Dunn, Phillips, 
Pidgeon, Pissaridou, Powell, Randall, Robins, Rufus, Shanks, Simson, Smith, Summers, 
Sykes, C Theobald, G Theobald, Turton, Wakefield, Wealls and West 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

7. PETITIONS FOR COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
7(c)  The Level 
 
7.42 The Mayor stated that under the Council’s petition scheme, if a petition contained 1,250 

or more signatures, it could be debated by the Full Council and such a request had been 
made in respect of an e-petition concerning The Level. 

 
7.43 The Mayor invited Mr. A. Morris to present his petition. 
 
7.44 Mr. Morris thanked the Mayor and stated that a total of 3,044 people had signed the 

combined paper and e-petition which read as follows: 
 
 “We the undersigned petition the council to take account of our opposition to any 

structural development of the area of the Level north of the Rose Walk.  We believe that 
a new and improved skate park should be built in the southern play area.” 

 
7.45 Mr. Morris stated that he hoped the council would take account of the number of people 

who had signed the petition and noted that the two interest groups who were integral to 
the lottery fund bid felt ignored throughout the consultation process.  The concern 
expressed by parents who would have children using the play area in the south and the 
relocated skate park in the north had not been addressed and it would appear that the 
impact of the new skate park had not been fully explained as part of the consultation.  
He believed that The Level was a historic open space and it needed to remain as such 
and any relocation of the skate park to the north would be a disaster. 

 

21



 

 

COUNCIL 21 JULY 2011 

7.46 Councillor West noted the petition and stated that Mr. Morris had been given the 
opportunity to present it to the Cabinet Member Meeting at which the decision was 
taken, but chose not to and therefore it could not be taken into account.  He noted that 
the consultation process had been extended and the options put forward for people to 
express their views on.  The majority of respondents had indicated they were in favour 
of moving the skate park and wanted to see the bid succeed.  In taking the decision he 
felt that he had to take account of the majority of people being in favour of moving the 
skate park and to breathe new life into city centre with the development of the area.  He 
acknowledged that his personal view had been to leave the skate park in the south but 
the public view was that it should be moved and he wished to thank the residents and 
officers for their work in taking the project forward. 

 
7.47 Councillor Mitchell stated that she wished to move an amendment on behalf of the 

Labour & Co-Operative Group to the report’s recommendation.  She believed that the 
matter had become controversial and that people were not clear about the impact of 
moving the skate park to the north would have on the area as a whole.  She queried the 
timing of the second round for the lottery bid and suggested that there was time to 
review the situation and ensure that the bid had the support of the two interest groups. 

 
7.48 Councillor Fitch formally seconded the amendment and noted that over 3,000 signatures 

had been obtained on the matter.  He suggested that there was time to re-think the 
proposals and to submit the bid, whilst maintaining the open spaces that the users of the 
area wanted. 

 
7.49 The Mayor congratulated Councillor Fitch on his maiden speech. 
 
7.50 Councillor G. Theobald queried whether the bid had been submitted or if there was time 

to amend it given the degree of opposition expressed by the number of signatories to 
the petition.  He suggested that further consultation could be undertaken and 
confirmation of their support obtained from the two interest groups that were party to the 
lottery bid. 

 
7.51 Councillor Mears stated that she fully supported the investment in The Level but could 

not support the proposed relocation of the skate park to the north.  She argued that The 
Level had two distinct areas, the north being recreational and the south a play area.  
She was also concerned about how the regular Fair and Festival activities would be 
accommodated if the skate park was moved to the north.  She queried whether the 
funding for the skate park was attributed to the lottery bid or was to be found via a 
Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7.52 Councillor Smith stated that he could not support the loss of an area that was used by 

residents as recreational space with the imposition of the skate park.  He believed that 
further consultation should take place and the Cabinet Member should consider the 
matter further. 

 
7.53 Councillor J. Kitcat stated that a thorough consultation process had been undertaken 

and 55% of the respondents had voted in favour of moving the skate park to the north.  
He also noted that at the recent Cabinet Member Meeting, opposition councillors had 
not raised the question of reviewing the matter or deferring the decision and had not 

22



 

 

COUNCIL 21 JULY 2011 

made a call-in request following the decision.  He stated that there was a need to accept 
the views of the majority and to take forward that mandate. 

 
7.54 Councillor Peltzer Dunn referred to the proposed amendment and suggested that it was 

possible for Councillor West to reconsider the decision and to take account of the views 
expressed by a significant number of people. 

 
7.55 Councillor Simson stated that she felt there was a need to take account of the views of 

the families that used the current play areas and their concerns should the skate park be 
moved to the north of not being able to watch their children in both areas.  She also 
suggested that there was time to re-examine the options and to retain the skate park in 
the south. 

 
7.56 Councillor West noted the comments and stated that the consultation process had 

shown 3 times more families in favour of moving of the skate park to the north and to be 
separate from the play area.  Of the 28,000 people consulted, 55% had been in favour 
of moving the skate park and he felt their preference should be supported.  He noted 
that the proposed amendment 2.2 referred to the second round of the lottery bid and 
that to date there had only been one round, the intention was to submit the bid for the 
second round.  He believed local ward councillors, officers and residents had worked 
very hard to take the project forward and therefore he could not support the amendment 
and stated that the bid should be submitted. 

 
7.57 The Mayor noted that an amendment had been moved along with the recommendation 

to refer the petition to the Environment & Sustainability Cabinet Member Meeting and 
stated that she would put them to the vote. 

 
7.58 The Mayor then put the Labour & Co-Operative Group’s amendment to the vote, which 

was carried. 
 
7.59 The Mayor then put the substantive recommendations as amended to the vote which 

were carried. 
 
7.60 RESOLVED:  
 

(1) That the petition be referred to the Environment & Sustainability Cabinet Member 
Meeting for consideration; and 

 

(2) That it be noted Brighton and Hove City Council was successful in the second 
round of the Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for people funding programme and that 
the council’s bid for funding has to demonstrate engagement with community 
groups; 

 
(3) That it be noted the friends of The Level and The Triangle Community Group, both 

named in the bid, are opposed to the moving of the skate park into the northern 
area; 

 
(4) That given the degree of public opposition as evidenced by this petition to the 

decision by the Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability to move the 
skate park into the northern area  and the fact that the Cabinet Member stated 

23



 

 

COUNCIL 21 JULY 2011 

when he took the decision that he is personally opposed to this move, that the 
proposals are now reviewed; 

 
(5) That as a part of this process the council should draw up and publish more detailed 

plans and illustrations that clearly demonstrate the impact that the skate park 
would have on the open, northern area including any safety features such as 
fencing, planting and landscaping; and 

 
(6) That meanwhile all monies held by the council in relation to The Level are ring-

fenced and safeguarded for that purpose. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 10.25pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

24



Environment, Transport & Sustanability CMM Agenda Item 25A(ii) 

Council 
 

 

21 July 2011 

Agenda Item 7(c) 
 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 
 

Subject: Keep the Level a Green Open Space 

Date of Meeting: 21 July 2011 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006 

 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
For general release 
 
Note:  The subject matter of the petition is an executive function and therefore not 

one that Full Council can make a decision on. 
 
PETITION TRIGGERING A FULL COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 Under the Council’s Petition Scheme if a petition contains more than 1,250 
signatures and is not a petition requesting officer evidence, it will be debated by 
the Full Council. 

 
1.2 A combined paper and e-petition has resulted in triggering a debate at the 

council meeting, having exceeded the threshold with a total of 2,498 signatures. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.1 That the petition is referred to the Environment and Sustainability Cabinet 
Member Meeting for consideration. 

 
3.  RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION / CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Petition 
 

“We the undersigned petition the council to take account of our opposition to 
any structural development of the area of the Level north of the Rose Walk.  We 
believe that a new and improved skate park should be built in the southern play 
area.” 

 
 Lead Petitioner – Mr. Adrian Morris 
 
3.2 As the subject matter of the petition relates to an executive function, the options open 

to the council are: 
 

• To note the petition and take no action for reasons put forward in the debate; 
or  

 

25



  

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting; or  
 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting with 
recommendations. 

 
4.  PROCEDURE: 
 
4.1 The petition will be debated at the Council meeting in accordance with the agreed 

protocol: 
  

(i) The Lead petitioner will be invited by the Mayor to present the petition and will 
have up to 3 minutes in which to outline the prayer of the petition and confirm 
the number of signatures; 

 
(ii) The Mayor will then call on the relevant Cabinet Member to respond to the 

petition and move a proposed response; 
 

(iii) The Mayor will then open the matter up for debate by councillors and call on 
those councillors who have indicated a desire to move an amendment or 
additional recommendation(s) to the recommendation listed in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report; 

 
(iv) Any councillor may move an amendment or recommendation, having regard to 

the recommendation in 2.1 above and any such proposal will need to be 
formally seconded; 

 
(v) After a period of 15 minutes, the Mayor will then call an end to the debate and 

ask the relevant Cabinet Member to reply to the points raised; 
 

(vi) The Mayor will then formally put:  
 
(a) Any amendments in the order in which they are moved, and then 
(b) The substantive recommendation(s) as amended (if amended). 

 

26



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 25B(i) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

4.30pm 21 JULY 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, BRIGHTON TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors  , Wells (Deputy Chair), A Norman, Barnett, Bennett, Bowden, Brown, 
Buckley, Carden, Cobb, Davey, Deane, Duncan, Farrow, Fitch, Follett, Gilbey, Hamilton, 
Hawtree, Janio, Jarrett, Jones, Kennedy, A Kitcat, J Kitcat, Lepper, Littman, MacCafferty, 
Marsh, Meadows, Mears, Mitchell, K Norman, Oxley, Peltzer Dunn, Phillips, Pidgeon, 
Pissaridou, Powell, Randall, Robins, Rufus, Shanks, Simson, Smith, Summers, Sykes, 
C Theobald, G Theobald, Turton, Wakefield, Wealls and West 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

7. PETITIONS FOR COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
7(a)  Save The Big Lemon Bus 
 
7.1 The Mayor stated that under the Council’s petition scheme, if a petition contained 1,250 

or more signatures, it could be debated by the Full Council and such a request had been 
made in respect of an e-petition concerning Save the Big Lemon Bus. 

 
7.2 The Mayor invited Ms. J. Chase to present her petition. 
 
7.3 Ms. Chase thanked the Mayor and stated that a total of 2,316 people had signed the 

combined paper and e-petition which read as follows: 
 

“We the undersigned, petition the council to level the playing field in the local bus 
industry to ensure smaller groups like The Big Lemon Bus Company are not at a 
disadvantage.” 

 
7.4 Ms. Chase stated that she hoped the council could support local businesses which 

offered a sustainable future and should not be threatened by larger competitors.  She 
believed that action taken by the larger bus company on specific routes where the Big 
Lemon operated were unfair and should be challenged. 

 
7.5 Councillor Davey noted the petition and stated that he had been impressed by the 

number of signatures that had been obtained.  He believed that there should be an open 
dialogue with all the bus companies and noted that the Office of Fair Trading was 
looking in to the situation in Brighton and Hove.  He hoped that their findings could be 

27



 COUNCIL 21 JULY 2011 

taken on board in due course and stated that he was happy to discuss ways in which 
the council could help smaller businesses to succeed. 

 
7.6 Councillor Pissaridou referred to the report on the matter and stated that she supported 

the petition that she wished to move an amendment on behalf of the Labour & Co-
Operative Group to the report’s recommendation, to encourage help for smaller 
businesses. 

 
7.7 The Mayor congratulated Councillor Pissaridou on her maiden speech. 
 
7.8 Councillor Farrow formally seconded the amendment. 
 
7.9 Councillor Janio stated that he supported the petition and the proposed amendment as 

any measures that could be used to prevent a monopoly of service provision should be 
welcomed.  He noted that the council had very little influence over the bus company and 
suggested that new legislation was required to assist with the issue. 

 
7.10 Councillor G. Theobald stated that he believed the Big Lemon Bus Company should be 

supported and welcomed the Cabinet Member’s response.  As the previous Cabinet 
Member for Environment had previously written to the Brighton & Hove Bus Company 
and Competition Commission expressing the need for competition.  However, the 
council had very little influence over such matters other than in preparing tender 
documents, which he hoped would be made more suitable for smaller businesses to 
understand. 

 
7.11 Councillor Davey welcomed the cross-party support on the issue and stated that he was 

keen to help wherever it was possible. 
 
7.12 The Mayor noted that an amendment had been moved along with the recommendation 

to refer the petition to the Environment & Sustainability Cabinet Member Meeting and 
stated that she would put them to the vote. 

 
7.13 The Mayor then put the Labour & Co-Operative Group’s amendment to the vote, which 

was carried. 
 
7.14 The Mayor then put the substantive recommendations as amended to the vote which 

were carried. 
 
7.15 RESOLVED:  
 

(1) That the petition be referred to the Environment & Sustainability Cabinet Member 
Meeting for consideration; and 

 

(2) That the council requests the Cabinet Member to consider how to offer help and 
advice to The Big Lemon Bus operators in the same way that it does for other 
smaller businesses and social enterprises in the city. 

 
Note: Councillors Kennedy and Wakefield, having declared a personal and prejudicial interest 

in the item as shareholders of The Big Lemon Bus withdrew from the meeting and took 
no part in the discussion or decision thereon. 

28



Environment, Transport & Sustainability CMM Agenda Item 25B(ii) 

Council 
 

 

21 July 2011 

Agenda Item 7(a) 
 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 
 

Subject: Save the Big Lemon Bus 

Date of Meeting: 21 July 2011 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006 

 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
For general release 
 
Note:  The subject matter of the petition is an executive function and therefore not 

one that Full Council can make a decision on. 
 
 
PETITION TRIGGERING A FULL COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 Under the Council’s Petition Scheme if a petition contains more than 1,250 
signatures and is not a petition requesting officer evidence, it will be debated by 
the Full Council. 

 
1.2 A combined paper and e-petition has resulted in triggering a debate at the 

council meeting, having exceeded the threshold with a total of 2,316 signatures. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.1 That the petition is referred to the Transport and Public Realm Cabinet Member 
Meeting for consideration. 

 
3.  RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION / CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Petition 
 

“We the undersigned petition the council to level the playing field in the local bus 
industry to ensure smaller groups like The Big Lemon Bus Company are not at 
a disadvantage.” 

 
 Lead Petitioner – Ms. Jackie Chase 
 
3.2 As the subject matter of the petition relates to an executive function, the options open 

to the council are: 
 

• To note the petition and take no action for reasons put forward in the debate; 
or  

 

29



  

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting; or  
 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting with 
recommendations. 

 
4.  PROCEDURE: 
 
4.1 The petition will be debated at the Council meeting in accordance with the agreed 

protocol: 
  

(i) The Lead petitioner will be invited by the Mayor to present the petition and will 
have up to 3 minutes in which to outline the prayer of the petition and confirm 
the number of signatures; 

 
(ii) The Mayor will then call on the relevant Cabinet Member to respond to the 

petition and move a proposed response; 
 

(iii) The Mayor will then open the matter up for debate by councillors and call on 
those councillors who have indicated a desire to move an amendment or 
additional recommendation(s) to the recommendation listed in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report; 

 
(iv) Any councillor may move an amendment or recommendation, having regard to 

the recommendation in 2.1 above and any such proposal will need to be 
formally seconded; 

 
(v) After a period of 15 minutes, the Mayor will then call an end to the debate and 

ask the relevant Cabinet Member to reply to the points raised; 
 

(vi) The Mayor will then formally put:  
 
(a) Any amendments in the order in which they are moved, and then 
(b) The substantive recommendation(s) as amended (if amended). 

 

30



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 27 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

DEPUTATIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed at each ordinary meeting 
for the hearing of deputations from members of the public.  Each deputation may be 
heard for a maximum of five minutes following which the relevant Cabinet Member 
may speak in response.  The deputation will be thanked for attending and its subject 
matter noted. 
 
(a) Deputation concerning proposed yellow lines between Maresfield and 

Cowfield Roads – Mrs Jenny Gearing (Spokesperson) 
 

"I would like to present this deputation in relation to the proposed double yellow 
lines between Maresfield & Cowfold road in the Manor Hill area. Myself & my 
neighbours are 'against the proposed double yellow lines’ and I have a petition In 
support of this. Please note that the petition also contains signatures of a few 
family members of Manor Hill’s elderly residents ‘whom rely on daily carers & 
visits’. 
  
Our objections are purely simple ‘if its agreed to go ahead with proposed double 
yellow lines’ residents like myself who have no option other than to park in Manor 
Hill will have no parking available to us. 
  
Most of the daily parking problems / issues to the top end of Manor Hill, stem from 
the Monday - Friday parking of hospital staff ' These guys park here as the new 
permit parking restrictions have forced them further from the hospital.  On the 
introduction of these lines ‘hospital staff will still go to work’ just their parking 
problem will just be pushed into our neighbouring areas east of Manor Hill giving 
them an extra 5 or 10 minute walk each day but leaving residents like myself with 
no alternative parking. 
  
When the permits were introduced to Cowfold & Maresfeild  'I wrote to the parking 
strategy team' & strongly put forward our objections but was told that all the 
relevant checks regarding safety for other road users had been taken into 
consideration & they could assure me the council were in talks with the hospital 
staff regarding possible ‘new schemes’ to get these guys too & from work?  
Where is the new scheme? 
   
A few months after the permits were in place, we heard to our dismay 'double 
yellows being introduced in some parts of Manor Hill ‘already feeling the effects of 
the permits.  I immediately called the parking strategy team again & explained 
again how difficult it was for us to park but I was advised that our road was 
checked & it appeared certain ‘crossing & passing’ parts of the Manor Hill had now 
caused worry & were a danger to persons crossing the road or to vehicles passing 
around road islands & therefore ‘double yellow lines’ were a necessary precaution. 
Although I was upset as now our already challenged parking options would be 
even more stressful I totally understood ‘children & elderly’ have the right to cross 
a busy road in safety & that week the double yellow lines were in place. 
  
 
 

31



 
 
 
§ If the parking strategy team checked the area & deemed it although not ideal it 

was necessary to introduce permits in nearby streets ‘why not include ours’? 
 
§ When again they have already re-thought the crossing of children & elderly & 

put double yellow in the areas of concerns ‘why do we need double yellow 
lines outside our home’? 

 
§ This request of double yellow lines is a totally un-necessary provocation, over 

last 2 years Manor Hill has felt the wrath of the parking restrictions ‘ we have 
had our cars scratched our tyres punctured’  & tempers have already been 
heightened all because we have no choice but to use both sides of the Hill for 
parking, 'but at least we are still able to park' & traffic still passes with little 
disruption to drivers. 

 
§ If any further restrictions need to be introduced maybe ‘where there is a 

driveway’ place white lines to show the drive is active. 
 
§ In such a busy road as Manor Hill ‘introduce a 15 or 20 mph zone’ to slow 

down traffic. 
 
§ Issue residents in nearby Cowfold & Maresfield more permits giving them 

the option to park in their own streets. 
 
§ Provide hospital staff with either permits or alternative travel to encourage 

them to leave their cars at home. 
 
§ Introduce a single yellow line with a Mon-Friday 9am to 5pm restriction to 

discourage long term parking for hospital staff. 
  
There are other options open to the Manor Hill parking saga without passing 
this request at the detriment to the local residents such as myself & my 
neighbours.   
 
PLEASE SAY NO!" 

32



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 31 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Citywide amendment Traffic Order: various traffic 
changes to Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) and 
areas outside of CPZ 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Charles Field Tel: 29-3329 

 Email: charles.field@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No: ETSCMM22132 

Ward(s) affected: Brunswick & Adelaide; Central Hove; East Brighton; 
Goldsmid; Hangleton & Knoll; Hanover & Elm 
Grove; Hollingdean & Stanmer; Hove Park; 
Moulsecoomb & Bevendean; North Portslade; 
Patcham; Preston Park; Queens Park; Regency; 
Rottingdean Coastal; St Peter’s & North Laine; 
South Portslade; Westbourne; Wish; Withdean; 
Woodingdean 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1  The Parking Infrastructure Team receives a number of requests for alterations to 

parking restrictions within the Controlled Parking Zones and outside these areas. 
These requests are most often from residents, but can also be from businesses, 
local members, or other teams within the Council such as Road Safety. After 
investigation, if it is decided that the request is justified then it is advertised on a 
Traffic Regulation Order. These amendments often help to improve sustainable 
transport, for example by providing additional motorcycle bays or improved 
accessibility for disabled people by providing disabled parking bays. 

 
1.2 This report considers the comments, support and objections received to an 

amendment Traffic Regulation Order, which contains proposals for overall 150 
roads. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm , having taken into 

account of all the duly made representations and objections, approves the 
Various Controlled Parking Zones Consolidation Order 2008 Amendment Order 
No.* 201* and Brighton & Hove (Waiting & Loading/Unloading Restrictions and 
Parking Places) Consolidation Order 2008 amendment Order No.* 201* with the 
following amendments: 

 
a) The proposed removal of disabled parking bays in Prince’s Terrace, Stirling 

Place, Denton Drive and Haig Avenue, are to be removed from the Traffic 
Order as these bays are still required by local residents. 

33



 

 
b) The proposed double yellow lines in Manor Hill are to be removed from the 

Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.4 
 
c) The proposed motorcycle bay in Stroudley Road is to be removed from the 

Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.9. 
 
d) The proposed double yellow lines at the junction of Brownleaf Road and 

Abinger Road are to be removed from the Traffic Order due to reasons 
outlined in section 3.10 

 
e) The proposed limited waiting in Matlock Road is to be removed from the 

Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.11. 
 
f) The proposed change to parking arrangements in Victoria Road is to be 

removed from the traffic order due to reasons outlined in section 3.12. 
 
g) The proposed extension to double yellow lines in Friar Road are to be 

removed from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.16. 
 
h) The proposed motorcycle bay in Coleman Street is to be removed from the 

Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.17. 
 
i) The proposed double yellow lines in Tongdean Rise are to be removed 

from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.18. 
 
j) The proposed double yellow lines in the access road to Kingsmere, London 

Road are to be removed from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in 
section 3.19 

 
k) The proposed double yellow lines in Oakdene Close are to be removed 

from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.20. 
 
l) The proposed double yellow lines in Braybon Avenue are to be removed 

from the Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.21. 
 
m) The proposed double yellow lines on Roedean Road from the A259 to the 

junction of The Cliff and Roedean Crescent are to be removed from the 
Traffic Order due to reasons outlined in section 3.22. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS:  
 
3.1 This Combined Traffic Order includes proposed restrictions for over 150 roads 

city wide. A number of objections were received to the advertised Traffic 
Regulation Orders. The comments, support and objections are summarised and 
explained in detail in Appendix A and plans showing the proposals which have 
received comments/objections are shown in Appendix B. Also a summary of 
proposals to be put forward are detailed in Appendix C.  

 
 
 

34



 

3.2 In particular objections were received in relation to the following proposals: 
 

a) Manor Road (East Brighton – Controlled Parking Zone H) – proposed 
relocation of motorcycle bay 

 
b) Manor Hill (East Brighton) – proposed double yellow lines 
 
c) Hanover Terrace (Hanover & Elm Grove) – proposed extension to 

motorcycle bay outside No.34 
 
d) Graham Close (North Portslade) – proposed double yellow lines  
 
e) Drove Road (North Portslade) – proposed double yellow lines  
 
f) Stroudley Road (St Peter’s & North Laine – Controlled Parking Zone Y)  - 

proposed motorcycle bay outside No.32 
 
g) Brownleaf Road/Abinger Road (Woodingdean) – proposed double yellow 

lines 
 
h) Matlock Road (Withdean) – proposed limited waiting 
 
i) Victoria Road (South Portslade) – proposed changes to swap parking 

restriction & parking bays from one side of the road to the other side 
 
j) Cromwell Road (Goldsmid) – Controlled Parking Zone O) – proposed 

disabled parking bay outside No.24 
 
k) Upper North Street (Regency- Controlled Parking Zone Z) – proposed 

motorcycle bay outside No.72 
 
l) Lullington Avenue (Hove Park) – proposed removal of a disabled parking 

bay 
 
m) Friar Road (Withdean) – proposed extension to double yellow lines 
 
n) Coleman Street (Hanover & Elm Grove) – proposed motorcycle bay outside 

No.75 
 
o) Access Road to Kingsmere, London Road (Withdean) – proposed double 

yellow lines 
 
3.3 Letters of support were received in relation to the following proposals: 
 

a) Salisbury Road (Brunswick & Adelaide – Controlled Parking Zone N) – 
proposed extension to motorcycle bay outside No.36  

 
b) Manor Hill (East Brighton) – proposed double yellow lines 
 
c) Hanover Terrace (Hanover & Elm Grove)  - proposed extension to 

motorcycle bay outside No.34 
 

35



 

d) Graham Close (North Portslade)  - proposed double yellow lines 
 
e) Richmond Parade (Queens Park) – proposed double yellow lines 
 
f) Challoners Close (Rottingdean Coastal) – proposed extension to double 

yellow lines 
 
g) Upper Lewes Road (St Peter’s & North Laine) – proposed removal of single 

yellow lines 
 
h) Stroudley Road (St Peter’s & North Laine – Controlled Parking Zone Y) – 

proposed motorcycle bay outside No.32 
 
i) Batemans Road (Woodingdean) – proposed disabled parking bay outside 

No.19 
 
j) Brownleaf Road/Abinger Road (Woodingdean) – proposed double yellow 

lines 
 
k) Hill Drive (Hove Park) – proposed double yellow lines 
 
l) Matlock Road (Withdean) – proposed limited waiting 
 
m) Roedean Road, Cliff Approach, Cliff Road, The Cliff & Roedean Crescent 

(Rottingdean Coastal) – proposed double yellow lines 
 
n) Brading Road/Hartington Road (Hanover & Elm Grove) – proposed double 

yellow lines 
 

Summary of Objections 
 

3.4 Manor Road - there has been 1 objection to the proposed relocation of a 
motorcycle bay. This was requested by a resident as the location of current 
motorcycle bay is not a very safe place as it is right at the end of the road and 
nearly on the corner. Motorcycles can be knocked down. The proposal will allow 
motorcycles to park safely and this would encourage a more sustainable method 
of transport. Therefore, it is proposed to proceed with the relocation of the 
motorcycle bay. 

 
3.5 Manor Hill – there have been 2 objections and 1 item of support for the 

proposed double yellow lines. This was requested by a resident as parking in this 
location causes an obstruction to cars, buses and larger vehicles. Double yellow 
lines would make it easier for vehicles to pass. The Road safety Team have 
commented that this proposal would open the road up and vehicle speeds will 
increase. At present it is a natural traffic calming measure and has reduced 
speeds dramatically. If residents with driveways are having problems with 
vehicles parking over them they can apply for a white return line. Therefore, due 
to the objections and comments from the Road Safety team we are 
recommending not to proceed with this proposal.  

 
3.6 Hanover Terrace – there have been 3 objections and 4 items of support for the 

proposed extension to a motorcycle bay. This was requested by a resident as the 

36



 

bay is always full to overflowing with motorbikes. The proposal will allow more 
motorcycles to park and this would encourage a more sustainable method of 
transport. Therefore, it is proposed to proceed with the extension of the 
motorcycle bay. 

 
3.7 Graham Close - there has been 1 objection and 5 items of support to the 

proposed double yellow lines. The request has come from residents via their 
Ward Councillor as vehicles parking in this turning area cause an obstruction for 
other road users. The proposal would improve visibility and safety for all roads 
users. Therefore, it is proposed to proceed with the double yellow lines.  

 
3.8 Drove Road - there has been an objection to the proposed double yellow lines. 

The request was received from a Ward Councillor to prevent congestion. This 
road is quite narrow and when vehicles park it is difficult for traffic to pass. The 
proposal would improve visibility and safety for all roads users. Therefore, it is 
proposed to proceed with the double yellow lines 

 
3.9 Stroudley Road - there have been 6 objections and 1 item of support to the 

proposed motorcycle bay. The request was from a worker in the area as there 
are no motorcycle bays within the vicinity only disabled parking bays. However 
following consultation residents were concerned about this proposal due to 
pollution and noise that this would create in a residential street. Therefore, we 
are recommending not to proceed with this proposal. 

 
3.10 Brownleaf Road / Abinger Road – This proposal was previously deferred to 

investigate further. This proposal was re-advertised and there have been 2 
objections and 1 item of support to the proposed double yellow lines.  The lines 
were requested by a resident as cars should not be parking on the junction and 
these lines would improve safety, pedestrian access and visibility. Due to the 
comments received we have been in contact with City Clean and they have 
stated that they have not had a problem at this junction A Ward Councillor is also 
opposed to this proposal. Therefore, we are recommending not to proceed with 
this proposal. 

 
3.11 Matlock Road - there have been 24 objections and 2 items of support to the 

proposed limited waiting bays. This was requested by a business in the area to 
enable visitors and customers using the local shops and facilities to park for a 
limited time. However following consultation residents were concerned that this 
would take valuable parking spaces and it was felt that there was already 
sufficient limited waiting opposite this location. Therefore, we are recommending 
not proceed with this proposal. 

 
3.12 Victoria Road, Portslade – there has been a petition of 47 signatures objecting 

to the proposals and 3 objections to the proposed change to parking layout 
(swapping the parking to the north and the single yellow lines to the south side). 
The request was originally received from a Ward Councillor and was 
accompanied by a petition of 57 signatures supporting swapping the parking to 
the north side of the road and the single yellow lines to the south side. A number 
of addresses signed both petitions and some of the parking issues seem to now 
be resolved by allowing parking for vehicles overnight in the park. Therefore, we 
are recommending not to proceed with this proposal. 

 

37



 

3.13 Cromwell Road - there has been an objection to the disabled parking bay. This 
was requested by a resident who has been assessed for the disabled bay on 
mobility grounds. This bay will allow them to park close to their home and 
enables them to carry out tasks which might otherwise be very difficult. Although 
the bay is put in at the request of the applicant anyone with a blue badge is 
entitled to park in this bay. Therefore it is proposed to proceed with the disabled 
parking bay. 

 
3.14 Upper North Street – there have been 2 objections to the proposed motorcycle 

bay. The request was from a resident in the area, as  the nearest is in Regent 
Hill, which is very impractical for parking motorbikes, because the hill is quite 
steep and is also a windy section of the road, so some motor bikes have been 
blown over. Due to the low provision of motorcycle bays in the town centre, this 
would allow more motorcycles to park, encouraging a more sustainable method 
of transport. Therefore, it is proposed to proceed with the motorcycle bay. 

 
3.15 Lullington Avenue – there have been 2 objections to the proposed removal of a 

disabled parking bay. The requirements for applying for a disabled parking bay 
are that you have a blue badge, you are the driver of the vehicle or the driver 
lives at the property. The reason this bay is being removed is that the resident 
does not have a blue badge (they have not applied for one) and the driver of the 
vehicle does not live at the property. Therefore, it is proposed to proceed with the 
removal of the disabled parking bay 
 

3.16 Friar Road – there has been an objection to the proposed extension to double 
yellow lines. The request was from a resident in the area as vehicles parked at 
this junction making it dangerous for motorists, especially when turning left into 
Friar Road from Ditchling Road. This proposal has been discussed and was felt 
that extending the double yellow lines would be excessive as there are already 
15 metres of double yellow lines, which is quite sufficient. Therefore, we are 
recommending not to proceed with this proposal. 
 

3.17 Coleman Street – there has been an objection to the proposed motorcycle bay. 
This was requested by a resident as there were several motorcycle users in this 
road. However, this proposal is being withdrawn from the traffic order due to the 
request of the resident as many of the other motorcyclists have moved away. 

 
3.18 Tongdean Rise – there have been 3 objections. This was requested by City 

Clean as refuse vehicles were having difficulties entering this section of 
Tongdean Rise. This is being withdrawn from the order as the location on the 
advertised plan and description on the Traffic Order showed the proposed double 
yellow lines in the wrong location. This proposal will be re-advertised in the 
November 2011 order and the objections and support received for this order will 
be included in that report. Residents who have e-mailed or written in have been 
informed of this. 

 
3.19 Access Road to Kingsmere, London Road – there has been a petition with 43 

signatures from the Kingsmere Residents Association objecting to the proposed 
double yellow lines. This was requested by City Clean as the refuse vehicles are 
having problems gaining access to the bin stores because of parked cars on the 
bend near the entrance. However following consultation residents were 
concerned that this would result in further congestion of the estate causing 

38



 

obstruction that would impact on emergency services. Therefore, we are 
recommending not to proceed with this proposal. 

 
3.20 Oakdene Close – This was requested by a Ward Councillor and a PCSO to 

prevent obstruction from parked vehicles. The Ward Councillor had a meeting on 
15th June 2011 with residents of Oakdene Close along with two PCSOs. They 
reached a conclusion that it would be better to have a further look at the lining 
and withdraw the proposal from this Traffic Order and advertise a new proposal 
on the next Traffic Order. 

 
3.21 Braybon Avenue - This was requested by a resident as at the junction with 

Greenfield Crescent there was a visibility black spot and over the year there had 
been several accidents. The proposed location was incorrect and the resident 
apologises that he had not clearly stated the correct location. Therefore this 
proposal has been withdrawn. The correct location will be investigated and 
advertised in our next Traffic Order. 

 
3.22 Roedean Road – The Double Yellow lines throughout Roedean Road were 

advertised alongside a Coach park proposal to allow alternative parking for 
coaches.  

 
An officer met with representatives of the local resident association who wanted 
the double yellow lines throughout Roedean Road. The reason for this was that 
they felt the coaches caused a safety issue on the road with a lack of visibility for 
vehicles passing through. They also explained that there were pedestrian safety 
issues on the stretch between the Cliff and Roedean Crescent junction down to 
the traffic lights with Wilson Avenue which were not connected to coach parking 
but other vehicles parking dangerously. 

 
However, the Coach park proposal is not being taken forward at this time so the 
proposal for double yellow lines from the A259 to the junction of The Cliff and 
Roedean Crescent needs to be removed from the Traffic order as there are now 
no alternative arrangements for coaches and there are concerns about coaches 
displacing into surrounding roads if no arrangements are in place. This 
displacement may cause increased safety risks due to the coaches possibly 
moving to smaller residential roads. 
 
The Double Yellow lines from the junction of The Cliff and Roedean Crescent 
down to the traffic lights with Wilson Avenue will be implemented as this section 
is a safety issue for pedestrians when vehicles are parking in this location. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 

  
4.1 The Traffic Regulation Order was advertised between the 17th June 2011 and 

11th July 2011. 
 
4.2 The Ward Councillors for the areas were consulted, as were the statutory 

consultees such as the Emergency Services.   
 
4.3 Notices were also put on street for the 17th June 2011; these comprised of the 

notice as well as a plan showing the proposal and the reasons for it.  The notice 
was also published in The Argus newspaper on the 17th June 2011. Detailed 

39



 

plans and the order were available to view at Hove Library, Jubilee Library and at 
the City Direct Offices at Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Financial implications: 
 
5.1 The full cost of advertising the order and having the lining and signing amended 

will be covered from the existing traffic revenue budget. 
 
  Finance officer consulted:   Karen Brookshaw  Date: 22/08/11      
 
  Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The Council’s powers and duties under the Highways Act 1980 and the Road 

Traffic Regulation Act 1984 must be exercised to secure the expeditious, 
convenient and safe movement of all types of traffic including cyclists and 
pedestrians. As far as is practicable, the Council should  have regard to any 
implications in relation to:- access to premises; the effect on amenities; the 
Council’s air quality strategy; facilitating the passage of public services vehicles; 
securing the safety and convenience of users; any other matters that appear 
relevant to the Council. 

 
5.3 The Council has to follow the rules on consultation promulgated by the 

government and the courts. The Council must ensure that the consultation 
process is carried out at a time when proposals are still at their formative stage, 
that sufficient reasons and adequate time must be given to allow intelligent 
consideration and responses and that results are conscientiously taken into 
account in finalising the proposals.  

 
5.4 After the proposals are formally advertised, the Council can, in the light of 

objections / representations received, decide to re-consult either widely or 
specifically when it believes that it would be appropriate before deciding the final 
composition of any associated orders. Where there are unresolved objections to 
the Traffic Orders, then the matter is required to return to Environment CMM for a 
decision. 

 
5.5 Relevant Human Rights Act rights to which the council should have regard in 

exercising its traffic management powers are the right to respect for family and 
private life and the right to protection of property. These are qualified rights and 
therefore there can be interference with them in appropriate circumstances. 
There are no human rights implications to draw to Members' attention at this 
stage. 

 
  Lawyer consulted:    Carl Hearsum  Date: 24/08/11     
 
  Equalities Implications: 
 
5.6 The proposed measures will be of benefit to many road users.   
 
 
 

40



 

Sustainability Implications: 
 

5.7 The new motorcycle bays will encourage more sustainable methods of transport. 
 

Crime & Disorder Implications: 
 

5.8 The proposed amendments to restrictions will not have any implication on the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 

 
Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

5.9 Any risks will be monitored as part of the overall project management, but none 
have been identified.  

 
Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
5.10 The legal disabled bays will provide parking for the holders of blue badges 

wanting to use the local facilities. 
 
6.  EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  

  
6.1 For the majority of the proposals the only alternative option is doing nothing 

which would mean the proposals would not be taken forward. However, it is the 
recommendation of officers that these proposals are proceeded with for the 
reasons outlined in Appendix A and within the report. 

 
6.2 For the proposals outlined as being removed from the order in the 

recommendations the only alternative option is taking these forward. However, it 
is the recommendation of officers that these proposals are not taken forward for 
the reasons outlined in the recommendations. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of the Traffic Order with amendments after taking into 

consideration of the duly made representations and objections. 
 
 
 

41



 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – summary of representations received 
 
Appendix B  - Plans showing the proposals 
 
Appendix C – Summary of proposal put forward 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 
  
 

42



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

W
h
o
 

R
o
a
d
 /
  

W
a
rd
 

O
b
je
c
t 
/ 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

C
o
n
te
n
ts
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
/R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 N
 –
 

B
ru
n
sw

ic
k
 &
 

A
d
e
la
id
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

S
a
lis
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 1
0
0
%
 a
s 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l w

a
st
e
 b
in
s 
w
e
re
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
in
, 
S
a
lis
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 lo

st
 o
n
e
 o
f 
it
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 H
 -
 

E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 r
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 M

a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 n
e
w
 lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
. 
Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
s 
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
e
rm

it
 h
o
ld
e
r 
b
a
y
 is
 in
 c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
u
se
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

su
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 a
re
 

a
ll 
c
a
r 
o
w
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
 c
a
r 
a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
c
a
r 
b
u
rg
la
ry
 a
n
d
 

v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
. 
H
a
v
in
g
 a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 c
lo
se
 t
o
o
 

o
r 
in
 f
ro
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 c
o
u
ld
 c
re
a
te
 

d
is
tu
rb
in
g
 n
o
is
e
 e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
ig
h
t.
 

B
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 is
 u
n
su
it
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
m
o
st
 o
f 
th
e
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
. 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
 w

a
s 
n
o
t 
a
 v
e
ry
 s
a
fe
 p
la
c
e
 

a
s 
it
 is
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 r
ig
h
t 
n
e
a
r 
th
e
 c
o
rn
e
r 
so
 

m
o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
c
a
n
 b
e
 e
a
si
ly
 

k
n
o
c
k
e
d
 o
v
e
r.
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 

w
ill
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 

su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 m

e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 M

a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 –
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
s 
a
t 
th
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
t 
it
’s
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 
c
a
rs
, 
b
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 lo

n
g
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
to
 m

o
v
e
 a
s 
o
n
 b
o
th
 s
id
e
s 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 

p
a
rk
e
d
. 
It
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

u
c
h
 b
e
tt
e
r 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 

y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
re
 m

a
rk
e
d
. 

 

43



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 M

a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 –
 

S
tr
o
n
g
ly
 O

b
je
c
t 
a
s 
si
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 in
p
u
t 
o
f 
p
e
rm

it
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 

c
lo
se
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s 
a
n
d
 if
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
re
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld
 s
im

p
ly
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 

p
a
rk
. 
O
n
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
is
 f
o
rt
u
n
a
te
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

d
ri
v
e
w
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
a
rs
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
y
 p
o
ss
ib
ly
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
o
 w

it
h
 a
 w

h
it
e
 li
n
e
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
r 

u
se
rs
 it
 is
 a
 d
ri
v
e
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
ss
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 a
re
 

m
o
st
ly
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
m
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 c
a
re
rs
 2
 o
r 
3
 t
im

e
s 
d
a
ily
 ‘
w
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 

th
e
se
 g
u
y
s 
p
a
rk
’?
 F
e
e
l 
to
ta
lly
 p
u
sh
e
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 t
h
is
 

w
h
o
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
a
g
a
, 
a
s 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 

th
e
 u
se
 o
f 
p
e
rm

it
s 
a
n
d
 n
o
w
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
to
 b
e
 

p
u
sh
e
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
 b
y
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 I
t 
is
 a
 

b
u
sy
 r
o
a
d
, 
b
u
t 
b
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 c
a
rs
 h
a
v
e
 p
a
ss
e
d
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
to
 m

u
c
h
 t
ro
u
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
a
st
 y
e
a
r.
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
–
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
is
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
u
se
s 
a
n
 o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 

to
 c
a
rs
, 
b
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 la

rg
e
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
s.
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 m

a
k
e
 it
 e
a
si
e
r 
fo
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
to
 p
a
ss
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 M

a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 id

e
a
 o
f 
d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

M
a
n
o
r 
Th
is
 w

ill
 a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

h
e
lp
. 
W
o
rr
ie
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
w
ill
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 w

h
e
n
/i
f 

th
is
 h
a
p
p
e
n
s 
a
s 
th
e
re
 is
 n
e
v
e
r 
a
n
y
 s
p
a
c
e
s,
 a
n
d
 

w
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
e
rm

it
s 
b
e
in
g
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
s 
th
is
 w

ill
 h
e
lp
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
. 

M
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 p
a
rk
 

h
e
re
, 
so
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
te
n
d
 w

it
h
 H
o
sp
it
a
l, 

C
o
w
fo
ld
 a
n
d
 M

a
re
sf
ie
ld
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 s
o
 a
d
d
in
g
 

d
o
u
b
le
 li
n
e
s 
w
ill
 ju
st
 c
a
u
se
 m

o
re
 a
g
ro
. 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
–
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
is
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
u
se
s 
a
n
 o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 

to
 c
a
rs
, 
b
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 la

rg
e
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
s.
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 m

a
k
e
 it
 e
a
si
e
r 
fo
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
to
 p
a
ss
. 

44



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 

Zo
n
e
 O

 –
 

G
o
ld
sm

id
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 2
4
 

C
ro
m
w
e
ll 
R
o
a
d
, 
H
o
v
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
4
 

C
ro
m
w
e
ll 
R
o
a
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
so
n
s 
1
) 
A
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 h
o
u
se
s 
in
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
C
ro
m
w
e
ll 
R
o
a
d
 a
re
 

m
u
lt
ip
le
 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

b
a
y
 w

ill
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
n
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
o
n
ly
, 
b
u
t 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 m

a
n
y
. 
2
) 
Th
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
C
ro
m
w
e
ll 

R
o
a
d
 h
a
s 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 lo

st
 2
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
d
u
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
2
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l r
e
fu
se
 b
in
s,
 3
) 
N
o
.2
0
 

C
ro
m
w
e
ll 
R
o
a
d
 h
a
s 
ju
st
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
v
e
rt
e
d
 t
o
 a
 6
 

u
n
it
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
. 
Th
is
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

m
u
c
h
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
h
e
n
 it
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 is
. 
4
) 
P
a
rk
in
g
 

in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
w
h
o
 

h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
ss
e
ss
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
 o
n
 m

o
b
ili
ty
 

g
ro
u
n
d
s.
  

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 F
u
lly
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
. 
W
id
e
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 b
y
 1
 o
r 
2
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
w
o
u
ld
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 in
c
re
a
se
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 
c
a
rs
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 a
s 
w
e
ll 
a
s 
c
u
tt
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

d
a
m
a
g
e
s 
to
 b
ik
e
s.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 I
n
 f
u
ll 
su
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 f
o
r 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

B
a
y
 in
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
. 

 

45



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 t
o
 e
xt
e
n
d
 

a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 

Te
rr
a
c
e
. 
It
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
 s
a
fe
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 
to
 

p
a
rk
. 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 in
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
. 

M
a
in
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 is
 t
h
e
 n
o
is
e
 f
ro
m
 a
 r
e
v
v
in
g
 b
ik
e
 

e
n
g
in
e
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

in
te
r 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
ik
e
 b
a
y
 is
 

a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 a
s 
p
e
o
p
le
 le

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 b
ik
e
s 

ru
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 b
it
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
y
 r
id
e
 t
h
e
m
. 
Th
is
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
s 
o
ft
e
n
 in
 t
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 m

o
rn
in
g
 b
e
fo
re
 6
a
m
. 

If
 y
o
u
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 

m
o
re
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
th
e
 b
a
y
 is
 a
lw
a
y
s 
fu
ll 

to
 o
v
e
r 
fl
o
w
in
g
 w

it
h
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
 b
a
y
 o
n
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
. 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
d
is
tu
rb
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
b
ik
e
s 

b
e
in
g
 s
ta
re
d
 u
p
 a
n
d
 le

ft
 t
o
 r
u
n
 w

h
ile
 r
id
e
rs
 g
e
t 

re
a
d
y
 t
o
 le

a
v
e
. 
O
r 
w
o
rs
t 
st
ill
 if
 a
 s
p
o
rt
s 
b
ik
e
 o
w
n
e
r 

d
e
c
id
e
s 
to
 s
it
 in
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
 t
h
e
ir
 b
ik
e
 it
 is
 

in
c
re
d
ib
ly
 lo

u
d
. 
Th
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 b
e
 a
s 

e
a
rl
y
 a
s 
5
.0
0
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
s 
la
te
 a
s 
1
.0
0
a
m
. 
A
n
o
th
e
r 

k
e
y
 t
o
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
is
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
 o
c
c
a
si
o
n
s 
th
e
 d
u
st
b
in
 

lo
rr
y
 c
a
tc
h
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
se
 b
ik
e
s 
a
s 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
is
 s
o
 

n
a
rr
o
w
, 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 e
v
e
n
 e
n
d
e
d
 u
p
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
lo
o
r,
 

E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
th
e
 b
a
y
 is
 a
lw
a
y
s 
fu
ll 

to
 o
v
e
r 
fl
o
w
in
g
 w

it
h
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

46



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

b
y
 a
d
d
in
g
 m

o
re
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 t
h
is
 b
a
y
 t
h
is
 is
 g
o
in
g
 

to
 in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
ss
 b
e
in
g
 o
b
st
ru
c
te
d
, 

n
o
t 
to
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
ik
e
s.
  

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
 b
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 3
4
 a
n
d
 

3
5
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
Te
rr
a
c
e
. 
M
o
d
e
rn
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
se
e
m
 t
o
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 s
e
v
e
ra
l m

in
u
te
s 
o
f 
id
lin
g
 t
im

e
 b
e
fo
re
 

p
u
lli
n
g
 o
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 is
 q
u
it
e
 a
 c
a
m
b
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
. 
A
ls
o
 m

o
d
e
rn
 b
ik
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
it
c
h
e
d
 

e
n
g
in
e
 s
o
u
n
d
 w

h
ic
h
 is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 d
is
tu
rb
in
g
. 
Th
e
 

n
o
is
e
 a
n
d
 f
u
m
e
s 
a
re
 a
 d
a
ily
 d
is
tu
rb
a
n
c
e
. 

E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
th
e
 b
a
y
 is
 a
lw
a
y
s 
fu
ll 

to
 o
v
e
r 
fl
o
w
in
g
 w

it
h
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 C
o
le
m
a
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 
–
 

O
p
p
o
se
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
It
 w

o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
le
xi
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 in
 

th
is
 r
o
a
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
. 

If
 t
h
e
re
 w

a
s 
to
 b
e
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 s
p
a
c
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
it
 w

o
u
ld
 s
u
re
ly
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 

th
e
 r
o
a
d
 w

h
e
re
 it
 is
 m

o
re
 e
a
si
ly
 a
c
c
e
ss
ib
le
 a
n
d
 

le
ss
 h
in
d
ra
n
c
e
. 
If
 it
 is
 m

e
re
ly
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 t
o
 o
n
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 r
e
a
so
n
 o
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
h
e
n
 s
u
re
ly
 t
h
is
 is
 u
n
fa
ir
. 
 

E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 

Th
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
th
e
re
 w

e
re
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 u
se
rs
 in
 t
h
is
 r
o
a
d
. 

Th
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 w

it
h
d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

tr
a
ff
ic
 o
rd
e
r 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

o
f 
th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
a
s 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
th
e
r 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
lis
ts
 h
a
v
e
 

m
o
v
e
d
 a
w
a
y
. 
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 

E
lm

 G
ro
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

H
a
rt
in
g
to
n
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 B
ra
d
in
g
 R
o
a
d
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
Th
e
re
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
 h
u
g
e
 in
c
re
a
se
 in
 

p
a
rk
e
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 in
 t
h
e
 l
a
st
 f
e
w
 y
e
a
rs
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 o
ft
e
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 s
e
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 w

e
ll 
to
 

e
n
te
r 
a
n
d
 e
xi
t 
B
ra
d
in
g
 R
o
a
d
 S
a
fe
ly
. 

 

47



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 3
1
 L
u
lli
n
g
to
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 b
a
y
 a
s 
th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 is
 s
u
ff
e
ri
n
g
 f
ro
m
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
n
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 h
a
s 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

liv
in
g
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
. 
O
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 is
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 w

ill
 

a
d
v
is
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
a
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
rm

it
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 a
c
c
e
ss
 m

u
c
h
 e
a
si
e
r.
 I
t 
se
e
m
s 
th
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 

o
f 
th
e
 b
a
y
 w

h
ils
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 is
su
e
s 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 lo

o
k
e
d
 

in
to
 s
e
e
m
s 
st
ra
n
g
e
. 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
 

is
 t
h
e
re
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
se
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 n
o
t 
p
ri
v
y
 t
o
 t
h
is
 

p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
ta
tu
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
p
in
io
n
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 c
a
rr
y
 n
o
 w

e
ig
h
t.
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l o

f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

a
p
p
ly
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

B
a
y
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
 b
lu
e
 

b
a
d
g
e
, 
y
o
u
 a
re
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
o
f 

th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 o
r 
th
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
liv
e
s 
a
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 t
h
is
 

b
a
y
 is
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 is
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

b
lu
e
 b
a
d
g
e
 (
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 

a
p
p
lie
d
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 

o
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
liv
e
 a
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 3
1
 L
u
lli
n
g
to
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 G

ro
u
n
d
s:
 1
) 
R
e
si
d
e
n
t 
su
ff
e
rs
 w

it
h
 

d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
n
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 in
 li
g
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
se
 il
ln
e
ss
e
s 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
e
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Li
v
in
g
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
s 
it
 w

a
s 
c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
 t
h
e
y
 

n
o
w
 f
a
ll 
in
to
 t
h
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
. 
S
ti
ll 

a
w
a
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
/o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 
2
) 
A
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
 

d
ri
v
e
s 
th
e
m
 e
v
e
ry
 w

h
e
re
 a
s 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 w

a
lk
 lo

n
g
 

d
is
ta
n
c
e
. 
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l o

f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

a
p
p
ly
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

B
a
y
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
 b
lu
e
 

b
a
d
g
e
, 
y
o
u
 a
re
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
o
f 

th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 o
r 
th
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
liv
e
s 
a
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 t
h
is
 

b
a
y
 is
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 is
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

b
lu
e
 b
a
d
g
e
 (
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 

a
p
p
lie
d
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 

o
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
liv
e
 a
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 

48



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 –
 

Fu
lly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 –
 

Fu
lly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
se
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 –
 

W
h
e
n
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 is
 p
a
rk
e
d
 in
 w

h
a
t 
w
a
s 
o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 a
s 
a
 t
u
rn
in
g
 c
ir
c
le
, 
it
 is
 a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
o
 

m
a
n
o
e
u
v
re
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
 m

is
h
a
p
. 
Fu
lly
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s.
 

 

V
is
it
o
r 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 –
 

Fu
lly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
. 
If
 c
a
rs
 a
re
 

p
a
rk
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 t
o
p
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lo
se
 in
 -
 w

h
a
t 
m
u
st
 

su
re
ly
 h
a
v
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 in
te
n
d
e
d
 a
s 
a
 t
u
rn
in
g
 

c
ir
c
le
 o
n
ly
 –
 t
h
is
 m

a
ke

s 
it
 e
xt
re
m
e
ly
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 

m
a
n
o
e
u
v
re
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
c
a
u
si
n
g
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 

su
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 v
e
h
ic
le
s.
 

 

V
is
it
o
r 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 –
 

In
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

in
 t
h
is
 c
o
rn
e
r 
o
f 
G
ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
. 
Th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
if
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 it
 m

u
c
h
 e
a
si
e
r 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 t
h
is
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 c
o
rn
e
r.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 
 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 G

ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 -
  

Th
is
 is
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
c
lo
se
 w
it
h
 n
o
t 
a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

p
la
c
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
se
s 
th
a
t 
a
re
 h
e
re
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
to
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 is
 a
b
so
lu
te
ly
 u
n
fa
ir
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 
h
a
v
e
 d
ri
v
e
w
a
y
s 
th
e
y
 a
re
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 

D
o
u
b
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 L
in
e
s 
- 
Th
e
 

re
q
u
e
st
 h
a
s 
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 v
ia
 t
h
e
ir
 W

a
rd
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
s 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
is
 t
u
rn
in
g
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 

c
a
u
si
n
g
 a
n
 o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 

49



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

o
n
ly
 f
it
 o
n
e
 c
a
r 
in
to
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
A
 lo

t 
o
f 
h
o
u
se
s 
h
a
v
e
 t
w
o
 c
a
rs
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
Th
e
re
 h
a
s 
n
e
v
e
r 
b
e
e
n
 a
 

p
ro
b
le
m
 w

it
h
 c
a
rs
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
rk
e
d
 in
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
lo
se
 t
h
e
re
 is
 s
ti
ll 
p
le
n
ty
 o
f 
sp
a
c
e
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 v
e
h
ic
le
s.
  

ro
a
d
 u
se
rs
. 
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 D
ro
v
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

D
is
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 t
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
h
re
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 D
ro
v
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
t 
th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s 

w
it
h
 S
o
u
th
d
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
is
p
o
se
d
 o
f.
 T
h
e
se
 

a
re
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
fo
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
t 
th
e
 

b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
S
o
u
th
d
o
w
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
. 
A
g
re
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

u
n
re
st
ri
c
te
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
 F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
 

c
a
u
se
s 
so
m
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
to
 p
a
ss
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 b
u
t 
d
o
 n
o
t 
fe
e
l 
th
e
se
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
c
a
u
se
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
a
n
d
 

o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
. 
A
p
p
re
c
ia
te
 if
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
so
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 

o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
. 

D
o
u
b
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 L
in
e
s 
–
 T
h
e
 

re
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 a
 

W
a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

c
o
n
g
e
st
io
n
. 
Th
is
 r
o
a
d
 is
 q
u
it
e
 

n
a
rr
o
w
 a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
p
a
rk
 

it
 is
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 t
o
 p
a
ss
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s 

P
a
rk
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 

P
a
ra
d
e
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 

Zo
n
e
 Z
 –
 

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 U
p
p
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
–
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
n
 U
p
p
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 T
h
e
 r
e
a
so
n
s 

a
re
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 1
) 
Th
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s 
a
n
 a
c
u
te
 

sh
o
rt
a
g
e
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
o
n
 

U
p
p
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 a
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

w
o
rs
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 lo

ss
 o
f 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
sp
a
c
e
. 
2
) 
Q
u
e
st
io
n
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 o
n
 t
h
is
 r
o
a
d
 a
s 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
, 

a
s 
th
e
 n
e
a
re
st
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 

is
 in
 R
e
g
e
n
t 
H
ill
, 
w
h
ic
h
 is
 v
e
ry
 

im
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
fo
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

m
o
to
rb
ik
e
s,
 b
e
c
a
u
se
 t
h
e
 h
ill
 is
 

q
u
it
e
 s
te
e
p
 a
n
d
 is
 a
ls
o
 a
 w

in
d
 

tu
n
n
e
l, 
so
 s
o
m
e
 m

o
to
r 
b
ik
e
s 

50



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

k
n
o
w
 o
f 
n
o
 o
n
e
 w

h
o
 h
a
s 
a
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
 o
r 
m
o
p
e
d
. 

3
) 
Fo

r 
th
o
se
 v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 o
n
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
th
e
re
 

is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
le
n
ty
 o
f 
sp
a
c
e
 in
 t
h
e
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
S
p
ri
n
g
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 4
) 
U
p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 c
lo
se
 t
o
 W

e
st
e
rn
 R
o
a
d
 is
 a
 

q
u
it
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
 w

h
ic
h
 n
o
w
 h
a
s 
q
u
it
e
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s 
liv
in
g
 o
n
 it
. 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 
a
n
d
 m

o
p
e
d
s 
m
a
k
e
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
ly
 

m
o
re
 n
o
is
e
 t
h
a
n
 c
a
rs
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w

h
e
n
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 

u
p
. 
5
) 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
si
d
e
r 

m
o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
to
 b
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
lly
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly
, 
th
e
 

m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
m
o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 e
n
g
in
e
s 
a
s 
la
rg
e
 a
s 

th
o
se
 in
 a
 t
y
p
ic
a
l 
sm

a
ll 
fa
m
ily
 c
a
r,
 y
e
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

a
lm

o
st
 e
xc

lu
si
v
e
ly
 u
se
d
 b
y
 ju
st
 o
n
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
. 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 b
lo
w
n
 o
v
e
r.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 

Zo
n
e
 Z
 –
 

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 U
p
p
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
–
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 a
 c
a
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
o
 a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 s
p
a
c
e
 o
n
 U
p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 I
 o
b
je
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
so
n
 s
: 
1
) 

Th
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 in
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
in
 

th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t.
 V
e
ry
 f
e
w
 h
o
u
se
s 
h
a
v
e
 d
ri
v
e
w
a
y
s 
so
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 o
n
-s
tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
. 
It
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 it
 

e
v
e
n
 h
a
rd
e
r.
 

2
) 
Th
e
re
 a
re
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
c
lo
se
 b
y
 o
n
 

S
p
ri
n
g
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 3
) 
N
o
is
e
 –
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
 is
 n
e
xt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 n
o
is
y
 W

in
d
m
ill
 p
u
b
. 

Th
e
 p
ro
sp
e
c
t 
o
f 
c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 f
ir
in
g
 u
p
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
o
is
e
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
. 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
 n
e
a
re
st
 is
 in
 R
e
g
e
n
t 
H
ill
, 

w
h
ic
h
 is
 v
e
ry
 im

p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
fo
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 m

o
to
rb
ik
e
s,
 b
e
c
a
u
se
 

th
e
 h
ill
 is
 q
u
it
e
 s
te
e
p
  
a
n
d
 is
 a
ls
o
 

a
 w

in
d
 t
u
n
n
e
l, 
so
 s
o
m
e
 m

o
to
r 

b
ik
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 b
lo
w
n
 o
v
e
r.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

51



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a

n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

C
h
a
llo
n
e
rs
 C
lo
se
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l a

s 
th
e
 

e
xi
st
in
g
 l
in
e
s 
a
re
 n
o
t 
lo
n
g
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rn
e
r 
fr
e
e
 f
ro
m
 o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a

n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

C
h
a
llo
n
e
rs
 C
lo
se
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l t
o
 

e
xt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
xi
st
in
g
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 

E
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
n
y
 m

is
se
d
 r
e
fu
se
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
s 
a
 r
e
su
lt
 o
f 
in
c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
te
 a
n
d
 

ir
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
. 

 

R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

A
ss
o
c
ia
ti

o
n
 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a

n
 

C
o
a
st
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 R
o
a
d
, 

R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 C
re
sc
e
n
t,
 C
lif
f 
A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
C
lif
f 
R
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 T
h
e
 C
lif
f 
–
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
ll 
th
e
se
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

S
t 
P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
S
in
g
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 L
in
e
s 
in
 

U
p
p
e
r 
Le

w
e
s 
R
o
a
d
 –
 L
o
o
k
s 
lik
e
 a
 r
e
a
lly
 s
e
n
si
b
le
 

so
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 w

h
a
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 r
e
a
l p

ro
b
le
m
 

lo
c
a
lly
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

S
t 
P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
S
in
g
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 L
in
e
s 
in
 

U
p
p
e
r 
Le

w
e
s 
R
o
a
d
 –
 F
u
lly
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

Fu
lly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 is
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 f
o
r 

S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
. 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s,
 u
n
lik
e
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

52



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

m
o
to
rc
a
rs
 m

a
k
e
 a
 lo

t 
o
f 
n
o
is
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 

g
o
in
g
 d
a
y
 a
n
d
 n
ig
h
t.
 T
h
e
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
s 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 
in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
 a
ll 
b
u
ilt
 in
 t
h
e
 

fr
o
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 m

a
k
e
s 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
o
f 
a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
 a
 h
u
g
e
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
n
o
y
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 a
ll 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
. 
W
o
u
ld
 s
u
g
g
e
st
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
a
y
 is
 p
u
t 

n
e
a
r 
th
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re
 a
ll 
th
e
 o
th
e
r 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 s
it
u
a
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 n
o
t 

in
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
st
re
e
t.
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 in
c
re
a
se
 in
 t
ra
ff
ic
, 
in
c
re
a
se
 

ri
sk
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
e
lle
rb
y
’s
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 n
o
is
e
 w

h
ic
h
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c
a
u
se
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 &
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 

o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 3
0
 &
 3
2
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
is
 is
 a
 

re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 n
e
w
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l. 
G
re
a
t 
P
ro
g
re
ss
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l, 
Ju
ri
e
s 
In
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
C
K
 

C
h
u
rc
h
, 
in
 t
e
rm

s 
o
f 
n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
is
e
 is
su
e
s.
 A
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 o
n
 t
h
is
 s
id
e
 o
f 
S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 is
 

a
 m

a
jo
r 
st
e
p
 b
a
c
k
w
a
rd
s 
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
sp
e
c
t.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 

53



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 &
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
Th
e
 n
o
is
e
 f
ro
m
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 

re
tu
rn
in
g
 t
o
 B
e
lle
rb
y
’s
 C
o
lle
g
e
 a
t 
n
ig
h
t 
is
 b
a
d
 

e
n
o
u
g
h
. 
To
 a
d
d
 t
h
e
 n
o
is
e
 o
f 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 

c
o
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 g
o
in
g
 a
ll 
d
a
y
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
n
b
e
a
ra
b
le
. 
S
o
u
n
d
 e
c
h
o
 a
ll 
a
lo
n
g
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 

R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

o
u
ld
 c
re
a
te
 a
 v
e
ry
 

d
e
fi
n
it
e
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
. 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 &
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
Th
e
 n
o
is
e
 f
ro
m
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 
c
a
n
 b
e
 m

u
c
h
 lo

u
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 

d
is
tu
rb
in
g
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
is
e
 o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 c
a
rs
. 
Th
e
 

h
e
ig
h
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
se
 o
n
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 

R
o
a
d
 r
e
su
lt
s 
in
 n
o
is
e
 b
e
in
g
 a
m
p
lif
ie
d
 a
s 
it
 

b
o
u
n
c
e
s 
o
ff
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
s.
 T
h
e
re
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
re
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 
a
t 
th
e
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
, 
w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 o
w
n
e
rs
 w

it
h
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
re
se
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
a
m
e
ra
s 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 f
o
o
t 
tr
a
ff
ic
. 
If
 a
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
sp
a
c
e
 is
 n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
, 
p
le
a
se
 lo

c
a
te
 it
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
st
e
rn
 s
id
e
 o
f 
B
e
lle
rb
y
s 
c
o
lle
g
e
, 
a
s 
th
e
re
 

is
 le

ss
 li
k
e
lih
o
o
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
lle
g
e
 u
se
rs
 b
e
in
g
 

d
is
tu
rb
e
d
 b
y
 n
o
is
e
 a
t 
la
te
 h
o
u
rs
, 
a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
lly
 

th
e
re
 is
 m

u
c
h
 le

ss
 f
o
o
t 
tr
a
ff
ic
 o
n
 t
h
a
t 
si
d
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
lle
g
e
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
a
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
c
c
id
e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
ly
 lo

w
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

si
d
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s 
m
o
re
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

54



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

p
e
rs
o
n
s.
  

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

Zo
n
e
 Y
 &
 S
t 

P
e
te
rs
 &
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 in
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 

S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 a
s 
th
is
 w

ill
 p
re
se
n
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s:
 T
h
e
 

n
o
is
e
 c
re
a
te
d
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
le
 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m

o
st
 d
is
tu
rb
in
g
 f
o
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
O
c
c
a
si
o
n
a
lly
 

m
o
to
r 
b
ik
e
s 
d
o
 p
a
ss
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
o
is
e
 is
 g
re
a
t.
 I
f 

th
e
re
 is
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

o
re
 

m
o
to
r 
b
ik
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
, 
p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 r
a
c
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 

a
n
d
 r
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
lle
g
e
, 
d
o
in
g
 a
 

c
ir
c
u
it
 o
f 
S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 c
o
m
in
g
 

d
o
w
n
 B
ill
in
to
n
 W

a
y
. 
Th
is
 n
o
is
e
 w

ill
 b
e
 

u
n
p
re
d
ic
ta
b
le
, 
a
n
d
 h
ig
h
ly
 d
is
tu
rb
in
g
. 
It
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 

se
e
m
 f
a
ir
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 e
xt
ra
 n
o
is
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 in
 

a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l s
tr
e
e
t.
 T
h
e
re
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

sa
fe
ty
 is
su
e
s.
 T
h
e
 r
o
a
d
s 
a
ro
u
n
d
 h
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 m

u
c
h
 b
u
si
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 h
a
za
rd
o
u
s,
 

a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 m

o
to
r 
b
ik
e
s 
u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
w
o
u
ld
 

a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 is
su
e
s 
o
f 
sa
fe
ty
. 
C
ro
ss
in
g
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 

R
o
a
d
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 t
ri
c
k
y
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 B
ill
in
to
n
 

W
a
y
. 
Th
is
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
e
v
e
n
 s
e
e
m
 n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 is
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
o
to
rb
ik
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

K
n
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
to
r 
b
ik
e
s 
a
re
 a
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 –
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 

w
a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 w

o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

b
a
y
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
n
ly
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m

o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 

m
e
th
o
d
s 
o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
. 

55



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

fo
rm

 o
f 
tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
 t
h
a
n
 c
a
rs
, 
b
u
t 
m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
s 
a
re
 

fa
r 
n
o
is
ie
r 
th
a
n
 c
a
rs
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 c
re
a
te
 m

o
re
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
sa
fe
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 o
f 
ro
a
d
s,
 a
s 
th
e
y
 

a
re
 a
lm

o
st
 in
v
a
ri
a
b
ly
 d
ri
v
e
n
 f
a
st
e
r 
th
e
n
 c
a
rs
 a
n
d
 

ra
p
id
ly
 a
c
c
e
le
ra
te
d
. 

R
o
a
d
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

Te
a
m
 

S
o
u
th
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 L
a
y
o
u
t 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 (
S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
) 
–
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 a
 S
a
fe
r 
R
o
u
te
s 
to
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

sc
h
e
m
e
 in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
 t
e
a
m
 w

ill
 b
e
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 
a
t 
th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

Tr
a
fa
lg
a
r/
V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
 in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 w

a
lk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 g
e
t 
to
 B
e
n
fi
e
ld
 S
c
h
o
o
l. 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
t 
b
o
th
 S
t 
P
e
te
rs
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
fi
e
ld
 o
r 
liv
e
 s
o
u
th
 o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
/B
a
m
p
fi
e
ld
 

S
t 
w
a
lk
 u
p
 T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 
a
n
d
 c
ro
ss
 in
to
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
. 

It
 is
 lu
d
ic
ro
u
s 
fo
r 
u
s 
to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
o
 w

a
lk
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 if
 p
a
rk
in
g
 w

ill
 f
lip
 

fr
o
m
 o
n
e
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r.
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 a
 W

a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
n
d
 

w
a
s 
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 a
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
7
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s 

su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

ro
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
. 
Th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 

in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 P
a
rk
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

S
o
u
th
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 L
a
y
o
u
t 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 (
S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
 –
 

O
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 &
 O

b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 1
) 
N
o
 f
ro
n
t 

g
a
rd
e
n
 s
o
 p
a
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
 li
k
e
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 

th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
2
) 
P
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s 
o
n
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
 a
re
 

u
se
d
 n
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 d
a
y
. 
3
) 
B
y
 p
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 a
 W

a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
n
d
 

w
a
s 
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 a
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
7
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s 

su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

56



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

b
a
y
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 a
n
d
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
 o
n
 

th
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
 w

ill
 in
c
re
a
se
 v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
, 
in
c
re
a
se
 

c
a
r 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 f
ro
m
 o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
in
g
 t
re
e
s 
a
n
d
 a
ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 s
a
fe
 u
se
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l c

h
ild
re
n
. 
Th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 m

e
a
n
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 a
 b
u
sy
 r
o
a
d
 m

o
re
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
. 
  

ro
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
. 
Th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 

in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 P
a
rk
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

S
o
u
th
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 L
a
y
o
u
t 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 (
S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
) 
–
 O

b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
re
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 1
) 
A
 d
a
n
g
e
r 

c
ro
ss
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 l
a
te
 a
t 
n
ig
h
t 
o
r 
in
 w

in
te
r 

d
a
rk
n
e
ss
 w

it
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
 t
o
 g
e
t 
to
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
A
ls
o
 

g
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
a
r 
su
rr
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

d
a
rk
n
e
ss
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
 in
 w

in
te
r 
o
r 
la
te
 a
t 
n
ig
h
t 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 in
ti
m
id
a
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
. 
2
) 
It
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 c
ro
ss
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 h
o
u
se
s.
 3
) 
Th
e
 d
a
rk
n
e
ss
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
 w

o
u
ld
 

sh
ie
ld
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
a
m
p
e
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
rs
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 m

o
re
 li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 d
o
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
rs
 if
 p
a
rk
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
si
d
e
. 
4
) 

Th
e
re
 is
 n
e
v
e
r 
a
 p
a
tr
o
l b

y
 T
ra
ff
ic
 W

a
rd
e
n
s 
o
r 

P
o
lic
e
 t
o
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 a
s 
it
 

st
a
n
d
s 
n
o
w
, 
e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 a
t 
th
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 

fo
o
tb
a
ll 
o
r 
C
ri
c
k
e
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
y
e
d
 in
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
. 

C
a
rs
 p
a
rk
 v
ir
tu
a
lly
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le
 le

n
g
th
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
 

si
d
e
, 
so
m
e
ti
m
e
s 
m
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 a
 W

a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
n
d
 

w
a
s 
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 a
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
7
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s 

su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

ro
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
. 
Th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 

in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 P
a
rk
. 

57



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

b
lo
c
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
s/
p
ra
m
s/
w
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
s 

u
se
r,
 f
o
rc
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 in
to
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
. 
5
) 
If
 p
e
o
p
le
 

p
a
rk
 o
n
 b
o
th
 s
id
e
s 
(l
e
g
a
lly
 o
r 
o
th
e
rw

is
e
),
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
 is
 n
o
t 
w
id
e
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 e
a
c
h
 w

a
y
 

a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 b
lo
c
k
 t
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.
 6
) 
Th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fa
ils
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
; 
th
is
 is
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 c
a
u
se
 m

o
re
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
re
e
 s
a
p
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

c
o
n
st
a
n
tl
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 d
u
c
k
 t
o
 w

a
lk
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
 a
v
o
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s.
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

S
o
u
th
 

P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
  

O
b
je
c
t 

(P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 

4
7
 

si
g
n
a
tu
r

e
s 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 L
a
y
o
u
t 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 (
S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
) 
–
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 o
p
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
: 
a
s 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 
1
) 
N
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 
sa
fe
 p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 p
o
in
ts
, 

a
s 
th
e
 a
re
a
 h
a
s 
a
n
 in
c
re
d
ib
ly
 h
ig
h
 f
o
o
tf
a
ll 
o
f 

in
fa
n
ts
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 
sc
h
o
o
ls
 in
 t
h
e
 im

m
e
d
ia
te
 a
re
a
. 
2
) 

V
ic
to
ri
a
 P
a
rk
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
s 
a
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 p
la
y
 

a
re
a
, 
is
 h
e
a
v
ily
 a
c
c
e
ss
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 in
fa
n
ts
, 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s,
 a
ft
e
rs
c
h
o
o
l a

n
d
 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
lu
b
s,
 n
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 
sa
fe
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 a
re
a
s.
 3
) 
Th
e
 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
to
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l h
o
m
e
s 
(s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
) 
d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
 

e
a
se
 o
f 
sa
fe
, 
e
n
tr
y
 a
n
d
 e
xi
t 
in
to
 h
o
m
e
s.
 4
) 
Th
e
 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
to
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 a
 W

a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
n
d
 

w
a
s 
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 a
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
7
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s 

su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 S
w
a
p
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

ro
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
 s
id
e
. 
Th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 

in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 P
a
rk
. 

58



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l h
o
m
e
s,
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
se
 a
re
 o
c
c
u
p
ie
d
 

b
y
 o
w
n
e
rs
 w

it
h
 s
m
a
ll 
in
fa
n
ts
 w

h
o
m
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
 d
ri
v
e
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 p
a
rk
 t
h
e
ir
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

h
o
m
e
, 
th
e
y
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 

a
 b
u
sy
 r
o
a
d
 w

it
h
 N
o
 s
a
fe
 c
ro
ss
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 N
o
 

re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l p

a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
5
) 
Th
is
 r
o
a
d
 is
 o
f 

in
d
u
st
ri
a
l 
c
la
ss
 a
s 
it
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
s 
o
v
e
ru
se
 o
f 

H
G
V
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
th
a
t 
se
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
 in
d
u
st
ri
a
lis
e
d
 s
it
e
s,
 

a
lo
n
g
si
d
e
 a
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 b
u
s 
ro
u
te
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
s 
a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 t
ra
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
6
) 
Tr
a
ff
ic
 is
 

p
u
sh
e
d
 c
lo
se
r 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
c
ie
s 
o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 

R
o
a
d
; 
sp
e
e
d
 b
u
m
p
s 
p
o
se
 a
 n
o
is
e
 is
su
e
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 

th
is
 o
f 
p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 o
b
se
rv
a
n
c
e
. 
7
) 
N
o
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l p

a
rk
in
g
 

a
n
d
 N
o
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 t
im

e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 

si
d
e
 is
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
. 
Th
e
 a
re
a
 is
 h
e
a
v
ily
 in
d
u
st
ri
a
lis
e
d
 

b
y
 c
a
r 
d
e
a
le
rs
h
ip
s 
w
h
o
 w

ill
 u
n
q
u
e
st
io
n
a
b
ly
 

a
b
u
se
 ‘
o
p
e
n
 p
a
rk
in
g
’ 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 f
re
e
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
o
w
n
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l g

a
in
 n
o
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
e
a
si
n
g
 c
o
n
g
e
st
io
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
m
e
te
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 im

m
e
d
ia
te
 a
re
a
. 
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 e
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 F
ri
a
r 

R
o
a
d
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
A
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
e
c
a
u
se
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 

V
a
rn
d
e
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l a

n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
fr
o
m
 L
it
tl
e
 

E
a
rt
h
w
o
rm

s 
N
u
rs
e
ry
, 
p
a
rk
 in
 t
h
is
 r
o
a
d
. 
Th
is
 is
 a
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
re
su
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 la

st
 lo

t 
o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
c
e
d
 in
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 ju
st
 

E
xt
e
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

- 
Th
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 w

a
s 
fr
o
m
 a
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 a
s 
c
a
rs
 

p
a
rk
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 it
 

d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s 
fo
r 
m
o
to
ri
st
, 

e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 t
h
o
se
 t
u
rn
in
g
 le

ft
 in
to
 

Fr
ia
r 
R
o
a
d
 f
ro
m
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
. 

59



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

p
u
sh
e
d
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
rn
e
r 
in
to
 F
ri
a
r 

R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rs
e
. 
If
 t
h
e
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s 
a
re
 e
xt
e
n
d
e
d
: 
1
. 
N
o
n
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w

h
o
 p
a
rk
 

h
e
re
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
 w

ill
 s
im

p
ly
 p
a
rk
 a
 b
it
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
o
w
n
 

Fr
ia
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rs
e
 a
s 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 n
a
rr
o
w
s.
 2
) 
B
o
th
 c
o
rn
e
rs
 o
f 

Fr
ia
r 
R
o
a
d
/D

it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 

y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
n
d
 p
a
re
n
ts
 u
se
 t
h
e
se
 t
o
 d
ro
p
 o
ff
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 r
ig
h
t 
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
rn
e
r,
 w

h
ic
h
 is
 e
xt
re
m
e
ly
 

d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s.
 I
n
 f
a
c
t 
e
xt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
w
ill
 

m
a
k
e
 it
 e
a
si
e
r 
fo
r 
e
v
e
n
 m

o
re
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
 

a
s 
th
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 n
o
 p
a
rk
e
d
 c
a
rs
 a
n
d
, 
a
s 
th
e
y
 d
o
 

n
o
w
, 
th
e
se
 p
a
re
n
ts
 w

ill
 ig

n
o
re
 t
h
e
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 3
) 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 u
se
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
 &
 p
la
y
 a
re
a
 o
p
p
o
si
te
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 in
 F
ri
a
r 
R
o
a
d
 e
xa

c
e
rb
a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 
Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 g
iv
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
is
 

“
To
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
ro
a
d
 u
se
rs
”.
 N
o
t 

a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
e
g
a
l p

a
rk
in
g
 h
a
s 
c
a
u
se
d
 

o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
ro
a
d
 u
se
rs
. 
In
 f
a
c
t 
th
e
 o
n
ly
 

th
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s 
c
a
u
se
 o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
ro
a
d
 

u
se
rs
 is
 t
h
e
 N
o
.5
6
 b
u
s 
se
rv
ic
e
. 
Th
e
 b
e
st
 w

a
y
 t
o
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
b
st
ru
c
ti
o
n
 is
 t
o
 g
e
t 
th
e
 b
u
s 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 

re
ro
u
te
 t
h
e
 N
o
.5
6
 b
u
s.
 N
o
t 
o
n
ly
 is
 F
ri
a
r 
R
o
a
d
 f
a
r 

to
 n
a
rr
o
w
 f
o
r 
a
 b
u
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 is
 n
o
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

a
b
y
sm

a
l 
se
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
 N
o
.5
6
 o
ff
e
rs
. 

Th
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

o
u
ld
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
ro
a
d
 u
se
rs
. 

60



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 H
ill
 D
ri
v
e
 –
 G

la
d
 

to
 h
e
a
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
to
 p
la
c
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
rn
e
r 
o
f 
H
ill
 D
ri
v
e
 a
n
d
 S
h
irl
e
y
 D
ri
v
e
. 
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 I
n
 

fa
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 a
s 
p
a
rk
in
g
 is
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 

si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
B
y
 p
la
c
in
g
 

2
 h
o
u
r 
re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
w
o
u
ld
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

o
rk
in
g
 in
 c
e
n
tr
a
l B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

fr
o
m
 p
a
rk
in
g
 h
e
re
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
  

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
st
ri
c
te
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
A
t 
th
is
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 t
h
e
re
 is
 a
 

c
a
fé
, 
c
h
e
m
is
t,
 d
o
c
to
r’
s 
su
rg
e
ry
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
n
ta
l 

su
rg
e
ry
, 
o
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
si
te
 s
id
e
 t
h
e
re
 is
 a
 n
e
w
s 

a
g
e
n
t/
p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l s
to
re
. 

C
u
st
o
m
e
rs
/P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
t 
p
re
se
n
t 
fi
n
d
 it
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 e
a
se
 t
h
e
 

si
tu
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 T
h
e
 

la
te
st
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
is
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 lo

c
a
l 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
i.e

. 
th
e
 s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 c
a
fé
. 
A
s 
it
 is
 t
h
e
 

p
e
o
p
le
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 u
p
 a
n
y
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
o
n
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 o
n
 a
 

c
o
n
st
a
n
t 
b
a
si
s,
 b
y
 g
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
th
is
 is
 

ta
k
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 

c
a
fé
 g
e
t 
it
s 
o
w
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
w
h
e
n
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 

st
ru
g
g
lin
g
 e
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 t
o
 p
a
rk
?
 T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 m

a
ss
iv
e
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

61



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
rs
 e
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 w

h
ile
 t
h
e
re
 is
 a
t 
le
a
st
 t
h
ir
ty
 e
m
p
ty
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
a
ro
u
n
d
 P
re
st
o
n
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 

u
se
, 
b
u
t 
so
m
e
o
n
e
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 it
 a
 m

e
te
r 

zo
n
e
 s
o
 n
o
 o
n
e
 e
v
e
r 
p
a
rk
s 
th
e
re
 a
n
y
 m

o
re
. 
  

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
to
 a
d
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
o
n
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
 h
o
u
rl
y
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 

o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
 a
n
d
 c
h
e
m
is
t.
 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
is
 

n
o
t 
in
 t
h
e
 in
te
re
st
s 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
M
a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 it
s 
su
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
e
ts
. 
Th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

si
tu
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
se
 r
o
a
d
s 
is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
o
n
g
e
st
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 d
o
n
’t
 d
e
se
rv
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 a
d
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 e
xi
st
in
g
 p
a
rk
in
g
 w

o
e
s.
 

Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 b
e
h
in
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
p
ro
p
o
sa
l h
a
s 

c
o
m
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
b
e
c
a
u
se
 o
f 
th
e
 w

id
e
r 
p
ro
b
le
m
s 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
n
e
a
r 
P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 S
ta
ti
o
n
. 
Th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 h
o
u
rs
 o
f 
8
a
m
 t
o
 8
p
m
 M

o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 a
re
 f
la
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 u
n
fa
ir
. 
Th
e
 s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 

c
a
fé
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
v
e
n
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
o
se
 h
o
u
rs
 s
o
 t
o
 

e
v
e
n
 c
o
n
te
m
p
la
te
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
is
 

a
b
su
rd
. 
Th
e
 d
o
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 d
e
n
ti
st
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
v
e
n
 

o
p
e
n
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s,
 t
h
e
 c
h
e
m
is
t 
c
lo
se
s 
a
t 
1
p
m
 o
n
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
c
lo
se
 b
e
fo
re
 

8
p
m
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 b
e
fo
re
 

8
p
m
 a
t 
th
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

62



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
Th
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
/T
iv
o
li 

a
re
a
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
Th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

ill
 a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
se
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
im

e
 li
m
it
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 s
to
re
s/
P
o
st
 O

ff
ic
e
. 
A
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
w
ill
 m

a
k
e
 it
 e
v
e
n
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 t
h
a
n
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
h
e
 

c
a
se
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 2
h
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
O
b
je
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
n
d
s 
1
) 
It
 w

ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
n
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
u
n
d
a
y
, 

w
h
e
n
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 m

o
re
 li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
 

a
n
d
 w

a
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 a
ll 
d
a
y
. 
It
 is
 n
o
w
 e
xt
re
m
e
ly
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 a
t 
a
n
y
 t
im

e
 in
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 b
e
c
a
u
se
 o
f 
d
is
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 n
e
a
rb
y
 r
o
a
d
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
se
 a
s 
Ti
v
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t 
is
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 2
) 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 is
 in
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l a

re
a
 a
n
d
 N
O
T 
a
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l a

re
a
. 
It
 is
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 u
n
fa
ir
 t
h
a
t 
v
ie
w
s 

o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l e

n
te
rp
ri
se
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
 

p
re
c
e
d
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 
3
) 

Th
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 g
iv
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
is
 “
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
n
e
a
rb
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s”
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
su
c
h
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 is
 u
n
n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
, 
a
s 
th
e
re
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
 h
a
lf
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

63



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

h
o
u
r 
lim

it
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 t
a
k
e
s 
4
 c
a
rs
 a
n
d
 

a
ls
o
 t
w
o
 2
4
 h
r 
b
a
y
s 
fo
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
u
ts
id
e
 

th
e
 G

.P
’s
 s
u
rg
e
ry
. 
3
) 
Th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

ill
 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 a
n
y
 

sh
o
p
s 
o
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
e
xc

e
p
t 
th
e
 c
a
fé
. 
C
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
s,
 d
o
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 

d
e
n
ti
st
s 
d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 f
o
r 
a
 l
o
n
g
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 

ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
b
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
w
sa
g
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 g
ro
c
e
rs
 

sh
o
p
 a
re
 c
lo
se
d
 o
n
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

d
a
y
 S
u
n
d
a
y
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l. 
Fe

e
l 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l n
e
e
d
s 
in
 t
h
is
 

c
a
se
. 
Th
e
 d
a
y
s 
a
n
d
 t
im

e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 a
re
 w

ro
n
g
. 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 F
ri
d
a
y
 f
ro
m
 

9
a
m
 t
o
 5
p
m
 is
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 

o
p
e
ra
te
. 
Th
e
se
 t
im

e
s 
o
p
e
ra
te
 s
a
ti
sf
a
c
to
ri
ly
 

a
c
ro
ss
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 a
t 
p
re
se
n
t.
  

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 2
h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 A
b
a
c
u
s 
C
a
fé
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k 
R
o
a
d
 is
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 lo

ss
 o
f 
a
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
4
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s.
 T
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 

ru
n
n
in
g
 f
ro
m
 8
a
m
 t
o
 8
p
m
 f
o
r 
7
 d
a
y
s 
a
 w

e
e
k
 a
re
 

a
ls
o
 lu
d
ic
ro
u
s 
e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 a
s 
n
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

“
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s”
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
, 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 is
 d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
o
p
e
n
 a
ll 
th
a
t 
ti
m
e
. 
Th
e
 s
u
g
g
e
st
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
sh
o
w
 s
c
a
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

64



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 a
 la

c
k
 o
f 
fo
re
th
o
u
g
h
t 
o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 W

it
h
 T
iv
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 

g
ra
n
te
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 e
v
e
n
 w

o
rs
e
 t
h
a
n
 it
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 is
. 
Th
e
 o
n
ly
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
is
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
ig
g
e
st
 l
o
se
rs
 w

ill
 a
g
a
in
 b
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 1
5
 m

e
tr
e
s 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 in
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
n
d
s:
 1
) 
In
 t
h
is
 

re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l a

re
a
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
o
th
 a
 

re
st
ri
c
te
d
 b
a
y
  
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
l d

is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
s,
 

th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
-d
e
si
g
n
a
te
d
 2
 

h
o
u
rs
. 
2
) 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 f
in
d
 it
 im

p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 

p
a
rk
 in
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 o
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f:
 i)
 U
se
rs
 o
f 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 S
ta
ti
o
n
, 
B
h
a
sv
ic
 S
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 w

o
rk
 o
n
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
w
h
o
 p
a
rk
 in
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 s
in
c
e
 n
e
a
rb
y
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
s 

w
e
re
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 ii
) 
P
e
o
p
le
 in
 n
e
a
rb
y
 

re
si
d
e
n
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
s 
w
h
o
 o
w
n
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 c
a
r 

b
u
t 
o
n
ly
 b
u
y
 o
n
e
 p
e
rm

it
, 
p
a
rk
 t
h
e
ir
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
in
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 f
o
r 
e
xt
e
n
d
e
d
 p
e
ri
o
d
s.
 3
) 
M
o
st
 o
f 

th
e
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
in
 q
u
e
st
io
n
 d
o
 n
o
t 
e
v
e
n
 o
p
e
n
 o
n
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 w

o
rs
e
 if
 

a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
4
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
a
re
 lo

st
, 
a
lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 z
o
n
e
 in
 T
iv
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t.
  

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

65



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

E
xt
re
m
e
ly
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l f
o
r 

lim
it
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 

th
is
 a
re
a
 is
 a
t 
sa
tu
ra
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
o
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 in
 T
iv
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t,
 

th
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 e
v
e
n
 m

o
re
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
tr
y
in
g
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 in
 

th
is
 r
o
a
d
. 
A
t 
p
re
se
n
t 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
in
k
 

c
a
re
fu
lly
 a
b
o
u
t 
ta
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
fo
r 
jo
u
rn
e
y
s 
a
t 

n
ig
h
t 
a
s 
it
 is
 a
lm

o
st
 im

p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 

g
e
t 
b
a
c
k
. 
Th
e
re
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r
e
st
ri
c
te
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 s
o
m
e
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 D
o
c
to
r’
s 
S
u
rg
e
ry
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 I
 

o
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
so
n
s:
 

1
) 
Th
e
re
 is
 n
o
 n
e
e
d
 a
s 
n
o
 o
n
e
 s
p
e
n
d
s 
th
a
t 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
 in
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
. 
2
) 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 le

ss
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
o
 p
a
rk
, 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 T
iv
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 p
a
rk
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 m

a
k
in
g
 it
 im

p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 a
s 
Ti
v
o
li 

C
re
sc
e
n
t 
n
e
v
e
r 
h
a
s 
sp
a
c
e
s,
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 h
a
s 
c
re
a
te
d
 

a
 k
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 e
ff
e
c
t 
w
it
h
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 b
e
a
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 b
ru
n
t 
o
f 
it
. 
3
) 
Th
e
re
 is
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 w

h
y
 t
a
k
e
 a
w
a
y
 p
re
c
io
u
s 

sp
a
c
e
s 
w
it
h
 li
m
it
e
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
. 
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
xt
ra
 2
 h
o
u
r 
lim

it
e
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 is
 

c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 n
o
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 f
re
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

66



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

m
o
m
e
n
t,
 e
v
e
n
 b
e
fo
re
 r
e
m
o
v
in
g
 a
n
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 

o
f 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
4
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
n
e
a
r 
to
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
s.
 R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

fr
o
m
 n
e
a
rb
y
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 z
o
n
e
s 
a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 o
ft
e
n
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
fi
n
d
 a
n
y
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
w
it
h
in
 a
 

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
 w

a
lk
in
g
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s.
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

E
xp

re
ss
 d
is
a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

in
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
w
a
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 m

a
k
in
g
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 

P
a
rk
in
g
 h
a
s 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
n
 in
c
re
a
si
n
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 ir
ra
ti
o
n
a
l w

a
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 w

h
ic
h
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
u
re
ly
 

p
u
sh
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 is
su
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
u
t 

o
f 
to
w
n
 u
n
ti
l 
it
 im

p
a
c
te
d
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 

A
m
a
zi
n
g
ly
 w

it
h
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
9
0
%
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 w

a
n
t 
p
e
rm

it
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 ig

n
o
re
 t
h
e
ir
 w

is
h
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
e
e
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
y
 a
p
p
e
a
si
n
g
 

th
e
 c
a
fé
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 w

it
h
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
  
th
a
t 
w
ill
 

c
a
u
se
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
b
le
m
s 
to
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 
lim

it
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

fo
r 
4
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
is
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 a
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 lo

c
a
l c

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
Th
e
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 h
a
s 
g
o
t 
e
v
e
n
 w

o
rs
e
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
si
d
e
n
t 
p
e
rm

it
s 
in
 R
e
ig
a
te
 R
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 m

e
te
rs
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 r
a
ilw

a
y
 s
ta
ti
o
n
. 
Th
is
 h
a
s 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

67



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

in
c
re
a
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 o
n
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
Ti
v
o
li 

C
re
sc
e
n
t,
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 a
n
d
 M

a
ld
o
n
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
 lo

c
a
l 

D
o
c
to
r’
s 
a
n
d
 D
e
n
ti
st
s 
h
a
v
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
sh
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
. 
Th
e
 N
e
w
sa
g
e
n
t,
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

S
to
re
s 
a
n
d
 C
a
fé
’s
 t
ra
d
e
 is
 in
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
 f
o
o
t 
tr
a
ff
ic
. 

O
v
e
r 
9
0
%
 o
f 
M
a
tl
o
c
k 
R
o
a
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
rm

it
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
s 
fo
r 
so
m
e
 r
e
a
so
n
 b
e
e
n
 ig

n
o
re
d
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 u
tt
e
r 
o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

n
e
w
 2
 h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 

is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
lf
-h
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s.
 A
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
w
o
u
ld
 c
a
u
se
 g
re
a
t 
in
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 t
o
 

a
lm

o
st
 a
ll 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
D
o
 n
o
t 

b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s 
o
f 
a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

e
n
te
rp
ri
se
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

v
ie
w
s 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 l
im

it
e
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
. 
Fe

e
l 
v
e
ry
 s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 w

ill
 v
e
ry
 m

u
c
h
 b
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
tr
im

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 l
iv
in
g
 in
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

a
n
d
 M

a
ld
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
t 
b
u
rs
ti
n
g
 p
o
in
t 

a
n
d
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
rs
 in
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
. 
To
 c
re
a
te
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
st
ri
c
te
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
re
a
, 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 l
iv
in
g
 in
 f
la
ts
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
s 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
a
rs
 a
n
d
 w

is
h
 t
o
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

68



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

p
a
rk
 in
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
xa

c
e
rb
a
te
 

th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 A
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
, 
v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
p
s,
 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 c
a
fé
 c
a
n
 p
a
rk
 f
re
e
ly
 in
 t
h
e
 

a
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
ro
a
d
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
re
ly
 d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 m

o
re
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
. 
A
ls
o
 o
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
fr
a
m
e
 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 (
8
a
m
 -
8
p
m
 7
 d
a
y
s 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
) 
a
s 
th
e
 

o
n
ly
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
o
p
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 a
re
 t
h
e
 

c
h
e
m
is
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
a
u
ti
c
ia
n
s,
 w

h
ic
h
 o
p
e
n
 u
n
ti
l 

lu
n
c
h
ti
m
e
 o
n
 a
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
m
a
in
 

c
lo
se
d
 u
n
ti
l M

o
n
d
a
y
/T
u
e
sd
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
sa
g
e
n
ts
/p

o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 s
to
re
, 

w
h
ic
h
 o
p
e
n
 a
ll 
d
a
y
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 a
 h
a
lf
 d
a
y
 o
n
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
s 
th
a
t 
it
 is
 

o
p
e
n
 b
o
th
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
u
n
d
a
y
, 
q
u
it
e
 o
ft
e
n
 it
 is
 

c
lo
se
d
 a
 lo

t 
e
a
rl
ie
r 
th
a
n
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
. 
In
 a
n
y
 c
a
se
 

th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
a
re
 n
o
rm

a
lly
 e
a
se
d
 a
 li
tt
le
 

o
n
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 in
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 

(c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 w

e
e
k
d
a
y
s)
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
It
 is
 n
ig
h
 o
n
 im

p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
 in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t,
 a
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s 
ri
se
n
 o
v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
 b
e
c
a
u
se
 o
f 
th
e
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s 
in
 n
e
a
rb
y
 s
tr
e
e
ts
. 
Th
e
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l 

is
 t
o
 b
e
 in
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 8
a
m
 t
o
 8
p
m
, 
7
 d
a
y
s 
a
 

w
e
e
k
. 
Th
is
 is
 n
o
t 
a
 f
a
ir
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 

ti
m
e
s 
o
f 
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

69



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
g
re
a
t 
fr
u
st
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
rr
iv
in
g
 h
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 w

o
rk
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 

in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t.
 T
h
e
 s
h
o
p
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 s
e
rv
e
d
 w

it
h
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s 
a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
s.
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

S
tr
o
n
g
ly
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 4
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 7
 d
a
y
s 
a
 

w
e
e
k
 f
ro
m
 8
a
m
 t
o
 8
p
m
. 
Th
is
 a
re
a
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
, 
n
o
t 
a
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
fé
 t
o
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
 4
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 a
n
d
 3
0
 

m
in
u
te
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 P
o
st
 O

ff
ic
e
. 
A
n
y
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
rr
iv
in
g
 in
 c
a
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 f
in
d
 w

h
a
te
v
e
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 f
in
d
 o
n
e
, 

n
o
t 
th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 u
p
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
fo
r 

th
e
 c
a
fe
s 
c
lie
n
ts
. 
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

 W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
n
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
le
 

in
c
re
a
se
 in
 p
e
rm

it
 o
n
ly
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

ro
a
d
s.
 T
h
is
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 m

a
k
e
 

m
a
tt
e
rs
 w

o
rs
e
. 
Ill
e
g
a
l p

a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s 
a
t 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s,
 d
o
u
b
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 e
tc
. 
a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
 d
a
n
g
e
r 
to
 l
o
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 

m
e
a
su
re
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s 
in
 t
h
is
 v
e
ry
 b
u
sy
 a
re
a
. 
Th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 b
a
y
 

is
 p
o
o
rl
y
 c
o
n
c
e
iv
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

70



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 is
su
e
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
re
se
n
t 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

b
a
y
s 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
d
o
c
to
rs
, 

c
h
e
m
is
t,
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
s.
  

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 2
 h
o
u
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
le
 

in
c
re
a
se
 in
 p
e
rm

it
 o
n
ly
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

ro
a
d
s.
 T
h
is
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 m

a
k
e
 

m
a
tt
e
rs
 w

o
rs
e
. 
Ill
e
g
a
l p

a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s 
a
t 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s,
 d
o
u
b
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 e
tc
. 
a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
 d
a
n
g
e
r 
to
 l
o
c
a
l r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 

m
e
a
su
re
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
re
a
se
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s 
in
 t
h
is
 v
e
ry
 b
u
sy
 a
re
a
. 
Th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 b
a
y
 

is
 p
o
o
rl
y
 c
o
n
c
e
iv
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 is
su
e
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
re
se
n
t 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

b
a
y
s 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
d
o
c
to
rs
, 

c
h
e
m
is
t,
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
s.
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
  

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 

c
a
fé
 o
n
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
M
a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 h
o
rr
e
n
d
o
u
s 

p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 

b
ro
u
g
h
t 
in
to
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
 n
e
a
rb
y
 s
tr
e
e
t.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 in
 f
o
rc
e
 n
e
a
r 
th
e
 

c
a
fe
, 
tw

o
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s 
a
n
d
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
r 

re
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
. 
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

71



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

W
a
rd
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o

rs
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
p
p
o
se
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 li
m
it
e
d
 w

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
Th
is
 r
o
a
d
 is
 m

a
d
e
 u
p
 o
f 
m
a
in
ly
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
d
 

h
o
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 e
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 v
e
ry
 

g
re
a
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
w
h
e
n
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 d
ro
p
 o
ff
 

p
a
ss
e
n
g
e
rs
 o
r 
sh
o
p
p
in
g
 n
e
a
t 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s.
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 h
a
s 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
lm

o
st
 im

p
o
ss
ib
le
 f
o
r 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 t
h
is
 r
o
a
d
. 
A
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

lim
it
e
d
 w

a
it
in
g
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 e
xa

c
e
rb
a
te
 e
xi
st
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s.
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
a
g
a
in
st
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
xi
m
a
te
ly
 4
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
7
 d
a
y
s 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 f
ro
m
 8
a
m
 t
o
 8
p
m
. 

Th
e
re
 a
re
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
in
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
re
a
 

a
n
d
 r
o
a
d
. 
Th
e
re
 is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
t 

si
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
rg
e
ry
, 
3
0
 m

in
u
te
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 

o
u
ts
id
e
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 P
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
 in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 

w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
c
o
m
in
g
 in
to
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
 n
e
a
rb
y
 

Ti
v
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t,
 b
u
t 
to
ta
lly
 ig

n
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

w
is
h
e
s 
in
 b
o
th
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 M

a
ld
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 in
v
o
lv
e
d
 in
 t
h
is
 

sc
h
e
m
e
 m

e
re
ly
 b
e
in
g
 s
q
u
e
e
ze
d
 o
u
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 r
o
a
d
s.
 W

h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
e
y
 s
u
p
p
o
se
d
 t
o
 p
a
rk
?
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
st
 f
o
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

in
st
a
lle
d
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

72



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
o
a
d
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
fi
n
d
in
g
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

sp
a
c
e
s.
 T
h
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 c
a
u
se
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s 

in
e
ff
e
c
tu
a
l d

e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
e
rm

it
 

n
e
a
r 
P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 s
ta
ti
o
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s 
h
a
d
 a
 r
ip
p
le
 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
e
t.
 I
n
st
e
a
d
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 p
a
y
in
g
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 b
y
 P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

S
ta
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 n
o
w
 p
a
rk
 in
 T
iv
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t,
 s
o
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 in
 t
h
a
t 
st
re
e
t 
th
e
n
 p
a
rk
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
. 
Ti
v
o
li 
C
re
sc
e
n
t 
h
a
s 
n
o
w
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 a
n
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 h
a
v
e
 p
e
rm

it
 

p
a
rk
in
g
, 
so
m
e
th
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s 
d
e
n
ie
d
 t
o
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 d
e
sp
it
e
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 

su
b
m
it
te
d
 w

it
h
 o
v
e
rw

h
e
lm

in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
To
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 4
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s 

se
e
m
s 
to
ta
lly
 u
n
n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 b
a
y
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 li
m
it
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l p

ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 

o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
. 
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 o
n
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
. 

E
v
e
ry
th
in
g
 is
 ju
st
 f
in
e
 a
s 
it
 is
. 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 L
im

it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 –
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 r
e
a
lly
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
u
m
e
ro
u
s 

c
a
rs
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
rk
e
d
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 b
y
 

c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 w

h
o
 u
se
 P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W

a
it
in
g
 in
 M

a
tl
o
c
k
 

R
o
a
d
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

b
u
si
n
e
ss
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs
 u
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 

73



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

re
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
st
re
e
t.
 P
le
a
se
 t
h
in
k
 v
e
ry
 

c
a
re
fu
lly
 b
e
fo
re
 m

a
k
in
g
 t
h
in
g
s 
e
v
e
n
 m

o
re
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

lo
c
a
l s
h
o
p
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
a
rk
 

fo
r 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
im

e
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

A
ss
o
c
ia
ti

o
n
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

(P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 

4
3
 

si
g
n
a
tu
r

e
s)
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
e
ss
 r
o
a
d
 

to
 K
in
g
sm

e
re
, 
Lo

n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 I
f 
y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
w
e
re
 

to
 b
e
 in
st
a
lle
d
, 
th
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
re
su
lt
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 lo

ss
 

o
f 
sp
a
c
e
s.
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

K
in
g
sm

e
re
, 
Lo

n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 –
 T
h
is
 

w
a
s 
re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 C
it
y
 C
le
a
n
 a
s 

th
e
 r
e
fu
se
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 h
a
v
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s 
g
a
in
in
g
 a
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

b
in
 s
to
re
s 
b
e
c
a
u
se
 o
f 
p
a
rk
e
d
 

c
a
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
d
 n
e
a
r 
th
e
 

e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 T
o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
w
ill
 

c
a
u
se
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
fo
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 

To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 g
u
e
st
s,
 e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 a
s 

To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 L
a
n
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 p
a
rk
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 r
o
a
d
 o
n
 

a
 d
a
ily
 b
a
si
s 
d
u
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
in
g
 n
o
 o
n
-s
tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
. 

O
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
n
d
 in
si
st
 t
h
a
t 
if
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
 n
e
e
d
s 
to
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
la
rg
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s,
 t
h
a
t 

so
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ra
ss
 v
e
rg
e
 is
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 in
st
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
o
si
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 C
it
y
 C
le
a
n
 a
s 

re
fu
se
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
w
e
re
 h
a
v
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
. 
Th
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
rd
e
r 
a
s 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 

p
la
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

Tr
a
ff
ic
 O

rd
e
r 
w
a
s 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t.
 T
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
-a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 in
 

th
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 o
rd
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in
 t
h
a
t 
re
p
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 in
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f 
th
is
. 

74



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 T
o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 

O
b
je
c
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
o
n
g
e
st
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
e
rm

s 
to
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 m

u
st
 in
si
st
 t
h
a
t 
y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
s 
a
re
 n
o
t 
p
a
in
te
d
. 
Th
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 

is
 a
 n
a
rr
o
w
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l c

u
l d

e
 s
a
c
 w

it
h
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 

1
3
 h
o
u
se
s 
o
n
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 w

h
ic
h
 h
a
s 

su
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
w
id
th
 f
o
r 
tw

o
 p
a
ss
in
g
 v
e
h
ic
le
s.
 T
h
e
re
 is
 

n
o
 “
p
a
ss
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
” 
a
s 
su
c
h
, 
a
s 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 is
 o
n
ly
 

u
se
d
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
ss
 t
h
e
se
 h
o
u
se
s.
 A
t 
ti
m
e
s,
 a
s 
is
 t
h
e
 

c
a
se
 in
 m

a
n
y
 n
a
rr
o
w
 r
o
a
d
s,
 la

rg
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
h
a
v
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
c
e
ss
, 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
fu
se
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
m
e
a
n
s 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
re
fu
l 

w
h
e
n
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s.
 T
h
e
se
 is
su
e
s 

a
re
 in
h
e
re
n
t 
in
 w

h
a
t 
is
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
c
c
e
ss
 

ro
a
d
, 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 e
xi
st
e
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 w

a
s 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
Th
e
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 h
a
v
e
 

a
lw
a
y
s 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
st
ri
c
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 e
n
jo
y
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
q
u
ill
it
y
 a
n
d
 f
re
e
d
o
m
 f
ro
m
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
 h
e
re
. 
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 C
it
y
 C
le
a
n
 a
s 

re
fu
se
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
w
e
re
 h
a
v
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
. 
Th
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
rd
e
r 
a
s 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 

p
la
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

Tr
a
ff
ic
 O

rd
e
r 
w
a
s 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t.
 T
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
-a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 in
 

th
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 o
rd
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in
 t
h
a
t 
re
p
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 in
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f 
th
is
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 T
o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 

It
 w

a
s 
a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
le
a
r 
o
f 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
in
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
a
d
 o
n
 M

o
n
d
a
y
s 

(T
u
e
sd
a
y
s 
if
 it
 is
 a
 B
a
n
k
 H
o
lid
a
y
) 
o
r 
a
 n
a
rr
o
w
e
r 

d
u
st
c
a
rt
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
se
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 m

e
e
t 
in
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
5
. 
A
s 
th
is
 is
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
ss
 o
n
ly
 r
o
a
d
 

th
e
re
 is
 n
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 

c
o
m
e
 in
to
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
. 
R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 L
a
n
e
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 

To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 –
 T
h
is
 w

a
s 

re
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 C
it
y
 C
le
a
n
 a
s 

re
fu
se
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
w
e
re
 h
a
v
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
To
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
. 
Th
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
rd
e
r 
a
s 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 

75



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

a
ls
o
 p
a
rk
in
g
 u
p
 t
h
e
 s
lip
 r
o
a
d
 in
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
 s
o
 t
h
e
re
 is
 

a
 li
m
it
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
A
n
y
 v
is
it
o
rs
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 

h
a
v
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
p
a
rk
in
g
 if
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 d
o
u
b
le
 

y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
s 
th
e
 d
is
p
la
c
e
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 

th
e
 f
re
e
 s
p
a
c
e
s 
d
o
w
n
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
. 
Th
e
se
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 

w
ill
 c
a
u
se
 t
o
ta
l h
a
v
o
c
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
k
e
 o
f 
1
0
 m

in
u
te
s 

e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
. 
It
 s
e
e
m
s 
th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 h
a
s 
a
ri
se
n
 

si
n
c
e
 n
e
w
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 m

o
v
e
d
 in
 a
n
d
 w

e
re
 n
o
t 

a
w
a
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
in
g
s 
w
o
rk
e
d
 in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 
N
o
w
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
e
re
 is
 n
o
 ju
st
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
a
t 
so
 

e
v
e
r 
to
 p
e
n
a
lis
e
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 in
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
 b
y
 p
la
c
in
g
 

y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
. 

p
la
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

Tr
a
ff
ic
 O

rd
e
r 
w
a
s 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t.
 T
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
-a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 in
 

th
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 o
rd
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in
 t
h
a
t 
re
p
o
rt
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 in
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f 
th
is
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d

e
a
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 
R
o
a
d
 -
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
la
n
. 
 

 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d

e
a
n
  

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 
R
o
a
d
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 

N
e
v
e
r 
e
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 w

it
h
 o
r 
h
a
v
e
 s
e
e
n
 

a
n
y
 h
e
a
v
y
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
it
y
 C
le
a
n
 r
e
fu
se
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s 
e
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
y
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 m

a
n
o
e
u
v
ri
n
g
 

th
is
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
. 
Th
e
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
si
te
 s
ta
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
 T
R
O
 (
Tr
a
ff
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 

O
rd
e
r)
 is
 c
o
st
ly
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
s 
ti
m
e
, 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
st
s 
a
n
d
 t
im

e
 is
 b
e
in
g
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
s 
th
a
t 

d
o
 n
o
t 
e
xi
st
. 
A
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
la
n
s 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

su
b
m
it
te
d
 o
n
c
e
 b
e
fo
re
, 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 

o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 w

e
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 
W
h
a
t 
h
a
s 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s:
 -
 T
h
e
 li
n
e
s 

w
e
re
 r
e
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 

a
s 
c
a
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
se
 li
n
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 im

p
ro
v
e
 s
a
fe
ty
, 

p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 a
c
c
e
ss
 a
n
d
 v
is
ib
ili
ty
. 

Th
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

a
s 
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 in
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 w

a
s 

d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 a
t 
a
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

76



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
?
 T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
n
y
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 s
a
fe
ty
 h
a
s 
n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 h
e
a
v
y
 v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
e
rf
o
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 

d
u
ti
e
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
lit
y
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 n
o
t 
a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 is
su
e
 o
n
 B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 
R
o
a
d
 a
t 

th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d

e
a
n
 

O
b
je
c
t 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 
R
o
a
d
 –
 O

b
je
c
t 
to
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s.
 H
a
v
e
 n
e
v
e
r 

se
e
n
 a
n
y
 is
su
e
s 
w
it
h
 c
a
rs
 p
a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
/r
o
a
d
si
d
e
s 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
. 
Lo

o
k
in
g
 a
t 
tr
a
ff
ic
 

m
o
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
t 
th
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 a
sk
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 in
to
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
: 
a
) 
A
b
in
g
e
r 
ro
a
d
 is
 a
 

m
in
o
r 
ro
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
st
a
te
 a
n
d
 in
 r
e
a
lit
y
 is
 o
n
ly
 

u
se
d
 b
y
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
a
t 
ro
a
d
. 
N
e
v
e
r 
u
se
d
 a
s 
a
 

“
ra
t 
ru
n
”.
 b
) 
A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 
R
o
a
d
 

h
a
v
e
 li
tt
le
 h
e
a
v
y
 l
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s 
n
e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 a
n
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
 o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 t
h
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 s
a
fe
ly
. 
If
 t
h
e
 is
su
e
 is
 p
u
re
ly
 

fo
r 
sa
fe
ty
 p
u
rp
o
se
s 
th
e
n
 s
u
g
g
e
st
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
a
t 
is
 

re
a
lly
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 is
 a
 “
g
iv
e
 w

a
y
 o
r 
e
v
e
n
 a
 s
to
p
 

lin
e
”.
  

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 li
n
e
s:
 -
 T
h
e
 li
n
e
s 

w
e
re
 r
e
q
u
e
st
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
e
si
d
e
n
t 

a
s 
c
a
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
se
 li
n
e
s 

w
o
u
ld
 im

p
ro
v
e
 s
a
fe
ty
, 

p
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 a
c
c
e
ss
 a
n
d
 v
is
ib
ili
ty
. 

Th
is
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l w

a
s 
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 in
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 w

a
s 

d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 a
t 
a
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

R
e
si
d
e
n
t 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d

e
a
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 in
 B
a
te
m
a
n
s 

R
o
a
d
 –
 A
p
p
ro
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
n
 

B
a
te
m
a
n
s 
R
o
a
d
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 le

g
a
l. 

 

 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

P
ro
p
o
sa
l 

C
P
Z
/W
a
rd
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

O
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s 

N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 9
a
m
 t
o
 6
p
m
 i
n
 

C
a
m
e
lf
o
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
  
C
 –
 Q
u
e
e
n
s 

P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 i
n
 F
re
sh
fi
e
ld
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 C
 –
 Q
u
e
e
n
s 

P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 M
a
d
e
 L
e
g
a
l 
o
p
p
o
si
te
 

N
o
s.
4
/5
 I
v
o
ry
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 C
 –
 Q
u
e
e
n
s 

P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 i
n
 M
a
n
o
r 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

1
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 A
ru
n
d
e
l 

Lo
d
g
e
 A
ru
n
d
e
l 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 M
a
d
e
 L
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
3
 C
h
e
sh
a
m
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 2
4
/2
5
 

P
ri
n
c
e
’s
 T
e
rr
a
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 M
a
d
e
 L
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

H
a
m
ilt
o
n
 L
o
d
g
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 W
a
lp
o
le
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

P
R
O
P
O
S
A
LS
 P
U
T 
F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 

97



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 i
n
 C
o
w
fo
ld
 R
o
a
d
 (
so
u
th
e
rn
 e
n
d
) 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 H
 –
 E
a
st
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.9
2
 L
a
n
sd
o
w
n
e
 P
la
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 M
 –
 B
ru
n
sw
ic
k
 

&
 A
d
e
la
id
e
 

0
 

0
 

C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 S
h
a
re
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
s 
to
 P
e
rm
it
 H
o
ld
e
rs
 

O
n
ly
 B
a
y
s 
in
 C
o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 N
 –
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 

H
o
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.4
3
 

C
o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 
Te
rr
a
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 N
 –
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 

H
o
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 O
u
ts
id
e
 S
a
ils
b
u
ry
 

C
o
u
rt
, 
S
a
ils
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 N
 –
 B
ru
n
sw
ic
k
 &
 

A
d
e
la
id
e
 

1
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
S
h
a
re
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
7
/9
 

D
a
v
ig
d
o
r 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 O
 –
 G
o
ld
sm

id
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.2
4
 C
ro
m
w
e
ll 
R
o
a
d
  

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 O
 –
 G
o
ld
sm

id
 

0
 

1
 

R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.5
4
 

O
sm

o
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 O
 –
 G
o
ld
sm

id
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
7
 

C
a
rl
is
le
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 W
e
st
b
o
u
rn
e
  

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 

1
0
/1
2
 L
a
n
g
d
a
le
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 W
e
st
b
o
u
rn
e
  

0
 

0
 

98



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

D
is
a
b
le
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
1
 

M
o
n
tg
o
m
e
ry
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 W
e
st
b
o
u
rn
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
8
 

P
a
y
n
e
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 W
is
h
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
n
e
a
r 
to
 

N
o
.1
 P
e
m
b
ro
k
e
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 W
e
st
b
o
u
rn
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 i
n
 P
o
y
n
te
r 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 R
 –
 H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.5
7
 B
e
rr
ie
d
a
le
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 W
 –
 W
is
h
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 L
in
e
s 
a
n
d
 S
h
a
re
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
s 
(f
o
r 
a
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
2
h
rs
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 w
it
h
in
 4
 h
rs
) 
M
o
n
-S
u
n
 9
a
m
 

to
 8
p
m
 i
n
 B
e
lm
o
n
t 
S
tr
e
e
t 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

0
 

0
 

N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 A
t 
A
n
y
 T
im
e
 i
n
 T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
(j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 S
t 
G
e
o
rg
e
’s
 P
la
c
e
 &
 Y
o
rk
 P
la
c
e
) 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

0
 

0
 

N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 M
o
n
-S
a
t 
8
-9
3
0
a
m
, 
1
2
-2
p
m
, 
4
.3
0
-6
p
m
 

a
n
d
 N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 A
t 
A
n
y
 T
im
e
 i
n
 Q
u
e
e
n
s 
R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

W
in
d
le
sh
a
m
 H
o
u
se
, 
W
in
d
le
sh
a
m
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Y
 –
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

0
 

0
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.3
2
 S
tr
o
u
d
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Y
 –
 S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

1
 

6
 

N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 M
o
n
-S
a
t 
8
-9
3
0
a
m
, 
1
2
-2
p
m
, 
4
.3
0
-6
p
m
 &
 

N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 M
o
n
-S
a
t 
8
a
m
-9
.3
0
a
m
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Z
 –
 S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
a
in
e
 

0
 

0
 

99



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 E
x
c
lu
si
v
e
 P
a
y
 &
 D
is
p
la
y
 t
o
 S
h
a
re
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

(f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
2
h
rs
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 w
it
h
in
 4
h
rs
) 
M
o
n
-S
u
n
 

9
a
m
-8
p
m
 i
n
 B
e
d
fo
rd
 P
la
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Z
 -
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 P
e
rm
it
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 i
n
 B
e
d
fo
rd
 S
q
u
a
re
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Z
 –
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

0
 

0
 

M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 7
1
/7
2
 U
p
p
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 Z
 –
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

0
 

2
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 M
a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

M
a
re
sf
ie
ld
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
w
fo
ld
 R
o
a
d
 

E
a
st
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

 

1
 

2
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
w
e
st
 s
id
e
 o
f 
P
e
e
l 
R
o
a
d
 

E
a
st
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
W
h
it
e
h
a
w
k
 

C
re
sc
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 W
h
it
e
h
a
w
k
 C
lo
se
 

E
a
st
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.4
 C
o
o
lh
a
m
 D
ri
v
e
 

E
a
st
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 1
0
5
 

Q
u
e
e
n
sw
a
y
 

E
a
st
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
st
 s
id
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 t
u
rn
in
g
 a
re
a
 i
n
 S
to
rr
in
g
to
n
 

C
lo
se
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.9
0
 

H
a
lly
b
u
rt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.2
5
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 C
lo
se
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.9
1
 

H
o
lm
e
s 
A
v
e
n
u
e
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
2
 

W
ilf
ri
d
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

0
 

0
 

100



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
3
 

W
ilf
ri
d
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
ra
d
in
g
 R
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 H
a
rt
in
g
to
n
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

1
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
5
 

C
a
rl
y
le
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.5
7
 

D
o
w
n
 T
e
rr
a
c
e
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
p
p
o
si
te
 N
o
.5
6
 

S
o
u
th
o
v
e
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
4
 

S
o
u
th
o
v
e
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.5
4
 

To
tl
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
1
 

W
a
sh
in
g
to
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

0
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.7
5
 C
o
le
m
a
n
 

S
tr
e
e
t 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

0
 

1
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 M
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.3
4
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 

Te
rr
a
c
e
 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
&
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
 

4
 

3
 

D
o
u
b
le
 Y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
ty
 O
a
k
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 S
h
o
p
s 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.5
9
 

B
a
rn
e
tt
 R
o
a
d
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
4
 

B
e
a
tt
y
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

101



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
p
p
o
si
te
 2
3
 

D
e
n
to
n
 D
ri
v
e
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
2
 

D
it
c
h
lin
g
 G
a
rd
e
n
s 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
4
4
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 B
a
y
 i
n
 H
u
tt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 (
re
a
r 
o
f 

N
o
.8
6
 B
u
rs
te
a
d
 C
lo
se
) 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 

2
5
1
/2
5
5
 S
e
ls
fi
e
ld
 R
o
a
d
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 &
 

S
ta
n
m
e
r 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

B
is
h
o
p
s 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 T
h
e
 D
ro
v
e
w
a
y
 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 H
ill
 D
ri
v
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 S
h
ir
le
y
 D
ri
v
e
 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

1
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 W
a
y
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 D
ro
v
e
w
a
y
  

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
3
h
rs
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 w
it
h
in
 1
 h
o
u
r 
M
o
n
-

S
a
t 
9
a
m
-6
p
m
 i
n
 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 P
a
ra
d
e
, 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

D
ri
v
e
 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 1
1
 

M
ilc
o
te
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
o
k
e
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 3
1
 

Lu
lli
n
g
to
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

2
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
ill
si
d
e
 a
n
d
 

Th
e
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.2
3
 A
u
c
k
la
n
d
 D
ri
v
e
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
  

0
 

0
 

102



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 

5
9
/6
1
 B
u
lle
r 
R
o
a
d
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
7
 N
e
sb
it
t 
R
o
a
d
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.7
3
 R
ile
y
 R
o
a
d
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
s.
1
7
/1
9
 R
in
g
m
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.9
7
 S
ta
p
le
fi
e
ld
 D
ri
v
e
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.2
 S
u
lli
n
g
to
n
 C
lo
se
 

M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 &
 

B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 D
ro
v
e
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

1
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
 

a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s 
w
it
h
 V
ill
a
g
e
 C
lo
se
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 G
ra
h
a
m
 C
lo
se
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

5
 

1
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 M
ile
 O
a
k
 G
a
rd
e
n
s 
a
t 
th
e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 R
id
g
e
w
a
y
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
7
0
/7
2
 

M
ile
 O
a
k
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 O
a
k
d
e
n
e
 

C
re
sc
e
n
t 
a
t 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 M
ile
 O
a
k
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
4
 

C
h
ri
sd
o
ry
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.7
1
 D
ro
v
e
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

103



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.7
 O
a
k
d
e
n
e
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
p
p
o
si
te
 N
o
.7
4
 

V
a
lle
y
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
3
5
 V
a
lle
y
 R
o
a
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 O
ld
 B
o
a
t 
W
a
lk
, 
B
u
tt
e
rc
u
p
 

W
a
lk
 a
n
d
 C
lo
v
e
rs
 E
n
d
 

P
a
tc
h
a
m
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 P
a
tc
h
d
e
a
n
 (
so
u
th
e
rn
 a
rm
) 

P
a
tc
h
a
m
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.5
5
 

C
a
rd
e
n
 H
ill
 

P
a
tc
h
a
m
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
9
 G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 

P
a
tc
h
a
m
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.6
9
 

F
lo
re
n
c
e
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.4
6
 F
lo
re
n
c
e
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
6
 

H
y
th
e
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.8
4
 

O
sb
o
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.3
 

S
a
n
d
g
a
te
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.4
9
 S
a
n
d
g
a
te
 R
o
a
d
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

104



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

N
o
.1
2
 S
t 
A
n
d
re
w
’s
 R
o
a
d
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 B
a
y
s 
fr
o
m
 M
o
n
-

S
a
t 
8
a
m
 t
o
 6
p
m
 t
o
 M
o
n
-S
a
t 
6
a
m
-6
p
m
 i
n
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 

R
o
a
d
 (
n
e
a
r 
H
y
th
e
 R
o
a
d
) 

P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 P
a
ra
d
e
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s 
P
a
rk
 

1
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

E
b
e
n
e
ze
r 
A
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 A
sh
to
n
 R
is
e
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s 
P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.4
4
 F
re
sh
fi
e
ld
 S
tr
e
e
t 

Q
u
e
e
n
s 
P
a
rk
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 C
h
a
llo
n
e
rs
 C
lo
se
 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

2
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 R
o
a
d
 (
E
n
ti
re
 l
e
n
g
th
 

b
o
th
 s
id
e
s)
 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

1
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 T
h
e
 C
lif
f 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

1
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 
a
t 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 R
o
e
d
e
a
n
 R
o
a
d
 

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

1
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 C
lif
f 
A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
C
lif
f 
R
o
a
d
  

R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

1
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
o
c
to
r’
s 
B
a
y
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
6
9
-7
5
 

Lo
n
g
ri
d
g
e
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

R
o
tt
in
d
e
a
n
 C
o
a
st
a
l 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
y
m
b
is
te
r 

R
o
a
d
 &
 G
o
rd
o
n
 R
o
a
d
  

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 P
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 N
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 a
n
d
 S
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 

lin
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 s
id
e
 o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
 

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

3
 &
  
1
P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 

(4
8
 S
ig
n
a
tu
re
s 

105



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
9
 

d
e
a
n
 G
a
rd
e
n
s 

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
5
 

F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 D
ri
v
e
 

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
9
 S
t 
M
ic
h
a
e
l’
s 
R
o
a
d
 

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

Lo
a
d
in
g
 B
a
y
 A
t 
A
n
y
 T
im
e
 i
n
 S
t 
A
u
b
y
n
s 
R
o
a
d
 (
n
e
a
r 

to
 N
o
.1
) 

S
o
u
th
 P
o
rt
sl
a
d
e
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
S
in
g
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 U
p
p
e
r 
Le
w
e
s 
R
o
a
d
 
S
t 
P
e
te
r’
s 
&
 N
o
rt
h
 

La
in
e
 

2
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
7
 

J
e
sm

o
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 

W
is
h
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
o
n
 a
c
c
e
ss
 r
o
a
d
 t
o
 K
in
g
sm

e
re
 

F
la
ts
, 
Lo
n
d
o
n
 r
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

1
P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 (
4
3
 

S
ig
n
a
tu
re
s)
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 C
u
rw
e
n
 P
la
c
e
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 F
ri
a
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
t 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

1
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 H
ill
c
re
st
 a
t 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 F
a
ir
v
ie
w
 R
is
e
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
n
d
 N
o
 L
o
a
d
in
g
 a
t 
a
n
y
 t
im
e
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 S
ta
ti
o
n
, 
S
ta
ti
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 T
o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 R
is
e
 a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 T
o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 L
a
n
e
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

3
 

E
x
te
n
si
o
n
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
in
 W
e
st
d
e
n
e
 D
ri
v
e
 

a
t 
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 M
ill
c
ro
ft
 &
 H
ill
c
re
st
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
2
 h
o
u
rs
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

2
 

2
4
 

106



It
e
m
 3
1
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

w
it
h
in
 1
h
o
u
r 
M
o
n
-S
u
n
 8
a
m
-8
p
m
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
1
2
/1
4
 

M
a
tl
o
c
k
 R
o
a
d
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.2
5
 D
e
n
e
 V
a
le
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.2
4
 

S
u
rr
e
n
d
e
n
 R
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.3
0
 

S
u
rr
e
n
d
e
n
 R
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
.1
5
 

Ti
v
o
li 
R
o
a
d
 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.9
 W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 C
re
sc
e
n
t 

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
re
sc
e
n
t 

D
ri
v
e
 S
o
u
th
 &
 S
h
ip
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
o
u
b
le
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s 
a
t 
th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
ro
w
n
le
a
f 

R
o
a
d
 &
 A
b
in
g
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 

1
 

2
 

Li
m
it
e
d
 W
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
1
 h
o
u
r 
(n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 w
it
h
in
 1
 h
o
u
r)
 

M
o
n
-S
a
t 
9
a
m
-6
p
m
 o
u
ts
id
e
 N
o
s.
 1
0
-1
6
 W
a
rr
e
n
 W
a
y
 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 

0
 

0
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 B
a
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

N
o
.1
9
 B
a
te
m
a
n
s 
R
o
a
d
 

W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 

1
 

0
 

 

107



108



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 32 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Speed Limit Review (A&B Class Roads) 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Phil Clarke Tel: 29-3705 

 Email: philip.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: Hangleton & Knoll; Hove Park; Moulscoomb & 
Bevendean; Hollingdean & Stanmer; Rottingdean 
Coastal; South Portslade; Woodingdean 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE    
 
1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
  

1.1 On 15th December 2005 the Secretary of State for Transport formally requested 
that all local authorities undertake a review of the speed limits on the A & B Class 
roads for which they have highways authority responsibility. The undertaking of 
this review was included within the Brighton & Hove City Council Local Transport 
Plan 2006/7-2010/11 (LTP2). This review has now been completed. 

 
1.2    The potential for reduction in speed limits in accordance with the 

recommendations of the Review will support our strategic priorities and in 
particular improve the environment while growing the economy by facilitating 
safer use of more sustainable transport modes and reducing congestion on some 
of the City’s busiest thoroughfares. 

 
1.3 This report seeks to: 

§ Present the report and recommendations in respect of the Review of A&B 
Class Roads within the City. 

§ To seek Cabinet Member Approval to consult by advertising the relevant 
Traffic Regulation Order Amendments and depending upon that consultation, 
to subsequently implement those recommendations identified as suitable for 
progressing independently to the work being undertaken in relation to wider 
use of 20mph limits  

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS:  
  
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm notes the Officer 

recommendations from the City Speed Limit Review as set out in Appendix A. 
 
2.2 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm approves the 

recommendations to proceed with speed limit reductions as set out in Appendix 
A, reference numbers 3,5,6,7,8 and 17, and approves the advertising of the 
necessary Traffic Regulations Order(s).  

 
 

109



3.       RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 

3.1 The Council is committed to providing transport choice and reducing road 
casualties through a joint programme of road safety engineering measures 
alongside education, training and publicity initiatives to address identified issues. 
The setting of appropriate speed limits in accordance with Department for 
Transport Circular 1/2006 has formed part of the package of measures used at 
suitable locations.  

 
3.2      The Review took into account a number of factors. These included collision data 

for the period 1st January 2005 to 30th November 2008, Speed Survey Data 
which was considered in line with Department for Transport Circular 1/2006 and 
also Site Visits to establish physical aspects of the roads. A video of each road 
reviewed was also taken which enabled office based analysis using a checklist to 
highlight specific design criteria and properties. This facilitated the review taking 
into consideration DfT Circular 1/2006 in its fullest context as well as The Design 
Manual for Roads and Bridges. 

 
3.3 The review resulted in 17 recommendations contained within Appendix A. This 

report has been considered by officers and elected members and it has been 
decided to implement six of those recommendations this year, as indicated in 
Appendix A (reference numbers 3,5,6,7,8, and 17). Implementation will follow the 
usual statutory procedure, including advertising the relevant Traffic Orders and 
considering any unresolved objections at a future Cabinet Member Meeting. The 
other recommendations will be considered in conjunction with the new work 
being undertaken to scope the wider use of 20mph limits within the central area 
of the City. This will provide a more cohesive approach to speed limit reviews 
across the remainder and bulk of the highway network. 

 
3.4     The reduction of speed limits should help to reduce collisions and reduce the 

severity of those that do occur. 
 
3.5      It is intended to carry out periodic reviews of any changes in speed limit after 

implementation in order to monitor effectiveness and compliance. 
 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1 The Speed Limit Review was the subject of a Special Scrutiny Panel.  
 
 

4.2 Any alteration to speed limits requires the advertising of the relevant Traffic 
Regulation Order. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

  Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The approximate cost of advertising the Traffic Regulation Order Amendments 

and subsequent implementation of the recommendations contained within this 
report is £22,000 

 

110



5.2 There is a budget of £330,000 set aside for Road Safety Schemes within the 
Local Transport Plan capital allocation for 2011-12. This will be used to cover the 
costs of consultation and implementation.  

 
Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw     Date: 16/08/11 

   
  Legal Implications: 
 
5.3 The Council has the power under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to make 

Traffic Regulation Orders relating to speed limits. The appropriate statutory 
procedures regarding advertisement and consultation must be followed. 

 
5.4 The measures set out in the report are consistent with the Council’s statutory 

duties to promote road safety and prevent accidents. 
 

       Legal Officer consulted:   Carl Hearsum     Date:01/06/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 

 
5.5 There are no direct equalities implications 

 
   Sustainability Implications: 
 

5.6    None 
 

 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

5.7    None  
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

5.8 The report contains no risks and supports the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
panel. 

 
  Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
5.9    None 

 
6.  REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
6.1     To facilitate the implementation of some of the recommendations of the A&B 
 Class Road Speed Limit Review, subject to available funding. 
 
 
 

111



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

Appendices: 
 
Appendix A: Summary of recommendations within the A&B Class Road Speed Limit 

Review with officer recommendations. 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms: 
 
1.  The City Speed Limit Review (A&B Class Roads)  
 
Background Documents: 
 
1. Local Transport Plan 2006/7-10/11 
 

112



It
e
m
 3
2
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 N
u
m
b
e
r

R
o
a
d

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

S
p
e
e
d
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

S
p
e
e
d
 

D
e
ta
il
s

O
ff
ic
e
r 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

1
A
2
3

3
0

2
0

G
lo
u
c
e
s
te
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
to
 P
re
s
to
n
 C
ir
c
u
s

A
c
c
e
p
t 

A
2
5
9

A
c
c
e
p
t 

2
A
2
0
2
3

3
0

2
0

N
e
v
ill
 R
d
 I
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 t
o
 H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 S
c
h
o
o
l

A
c
c
e
p
t 

3
A
2
0
2
3

3
0

2
0

In
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 t
o
 B
la
tc
h
in
g
to
n
 M
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 i
n
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
, 
b
u
t 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
2
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
/t
e
rm

in
a
te
 a
t 

a
 p
o
in
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
 7
5
m
 n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
j/
w
 C
o
u
rt
 F
a
rm

 R
d
 w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 3
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
a
t 
p
o
in
t 
to
 j
/w
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 R
d
 o
w
in
g
 t
o
 p
ro
b
a
b
le
 p
o
lic
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 r
o
a
d
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 2
0
m
p
h
, 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
F
o
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
t 
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
n
ti
re
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
C
o
u
rt
 F
a
rm

 R
o
a
d
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 2
0
m
p
h
.

4
A
2
0
3
8

5
0

3
0

K
in
g
 G
e
o
rg
e
 V
I 
E
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
3
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d

A
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
o
n
e
 

5
A
2
9
3

6
0

5
0

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 L
in
k
 N
o
rt
h
e
rn
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
2
9
3

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
, 
b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 5
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
2
7
0
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 
j/
w
 F
o
x
 W

a
y
/H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
th
a
t 
ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 

to
 j
/w
 A
2
7
 a
s
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 (
6
0
m
p
h
) 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
p
ro
b
a
b
le
 p
o
lic
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n

6
A
2
9
3

3
0

2
0

T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 
R
d
/C
h
u
rc
h
 R
d
 I
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
f 
S
t 

M
a
ry
’s
 R
C
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

A
c
c
e
p
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 r
o
u
te
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
A
2
5
9
 t
o
 A
2
7
0

7
A
2
7
0

4
0

3
0

O
ld
 S
h
o
re
h
a
m
 R
d
 B
2
1
9
4
 t
o
 F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 D
ri
v
e

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
, 
b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 3
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 f
ro
m
 

F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 D
ri
v
e
 t
o
 j
/w
 L
o
c
k
e
s
 H
ill
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 
lim

it
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 m
a
jo
r 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
.

8
A
2
7
0

4
0

3
0

L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
m
b
e
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 t
o
 N
a
ta
l 

R
o
a
d

A
c
c
e
p
t 

9
3
0

2
0

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 R
o
a
d
 A
2
5
9
 t
o
 C
h
u
rc
h
 S
tr
e
e
t

A
c
c
e
p
t,
 b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 2
0
m
p
h
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 j
/w
 

N
o
rt
h
 R
o
a
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y

1
0

3
0

2
0

B
u
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
 P
la
c
e
 3
0
0
m
 b
e
fo
re
 S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 

A
c
c
e
p
t 

1
1

B
2
0
6
6

3
0

2
0

W
e
s
te
rn
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 M
o
n
tp
e
lie
r 
R
o
a
d

A
c
c
e
p
t 

1
2

B
2
1
1
8

3
0

2
0

S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
's
 S
t 
- 
A
2
3
 t
o
 U
p
p
e
r 
R
o
c
k
 g
a
rd
e
n
s

A
c
c
e
p
t 

B
2
1
3
7

A
c
c
e
p
t

1
3

B
2
1
2
1

3
0

2
0

D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 3
0
0
m
 e
it
h
e
r 
s
id
e
 o
f 
S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

A
c
c
e
p
t 

1
4

B
2
1
2
2

3
0

2
0

M
o
n
tp
e
lie
r 
R
d
 -
 3
0
0
m
 e
it
h
e
r 
s
id
e
 o
f 
S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

A
c
c
e
p
t 

1
5

B
2
1
2
0

3
0

2
0

D
a
v
ig
d
o
r 
R
o
a
d
 -
 3
0
0
m
 b
e
fo
re
 S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

A
c
c
e
p
t 

B
2
1
8
5

A
c
c
e
p
t

1
6

B
2
1
9
4

3
0

2
0

N
e
w
 c
h
u
rc
h
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 A
2
7
0

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 a
s
 3
0
m
p
h
 o
n
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
w
id
th
, 
n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
e
rt
a
in
 p
o
lic
e
 

o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
. 
U
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
o
 2
0
m
p
h
 a
s
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
D
fT
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 C
ir
c
u
la
r 

1
/2
0
0
6

B
2
1
1
9

A
c
c
e
p
t 

1
7

B
2
1
2
3

4
0

3
0

F
a
lm
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 -
 4
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 W

o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n

A
c
c
e
p
t,
 o
n
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
L
o
n
g
h
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
a
fe
ty
 Z
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
 r
a
d
ii 
b
e
n
d
s
 f
o
r 

4
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
. 
C
it
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
lla
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
p
o
lic
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
u
t 
w
ill
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 

a
p
rt
 o
f 
w
id
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

in
to
 u
s
e
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 

lim
it
s

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

C
M
M
 r
e
p
o
rt
 4
th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in

A
2
0
1
0

A
ru
n
d
e
l 
R
o
a
d
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in

G
ra
n
d
 A
v
e
n
u
e
/T
h
e
 D
ri
v
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in

113



114



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 33 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Speed Limit Review, 20mph Speed Limits 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Len Holloway Tel: 292184 

 Email: len.holloway@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: Preston Park; Rottingdean Coastal; South Portslade 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1 In addition to the Speed Limit Review requested on 15th December 2005 by the 

Secretary of State for Transport in respect of speed limits on the A & B Class 
roads, the Council decided to undertake a separate review of the speed limits on 
the City’s other roads. The start of this process was delayed pending an 
investigation into 20mph speed limits/zones by the Environment and Community 
Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ECSOSC). The panel produced a 
report containing 15 recommendations that was taken to Environment CMM on 
16th September 2010. 

 
1.2 Updates on the review were provided to the Environment Cabinet Member 

Meetings on 16th September 2010 and 4th November 2010, with a commitment to 
provide a further update at an Environment CMM in March 2011. Presentation of 
an update to the March 2011 was postponed until after the Council Elections, at 
the request of the Environment Cabinet Member. 

 
1.3 This report seeks to: 

§ Present the Review report and recommendations in respect of the non- A&B 
Class Roads within the City 

§ To provide an update on the non-A&B Class Road Review and seek Cabinet 
Member approval to consult on the implementation of some of the measures 
recommended within that report.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
 2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm approves that the Central 

Area and Western Area schemes set out in Appendix 1 be progressed to final 
design and that the TRO be advertised. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Council is committed to providing transport choice and reducing road 
casualties through a joint programme of road safety engineering measures 
alongside education, training and publicity initiatives to address identified issues. 

115



The setting of appropriate speed limits in accordance with Department for 
Transport Circular 1/2006 and wider use of 20mph zones has formed part of the 
package of measures used at suitable locations.  

 
3.2   The introduction of 20mph zones within the City has been on a data led basis 

and it is intended to continue to prioritise any implementation of measures to 
reduce speeds, particularly the potential wider use of 20mph limits and zones, on 
this basis. By adopting a data-led incremental approach to implementation of any 
measures, it is easier to target those areas in which the greatest benefit can be 
potentially achieved. This will also facilitate delivering measures in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Scrutiny Panel and in an affordable way. 

 
3.3 Research has shown that a reduction in speed clearly correlates with a reduction 

in the severity of collisions and several studies have been carried out to 
substantiate this. TRL published results of a meta-analysis of these studies 
(Finch et al, 1994), concluding from the wealth of underlying data that, on 
average, each 1 mph reduction in mean traffic speed is associated with a 5 per 
cent reduction in accidents. 

 
3.4    The Review undertook a pilot study to test the review methodology in three 

demographically different areas of the City with a view to implementing any 
recommendations in order to assess the effect of 20mph speed limits, as 
opposed to zones.   The difference between a limit and a zone is that a zone 
includes traffic calming measures intended to make the speed limit self-
enforcing. The three areas in the pilot study were:  

 
§ Eastern Area, vicinity of Saltdean Primary School selected because it lends 

itself to the creation of a small area which would encompass the local 
commercial centre. 

 
§ Central Area, vicinity of Stanford Infant and Stanford Junior Schools, 

centrally located within an area subject to numerous complaints from local 
residents regarding safety, with a supporting collision history.  This would be 
a medium sized scheme, including the surrounding residential streets. 

 
§ Western Area, Portslade in the vicinity of Peter Gladwin Primary, St Nicholas 

C of E Junior and Portslade Infant Schools. A large area encompassing all 
three schools and a substantial residential area with some supporting collision 
history. 

 
3.5 Of the above three areas that were the subject of a pilot study, it is proposed to 

proceed to consultation on implementing the Central and Western Area 
schemes. It is not proposed to proceed with the eastern area scheme as it is felt 
the area is too small and effectively an island site. It would therefore be unlikely 
to give a good indication of its effectiveness or provide any real cost benefit. This 
decision will be reviewed if a wider city wide implementation is considered and 
the area may be incorporated within a more substantial future scheme 

 
3.6 A periodic review will be carried out to gauge the effectiveness of the measures 

used on the central area and western area schemes on an annual basis. 
 

3.7 The total cost of implementing the schemes within the three pilot areas is  

116



       Approximately £80,000. 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
  
4.1 Any alteration to speed limits requires the advertising of the relevant Traffic 

Regulation Order. 
 
4.2 In addition, although not a legal requirement, in respect of the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in the vicinity of schools under the pilot study 
for the non-A&B Class Roads, we propose to carry out an informal consultation 
with the relevant schools. 

 
4.3 Officers will continue to work closely with Ward Councillors. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
  Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 There is a budget of £330,000 set aside for Road Safety Schemes within the 

Local Transport Plan capital allocation for 2011-12. This will be used to cover the 
costs of consultation and implementation.  

 
Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw      Date: 31/05/11 

   
  Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The Council has the power under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to make 

Traffic Regulation Orders relating to speed limits. The appropriate statutory 
procedures regarding advertisement and consultation must be followed. 

 
5.3 The measures set out in the report are consistent with the Council’s statutory 

duties to promote road safety and prevent accidents. 
 

           Legal Officer consulted:   Carl Hearsum     Date: 01/06/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 

 
5.4 There are no direct equalities implications 

 

   Sustainability Implications: 
 

5.5     None 
 

 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

5.6    None  
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 See 3.3 above. 

 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 

117



5.8 The report contains no risks and supports the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
panel. 

 
  Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
5.9    None 
 

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1      To accept the Review report and facilitate the implementation of the             

Recommendations of the non A&B Class Road Speed Limit Review pilot study, 
subject to available funding. 

 
7.2      The recommendations for which approval is sought in respect of the non A&B 

Class Review result directly from CMM acceptance of the Scrutiny Report and 
subsequent undertakings to provide progress updates and the implementation of 
recommendations. 

 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 

 
1.  Plans of the proposed 20mph limits within the 2 pilot study areas reviewed 

within the non A&B Class Review. 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. The City Speed Limit Review (non A&B Class Roads- 20mph Speed Limits) 

Pilot Study Report 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Local Transport Plan 2006/7-10/11 
 
2. Environment & Community Safety Overview & Scrutiny Committee Report of 

‘An Investigation into 20mph speed limits/zones’ 
 
 

118



It
e
m

 3
3
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
A

119



120



It
e
m

 3
3
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
B

121



122



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 34 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Parking Annual Report 2010-11 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Paul Nicholls Tel: 29-3287 

 Email: paul.nicholls@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 To note and approve the publication of the third Parking Annual Report 

2010/11 on the performance of Parking Services for submission to the 
Department for Transport, Traffic Penalty Tribunal and for general publication 
under the provisions of the Traffic Management Act 2004. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm endorses the publication 

of the Parking Annual Report for 20010/11 under the provisions of the Traffic 
Management Act 2004. 

 
2.2 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm authorises the Head of 

City Infrastructure to produce and publish the report which will be made available 
on the Council’s website. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 The City Council has operated Decriminalised Parking Enforcement since 16 July 

2001. Part 6 of The Traffic Management Act 2004 came into force on 31 March 
2008 and the decriminalised enforcement of parking is now known as Civil 
Parking Enforcement. Statutory Guidance issued by the Department for 

 Transport requires the Council to produce and publish an annual report within 6 
months of the end of the financial year. 

 
3.2 Brighton and Hove City Council’s first Parking Annual Report 2008/9 received 

national recognition when it was unanimously declared overall winner by the 
independent ‘Parking Annual Report Review Group’ established by PATROL 
(Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London). Last year’s report was also 
shortlisted for the award which was established to highlight best practice 
amongst Local Authorities in using the report to engage with the public on a 
range of parking issues. 
 

123



3.3  Copies of this year’s Parking Annual Report will be sent to a wide range  of 
stakeholders including, Sussex Police, East Sussex Fire Brigade, The Traffic 
Penalty Tribunal, the Secretary of State for Transport, Brighton and Hove 
Chamber of Commerce and local parking special interest groups. The Parking 
Annual Report will also be published on the council’s website. 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The publication of the Parking Annual Report 2010/11 is being used as an 

opportunity to inform and engage with the public and stakeholders on a range of 
parking issues. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The full cost of preparing the Annual Parking Report has been met from within 

existing Parking & Traffic revenue budgets. 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted:   Karen Brookshaw Date: 01/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The City Council is required by Statutory Guidance issued by the Department for 

Transport under Section 87 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 to produce and 
publish an annual report detailing financial and statistical information on its civil 
parking enforcement regime. The report must be published within 6 months of 
the end of the financial year  

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Carl Hearsum Date: 30/08/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The Parking Annual Report will be made available in hard copy format at libraries 

and at the Parking Information Centre where staff will be able to provide 
assistance as required, in addition to being published online. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 None identified  
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 None identified 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6  None identified  
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7  None identified 
 

124



 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 None identified 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 None considered 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To provide the public and stakeholders with information on the performance, 

aims and objectives of parking services and to meet the Council’s legal 
obligations under the Traffic Management Act 2004 

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1.  The Parking Annual Report 2010/11  
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 

125



126



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 

1
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

2
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

3
 P

e
rm

it
s 

4
 S

ig
n

s 
&

 L
in

e
s 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 

5
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

6
 B

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

U
p

d
a

te
 

7
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 

8
 K

e
e

p
in

g
 i

n
 t

o
u

ch
 

9
 A

ir
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 

1
0

 O
ff

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s 

1
1

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

1
2

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 

G
lo

ss
a

ry
 o

f 
T

e
rm

s 

127



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 

It
 i

s 
m

y
 p

le
a

su
re

 t
o

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 o

u
r 

th
ir

d
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

im
s 

o
f 

th
e

 P
a

rk
in

g
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 is
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

a
b

o
u

t 

th
e

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s,
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 p

a
rk

in
g

 i
n

 o
u

r 
ci

ty
. 

 

T
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

h
a

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 n
e

w
 p

u
b

li
c 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

tf
o

rm
s 

in
 F

a
ce

b
o

o
k

 a
n

d
 T

w
it

te
r 

: 
w

w
w

.f
a

ce
b

o
o

k
.c

o
m

/t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
n

d
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

w
w

w
.t

w
it

te
r.

co
m

/b
h

cc
_

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 .
 T

h
e

se
 a

re
 h

e
lp

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
ll

 t
y

p
e

s 
o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 r

e
la

te
d

 i
ss

u
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
A

t 
th

e
 

sa
m

e
 t

im
e

, 
p

u
b

li
c 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

se
 p

a
g

e
s 

is
 h

e
lp

in
g

 u
s 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

e
lp

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

 i
ss

u
e

s 
o

f 
co

n
ce

rn
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

c.
  

A
 f

e
w

 s
h

o
rt

 m
o

n
th

s 
a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
u

n
ch

 o
f 

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 a

cc
e

p
t 

a
p

p
e

a
ls

 o
n

li
n

e
, 

n
e

a
rl

y
 4

0
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

ri
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

 

n
o

w
 c

h
o

o
se

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

 o
n

li
n

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

y
 p

o
st

. 
It

 i
s 

o
f 

co
u

rs
e

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
th

a
t 

w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
e

xc
lu

d
e

 s
e

ct
io

n
s 

o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
li

c 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
se

 n
e

w
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

w
h

y
 t

h
e

 “
C

o
u

n
ci

l C
o

n
n

e
ct

” 
p

ro
je

ct
 b

a
se

d
 i

n
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

co
u

n
ci

l 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 g
u

id
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
w

e
b

si
te

 

g
o

e
s 

h
a

n
d

 i
n

 h
a

n
d

 w
it

h
 a

d
va

n
ce

s 
in

 p
la

ci
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
o

n
li

n
e

. 

F
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
st

 t
im

e
, 

th
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 t

a
ck

li
n

g
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 m

is
u

se
 a

n
d

 f
ra

u
d

. 
T

h
is

 t
y

p
e

 o
f 

m
is

u
se

 a
ff

e
ct

s 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

st
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 b

y
 d

e
p

ri
v

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 b

lu
e

 b
a

d
g

e
 c

o
n

ce
ss

io
n

s.
 I

 w
a

s 
p

le
a

se
d

 t
o

 h
e

a
r 

o
f 

th
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 

tr
ia

l 
o

f 
p

ro
v

id
in

g
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
st

o
le

n
 a

n
d

 lo
st

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

s 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 h
a

n
d

h
e

ld
 c

o
m

p
u

te
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s 
re

su
lt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
co

v
e

ry
 o

f 
5

3
 s

to
le

n
 b

a
d

g
e

s.
 T

h
is

 j
o

in
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
a

ck
li

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

 m
e

a
n

s 
th

a
t 

a
n

yo
n

e
 s

e
e

n
 d

is
p

la
y

in
g

 a
 s

to
le

n
 b

lu
e

 b
a

d
g

e
 i

n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e

 c
a

n
 

e
xp

e
ct

 a
 v

is
it

 f
ro

m
 S

u
ss

e
x 

P
o

li
ce

. 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
P

e
n

a
lt

y 
C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

s 
is

su
e

d
 i

n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s 

to
 f

a
ll

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

- 
ye

a
r 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 p
e

a
k

 i
n

 2
0

0
4

 w
h

e
n

 1
6

8
,0

0
0

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

s 
w

e
re

 i
ss

u
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

co
v

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

h
e

n
 j

u
st

 1
0

9
,0

0
0

 P
C

N
s 

w
e

re
 i

ss
u

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 im
p

ro
v

e
d

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
ia

ri
ty

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

h
e

lp
s 

k
e

e
p

 t
ra

ff
ic

 m
o

v
in

g
. 

 

If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 q

u
e

st
io

n
s 

o
r 

co
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
b

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

P
a

rk
in

g
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 p
le

a
se

 le
t 

u
s 

k
n

o
w

 b
y

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
in

g
 o

u
r 

P
a

rk
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 o
n

 0
1

2
7

3
 

2
9

6
6

2
2

, 
e

m
a

il
in

g
 u

s 
a

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

@
b

ri
g

h
to

n
-h

o
ve

.g
o

v
.u

k
 o

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
ly

 p
o

st
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
co

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 o

u
r 

fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

o
r 

tw
it

te
r 

p
a

g
e

s.
 

T
h

a
n

k
 y

o
u

 f
o

r 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 r

e
a

d
 o

u
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 P
a

rk
in

g
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

C
ll

r 
Ia

n
 D

a
v

e
y

 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 &
 P

u
b

li
c 

R
e

a
lm

. 

 

128



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

O
u

r 
P

a
rk

in
g

 P
o

li
cy

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
a

re
 t

o
: 

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

g
e

st
io

n
 a

n
d

 k
e

e
p

 t
ra

ff
ic

 m
o

v
in

g
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 s

a
fe

ly
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e

d
 i

t 
m

o
st

 

•
 

D
e

li
v

e
r 

e
xc

e
ll

e
n

t 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 i

n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 a
re

 e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
to

 k
e

e
p

 t
ra

ff
ic

 m
o

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 f

o
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
v

is
it

o
rs

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
 P

a
rt

s 
o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y

 a
re

 

a
m

o
n

g
st

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
e

n
se

ly
 p

o
p

u
la

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

T
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

s 
e

st
im

a
te

d
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 t

o
 2

8
3

,7
0

0
 b

y
 2

0
2

6
 s

o
 p

re
ss

u
re

 o
n

 l
im

it
e

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
ce

 w
il

l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

. 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

to
u

ri
st

 d
e

st
in

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 e

ig
h

t 
m

il
lio

n
 v

is
it

o
rs

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
. 

P
a

rk
in

g
 p

la
ys

 a
 v

it
a

l 
ro

le
 i

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y

’s
 

T
o

u
ri

sm
 S

tr
a

te
g

y 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
’s

 g
a

te
w

a
y

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 a

rr
iv

a
l p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
th

o
se

 c
o

m
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
 a

ll 
th

a
t 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 h

a
s 

to
 o

ff
e

r.
 

B
a

la
n

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
, 

v
is

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

is
 k

e
y 

to
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 s
u

cc
e

ss
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

. 

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

O
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
ce

s 
2

2
,0

3
1

 
2

3
,3

3
3

 
2

5
,0

3
9

 

O
ff

 s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
ce

s 
2

,4
9

0
 

2
,4

9
0

 
2

4
9

0
 

P
a

y 
&

 d
is

p
la

y
 o

n
ly

 b
a

y
s 

5
3

4
 

9
0

3
 

9
2

9
 

P
e

rm
it

 o
n

ly
 b

a
y

s 
1

1
,5

5
4

 
1

1
,6

9
6

 
1

2
,8

3
0

 

S
h

a
re

d
 b

a
y

s 
(p

e
rm

it
 a

n
d

 p
a

y
 &

 d
is

p
la

y
) 

8
,9

1
8

 
9

,1
2

7
 

9
,5

5
3

 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
s 

4
6

4
 

5
1

1
 

5
7

1
 

O
th

e
r 

b
a

y
s 

5
4

9
 

5
5

8
 

6
1

8
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
 r

e
m

o
v

e
d

 
1

,0
7

3
 

1
,2

6
8

 
1

,0
5

7
 

B
a

y
s 

su
sp

e
n

d
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
3

,7
3

5
 

4
,0

8
1

 
4

,0
0

3
 

O
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
P

e
n

a
lt

y
 C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

s 
is

su
e

d
 

1
2

9
,8

3
7

 
1

1
6

,3
6

9
 

1
0

9
,2

7
5

 

It
e

m
s 

o
f 

co
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ce

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 
4

3
,4

7
2

 
3

7
,7

1
6

 
3

5
,8

5
6

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
p

e
rm

it
s 

is
su

e
d

 
1

9
,8

8
5

 
2

0
,7

8
3

 
2

0
,1

1
6

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
V

is
it

o
r 

p
e

rm
it

s 
is

su
e

d
 

3
4

5
,5

8
1

 
3

1
9

,8
2

0
 

4
2

2
,5

8
3

 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

s 
o

n
 i

ss
u

e
 

1
3

,0
0

0
 

1
1

,9
7

8
 

1
3

,2
6

5
 

 

129



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
h

a
p

te
r 

2
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
  

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 F
ra

u
d

 a
n

d
 m

is
u

se
 i

s 
a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y,
 c

o
st

in
g

 e
a

ch
 l

o
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
o

f 
p

o
u

n
d

s 
e

a
ch

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 c

it
y

 h
a

s 
se

e
n

 

a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 d

is
p

la
y

in
g

 p
h

o
to

co
p

ie
d

 a
n

d
 f

a
ke

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

to
 o

b
ta

in
 f

re
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
. 

 

In
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
d

e
vo

te
d

 m
o

re
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 t

a
ck

li
n

g
 t

h
is

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

e
n

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 r
e

su
lt

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 w
e

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 

d
o

in
g

. 
In

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 N

S
L 

a
n

d
 S

u
ss

e
x 

P
o

li
ce

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 r
e

co
v

e
r 

th
e

se
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 a
n

y
 lo

st
 o

r 
st

o
le

n
 b

a
d

g
e

s 

d
is

p
la

y
e

d
 o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

w
o

rt
h

le
ss

. 
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 P

o
li

ce
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

g
a

l p
o

w
e

r 
to

 c
o

n
fi

sc
a

te
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

o
n

 d
is

p
la

y
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s 
lo

st
 o

r 
st

o
le

n
 o

r 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
ss

u
e

d
 t

o
 a

 

re
si

d
e

n
t 

w
h

o
 i

s 
n

o
w

 d
e

ce
a

se
d

. 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
e

 w
a

n
te

d
 t

o
 f

in
d

 a
 q

u
ic

k
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
a

y
 o

f 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
 s

to
le

n
 b

a
d

g
e

 w
a

s 
o

n
 d

is
p

la
y

. 

W
e

 w
a

n
te

d
 t

o
 e

it
h

e
r 

h
a

ve
 t

h
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 t

o
w

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
u

n
d

 o
r 

re
q

u
e

st
 t

h
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

 o
f 

S
u

ss
e

x 
P

o
li

ce
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 t
o

 d
e

a
l w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

. 

A
ll

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 n

o
w

 h
a

ve
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 o

u
r 

d
e

ta
il

e
d

 d
a

ta
b

a
se

 w
it

h
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

ll
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
th

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s 
lo

st
 o

r 
st

o
le

n
, 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

th
e

 d
a

te
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 b
a

d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
r 

d
ie

d
, 

if
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t.

 T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

cc
e

ss
e

d
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

ir
 h

a
n

d
h

e
ld

 c
o

m
p

u
te

rs
. 

W
h

e
n

 a
 b

a
d

g
e

 i
s 

se
e

n
 

d
is

p
la

y
e

d
 i

n
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 c
h

e
ck

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 i
f 

th
is

 b
a

d
g

e
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 u

s 
a

s 
st

o
le

n
. 

If
 i

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

, 
a

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 i

s 
is

su
e

d
 a

n
d

 

p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

ic
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

a
ke

n
. 

 O
n

ce
 t

h
e

 c
a

se
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
u

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s 
p

a
ss

e
d

 o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
. 

V
e

h
ic

le
s 

se
e

n
 p

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
s 

w
it

h
 s

to
le

n
 o

r 
fa

k
e

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 t

o
w

e
d

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
n

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

 o
w

n
e

rs
 c

a
n

 u
su

a
ll

y 
e

xp
e

ct
 S

u
ss

e
x 

P
o

lic
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
t 

th
e

 

ca
r 

p
o

u
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

y
 c

o
ll

e
ct

 t
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

. 
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 C
iv

il 
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 t
o

 c
h

e
ck

 b
a

d
g

e
s.

 N
o

w
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

h
e

ck
 a

ll
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 o
n

 d
is

p
la

y
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e

 le
ve

l 
o

f 
ch

e
ck

s 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
/m

is
u

se
 f

o
u

n
d

. 

  
M

a
r 

A
p

r 
M

a
y 

Ju
n

 
Ju

l 
A

u
g

 
S

e
p

 
O

ct
 

N
o

v 
D

e
c 

Ja
n

 
F

e
b

 
M

a
r 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

e
ck

s 
ca

rr
ie

d
 

o
u

t 
6

6
 

3
1

 
1

0
6

 
2

3
4

 
1

9
7

 
1

9
1

 
1

5
4

 
1

7
1

 
1

5
3

 
1

3
1

 
1

3
1

 
 1

5
0

 
 1

5
0

 
1

8
6

5
 

F
ra

u
d

 c
a

se
s 

1
1

 
8

 
1

5
 

1
5

 
1

7
 

2
0

 
1

5
 

1
8

 
9

 
4

 
5

 
2

 
8

 
1

4
7

 

F
ra

u
d

 %
 

1
6

%
 

2
6

%
 

1
4

%
 

6
%

 
9

%
 

1
0

%
 

1
0

%
 

1
1

%
 

6
%

 
3

%
 

4
%

 
 3

%
 

 5
%

 
9

%
 

M
is

u
se

 c
a

se
s 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

6
 

8
 

1
1

 
1

0
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

4
 

9
 

6
0

 

   T
h

e
 f

ir
st

 6
 m

o
n

th
s 

o
f 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 r

e
su

lt
e

d
 i

n
 9

3
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
co

ve
re

d
 w

it
h

 n
e

a
rl

y
 7

0
%

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 i
n

 p
o

li
ce

 a
ct

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 b
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 is
 a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s:

 

 Lo
st

  
 

1
8

 

S
to

le
n

 
 

 4
8

 

D
e

ce
a

se
d

 
 1

8
 

A
lt

e
re

d
  

 4
 

130



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

F
a

k
e

 
 

 4
 

P
h

o
to

co
p

y 
 1

 

 T
h

e
 t

w
o

 g
ra

p
h

s 
b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 t

ri
a

l,
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

fr
a

u
d

 c
a

se
s 

h
a

s 
g

re
a

tl
y 

re
d

u
ce

d
. 

P
u

b
li

ci
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l 

p
re

ss
, 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

F
a

ce
b

o
o

k
 

a
n

d
 t

w
it

te
r 

p
a

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
n

 o
u

r 
w

e
b

si
te

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 m
a

y
 h

a
v

e
 le

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l f

ra
u

d
st

e
rs

 t
o

 t
h

in
k

 a
g

a
in

 b
e

fo
re

 u
si

n
g

 a
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

. 

    O
v

e
ra

ll 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
ft

s 
o

f 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

in
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

ve
 h

a
s 

d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 p
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
b

y
 2

5
%

. 
 

In
sp

e
ct

o
r 

H
a

zz
a

rd
 f

ro
m

 S
u

ss
e

x 
P

o
lic

e
 h

a
s 

sa
id

: 

‘A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 u
s 

e
n

d
 u

p
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
p

o
sa

l,
 n

o
rm

a
ll

y
 a

 c
a

u
ti

o
n

 s
o

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 u

si
n

g
 f

ra
u

d
u

le
n

t 
o

r 
st

o
le

n
 

b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
a

re
 g

e
tt

in
g

 a
 c

ri
m

in
a

l 
re

co
rd

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
. 

If
 p

e
o

p
le

 g
e

t 
to

 h
e

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 d

ry
 u

p
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i

n
 t

u
rn

 s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
ft

s 
o

f 

b
a

d
g

e
s 

fr
o

m
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

o
le

n
 /

 f
ra

u
d

u
le

n
t 

b
a

d
g

e
s 

u
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t.
’ 

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 B

lu
e

b
ir

d
 

 A
s 

in
 p

re
v

io
u

s 
y

e
a

rs
 w

e
 h

a
v

e
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 w
it

h
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 B
lu

e
b

ir
d

, 
w

h
e

re
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
cc

o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 b
y

 P
o

li
ce

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 l
o

o
k

in
g

 f
o

r 
fr

a
u

d
u

le
n

t 
b

a
d

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
m

is
u

se
 t

h
e

m
. 

 

   T
o

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

c 
a

ss
is

t 
u

s 
in

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 m
is

u
se

 w
e

 h
a

ve
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
 n

e
w

 e
m

a
il

 a
d

d
re

ss
 f

o
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
u

sp
e

ct
e

d
 f

ra
u

d
 &

 m
is

u
se

: 

B
lu

e
B

a
d

g
e

.f
ra

u
d

@
b

ri
g

h
to

n
-h

o
v

e
.g

o
v

.u
k

 

  W
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 p

o
st

e
r 

w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
h

o
w

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
y

 m
is

u
se

 t
o

 u
s.

 T
h

e
se

 p
o

st
e

rs
 a

re
 f

o
u

n
d

 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s,

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

p
u

b
li

c 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
o

ct
o

r’
s 

su
rg

e
ri

e
s.

 

     O
u

r 
F

a
ce

b
o

o
k

 a
n

d
 T

w
it

te
r 

p
a

g
e

s 
a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 u

s 
a

n
d

 o
u

r 
w

e
b

si
te

 h
a

s 
m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

rm
. 

 

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
u

d
 I

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

 (
N

F
I)

 

  T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

N
F

I 
is

 t
o

 r
e

co
ve

r 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
s 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 u

s 
b

u
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
a

n
d

 a
re

 s
ti

ll
 i

n
 u

se
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 d
e

a
th

 o
f 

th
e

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 h
o

ld
e

r.
  

 

131



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 T
h

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 r
a

te
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

, 
th

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

sh
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
5

6
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

w
e

re
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 u

s 
a

s 
a

 d
ir

e
ct

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e

 N
F

I 

in
v

e
st

ig
a

ti
o

n
s.

 O
f 

th
is

, 
3

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

w
e

re
 c

a
n

ce
ll

e
d

 o
n

 o
u

r 
sy

st
e

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 c
o

n
fi

sc
a

te
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

s 
th

e
y

 w
e

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

is
u

se
d

 b
y

 f
ri

e
n

d
s 

o
r 

fa
m

ily
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

ce
a

se
d

. 
 

W
h

a
t’

s 
n

e
xt

?
 

 M
o

v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 w
e

 p
la

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
a

ck
li

n
g

 t
h

is
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

se
r 

w
it

h
 E

a
st

 &
 W

e
st

 S
u

ss
e

x 
to

 s
h

a
re

 o
u

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

lo
st

 o
r 

st
o

le
n

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

fr
o

m
 a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

se
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 e

a
si

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
ct

io
n

 t
a

ke
n

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 d
ri

v
e

r.
  

  W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 u

se
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

n
t’

s 
d

o
ct

o
r.

 W
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 u

si
n

g
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 m

e
d

ic
a

l e
xp

e
rt

 (
G

P
) 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 o
u

r 
b

e
h

a
lf

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y.

 I
t’

s 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
s 

a
re

 o
n

ly
 i

ss
u

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 g
e

n
u

in
e

ly
 i

n
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
cr

it
e

ri
a

. 
U

si
n

g
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 a

ss
e

ss
o

r 
ca

n
 h

e
lp

 u
s 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 i
s 

th
e

 c
a

se
. 

 N
o

t 
a

ll
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 w
il

l 
n

e
e

d
 a

 

v
is

it
 f

ro
m

 a
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
e

xp
e

rt
, 

th
o

se
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
e

r 
R

a
te

 M
o

b
il

it
y

 l
iv

in
g

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 o

r 
w

h
o

 f
u

lf
il

 o
th

e
r 

cr
it

e
ri

a
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y 

is
su

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 b
a

d
g

e
, 

a
ll

 o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
li

ca
n

ts
 m

a
y

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 v

is
it

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 e
lig

ib
il

it
y

 a
ss

e
ss

o
r 

b
e

fo
re

 a
n

 a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 i
s 

a
p

p
ro

ve
d

. 
 

 O
n

 1
4

th
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
 a

n
n

o
u

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s 
m

a
d

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 r
e

fo
rm

in
g

 t
h

e
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 S

ch
e

m
e

. 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.d
ft

.g
o

v
.u

k/
to

p
ic

s/
a

cc
e

ss
/b

lu
e

-b
a

d
g

e
/r

e
fo

rm
-

o
f-

th
e

-b
lu

e
-b

a
d

g
e

-s
ch

e
m

e
/ 

T
h

e
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
B

B
IS

) 
w

il
l 

b
e

 r
o

ll
e

d
 o

u
t 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
ce

n
tr

a
li

se
 t

h
e

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 

sy
st

e
m

. 
T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 l
o

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 a

ss
e

ss
 a

p
p

li
ca

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 t

h
e

ir
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

th
e

n
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 a
 

ce
n

tr
a

l 
d

a
ta

b
a

se
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

a
d

g
e

s 
n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

m
a

d
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
st

e
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

  T
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
ys

te
m

 w
il

l 
p

ro
v

id
e

: 

•
  
  
  
  
 S

e
cu

re
 p

ri
n

ti
n

g
, 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
sa

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
; 

•
  
  
  
  
 A

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

d
a

ta
b

a
se

 o
f 

a
ll

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

s 
o

n
 i

ss
u

e
 a

n
d

 k
e

y 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 b
a

d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

; 

•
  
  
  
  
 A

n
 o

n
li

n
e

 e
li

g
ib

il
it

y
 c

h
e

ck
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
n

 o
n

-l
in

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 f

o
rm

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 v
ia

 D
ir

e
ct

g
o

v
 

  T
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

d
a

ta
 b

a
se

, 
o

n
-l

in
e

 a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s 
sy

st
e

m
 a

n
d

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

b
e

in
g

 p
ri

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 o

n
e

 b
a

se
 a

re
: 

  

•
  
  
  
  
 F

ra
u

d
 p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

, 
ch

e
ck

s 
w

il
l b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 t

o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 a

n
d

 f
ra

u
d

u
le

n
t 

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
s;

 

•
  
  
  
  
 A

 q
u

ic
k

e
r 

a
n

d
 e

a
si

e
r 

re
n

e
w

a
l s

y
st

e
m

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
se

 d
e

ta
il

s 
h

a
ve

 n
o

t 
ch

a
n

g
e

d
 

•
  
  
  
  
 Q

u
ic

k 
a

n
d

 e
a

sy
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

ch
e

ck
s 

b
y

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
fr

o
m

 a
n

y
w

h
e

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y

 o
n

 b
a

d
g

e
s 

is
su

e
d

 b
y

 a
n

y 
lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 

    T
h

e
 n

e
w

 b
a

d
g

e
 i

s 
d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 i
ss

u
e

d
 f

ro
m

 1
st

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
t 

e
a

si
e

r 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 f

ra
u

d
u

le
n

t 
b

a
d

g
e

s.
  

W
e

 a
ls

o
 p

la
n

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
u

r 
fr

a
u

d
 t

e
a

m
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
ce

, 
fr

a
u

d
 p

re
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e

 m
is

u
se

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i

n
v

e
st

ig
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
S

u
ss

e
x.

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

in
cl

u
d

e
 p

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

yo
n

e
 a

b
u

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 S
ch

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t.

  

 

132



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
h

a
p

te
r 

3
 P

e
rm

it
s 

N
e

w
 R

e
si

d
e

n
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

ch
e

m
e

s 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

' 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

st
a

g
e

s 
o

f 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

' p
a

rk
in

g
 s

ch
e

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
ro

u
n

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 

st
a

ti
o

n
. 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
e

re
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

 s
iz

e
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 l
a

st
 y

e
a

r.
 

A
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

rd
e

r 
se

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v

is
e

d
 s

ch
e

m
e

 w
a

s 
a

d
ve

rt
is

e
d

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
lo

o
k

e
d

 a
t 

co
m

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

is
. 

  A
re

a
 A

 e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 –

 T
iv

o
li

 C
re

sc
e

n
t 

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 T
iv

o
li

 C
re

sc
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
7

th
 J

u
ly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

xt
e

n
si

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

re
a

 A
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
, 

g
iv

in
g

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
re

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 a
ff

e
ct

 f
ro

m
 

1
st

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

1
 w

it
h

 p
e

rm
it

 r
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 M
o

n
d

a
y

 –
 S

u
n

d
a

y 
9

a
m

 -
8

p
m

 a
n

d
 o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

e
xc

lu
si

ve
 p

a
y 

&
 d

is
p

la
y

 M
o

n
d

a
y 

–
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 9

a
m

 –
 6

p
m

. 

E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 t

o
 A

re
a

 C
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 

T
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

o
f 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 t
h

e
 A

re
a

 C
 C

o
n

tr
o

ll
e

d
 P

a
rk

in
g

 Z
o

n
e

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

e
d

 s
u

rv
e

y
s 

w
e

re
 i

n
 

fa
v

o
u

r 
o

f 
a

n
 e

xt
e

n
si

o
n

 o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

to
 7

 d
a

ys
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

. 
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 M
e

e
ti

n
g

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
re

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

to
 A

re
a

 C
 p

a
rk

in
g

 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 

     

133



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 P
e

rm
it

s:
 

P
e

rm
it

 F
ra

u
d

 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 t

e
a

m
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
 f

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 m
is

u
se

. 
W

it
h

 w
a

it
in

g
 l

is
ts

 o
f 

o
v

e
r 

o
n

e
 y

e
a

r 
in

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y 
it

 i
s 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fo

r 
u

s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 o

n
ly

 t
h

o
se

 w
h

o
 q

u
a

li
fy

 f
o

r 
a

 p
e

rm
it

 a
re

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 u
se

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

rr
e

ct
 w

a
y

. 
 

W
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 N

S
L 

a
n

d
 S

u
ss

e
x 

P
o

li
ce

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 f

ra
u

d
u

le
n

t 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 o
r 

m
is

u
se

 o
f 

p
e

rm
it

s.
 F

ro
m

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

rm
it

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e
 T

ra
d

e
rs

 

p
e

rm
it

 a
re

 n
o

t 
m

is
u

se
d

, 
to

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

ly
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
 s

ta
y

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
5

 n
ig

h
ts

 a
 w

e
e

k 
h

a
v

e
 a

 p
e

rm
it

. 
 

O
u

r 
in

v
e

st
ig

a
ti

o
n

s 
h

a
ve

 r
e

su
lt

e
d

 i
n

 p
e

rm
it

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l C
a

re
r 

B
a

d
g

e
s 

b
e

in
g

 w
it

h
d

ra
w

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 m
is

u
se

 a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
tl

y
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

e
rm

it
 h

a
ve

 h
a

d
 a

ll
 d

e
ta

il
s 

p
a

ss
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
v

e
st

ig
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
n

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
t 

se
e

n
 t

o
 b

e
 u

si
n

g
 a

 p
e

rm
it

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

e
it

h
e

r 

fa
k

e
 o

r 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
to

le
n

 c
a

n
 e

xp
e

ct
 a

 v
is

it
 f

ro
m

 S
u

ss
e

x 
P

o
li

ce
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
fu

se
d

 a
n

y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

e
rm

it
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
 

W
e

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y

 m
e

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y

 w
h

o
 c

re
a

te
 o

u
r 

p
e

rm
it

 p
a

p
e

r,
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 n

e
w

 d
e

si
g

n
, 

m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

rm
it

 h
a

rd
e

r 
to

 c
o

p
y 

a
n

d
 f

e
a

tu
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 s

e
cu

ri
ty

 

fe
a

tu
re

s 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

m
a

k
e

 a
 f

ra
u

d
u

le
n

t 
p

e
rm

it
 e

a
si

e
r 

to
 s

p
o

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 W
e

 e
xp

e
ct

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
e

rm
it

s 
to

 b
e

 i
n

 u
se

 b
y

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
1

. 

M
o

v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s 
w

e
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
xp

a
n

d
 o

u
r 

fr
a

u
d

 i
n

v
e

st
ig

a
ti

o
n

 t
e

a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l e
n

a
b

le
 u

s 
to

 f
o

cu
s 

m
o

re
 o

n
 p

e
rm

it
 a

n
d

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 f
ra

u
d

 a
n

d
 m

is
u

se
. 

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
v

is
it

o
r 

p
e

rm
it

s 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
-d

e
si

g
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
re

si
d

e
n

t 
v

is
it

o
r 

p
e

rm
it

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

d
e

si
g

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

a
 s

te
p

 b
y

 s
te

p
 p

ro
ce

ss
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
t 

e
a

sy
 t

o
 u

se
 a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 m

a
k

in
g

 e
rr

o
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

it
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 P
e

n
a

lt
y 

C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

b
e

in
g

 i
ss

u
e

d
. 

 

       

134



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 T
h

e
 c

h
a

rt
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
co

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 o
f 

th
e

 t
a

ke
 u

p
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

t 
p

e
rm

it
s 

fo
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

A
re

a
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 Z

o
n

e
 

P
e

rm
it

s 

o
n

 i
ss

u
e

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

P
e

rm
it

s 

a
ll

o
w

e
d

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

%
 o

f 

sc
h

e
m

e
 

ta
k

e
n

 

u
p

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

N
o

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

o
n

 

w
a

it
in

g
 

li
st

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

P
e

rm
it

s 

o
n

 i
ss

u
e

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

P
e

rm
it

s 

a
ll

o
w

e
d

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

%
 o

f 

sc
h

e
m

e
 

ta
k

e
n

 

u
p

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

V
is

it
o

r 

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 

N
o

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

o
n

 

w
a

it
in

g
 

li
st

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

P
re

st
o

n
 P

a
rk

 
A

 
 6

4
2

 
6

4
2

 
1

0
0

%
 

 0
 

5
4

0
 

5
4

0
 

1
0

0
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

S
t 

Ja
m

e
s 

C
 

 1
3

1
1

 
1

4
7

7
 

 8
9

%
 

 0
 

1
3

0
9

 
1

4
7

7
 

8
9

%
 

5
0

 
0

 

K
e

m
p

to
w

n
*

 
H

 
 2

4
0

8
 

2
5

5
2

 
 9

5
%

 
 0

 
1

7
5

0
 

1
7

5
0

 
1

0
0

%
 

5
0

 
0

 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a

d
*

 
J 

 8
5

7
 

1
1

2
0

 
 7

7
%

 
 0

 
1

6
5

 
3

3
2

 
5

0
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

 
M

 
 1

6
5

0
 

1
6

5
0

 
1

0
0

%
 

 4
0

0
 

1
6

4
3

 
1

6
5

0
 

1
0

0
%

 
5

0
 

3
1

9
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

H
o

ve
 

N
 

 4
5

8
9

 
4

5
8

9
 

1
0

0
%

 
 1

1
3

 
4

5
3

6
 

4
5

8
9

 
9

9
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

G
o

ld
sm

id
*

 
O

 
 2

0
8

4
 

2
2

8
3

 
 9

1
%

 
 0

 
1

9
8

1
 

2
2

8
3

 
8

7
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

P
re

st
o

n
v

il
le

 
Q

 
 1

0
9

2
 

1
0

9
2

 
 1

0
0

%
 

 0
 

1
0

2
9

 
1

0
9

2
 

9
4

%
 

5
0

 
0

 

W
e

st
b

o
u

rn
e

 
R

 
 3

5
7

2
 

4
0

7
7

 
 8

7
%

 
 0

 
3

3
8

1
 

4
0

7
7

 
8

3
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

H
o

ve
 P

a
rk

 
T

 
 3

6
9

 
5

2
4

 
 7

0
%

 
 0

 
3

4
7

 
5

2
4

 
6

6
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

S
t 

Lu
k

e
's

 
U

 
 2

6
5

 
4

1
1

 
 6

4
%

 
 0

 
2

7
5

 
4

1
1

 
6

7
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

W
e

st
b

o
u

rn
e

 
W

 
 8

4
4

 
1

0
6

9
 

 7
9

%
 

 0
 

7
8

4
 

1
0

6
9

 
7

3
%

 
5

0
 

0
 

N
o

rt
h

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 

Y
 

 1
7

5
0

 
1

7
5

0
 

 1
0

0
%

 
 3

8
5

 
1

7
5

0
 

1
7

5
0

 
1

0
0

%
 

2
5

 
2

4
9

 

S
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 

 
Z

 
 1

1
5

0
 

1
1

5
0

 
 1

0
0

%
 

 3
6

2
 

1
1

5
0

 
1

1
5

0
 

1
0

0
%

 
2

5
 

2
0

7
 

T
o

ta
l 

N
/A

 
 2

2
,5

8
3

 
 2

4
,3

8
6

 
 9

3
%

 
 1

,0
3

4
 

2
0

6
4

0
 

2
2

6
9

4
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 

 *
 s

ch
e

m
e

 e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
  

   

135



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

p
e

rm
it

s 
is

su
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

  

(V
is

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 h
o

te
l 

p
e

rm
it

s 
sh

o
w

s 
a

ct
u

a
l 

p
e

rm
it

s 
so

ld
, 

n
o

t 
p

e
rm

it
s 

‘o
n

 i
ss

u
e

’)
 

P
e

rm
it

 t
y

p
e

 
T

o
ta

l 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
T

o
ta

l 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

o
ta

l 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 
1

2
2

2
 

1
2

5
7

 
1

3
5

3
 

C
a

r 
C

lu
b

 
4

7
 

7
5

 
6

3
 

C
a

re
r 

1
1

7
 

1
2

8
 

1
3

2
 

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
 

4
4

6
 

4
5

3
 

4
1

1
 

D
o

ct
o

r 
1

3
0

 
1

5
7

 
1

3
2

 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
V

e
h

ic
le

 
n

/a
 

n
/a

 
1

8
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
1

9
,8

8
5

 
2

0
,6

4
0

 
2

2
,5

8
3

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

C
a

re
r 

1
9

3
3

 
1

9
1

6
 

1
8

6
1

 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 

9
8

 
9

8
 

1
3

7
 

T
ra

d
e

r 
5

9
9

 
6

4
9

 
6

2
3

 

V
is

it
o

r 
p

e
rm

it
s 

so
ld

 
3

1
5

5
8

1
 

3
1

9
8

2
0

 
4

7
6

,0
6

7
 

H
o

te
l 

p
e

rm
it

s 
so

ld
 

3
0

6
0

2
 

2
2

2
8

5
 

3
7

,6
5

6
 

       

136



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

4
 S

ig
n

s 
&

 L
in

e
s 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 

T
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 t

e
a

m
 d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 i
n

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 s
tr

e
e

t 
si

g
n

a
g

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
it

y
, 

a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
th

e
 in

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

 p
a

rk
in

g
 s

ig
n

s 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e

. 
T

h
is

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 c
o

m
e

s 
fr

o
m

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
/ 

co
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
li

c 
a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
b

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

s 
/ 

ch
e

ck
s 

m
a

d
e

 b
y

 C
E

O
s 

a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
N

e
w

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 w
a

s 
a

ls
o

 e
re

ct
e

d
 o

n
 a

ll 
th

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 a
d

v
is

o
ry

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

H
o

ll
in

g
d

e
a

n
 a

n
d

 S
ta

m
m

e
r 

w
a

rd
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

si
g

n
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 n

e
w

 i
n

st
a

ll
e

d
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 b

a
y

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
p

e
ci

a
l 

P
a

rk
in

g
 A

re
a

. 
(S

P
A

) 

 A
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
th

is
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 

li
n

in
g

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 r

e
m

a
rk

in
g

 o
f 

y
e

llo
w

 l
in

e
s,

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 v

a
ri

o
u

s 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

s,
 i

n
st

a
ll

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 w

h
it

e
 r

e
tu

rn
 l

in
e

s.
 A

g
a

in
 t

h
is

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 c

o
m

e
s 

fr
o

m
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

/ 
co

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
li

c 
a

n
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

b
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
s 

/ 
ch

e
ck

s 
m

a
d

e
 b

y
 C

E
O

s 
a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 P
a
rk
in
g
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 s
p
e
n
d
 w
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
£
4
6
0
,0
0
0
 f
o
r 
lin
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
in
g
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
/w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 T
ra
ff
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 
c
o
s
ts
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 

fo
r 
th
is
 w
a
s
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

S
ig

n
in

g
  

  
  

   
  

   
 

 
£

2
4

5
,2

8
8

   
   

  
   

 

Li
n

in
g

  
  

   
   

  
   

  
  

 
£

1
7

7
,5

6
3

   
   

  
   

 

T
ra

ff
ic

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 O
rd

e
rs

   
 

£
3

5
,7

6
1

  

  T
o

ta
l  

   
   

  
   

   
 

  
 

£
4

5
8

,6
1

2
   

   
  

   
 

          

137



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

5
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t:

 

T
h

e
 c

it
y

’s
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

co
n

tr
a

ct
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y

s 
7

4
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
C

E
O

’s
) 

F
le

xi
b

le
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

 

In
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 w

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 f

le
xi

b
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
C

E
O

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
d

a
y

s 
a

n
d

 t
im

e
s 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 v
is

it
 a

 s
tr

e
e

t.
 W

e
 f

e
lt

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

E
O

s 
w

e
re

 b
e

st
 p

la
ce

d
 t

o
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
ic

h
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t.
 W

e
 a

ls
o

 l
o

o
ke

d
 a

t 
re

p
o

rt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
IT

 s
y

st
e

m
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 

o
u

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 c
h

e
ck

s 
o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 s

e
n

d
 C

E
O

s 
to

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
. 

W
e

 a
ls

o
 t

o
o

k
 i

n
to

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 a
n

d
 

fo
cu

se
d

 t
h

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

se
 a

re
a

s.
 T

h
e

 f
le

xi
b

le
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

ll
y

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
t 

e
n

a
b

le
s 

u
s 

to
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 t

h
e

 b
e

a
t 

p
a

tt
e

rn
s 

o
n

 a
 w

e
e

k
ly

 b
a

si
s 

m
a

k
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

. 
 

R
e

m
o

v
a

ls
 a

n
d

 P
o

u
n

d
  

O
u

r 
re

m
o

v
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
 u

se
d

 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 7

a
m

 a
n

d
 6

p
m

, 
re

m
o

v
in

g
 o

n
 a

ve
ra

g
e

, 
4

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

a
 d

a
y

. 
F

ro
m

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 w
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 a
 t

ri
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 

8
 w

e
e

ks
, 

to
 r

e
lo

ca
te

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

o
n

ly
. 

 

F
ro

m
 t

h
e

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 w

e
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v

a
ls

 b
u

t 
w

it
h

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 7

a
m

 a
n

d
 m

id
d

a
y

, 
fo

cu
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

sp
e

n
d

e
d

 b
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 

a
n

y
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
p

a
rk

e
d

 d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
sl

y
. 

F
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

a
re

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
se

 h
o

u
rs

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

o
n

 a
n

 a
d

 h
o

c 
b

a
si

s.
 

W
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 r
e

m
o

v
a

l s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

e
 a

ls
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
u

n
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s 
re

d
u

ce
d

 f
ro

m
 7

a
m

 t
o

 m
id

n
ig

h
t 

to
 7

a
m

 t
o

 6
p

m
 w

it
h

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 h
o

u
rs

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o

 9
a

m
 t

o
 6

p
m

. 
A

n
a

ly
si

s 
sh

o
w

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
m

o
to

ri
st

s 
cl

a
im

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 v
e

h
ic

le
 b

a
ck

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
se

 h
o

u
rs

. 
 

S
co

o
te

r 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

sc
o

o
te

r 
ri

d
e

rs
 e

n
fo

rc
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
in

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
, 

so
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 n

o
w

 h
a

ve
 3

 d
e

p
lo

ye
d

 e
a

ch
 d

a
y

. 
T

h
e

y
 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 y
e

ll
o

w
 l

in
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

p
e

ci
a

l 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y.
 T

h
e

y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 m
u

ch
 q

u
ic

ke
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

o
t 

b
e

a
ts

 

a
n

d
 c

a
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
 t

o
 u

rg
e

n
t 

is
su

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

o
b

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

ri
v

e
w

a
y

s 
a

n
d

 d
ro

p
p

e
d

 k
e

rb
s.

  

S
n

o
w

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
 

W
h

il
st

 t
h

e
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

a
ll

y
 h

e
a

v
y

 s
n

o
w

fa
ll

s 
ca

u
g

h
t 

o
u

t 
m

a
n

y
, 

N
S

L 
C

E
O

s 
in

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 k
e

p
t 

th
e

 c
it

y
 m

o
v

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
n

o
w

 c
le

a
ra

n
ce

 d
u

ti
e

s.
  W

e
 a

ls
o

 k
e

p
t 

o
u

r 

w
e

b
si

te
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

n
 h

o
u

rl
y

 b
a

si
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
st

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
m

o
to

ri
st

s.
 

 It
's

 a
ll

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

a
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

f 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e

. 

 

138



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
E

O
s 

a
ss

is
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

2
0

1
0

 

C
E

O
  

In
ci

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 

6
9

1
 

W
it

n
e

ss
e

d
 s

o
m

e
b

o
d

y 
b

re
a

k
in

g
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 h

o
a

rd
in

g
s 

o
n

 M
a

d
e

ir
a

 D
ri

ve
 b

y 
th

e
 s

e
w

e
r 

w
o

rk
s.

 H
e

 c
o

n
ta

ct
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
o

li
ce

 w
h

o
 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
lt

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
 

6
3

1
 

F
o

u
n

d
 a

n
 a

p
p

le
 I

 P
h

o
n

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 o
f 

P
o

rt
h

a
ll

 S
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 P
o

rt
h

a
ll

 A
v

e
n

u
e

. 
H

e
 m

a
d

e
 n

o
te

s 
in

 h
is

 p
o

ck
e

t 
b

o
o

k 
a

n
d

 h
a

n
d

e
d

 

it
 i

n
 o

n
 h

is
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 t

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e

. 
H

e
 o

w
n

e
r 

ra
n

g
 h

is
 p

h
o

n
e

 b
e

fo
re

 w
e

 c
o

u
ld

 h
a

n
d

 i
n

to
 P

o
li

ce
 a

n
d

 h
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
ll

e
ct

 i
t 

5
4

9
 

S
p

o
tt

e
d

 a
 l

a
rg

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
sm

o
k

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 f
ro

m
 a

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

 R
o

a
d

. 
H

e
 c

o
n

ta
ct

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l w

h
o

 r
a

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

ir
e

 b
ri

g
a

d
e

. 

S
h

o
rt

ly
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 f

ir
e

 a
la

rm
s 

w
e

n
t 

o
ff

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 e
v

a
cu

a
te

d
 a

s 
th

e
 f

ir
e

 b
ri

g
a

d
e

 a
rr

iv
e

d
. 

6
9

1
 

W
it

n
e

ss
e

d
 a

n
 a

cc
id

e
n

t 
o

n
 K

in
g

s 
R

o
a

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

 v
e

h
ic

le
s.

 H
e

 f
la

g
g

e
d

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 P

o
li

ce
 a

n
d

 a
ss

is
te

d
 3

 w
o

m
e

n
, 

o
n

e
 f

ro
m

 h
e

r 

v
e

h
ic

le
. 

H
e

 t
h

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
 P

o
li

ce
 w

it
h

 a
 w

it
n

e
ss

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t.
   

 

4
1

7
 &

 

4
5

2
 

A
ss

is
te

d
 a

 l
a

d
y

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

d
 f

a
lle

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 O
ld

 S
h

o
re

h
a

m
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

ju
re

d
 h

e
r 

k
n

e
e

. 
H

e
 c

o
n

ta
ct

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l w

h
o

 c
a

ll
e

d
 a

n
 

a
m

b
u

la
n

ce
 a

n
d

 w
a

it
e

d
 w

it
h

 h
e

r 
st

il
l t

h
e

 a
m

b
u

la
n

ce
 a

rr
iv

e
d

. 

4
1

7
 &

 

5
2

4
 

W
e

re
 i

n
 M

a
d

e
ir

a
 D

ri
v

e
 a

n
d

 w
it

n
e

ss
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

sw
e

rv
in

g
 t

o
 a

vo
id

 a
 la

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
re

e
ze

 b
lo

ck
s 

in
 t

h
e

 r
o

a
d

. 

T
h

e
y

 s
to

p
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

o
v

e
d

 t
h

e
se

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y

 t
o

 p
re

ve
n

t 
a

n
 a

cc
id

e
n

t.
 

4
1

6
 &

 

4
3

7
 

A
ss

is
te

d
 a

 m
a

n
 w

h
o

 w
a

s 
k

n
o

ck
e

d
 o

ff
 h

is
 b

ik
e

 b
y

 a
 c

a
r 

in
 C

h
u

rc
h

 R
o

a
d

. 

6
4

0
 

W
it

n
e

ss
e

d
 a

 m
a

n
 s

m
a

sh
in

g
 c

a
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s 

h
e

 c
o

n
ta

ct
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
w

h
o

 i
n

 t
u

rn
 c

o
n

ta
ct

e
d

 t
h

e
 P

o
li

ce
. 

A
 f

u
ll

 d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

n
 

w
a

s 
g

iv
e

n
 l

e
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
 a

rr
e

st
. 

  C
o

d
e

 R
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 Y

e
ll

o
w

s 
 

T
h

e
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a

ve
 t

w
o

 c
o

d
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
ir

 s
e

cu
ri

ty
, 

co
d

e
 y

e
llo

w
 w

il
l b

e
 c

a
ll

e
d

 i
f 

th
e

 m
o

to
ri

st
/m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 a

b
u

si
v

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

co
d

e
 r

e
d

 i
s 

ca
ll

e
d

 i
f 

th
e

 m
o

to
ri

st
/m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 t
h

re
a

te
n

in
g

 o
r 

w
a

n
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 a
 f

ig
h

t.
 D

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 o

v
e

r 

6
0

 c
o

d
e

s 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

ll
e

d
. 

A
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 5

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

se
 a

re
 c

o
d

e
 r

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
rs

 c
o

d
e

 y
e

llo
w

. 
T

h
e

 p
o

li
ce

 a
re

 c
a

lle
d

 i
f 

a
 c

o
d

e
 r

e
d

 i
s 

ca
ll

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
E

O
 

fe
e

ls
 t

h
re

a
te

n
e

d
 i

n
 a

n
yw

a
y.

 T
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

n
y

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

ct
o

r 
a

n
d

 w
il

l 
p

ro
se

cu
te

 i
f 

a
n

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

t 
is

 p
ro

ve
n

. 

  

139



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

W
e

 w
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 m
a

n
y 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 f

o
r 

e
v

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

o
r 

is
su

e
s 

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

. 
T

h
e

se
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
: 

•
 

Lo
ca

l A
ct

io
n

 G
ro

u
p

s 
fo

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 p
a

rk
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

 

•
 

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

 

•
 

T
a

rn
e

r 

•
 

H
o

ll
in

g
b

u
ry

 

•
 

G
o

ld
sm

id
 

•
 

T
h

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ri
n

g
e

 F
e

st
iv

a
l 

•
 

T
h

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 M

a
ra

th
o

n
 

•
 

K
e

m
p

 T
o

w
n

 C
a

rn
iv

a
l 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 

 

T
h

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 M

a
ra

th
o

n
.  

T
h

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 m

a
ra

th
o

n
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
ce

 o
n

 S
u

n
d

a
y

 1
0

th
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
. 

 T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 o

v
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 e
n

tr
ie

s 
a

n
d

 o
v

e
r 

8
,0

0
0

 r
a

n
. 

W
e

 t
h

in
k

 t
h

a
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
o

t 
w

e
a

th
e

r 

so
m

e
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
to

rs
 d

id
 n

o
t 

ta
k

e
 p

a
rt

. 
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ch

a
ri

ti
e

s 
w

h
o

 h
a

ve
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
p

la
ce

s 
in

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

1
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 M

a
ra

th
o

n
 h

a
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 d
ra

m
a

ti
ca

lly
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 i

n
a

u
g

u
ra

l 
e

ve
n

t.
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

w
 2

3
0

 c
h

a
ri

ti
e

s 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 
tw

o
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 1
5

6
 i

n
vo

lv
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
. 

W
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 1

9
1

 p
a

rk
in

g
 s

u
sp

e
n

si
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 w
e

 d
id

 n
o

t 
re

m
o

v
e

 a
n

y
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
to

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 C
a

r 
P

o
u

n
d

. 

S
u

ss
e

x 
P

o
li

ce
. 

Jo
in

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 B
lu

e
b

ir
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 m
is

u
se

. 

D
V

LA
 –

 U
n

ta
xe

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 

A
ll

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

re
co

rd
e

d
 a

s 
b

e
in

g
 u

n
ta

xe
d

 a
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
V

LA
 a

s 
a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
o

f 
co

u
rs

e
. 

A
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 V

e
h

ic
le

s 

W
e

 a
re

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
m

o
va

l 
o

f 
A

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 V
e

h
ic

le
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y

. 
W

e
 h

a
v

e
 K

e
y

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
: 

140



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

W
it

h
in

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 f
ro

m
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 b
y

 t
h

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
 

W
it

h
in

 2
 h

o
u

rs
 f

ro
m

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 b

u
rn

t 
o

u
t 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

0
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 a

p
p

ro
x 

8
0

 a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
w

e
re

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 a

ll 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
e

t 
ti

m
e

sc
a

le
s.

 B
y

 r
e

m
o

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s 

a
s 

so
o

n
 a

s 

a
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

s 
th

e
 r

is
k

 o
f 

th
e

m
 b

e
co

m
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
cr

im
e

. 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 s

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
2

0
0

8
/9

, 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
s 

a
t 

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

 

  
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

  
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

  
T

o
ta

l 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

s 

(P
C

N
) 

O
n

 

S
tr

e
e

t 

O
ff

 

S
tr

e
e

t 

T
o

ta
l 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

s 

O
n

 

S
tr

e
e

t 

O
ff

 

S
tr

e
e

t 

T
o

ta
l 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

s 

O
n

 

S
tr

e
e

t 
 

O
ff

 

S
tr

e
e

t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

O
f 

h
ig

h
e

r 

le
v

e
l P

C
N

 

9
0

,7
9

6
 

9
0

,7
6

1
 

3
5

 
8

1
,2

0
3

 
7

9
,3

6
7

 
1

,8
2

7
 

7
6

,6
1

5
 

7
6

,4
3

5
 

1
8

0
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
w

e
r 

le
v

e
l P

C
N

 

3
9

,0
4

1
 

3
7

,4
3

1
 

1
,6

1
0

 
3

5
,1

6
6

 
3

4
,3

8
5

 
7

8
1

 
3

3
,7

3
3

 
3

0
,8

5
7

 
2

,8
7

6
 

T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

P
C

N
s 

is
su

e
d

 

1
2

9
,8

3
7

 
1

2
8

,1
9

2
 

1
,6

4
5

 
1

1
6

,3
6

9
 

1
1

3
,7

6
1

 
2

,6
0

8
 

1
0

9
2

7
5

 
1

0
6

,2
9

2
 

2
,9

8
3

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

p
a

id
 

9
0

,8
0

5
 

8
9

,6
2

8
 

1
,1

7
7

 
8

2
,7

8
1

 
8

1
,2

9
8

 
1

,4
8

3
 

7
8

,9
9

5
 

7
7

,1
3

9
 

1
,8

5
6

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

p
a

id
 a

t 
d

is
co

u
n

t 

5
9

,0
2

6
 

5
8

,0
8

5
 

9
6

8
 

6
8

,7
3

0
 

6
7

,5
1

7
 

1
,2

1
3

 
6

3
,4

4
1

 
6

1
,9

2
0

 
1

,5
2

1
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

a
g

a
in

st
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

w
a

s 
m

a
d

e
 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 T

ra
n

sf
e

r 

o
f 

li
a

b
il

it
y)

 

4
0

,9
9

1
 

4
0

,9
5

9
 

3
2

 
3

9
,7

9
0

 
3

9
,9

8
2

 
8

0
8

 
3

5
,8

5
6

 
3

4
,5

0
3

 
1

,3
5

3
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

ca
n

ce
ll

e
d

 a
s 

a
 

re
su

lt
 o

f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

r 

in
fo

rm
a

l c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

1
5

,8
8

5
 

1
5

,6
7

6
 

2
0

9
 

1
5

,3
1

0
 

1
4

,9
0

6
 

4
0

4
 

1
6

,2
0

7
 

1
5

,3
1

1
 

8
9

6
 

141



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

N
o

 o
f 

P
C

N
s 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 o

ff
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
a

so
n

s 

2
,2

5
9

 
2

,2
3

9
 

2
0

 
2

,1
2

6
 

2
,1

0
1

 
2

5
 

3
,2

0
4

 
3

,1
4

5
 

5
9

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

st
a

l 

P
C

N
s 

is
su

e
d

 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

 N
/A

 
 N

/A
 

N
/A

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

im
m

o
b

il
is

e
d

 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

 N
/A

 
N

/A
  

N
/A

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

re
m

o
ve

d
 

1
,0

7
3

 
1

,0
7

3
 

0
 

1
,2

6
8

 
1

,2
6

8
 

0
 

 1
,0

5
7

 
 1

,0
5

7
 

0
 

             

142



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  C
h

a
p

te
r 

6
 B

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

U
p

d
a

te
 

T
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
b

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 b

u
se

s 
a

n
d

 t
a

xi
s 

in
 b

u
s 

la
n

e
s 

b
y

 e
xc

lu
d

in
g

 o
th

e
rs

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

re
sc

ri
b

e
d

 h
o

u
rs

. 
B

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

to
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 r

e
li

a
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
u

n
ct

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

p
u

b
li

c 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
, 

re
d

u
ce

 c
o

n
g

e
st

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

o
llu

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

B
u

s 
La

n
e

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

h
a

s 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 6
,7

3
7

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 7
6

9
4

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
a

 f
u

ll
 y

e
a

r 
o

f 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 

Lo
ca

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

A
p

p
e

a
ls

 

re
ce

iv
e

d
 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

 

(P
C

N
's

) 

is
su

e
d

 

R
a

te
 

o
f 

a
p

p
e

a
l 

p
e

r 

P
C

N
 

N
o

t 

co
n

te
st

e
d

 

b
y

 

co
u

n
ci

l 

A
ll

o
w

e
d

 b
y

 

a
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
o

ta
l 

a
ll

o
w

e
d

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

n
o

t 

co
n

te
st

e
d

 

b
y

 

co
u

n
ci

l 

R
e

fu
se

d
 b

y 

A
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

in
cl

. 
O

u
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 

w
it

h
d

ra
w

n
 

b
y

 

a
p

p
e

ll
a

n
t 

A
w

a
it

in
g

 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

in
cl

. 

O
th

e
r 

d
e

ci
d

e
d

 

A
ll

 A
re

a
s 

A
p

r 

0
8

 -
 M

a
r 

0
9

 

4
6

4
 

1
3

2
,1

7
0

 
0

.3
5

%
 

1
8

9
  

   
   

   
  

   

4
1

%
 

1
1

9
  

   
   

   

2
6

%
 

3
0

8
  

   
   

   
  

 

6
6

%
 

1
4

1
  

   
   

   
  

   
   

 

3
0

%
 

1
5

   
   

   
  

   
  

3
%

 

A
ll

 A
re

a
s 

A
p

r 

0
9

 -
 M

a
r 

1
0

 

6
3

4
 

1
7

2
,3

9
0

 
0

.3
7

%
 

2
3

7
  

   
   

   
  

  

3
7

%
 

1
7

5
  

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
  

 

2
8

%
 

4
1

2
  

   
   

  

6
5

%
 

1
8

7
  

   
   

   
  

   
   

2
9

%
 

0
 

A
ll

 A
re

a
s 

A
p

r1
0

 -
 M

a
r 

1
1

 

1
,4

1
0

 
3

2
1

,6
0

7
 

0
.4

3
%

 
5

8
6

 

4
1

%
 

2
5

6
 

1
8

%
 

8
4

2
 

6
0

%
 

4
8

4
 

3
4

%
 

4
4

 

3
%

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
r 

0
8

 -
 

M
a

r 
0

9
 

8
2

 
5

,7
0

2
 

1
.4

4
%

 
2

9
   

   
   

  
   

2
7

%
 

1
5

   
   

   
  

   
   

1
8

%
 

3
7

   
   

   
  

   
   

4
5

%
 

4
5

   
   

   
  

   
   

  

5
5

%
 

0
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
ri

l 
0

9
 

- 
M

a
r 

1
0

 

7
4

 
6

,7
3

7
 

1
.1

%
 

4
4

   
   

   
  

   
  

5
9

%
 

1
3

   
   

   
  

   
   

1
8

%
 

5
7

   
   

   
  

   
   

 

7
7

%
 

1
0

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
  

1
4

%
 

7
  

   
   

   
  

   
  

9
%

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
r 

1
0

 -
 

M
a

r 
1

1
 

7
5

 
7

9
6

4
 

 

0
.9

4
%

 
1

3
 

1
7

%
 

2
5

 

3
3

%
 

3
8

 

5
1

%
 

3
6

 

4
8

%
 

0
  

143



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  M
o
n
th
 

B
L
E
 P
C
N
S
 

is
s
u
e
d
  

A
p
r-
1
0
 

4
2
4
 

M
a
y
-1
0
 

5
4
3
 

J
u
n
-1
0
 

6
7
0
 

J
u
l-
1
0
 

9
1
5
 

A
u
g
-1
0
 

6
9
0
 

S
e
p
-1
0
 

7
5
8
 

O
c
t-
1
0
 

8
2
2
 

N
o
v
-1
0
 

6
6
9
 

D
e
c
-1
0
 

5
2
2
 

J
a
n
-1
1
 

6
4
8
 

F
e
b
-1
1
 

6
1
4
 

M
a
r-
1
1
 

6
8
9
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

7
9
6
4
 

       

144



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

   C
h

a
p

te
r 

7
 -

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

e
v

e
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 

T
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

te
a

m
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s 

fo
r 

it
s 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
. 

It
 a

im
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

le
tt

e
rs

 
  

 2
 d

a
y

s 

P
e

rm
it

s 
re

n
e

w
a

ls
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

  
 5

 d
a

y
s 

Q
u

e
u

in
g

 t
im

e
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
  

 1
0

 m
in

s 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

im
e

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  

 5
 m

in
s 

 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 r
e

n
e

w
a

ls
  

   
   

  
   

  
 s

e
n

t 
b

y
 2

0
th

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

 i
t 

e
xp

ir
e

s 
 

 W
e

 w
il

l 
st

ri
v

e
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
se

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
a

n
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
 t

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

. 
 A

s 
o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 w

e
 w

il
l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 

a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 le

ve
l 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 p
u

b
li

sh
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 p

la
n

 t
o

 d
o

 i
f 

w
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
se

t 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

. 
 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
im

e
s 

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
im

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 f
lu

ct
u

a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

d
u

e
 t

o
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
o

f 
lo

w
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 l
e

ve
ls

 b
u

t 
w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n

 a
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 

ti
m

e
: 

 

E
it
h
e
r 

W
o

rk
 T

y
p

e
  

A
p

p
ro

x
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
im

e
 (

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y

s)
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

A
p

p
ro

x 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

im
e

 (
w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

ys
) 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

W
e

b
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

N
/A

 
5

 d
a

y
s 

W
e

b
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s 

N
/A

 
1

0
 d

a
y

s 
 

W
e

b
 B

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

 
N

/A
 

1
 d

a
y

 

145



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

P
a

p
e

r 
ch

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s 
1

4
 d

a
y

s 
6

 d
a

y
s 

 

P
a

p
e

r 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s 
5

 w
e

e
ks

 
1

0
 d

a
y

s 
 

P
a

p
e

r 
B

u
s 

La
n

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

 
1

 d
a

y
 

1
 d

a
y

 

R
e

m
o

v
a

ls
  

7
 d

a
y

s 
3

 d
a

y
s 

 

  O
n

li
n

e
 A

p
p

e
a

ls
 

 T
h

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

o
n

li
n

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 h

a
s 

se
e

n
 o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

im
e

s 
fa

ll
 f

ro
m

 5
 w

e
e

k
s 

to
 1

0
 d

a
y

s.
 W

e
 a

re
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
o

n
lin

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 v

ia
 e

m
a

il
, 

th
is

 m
e

a
n

s 
th

a
t 

w
e

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 c

o
st

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

o
n

 p
o

st
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ti

o
n

e
ry

. 
It

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

s 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 it
 t

a
k

e
s 

fo
r 

u
s 

to
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
e

a
l,

 s
a

ve
 t

h
e

 

p
e

rs
o

n
 m

a
k

in
g

 a
n

 a
p

p
e

a
l 

th
e

 c
o

st
 o

f 
a

 s
ta

m
p

, 
e

n
v

e
lo

p
e

 e
tc

 a
n

d
 i

s 
u

su
a

ll
y 

m
o

re
 c

o
n

ve
n

ie
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 a
s 

a
 2

4
 h

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
. 

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

li
g

h
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

a
st

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

o
n

li
n

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l,
 s

in
ce

 i
ts

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
is

 h
a

s 
st

e
a

d
ily

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 t

o
 3

7
%

. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

ve
 t

h
a

t 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 d

ra
m

a
ti

c 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
a

m
p

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
w

e
b

si
te

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 ‘

d
o

 i
t 

n
o

w
’ 

se
ct

io
n

s 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v

e
 h

e
lp

e
d

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  
  

   
   

   
  

   
   

 

        
 

 
 

 
 

146



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

in
co

m
in

g
 

  
W

e
b

 

in
co

m
in

g
 

p
a

p
e

r 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

p
a

p
e

r 

R
e

p
s 

in
co

m
in

g
 

p
a

p
e

r 
B

u
s 

La
n

e
 R

e
p

s 
to

ta
l 

%
 W

e
b

 

A
p
r-
1
0
 

0
 

2
5
2
2
 

2
9
8
 

8
1
 

2
9
0
1
 

0
 

M
a
y
-1
0
 

0
 

2
4
0
8
 

3
9
9
 

7
3
 

2
8
8
0
 

0
 

J
u
n
-1
0
 

0
 

2
7
4
2
 

3
5
3
 

5
6
 

3
1
5
1
 

0
 

J
u
l-
1
0
 

0
 

2
7
6
6
 

3
2
6
 

1
1
3
 

3
2
0
5
 

0
 

A
u
g
-1
0
 

0
 

2
5
9
0
 

2
8
9
 

1
2
2
 

3
0
0
1
 

0
 

S
e
p
-1
0
 

0
 

2
5
6
3
 

2
6
5
 

1
5
5
 

2
9
8
3
 

0
 

O
c
t-
1
0
 

0
 

2
1
4
6
 

2
6
4
 

1
0
7
 

2
5
1
7
 

0
 

N
o
v
-1
0
 

0
 

2
0
2
5
 

2
7
2
 

7
7
 

2
3
7
4
 

0
 

D
e
c
-1
0
 

0
 

1
6
0
1
 

2
3
9
 

5
2
 

1
8
9
2
 

0
 

J
a
n
-1
1
 

0
 

1
9
7
6
 

3
3
1
 

1
8
1
 

2
4
8
8
 

0
 

F
e
b
-1
1
 

3
1
2
 

1
9
6
8
 

1
6
6
 

8
5
 

2
5
3
1
 

1
2
 

M
a
r-
1
1
 

6
4
0
 

1
2
4
9
 

1
4
1
 

7
0
 

2
1
0
0
 

3
0
 

A
p
r-
1
1
 

9
3
8
 

1
5
1
8
 

1
6
8
 

8
9
 

2
7
1
3
 

3
5
 

147



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

M
a
y
-1
1
 
1
1
7
5
 

1
7
6
1
 

1
5
9
 

8
4
 

3
1
7
9
 

3
7
 

J
u
n
-1
1
 

9
7
2
 

1
8
3
9
 

1
7
6
 

5
5
 

3
0
4
2
 

3
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
v
e
ra
g
e
 2
7
3
0
 
A
v
e
ra
g
e
 2
9
 

 

T
h

e
 n

e
xt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

 b
y

 e
m

a
il 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
d

a
ta

b
a

se
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a

n
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

il
l 

b
e

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

im
p

ro
v

in
g

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
im

e
s 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
. 

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 S
y

st
e

m
  

 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 o
u

r 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

 s
y

st
e

m
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
h

a
ve

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ca

ll
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

fi
n

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 t
im

e
, 

b
y

 d
ir

e
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 p
re

 r
e

co
rd

e
d

 m
e

ss
a

g
e

s 
w

h
il

e
 t

h
e

y
 w

a
it

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 t

h
e

n
 p

u
t 

st
ra

ig
h

t 
to

 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 o

r 
re

p
o

rt
 l

in
e

 

th
a

t 
th

e
y

 n
e

e
d

 b
y

 s
e

le
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

va
n

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

. 
 

A
p

p
e

a
ls

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

d
ju

d
ic

a
to

r 

Lo
ca

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
A

p
p

e
a

ls
 

P
C

N
s 

is
su

e
d

 

R
a

te
 o

f 

a
p

p
e

a
l 

p
e

r 
P

C
N

 

n
o

t 

co
n

te
st

e
d

 

b
y

 

co
u

n
ci

l 

R
a

te
 

o
f 

a
p

p
e

a
l 

p
e

r 

P
C

N
 

T
o

ta
l 

a
ll

o
w

e
d

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

n
o

t 

co
n

te
st

e
d

 

b
y

 

co
u

n
ci

l 

re
fu

se
d

 b
y 

A
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

o
u

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 

a
n

d
 

w
it

h
d

ra
w

n
 

A
w

a
it

in
g

 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

in
cl

. 

O
th

e
r 

d
e

ci
d

e
d

 

A
ll

 c
o

u
n

ci
ls

   

A
p

r 
0

8
-M

a
r 

0
9

 
1

2
,4

2
4

 
4

,0
0

0
,2

2
1

 
0

.3
1

%
 

4
1

7
0

   
   

3
4

%
 

3
5

7
2

   
   

2
9

%
 

7
7

4
2

   
   

  

6
2

%
 

4
3

2
5

   
   

   
 

3
5

%
 

3
5

7
  

   
   

3
%

 

A
ll

 c
o

u
n

ci
ls

   
 

A
p

r 
0

9
 -

M
a

r 

1
0

 
1

4
,2

6
9

 
4

,2
4

5
,9

9
8

 
0

.3
4

%
 

3
,8

8
0

  
   

 

2
7

%
 

4
,1

8
8

  
   

2
9

%
 

8
,0

6
8

  
   

5
7

%
 

5
,8

0
4

  
   

  
   

  

4
1

%
 

3
9

7
  

   
  

3
%

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
r 

0
8

 -
 

M
a

r 
0

9
 

8
1

1
 

1
2

9
,8

3
7

 
0

.6
2

%
 

2
4

5
  

   
  

3
0

%
  

2
9

2
  

   
  

3
6

%
 

5
3

7
  

   
   

 

6
6

%
 

2
5

4
  

   
   

   
  

  

3
1

%
 

2
0

   
   

   
 

2
%

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
r 

0
9

 -

M
a

r 
1

0
 

6
7

1
 

1
1

6
,3

6
9

 
0

.5
8

%
 

1
6

2
  

   
   

   
 

2
4

%
 

2
1

7
  

   
   

  

3
2

%
 

3
7

9
  

   
   

  

5
6

%
 

2
8

8
  

   
   

   
  

4
3

%
 

4
  

   
   

   
  

1
%

 
 

148



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 

H
o

ve
 A

p
r 

1
0

 -
 

M
a

r 
1

1
 

7
2

2
 

1
0

9
,2

7
5

 
0

.6
6

%
 

1
2

7
  

   
   

   
  

1
8

%
 

2
1

6
  

   
   

   
  

3
0

%
 

3
4

3
  

   
   

   
  

4
8

%
 

3
3

6
  

   
   

   
  

   
  

4
7

%
 

4
  

   
   

   
 

1
%

 

 O
v

e
ra

ll 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
te

st
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
o

n
 m

o
re

 c
a

se
s 

a
t 

th
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 T
ri

b
u

n
a

l 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l a

ve
ra

g
e

. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

fi
rs

t 
co

u
n

ci
ls

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 t
h

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 T

ri
b

u
n

a
l’

s 
o

n
li

n
e

 a
p

p
e

a
l 

sy
st

e
m

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

b
le

 a
b

o
v

e
 s

h
o

w
s 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
su

cc
e

ss
 

ra
te

 a
t 

th
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 T
ri

b
u

n
a

l 
a

s 
a

d
ju

d
ic

a
to

rs
’ 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

re
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
ct

e
d

 u
p

o
n

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 f

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 t
o

 C
E

O
s 

if
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 P
a

rk
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 T
e

a
m

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

–
 C

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 A
w

a
rd

e
d

 

T
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

T
e

a
m

 w
a

s 
sh

o
rt

 l
is

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 6
 i

n
 t

h
e

 B
ri

ti
sh

 P
a

rk
in

g
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

a
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

a
ch

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 r
e

co
g

n
is

e
d

 b
y

 

re
ce

iv
in

g
 a

 c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

 H
ig

h
li

g
h

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 a

w
a

rd
 e

n
tr

y
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
: 

 1
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

n
li

n
e

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

. 
 

2
. 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 t

o
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 s

e
a

ti
n

g
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
fo

rm
 f

il
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

 c
a

ll
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 s
y

st
e

m
 

3
. 

C
iv

il 
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 a
 t

a
lk

 a
t 

a
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
ve

rs
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

st
ru

ck
 in

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 

h
e

lp
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ri
tt

in
g

 o
f 

ce
n

tr
a

l 
a

re
a

s.
  

 C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S

u
rv

e
y

 

S
in

ce
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 a

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
su

rv
e

y
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
e

rm
it

 h
o

ld
e

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
m

a
in

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

o
rt

a
l a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

w
e

b
 p

a
g

e
s.

  

T
h

is
 s

u
rv

e
y

 i
s 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
a

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

 o
f 

q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
b

e
in

g
 a

sk
e

d
 is

: 

H
o
w
 w
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 r
e
n
e
w
 y
o
u
r 
p
e
rm

it
?

 

 
%
 T
o
ta
l 

%
 A
n
s
w
e
r 

C
o
u
n
t 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

9
1
.0
3
%
 

- 
7
1
 

 
 

 
 

B
y
 p
o
s
t 

8
.9
7
%
 

9
.8
6
%
 

7
 

149



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

In
 p
e
rs
o
n
 

1
6
.6
7
%
 

1
8
.3
1
%
 

1
3
 

O
n
li
n
e
 

6
5
.3
8
%
 

7
1
.8
3
%
 

5
1
 

[N
o
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
] 

8
.9
7
%
 

- 
7
 

T
o
ta
l 

1
0
0
.0
0
%
 

1
0
0
.0
0
%
 

7
8
 

 It
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 r
e
m
e
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 
n
o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 a
re
 p
e
rm

it
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 s
o
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 o
u
r 
P
a
rk
in
g
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 v
a
ry
. 
 

In
 2
0
1
0
-1
1
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
e
 w
ill
 a
im
 t
o
: 

 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 p
o
s
ta
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
rm

it
s
 r
e
n
e
w
a
ls
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
t 
 

•
 

S
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 m

in
s
 

•
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 t
h
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
o
n
lin
e
 p
e
rm

it
s
  

•
 

L
o
o
k
 a
t 
o
u
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
m
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
a
s
ie
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

   

 

     

150



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

8
 -

 K
e

e
p

in
g

 i
n

 t
o

u
ch

 

O
v

e
r 

th
e

 p
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 lo

o
k

in
g

 a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

w
a

y
s 

w
e

 c
a

n
 i

n
te

ra
ct

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 v

is
it

o
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

, 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
s 

m
u

ch
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s 
o

u
t 

th
e

re
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 e
a

sy
 t

o
 a

cc
e

ss
 f

o
r 

e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
. 

 

  Le
a

fl
e

ts
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 f

in
is

h
e

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

n
e

w
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 l

e
a

fl
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
  o

n
 t

h
e

 w
e

b
si

te
, 

in
 l

o
ca

l l
ib

ra
ri

e
s,

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

to
u

ri
st

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
. 

W
e

 w
a

n
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
se

 l
e

a
fl

e
ts

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 m
o

re
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 e

ve
ry

o
n

e
. 

 

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 

G
u

id
e

 t
o

 p
e

rm
it

s 

G
u

id
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

Lo
a

d
in

g
/u

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

s 

B
u

s 
la

n
e

s 

  S
o

ci
a

l M
e

d
ia

 

T
h

e
 l

a
st

 y
e

a
r 

h
a

s 
se

e
n

 u
s 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 o
u

r 
tw

it
te

r 
a

n
d

 f
a

ce
b

o
o

k 
p

a
g

e
s.

 P
a

rk
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
h

a
ve

 t
e

a
m

e
d

 u
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

st
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

o
th

 

p
a

g
e

s 
w

e
re

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0

1
1

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 s
e

e
n

 a
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
se

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

g
e

s 
h

a
v

e
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v

is
it

o
rs

, 
w

it
h

 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 v

is
it

o
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y
 c

o
n

ta
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

u
si

n
g

 s
o

ci
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
 

 S
o

ci
a

l M
e

d
ia

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 a

 g
re

a
t 

w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
to

 u
p

d
a

te
 i

ts
 f

o
ll

o
w

e
rs

 o
n

 p
o

lic
y

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s,
 u

se
fu

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s 
in

 t
h

e
 

ci
ty

. 
W

e
 e

xp
e

ct
 o

u
r 

so
ci

a
l m

e
d

ia
 p

a
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 g
ro

w
. 

  W
e

b
si

te
 r

e
-d

e
si

g
n

 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y

 l
a

u
n

ch
e

d
 o

u
r 

n
e

w
 lo

o
k

 p
a

rk
in

g
 w

e
b

si
te

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

k
e

s 
th

e
 s

it
e

 e
a

si
e

r 
to

 n
a

v
ig

a
te

, 
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
p

h
o

to
s 

a
n

d
 l

in
k

s 
to

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

si
te

s 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
 

m
u

ch
 e

a
si

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 c
o

n
v

e
n

ie
n

t 
w

a
y

 o
f 

fi
n

d
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 w

e
b

si
te

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
n

e
w

 D
o

 i
t 

N
o

w
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
a

p
p

e
a

li
n

g
 o

r 
p

a
y

in
g

 a
 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

n
lin

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t.
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

ve
 w

a
s 

sh
o

rt
li

st
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

W
e

b
si

te
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

e
a

r 
a

w
a

rd
 

a
t 

th
e

 G
o

o
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

A
w

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
it

s 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
a

re
a

. 
Y

o
u

 c
a

n
 c

h
e

ck
 o

u
t 

o
u

r 
n

e
w

 w
e

b
si

te
 a

t 
w

w
w

.b
ri

g
h

to
n

-h
o

v
e

.g
o

v.
u

k
/p

a
rk

in
g

 

  C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S

u
rv

e
y

s 

  W
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

su
rv

e
y

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
a

rk
in

g
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 le

ve
l o

f 
re

sp
o

n
se

 h
a

s 
n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 h
ig

h
 t

h
e

se
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

h
o

w
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

sa
ti

sf
a

ct
io

n
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

su
rv

e
y

s 
a

s 
sh

o
w

s 
in

 o
u

r 
la

st
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

     

151



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 Y
o

u
r 

V
ie

w
s 

 O
u

r 
n

e
w

 w
e

b
si

te
 n

o
w

 h
a

s 
a

 s
im

p
le

 f
o

rm
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
a

b
le

s 
yo

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 u
s 

w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
fe

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

r 
su

g
g

e
st

io
n

s 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

 y
o

u
. 

W
e

 

st
ri

v
e

 t
o

 a
lw

a
y

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

e
 c

a
n

 a
n

d
 w

e
 a

lw
a

y
s 

w
e

lc
o

m
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
it

 b
e

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 o
r 

n
e

g
a

ti
ve

. 
O

u
r 

so
ci

a
l m

e
d

ia
 s

it
e

s 
fa

ce
b

o
o

k
 a

n
d

 

T
w

it
te

r 
h

a
v

e
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 a
 g

re
a

t 
n

e
w

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 v

is
it

o
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 u

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 v
ie

w
s.

 

               

152



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

9
 -

 A
ir

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

In
 2

0
1

1
 w

e
 r

e
le

a
se

d
 o

u
r 

se
co

n
d

 A
ir

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 (
A

Q
A

P
) 

o
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

si
te

. 
T

h
e

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 s

e
t 

o
f 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

a
n

d
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

im
p

ro
v

in
g

 a
ir

 q
u

a
li

ty
 i

n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
. 

 

 D
if

fu
si

o
n

 t
u

b
e

 m
o

n
it

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

xi
d

e
 (

N
O

2
) 

co
n

ce
n

tr
a

ti
o

n
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
(2

0
1

0
).

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 r
e

co
rd

s 

su
g

g
e

st
 t

h
a

t 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

xi
d

e
 c

o
n

ce
n

tr
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
e

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

in
 2

0
1

0
 t

h
a

n
 in

 2
0

0
8

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 2

0
0

9
 i

n
 s

o
m

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
a

n
a

ly
se

rs
 a

t 

P
re

st
o

n
 P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 a

t 
H

o
ve

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll
 r

e
co

rd
e

d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
cr

e
a

se
 i

n
 le

ve
ls

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

ye
a

rs
. 

  

 C
o

u
n

ci
ll

o
r 

Ia
n

 D
a

v
e

y
, 

ca
b

in
e

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
, 

sa
id

: 
“T

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

h
o

w
s 

h
o

w
 s

e
ri

o
u

s 
th

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
w

it
h

 t
ra

ff
ic

 r
e

la
te

d
 a

ir
 

p
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
 a

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
. 

F
a

r 
fr

o
m

 im
p

ro
v

in
g

; 
a

ir
 q

u
a

li
ty

 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s 

a
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 g

e
tt

in
g

 w
o

rs
e

. 
“A

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

a
u

se
 o

f 
th

e
se

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 
W

e
 a

re
 d

e
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 b
id

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t'

s 
Lo

ca
l 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 F
u

n
d

 h
a

s 
g

iv
e

n
 u

s 
£

4
 m

il
lio

n
 t

o
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

Le
w

e
s 

R
o

a
d

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
s 

u
s 

a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 a
 q

u
ic

k 
st

a
rt

 i
n

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rs

t 
a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

re
a

s.
” 

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
fu

n
d

s,
 p

lu
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

, 
th

e
 L

e
w

e
s 

R
o

a
d

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

p
ro

je
ct

 w
il

l 
b

e
 w

o
rt

h
 a

p
p

ro
xi

m
a

te
ly

 

£
6

 m
il

lio
n

 o
v

e
r 

fo
u

r 
y

e
a

rs
. 

W
o

rk
 i

s 
e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
g

in
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 a
ls

o
 l

in
k

in
g

 a
ir

 q
u

a
li

ty
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

’s
 L

o
ca

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 h
a

s 
jo

in
e

d
 w

it
h

 

S
u

ss
e

x 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 i

n
it

ia
te

 a
 l

o
w

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

il
o

t 
to

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 c

o
u

n
ty

-w
id

e
. 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 

p
ro

m
o

te
 i

n
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

e
le

ct
ri

c 
v

e
h

ic
le

 u
se

 a
n

d
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
o

li
ci

e
s.

 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
ra

ve
l 

ch
o

ic
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y;

 h
o

w
e

ve
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
m

e
a

su
re

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 i
f 

th
e

 E
U

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

li
sh

 l
im

it
s 

fo
r 

N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

xi
d

e
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t.

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
ve

’s
 s

e
co

n
d

 A
ir

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

ll
o

w
s 

a
 1

2
-w

e
e

k
 p

u
b

li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 k

e
y

 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

st
 y

e
a

r.
  

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
 c

o
n

ce
n

tr
a

ti
o

n
s 

re
m

a
in

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 N
O

2
 le

g
a

l 
li

m
it

 a
t 

w
o

rs
e

-c
a

se
 r

o
a

d
si

d
e

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

 C
e

n
tr

a
l B

ri
g

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 P
o

rt
sl

a
d

e
. 

A
 s

im
il

a
r 

si
tu

a
ti

o
n

 is
 

re
co

rd
e

d
 i

n
 m

a
n

y
 c

it
ie

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 E
u

ro
p

e
. 

S
in

ce
 2

0
0

7
 s

o
m

e
 lo

ca
l r

o
a

d
 l

in
k

s 
h

a
v

e
 s

h
o

w
n

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 o
f 

a
 d

e
cl

in
e

 in
 t

o
ta

l t
ra

ff
ic

 t
a

ll
ie

s.
 H

o
w

e
v

e
r 

in
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
th

e
 

in
cr

e
a

se
 i

n
 a

m
b

ie
n

t 
N

O
2

 i
n

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 i

s 
li

ke
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 f
a

ct
o

rs
: 

 

•
 

A
n

 a
g

e
in

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

 f
le

e
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
  

•
 

A
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
d

ie
se

l 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

th
a

t 
sh

o
w

 n
o

 r
e

a
l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
o

f 
N

O
 a

n
d

 N
O

2
  

•
 

A
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
tr

o
l 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
w

it
h

 c
a

ta
ly

ti
c 

co
n

v
e

rt
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

 l
e

ss
 w

e
ll

 w
it

h
 t

im
e

  

•
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 N

it
ro

g
e

n
 D

io
xi

d
e

 a
cr

o
ss

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

st
 E

n
g

la
n

d
  

•
 

A
 h

ig
h

e
r 

d
o

m
e

st
ic

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l h
e

a
ti

n
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

st
 t

w
o

 w
in

te
rs

; 
2

0
0

9
/2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

, 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

tl
y

 a
 l

ik
e

ly
 h

ig
h

e
r 

to
ta

l 

e
m

is
si

o
n

 f
ro

m
 w

o
o

d
 b

u
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 g

a
s 

fi
re

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
h

e
a

ti
n

g
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

re
se

a
rc

h
 h

a
s 

re
ce

n
tl

y
 s

h
o

w
n

 t
h

a
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 P
a

rk
in

g
 Z

o
n

e
s 

ca
n

 r
e

d
u

ce
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 u

n
co

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

a
re

a
s 

so
 p

a
rk

in
g

 h
a

s 
a

n
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

ro
le

 t
o

 p
la

y 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 in
 c

a
rb

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

 

153



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

E
le
c
tr
ic
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 p
r
o
je
c
t 
w
in
s
 t
o
p
 a
w
a
r
d
 

W
e
'v
e
 w
o
n
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
w
a
rd
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
e
le
ct
ri
c 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
 i
n
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
. 
 

O
u
r 
p
ro
je
ct
 h
a
s 
w
o
n
 C
IV
IN
E
T
’s
 P
R
IS
M
 A
w
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
o
st
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
, 
a
m
b
it
io
u
s 
a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 s
ch
e
m
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ie
ld
 o
f 
su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 u
rb
a
n
 m
o
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U
K
 

a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
. 

T
h
is
 i
s 
fo
r 
o
u
r 
e
le
ct
ri
c 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s 
cr
e
a
te
d
 s
ix
 p
o
in
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
ri
v
e
rs
 t
o
 u
se
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tw
o
 e
le
ct
ri
c 
ch
a
rg
in
g
 

p
o
in
ts
 a
re
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
h
is
 a
u
tu
m
n
. 
 

T
h
is
 i
s 
su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 s
ch
e
m
e
 f
o
r 
U
K
 r
e
si
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 E
le
k
tr
o
m
o
ti
v
e
, 
th
e
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
su
p
p
lie
r.
 A
 t
ri
a
l 
p
e
ri
o
d
 i
s 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 

in
ce
n
ti
v
e
s 
to
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
 d
ri
v
e
rs
 t
o
 s
w
it
ch
 t
o
 e
le
ct
ri
c 
v
e
h
ic
le
s,
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 f
re
e
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
le
ct
ri
ci
ty
 w
h
ils
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
re
 r
e
ch
a
rg
in
g
. 
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 i
s 
th
e
 o
n
ly
 c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 g
a
in
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
su
ch
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
U
’s
 C
IV
IT
A
S
 A
rc
h
im
e
d
e
s 
P
ro
je
ct
; 
a
n
d
 i
s 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 f
iv
e
 

o
th
e
r 
ci
ti
e
s 
in
 E
u
ro
p
e
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 b
e
st
 p
ra
ct
ic
e
, 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s.
 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
a
ls
o
 r
e
ce
iv
e
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 
su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s,
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 r
o
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
v
is
u
a
lly
 i
m
p
a
ir
e
d
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

F
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
u
si
n
g
 e
le
ct
ri
c 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
’s
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
o
in
ts
 v
is
it
 w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
le
c-
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
  

 C
y
c
le
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

N
e
w
 c
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 b
e
in
g
 a
 C
y
c
lin
g
 T
o
w
n
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
re
 b
lo
c
k
s
 o
f 
c
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
te
n
 

b
ik
e
s
 o
r 
m
o
re
. 
F
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 m

a
p
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 o
u
r 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 (
 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm

?
re
q
u
e
s
t=
c
1
2
4
6
6
3
4
) 

      

154



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
0

- 
O

ff
 S

tr
e

e
t 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

o
p

e
ra

te
s 

1
4

 o
f 

th
e

 2
7

 p
u

b
li

c 
ca

r 
p

a
rk

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
, 

ra
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
o

d
e

rn
 s

e
cu

re
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

to
 s

u
rf

a
ce

 s
it

e
s.

  

T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
se

, 
T

h
e

 L
a

n
e

s 
a

n
d

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t

h
e

 ‘
P

a
rk

 M
a

rk
’ 

sa
fe

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
w

a
rd

. 

 P
h

a
se

 2
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

s 
a

t 
T

h
e

 L
a

n
e

s 
h

a
s 

re
ce

n
tl

y
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

se
e

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 l

if
t 

a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
st

a
ir

 c
o

re
. 

 A
 s

in
g

le
 lo

b
b

y
 

a
re

a
 w

it
h

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
o

a
rd

s 
a

n
d

 p
a

y
 m

a
ch

in
e

s 
o

ff
e

rs
 i

m
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
ll

 l
e

ve
ls

 o
f 

th
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 l
if

t 
o

r 
st

a
ir

s.
 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 b
e

in
g

 n
a

m
e

d
 w

in
n

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 B
e

st
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
ca

te
g

o
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 B
ri

ti
sh

 P
a

rk
in

g
 A

w
a

rd
s,

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 b

y 
P

a
rk

in
g

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
g

a
zi

n
e

. 
T

h
e

 a
w

a
rd

s 
w

e
re

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 a
t 

a
 c

e
re

m
o

n
y

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 

W
o

rk
s 

h
a

ve
 a

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

, 
a

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e

d
e

co
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 b

ri
g

h
te

r 
lo

o
k

, 
re

p
a

ir
s,

 s
a

fe
 e

n
tr

a
n

ce
s,

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

cc
e

ss
 f

o
r 

le
ss

 m
o

b
il

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
r 

th
o

se
 

w
it

h
 y

o
u

n
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
fi

re
 s

a
fe

ty
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

to
 t

a
ck

le
 a

n
ti

so
ci

a
l b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r.
  

A
t 

th
e

 a
w

a
rd

s 
ce

re
m

o
n

y
, 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

co
u

n
ci

ll
o

r 
fo

r 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
G

e
o

ff
re

y
 T

h
e

o
b

a
ld

 s
a

id
: 

“I
t 

is
 u

n
u

su
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 lo
ca

l 
co

u
n

ci
l t

o
 b

e
a

t 
th

e
 p

ri
v

a
te

 s
e

ct
o

r 
ca

r 
p

a
rk

 

co
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
in

 t
h

e
se

 a
w

a
rd

s.
 A

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 u

se
d

 m
u

ch
 m

o
re

 a
n

d
 w

e
’r

e
 g

e
tt

in
g

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

ta
xp

a
y

e
r.

 

A
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 i

t 
st

il
l 

o
ff

e
rs

 b
e

tt
e

r 
v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 t

h
a

n
 m

a
n

y
 p

ri
v

a
te

ly
-r

u
n

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s 
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

.”
  

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
ve

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 g

ra
n

te
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
se

n
t 

to
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

 3
0

 s
p

a
ce

 c
o

a
ch

 p
a

rk
in

g
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 o
n

 t
h

e
 B

ro
w

n
fi

e
ld

 B
la

ck
 R

o
ck

 s
it

e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
st

e
rn

 e
n

d
 o

f 

M
a

d
e

ir
a

 D
ri

ve
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 4

2
 s

p
a

ce
 o

n
-s

tr
e

e
t 

fa
ci

lit
y

 h
e

re
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
st

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
d

ri
ve

rs
 a

n
d

 a
 f

o
o

d
 c

o
n

ce
ss

io
n

. 
 T

h
e

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

sp
a

ce
s 

w
il

l h
e

lp
 t

o
 a

lle
v

ia
te

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

w
it

h
 c

o
a

ch
e

s 
p

a
rk

in
g

 i
n

 R
o

e
d

e
a

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
 t

u
rn

 c
a

u
se

s 
d

e
la

y
s 

to
 p

u
b

li
c 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

. 

       

155



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
1

 -
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 i

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 (
F

O
I)

 &
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

T
h

e
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 A
ct

 2
0

0
0

 (
FO

I)
 c

a
m

e
 f

u
ll

y 
in

to
 f

o
rc

e
 i

n
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

5
. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

u
b

li
c 

h
a

v
e

 e
ve

n
 g

re
a

te
r 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 h

e
ld

 b
y

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
d

 p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
. 

It
s 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
a

ff
e

ct
 a

ll
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

b
o

d
ie

s 
fr

o
m

 l
a

rg
e

 g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 s

m
a

ll
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l m
u

st
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 t

o
 a

ll
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
w

it
h

in
 2

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s 

 o
f 

re
ce

iv
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

e
st

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

 w
it

h
 in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
o

ld
, 

w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
v

e
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 o

r 
a

n
a

ly
se

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
FO

I 
re

q
u

e
st

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 b
y

 P
a

rk
in

g
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

M
o

n
th

 

T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
F

O
I 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

re
ce

iv
e

d
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
0

 
2

 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

0
 

9
 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

0
 

3
 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
0

  
1

 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

0
  

2
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

  
2

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

  
4

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 
5

 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
  

0
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
  

5
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

  
4

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 
1

 

T
o

ta
l 

3
8

 

 

156



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

In
 M

a
y 

2
0

1
0

 w
e

 s
a

w
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
F

O
I 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

re
ce

iv
e

d
, 

h
o

w
e

ve
r 

8
 o

f 
th

e
se

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
w

e
re

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

n
e

w
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 H
a

n
n

o
v

e
r 

a
re

a
. 

 N
e

w
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

ft
e

n
 r

e
su

lt
 i

n
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
w

is
h

in
g

 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

m
o

re
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
su

lt
s.

 W
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

3
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 i
n

 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

0
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
co

m
m

o
n

 F
O

I 
q

u
e

st
io

n
s 

w
e

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 

 

D
o

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 b
o

n
u

se
s 

o
r 

in
ce

n
ti

v
e

s 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

th
e

y
 i

ss
u

e
?

 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
u

se
s 

th
e

 B
ri

ti
sh

 P
a

rk
in

g
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 m

o
d

e
l c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 w

h
ic

h
 

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y 
p

ro
h

ib
it

s 
th

e
 u

se
 o

f 
in

ce
n

ti
v

e
s 

a
n

d
/o

r 
b

o
n

u
se

s 
fo

r 
C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

is
su

e
d

. 
 

H
o

w
 lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l e
xp

e
ct

s 
th

e
 m

e
te

rs
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 u
n

ti
l 

th
e

y 
n

e
e

d
 

re
p

la
ci

n
g

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

ve
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l d

e
p

re
ci

a
te

 t
h

e
ir

 a
ss

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 i
n

 i
ts

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

y
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 i
n

te
re

st
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
  

O
u

r 
P

&
D

 m
a

ch
in

e
s 

a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 a

ss
u

m
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
ve

 a
 l

if
e

sp
a

n
 o

f 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 a
ss

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 i
s 

d
e

p
re

ci
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
 

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y 
C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
o

e
s 

y
o

u
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
 

fo
r:

  1
. 

o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 2
. 

C
C

T
V

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 m
o

b
ile

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t)
?

 

1
. 

o
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
 7

4
 C

E
O

s 
 

2
. 

C
C

T
V

 -
 2

 b
u

s 
la

n
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

 

W
h

a
t 

ro
le

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
r:

  
 

1
. 

o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

  

C
C

T
V

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 s

in
ce

 2
0

0
6

?
  P

le
a

se
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

d
e

ta
il

s:
 

 

1
. 

O
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
C

it
y

 &
 G

u
il

d
s 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

 h
o

u
se

 ‘
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 a
h

e
a

d
’ 

tr
a

in
in

g
 –

 

ce
rt

if
ic

a
te

s 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t

o
 a

ll
 s

ta
ff

. 
  

   
   

   
  

2
.C

C
T

V
 a

ll 
st

a
ff

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 B
T

E
C

 i
n

 C
C

T
V

 s
u

rv
e

il
la

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 T

A
V

C
O

M
 L

td
  

 

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y 
st

a
ff

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

to
 d

e
a

l w
it

h
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 (

N
o

ti
ce

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

)?
  

 

  
1

6
 

 

A
re

 t
h

e
se

 s
ta

ff
 e

m
p

lo
y

e
d

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

r 
b

y
 a

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

o
r?

  
In

 h
o

u
se

 t
e

a
m

 

157



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

If
 t

h
e

 l
a

tt
e

r 
p

le
a

se
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
o

r.
 

 

W
h

a
t 

ro
le

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

N
o

ti
ce

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
a

st
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
?

  P
le

a
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 d

e
ta

il
s:

 

 

R
T

A
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
s 

Lt
d

 -
 T

ra
ff

ic
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
W

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
in

 

h
o

u
se

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

o
n

 D
a

ta
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 A

ct
, 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 t
e

a
m

 

w
o

rk
in

g
, 

ri
sk

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 e
tc

. 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s 
is

su
e

d
 f

o
r 

co
u

rs
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 

P
le

a
se

 d
e

ta
il 

w
h

a
t 

co
n

st
it

u
te

s 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
l u

n
if

o
rm

 w
o

rn
 b

y
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

O
ff

ic
e

r’
s 

th
a

t 
is

su
e

 p
e

n
a

lt
y

 c
h

a
rg

e
s 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
 2

0
0

4
 

fo
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

v
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
th

a
t 

o
cc

u
r 

b
o

th
 o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

ff
 s

tr
e

e
t 

w
it

h
in

 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
a

re
a

. 
W

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 u
n

if
o

rm
 d

is
p

la
y

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
n

a
m

e
 p

le
a

se
 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll

 n
a

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

d
is

p
la

y
e

d
. 

If
 t

h
e

 n
a

m
e

 i
s 

a
b

b
re

v
ia

te
d

 o
n

 

th
e

 u
n

if
o

rm
 t

h
e

n
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 t
h

e
 a

b
b

re
v

ia
ti

o
n

 u
se

d
. 

T
h
e
 C
E
O
s
 i
n
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
a
p
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
o
rd
 ‘
C
iv
il 
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r’
 o
n
 

it
. 
T
h
e
ir
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
is
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e
p
a
u
le
tt
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 

lo
g
o
 i
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
re
a
s
t 
p
o
c
k
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 j
a
c
k
e
t.
 S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
E
O
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rd
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 j
a
c
k
e
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 

c
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

      

 

  

 

 
 

158



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

O
th

e
r 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

2
0

1
0

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 s

ch
e

m
e

, 
re

q
u

e
st

s 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

P
C

N
s 

is
su

e
d

 c
it

y
w

id
e

 

o
r 

w
it

h
in

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
s 

o
n

 i
ss

u
e

 a
n

d
/o

r 
th

e
ir

 c
o

st
. 

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
  

K
n

o
w

in
g

 w
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 y

o
u

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 i

s 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 u

s 
so

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 b

u
il

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

su
cc

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
ke

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 

m
o

st
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 

Y
o

u
r 

co
m

m
e

n
ts

, 
co

m
p

lim
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
il

l 
b

e
 t

re
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
ic

te
st

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

. 
If

 y
o

u
 d

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
yo

u
r 

ri
g

h
t 

to
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 a
 

g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

. 
P

le
a

se
 n

o
te

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 a
g

a
in

st
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

s 
h

a
v

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
If

 

y
o

u
 a

re
 u

n
h

a
p

p
y

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 P

e
n

a
lt

y 
T

ri
b

u
n

a
l w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 w
h

o
se

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 i
s 

fi
n

a
l.

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

li
n

e
, 

b
y

 e
m

a
il

in
g

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

b
ri

g
h

to
n

-h
o

ve
.g

o
v

.u
k

 o
r 

ca
ll

in
g

 t
h

e
 f

re
e

p
h

o
n

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
(0

5
0

0
) 

2
9

1
2

2
9

. 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
y 

w
it

h
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
o

n
e

, 
p

le
a

se
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 u
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
il

l 
tr

y
 t

o
 r

e
so

lv
e

 a
n

y
 is

su
e

s 
a

s 
q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

If
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 h
a

s 

g
o

n
e

 w
ro

n
g

 i
t 

is
 o

ft
e

n
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 p
u

t 
th

in
g

s 
ri

g
h

t 
q

u
ic

k
ly

 i
f 

y
o

u
 l

e
t 

u
s 

k
n

o
w

. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
ly

 w
e

 m
a

y 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 e
xp

la
in

 w
h

y 
th

in
g

s 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 d
o

n
e

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 

w
a

y
. 

If
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

ta
ct

e
d

 u
s 

a
n

d
 a

re
 s

ti
ll

 n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
y

 w
it

h
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v

e
 d

o
n

e
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 m

a
k

e
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
b

y
 u

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 d

e
ta

il
s 

a
s 

a
b

o
ve

. 

It
 i

s 
a

lw
a

y
s 

n
ic

e
 t

o
 g

e
t 

p
o

si
ti

v
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 t

o
o

! 
If

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 c
o

m
p

li
m

e
n

ts
, 

p
le

a
se

 l
e

t 
u

s 
k

n
o

w
! 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 b
y 

P
a

rk
in

g
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
v

e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

ly
 e

a
ch

 m
o

n
th

. 

  
A

p
r-

1
0

 
M

a
y

-1
0

 
Ju

n
-1

0
 

Ju
l-

1
0

 
A

u
g

-1
0

 
S

e
p

-1
0

 
O

ct
-1

0
 

N
o

v
-1

0
 

D
e

c-
1

0
 

Ja
n

-1
1

 
F

e
b

-1
1

 
M

a
r-

1
1

 
T

o
ta

l 

T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ca

se
s 

9
 

9
 

8
 

5
 

8
 

8
 

8
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

6
 

6
 

8
2

 

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

ly
 (

d
a

y
s)

 
8

 
1

0
 

6
 

6
 

4
 

2
0

 
7

 
7

 
5

 
4

 
4

 
7

 
8

 

       

159



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

G
ra

p
h

s 
&

 T
a

b
le

s 

 M
o
n
th
 

T
M
A
 

P
C
N
 

T
M
A
 

V
O
ID
 

N
e
t 

T
o
ta
l 

A
p
r-
1
0
 

9
3
7
0
 

9
9
 

9
2
7
1
 

M
a
y
-1
0
 

9
5
2
8
 

1
1
1
 

9
4
1
7
 

J
u
n
-1
0
 

9
2
6
7
 

1
0
7
 

9
1
6
0
 

J
u
l-
1
0
 

1
0
1
4
4
 

1
2
2
 

1
0
0
2
2
 

A
u
g
-1
0
 

1
0
3
7
5
 

9
8
 

1
0
2
7
7
 

S
e
p
-1
0
 

8
5
2
5
 

7
2
 

8
4
5
3
 

O
c
t-
1
0
 

9
6
5
3
 

9
1
 

9
5
6
2
 

N
o
v
-1
0
 

8
3
5
0
 

7
9
 

8
2
7
1
 

D
e
c
-1
0
 

6
7
7
9
 

6
5
 

6
7
1
4
 

J
a
n
-1
1
 

9
5
7
2
 

9
9
 

9
4
7
3
 

F
e
b
-1
1
 

8
9
2
5
 

7
4
 

8
8
5
1
 

M
a
r-
1
1
 

9
8
9
0
 

8
6
 

9
8
0
4
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

 
 

1
0
9
2
7
5
 

       

160



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
2

 -
 F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 I
n

co
m

e
 

In
co

m
e

 b
y

 s
o

u
rc

e
 

£
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

£
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
  

£
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

O
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s 

8
,1

3
6

,6
7

8
 

8
,3

0
5

,4
6

4
 

 9
,0

1
1

,2
1

2
 

P
e

rm
it

 i
n

co
m

e
 

3
,4

2
3

,9
2

6
 

3
,7

6
4

,4
4

4
 

 4
,0

2
8

,5
8

4
 

P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

(i
n

cl
u

si
v

e
 o

f 
b

a
d

 d
e

b
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

) 
4

,2
1

0
,9

8
4

 
3

,9
6

8
,4

0
2

 
 3

,6
9

7
,8

2
3

 

O
th

e
r 

in
co

m
e

 
1

0
,7

1
1

 
1

6
,4

2
7

 
 1

5
,6

9
9

 

T
o

ta
l 

1
5

,8
1

5
,2

6
3

 
1

6
,0

5
4

,7
3

7
 

 1
6

,7
5

3
,3

1
8

 

 D
e

ta
il

e
d

 E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

D
ir

e
ct

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

C
iv

il
 P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
£

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
£

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
£

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
3

,6
1

4
,4

4
7

 
3

,5
8

8
,0

2
9

 
 3

,5
8

7
,1

9
4

 

A
d

m
in

, 
a

p
p

e
a

ls
, 

d
e

b
t 

re
co

ve
ry

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 

3
,0

0
4

,8
5

9
 

3
,1

7
5

,1
8

4
*

 
 3

,3
5

1
,4

9
1

 

S
ch

e
m

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 /
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

5
6

9
,7

0
3

 
7

7
6

,6
1

0
 

 8
9

2
,7

1
6

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

ch
a

rg
e

s 
1

,2
1

7
,6

6
0

 
1

,1
1

9
,7

2
7

 
 1

,3
5

5
,5

7
0

 

T
o

ta
l d

ir
e

ct
 c

o
st

s 
8

,4
0

6
,6

6
9

 
8

,6
5

9
,5

5
0

*
 

 9
,1

8
6

,9
7

1
 

S
u

rp
lu

s 
a

ft
e

r 
d

ir
e

ct
 c

o
st

s 
7

,4
0

8
,5

9
4

 
7

,3
5

9
,1

8
7

*
 

 7
,5

6
6

,3
4

6
 

*
fi

g
u

re
s 

sh
o

w
 f

in
a

li
se

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
if

fe
r 

sl
ig

h
tl

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
a

l 
fi

g
u

re
s 

sh
o

w
n

 i
n

 l
a

st
 y

e
a

r’
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
a

ft
e

r 
d

ir
e

ct
 c

o
st

s 
is

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

sp
e

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 f
o

ll
o

w
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
re

la
te

d
 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y

 C
P

E
 i

n
co

m
e

 
£

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
£

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
£

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
u

s 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

1
,1

0
3

,9
2

8
 

1
,2

2
9

,6
5

0
 

 1
,1

6
0

,1
2

3
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
3

4
1

,1
8

1
 

3
6

0
,7

8
8

 
 3

6
0

,7
2

4
 

C
o

n
ce

ss
io

n
a

ry
 b

u
s 

fa
re

s 
5

,7
5

7
,1

4
1

 
6

,8
0

4
,5

2
7

 
 6

,7
6

5
,5

7
8

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

in
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 c

o
st

s 
3

,0
2

3
,6

3
1

 
3

,2
6

4
,1

6
9

 
 3

,3
2

7
,0

0
0

 

T
o

ta
l 

1
0

,2
2

5
,8

8
1

 
1

1
,6

5
9

,1
3

4
 

 1
1

,6
1

3
,4

2
5

 

161



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

In
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 £

7
,5

6
6

,3
4

6
 w

a
s 

ra
is

e
d

 f
ro

m
 C

E
P

 i
n

co
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
cl

a
ss

e
d

 a
s 

‘s
u

rp
lu

s’
 (

co
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

in
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

f 
£

7
,6

4
1

,0
6

4
).

  

T
h

e
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

s 
to

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 p
a

rt
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f:
 

B
u

s 
su

b
si

d
ie

s:
  V

a
ri

o
u

s 
b

u
s 

ro
u

te
s 

w
e

re
 s

u
b

si
d

is
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
it

y
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

F
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
e

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-

h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
s
/b
h
c
c
/p
u
b
lic
_
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
/B
u
s
_
S
e
rv
ic
e
_
R
e
v
ie
w
_
D
e
ta
ils
_
0
7
1
1
.p
d
f 

 

C
o

n
ce

ss
io

n
a

ry
 B

u
s 

F
a

re
s:

 S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 c

o
n

ce
ss

io
n

a
ry

 b
u

s 
fa

re
s 

ro
se

 f
ro

m
 £

1
.9

1
 m

il
li
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 t
o

 £
5

.2
1

 m
il

li
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

, 
£

6
.8

 m
il

li
o

n
 i
n

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 .
 I

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 £

6
.7

 m
il

li
o

n
 w

a
s 

sp
e

n
t.

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 e
li

g
ib

il
it

y
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 c
a

n
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
t 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
g

h
to

n
-

h
o

v
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/i

n
d

e
x.

cf
m

?
re

q
u

e
st

=
c1

2
2

0
4

1
4

  
 

Lo
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 C
o

st
s:

 

T
h

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

fi
n

a
n

ci
n

g
 a

 5
 y

e
a

r,
 £

2
8

 m
il
li

o
n

, 
Lo

ca
l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

6
-2

0
1

1
 a

re
 p

a
rt

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y 

C
P

E
 s

u
rp

lu
se

s.
 E

a
ch

 y
e

a
r 

a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

is
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 M
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 h
o

w
 f

u
n

d
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 a

ll
o

ca
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
th

e
 L

o
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 y

e
a

r.
 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

: 

•
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 B

u
s 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 

•
 

W
a

lk
in

g
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

(d
ro

p
p

e
d

 k
e

rb
s 

&
 t

a
ct

il
e

) 

•
 

C
y
cl

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 

•
 

A
2

3
 S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 C

o
rr

id
o

r 

•
 

C
y
cl

e
 R

o
u

te
 s

ig
n

in
g

 

•
 

T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

s 
fo

r 
S

ch
o

o
ls

 

•
 

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

h
ip

 S
t/

O
ld

 t
o

w
n

 

•
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

•
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 g

a
te

w
a

y
 

162



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

•
 

W
a

lk
in

g
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

•
 

C
y
cl

e
 r

o
u

te
 O

ld
 S

h
o

re
h

a
m

 R
o

a
d

 

•
 

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 w
a

y
fi

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

in
g

 p
ro

je
ct

 

•
 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
v
e

h
ic

le
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 p

o
in

ts
 (

Lo
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

) 

•
 

C
y
cl

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 

•
 

N
e

w
 R

o
a

d
/C

h
u

rc
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 

•
 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
v
e

h
ic

le
s 

•
 

M
a

d
e

ir
a

 D
ri

v
e

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 

•
 

S
e

a
fr

o
n

t 
ra

il
in

g
s 

•
 

C
h

a
th

a
m

 P
la

ce
 r

a
il

 b
ri

d
g

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

•
 

B
e

a
r 

R
o

a
d

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 w
a

ll
 

•
 

D
y
k
e

 R
o

a
d

 D
ri

v
e

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 w
a

ll
 

•
 

M
a

ri
n

e
 P

a
ra

d
e

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 w
a

ll
 

•
 

F
o

o
tw

a
y
s 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 

•
 

W
o

rk
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 F
a

lm
e

r 
S
ta

d
iu

m
 

•
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 

•
 

M
P

R
 (

M
ix

e
d

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 R

o
u

te
) 

N
o

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 

•
 

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

 –
 L

o
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 

•
 

Q
u

e
e

n
s 

P
a

rk
 –

Lo
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 

163



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 

P
a
rk
in
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 b
a
n
n
e
d
 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
h
e
a
rg
u
s.
co
.u
k
/n
e
w
s/
9
1
2
4
8
4
2
.P
a
rk
in
g
_
o
u
ts
id
e
_
sc
h
o
o
ls
_
b
a
n
n
e
d
_
in
_
B
ri
g
h
to
n
_
a
n
d
_
H
o
v
e
/ 

 D
ro
p
 i
n
 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
 t
h
e
ft
s 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
h
e
a
rg
u
s.
co
.u
k
/n
e
w
s/
9
1
4
4
2
0
0
.B
ig
_
d
ro
p
_
in
_
b
lu
e
_
b
a
d
g
e
_
th
e
ft
s_
in
_
B
ri
g
h
to
n
_
a
n
d
_
H
o
v
e
_
is
_
w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
/ 

 I
ss
u
in
g
 l
e
ss
 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C
h
a
rg
e
 N
o
ti
ce
s 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
h
e
a
rg
u
s.
co
.u
k
/n
e
w
s/
9
0
8
1
1
4
7
.T
ra
ff
ic
_
w
a
rd
e
n
s_
h
a
n
d
_
o
u
t_
fe
w
e
r_
p
a
rk
in
g
_
ti
ck
e
ts
_
in
_
B
ri
g
h
to
n
_
a
n
d
_
H
o
v
e
/ 

 A
 l
e
tt
e
r 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
ch
o
o
l 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
h
e
a
rg
u
s.
co
.u
k
/a
rc
h
iv
e
/2
0
1
1
/0
1
/3
1
/L
e
tt
e
rs
+
to
+
th
e
+
E
d
it
o
r+
%
2
8
a
rg
u
s_
le
tt
e
rs
%
2
9
/8
8
2
3
5
3
2
.T
h
e
re
_
s_
a
_
re
a
so
n
_
fo
r_
p
a
rk
in
g
_
re
st
ri
ct
io
n
s_
a
ro
u
n
d

_
sc
h
o
o
ls
/ 

  P
re
ss
 r
e
le
a
se
s 

 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
 t
h
e
ft
s 
d
o
w
n
 b
y
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
6
3
6
4
5
 

 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 L
a
n
e
s 
ca
r 
p
a
rk
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
3
0
6
2
5
 

 S
a
fe
r 
ro
a
d
s 
o
u
ts
id
e
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
6
3
0
2
6
 

  C
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
w
a
rd
 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
5
6
8
2
9
 

164



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
4
2
1
6
5
 

 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
 c
ra
ck
d
o
w
n
 

 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
5
5
6
2
5
 

 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
 f
ra
u
d
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
ri
g
h
to
n
-h
o
v
e
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
.c
fm
?r
e
q
u
e
st
=
b
1
1
4
9
0
8
4
&
a
ct
io
n
=
sh
o
w
_
p
r&
id
=
2
3
2
7
8
6
 

              

165



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
  

P
a

rk
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
fo

r 
o

ff
-s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 b
y

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s 

La
n

e
s 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

  

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

3
0

 m
in

s 
 

D
e

le
te

d
  

1
 h

o
u

r 
 

2
.4

0
 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.8

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

7
.0

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

9
.0

0
 

5
 h

o
u

rs
 

1
1

.0
0

 

6
 h

o
u

rs
  

1
3

.0
0

 

7
 h

o
u

rs
 

1
7

.0
0

 

8
 h

o
u

rs
  

1
9

.0
0

 

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
1

.0
0

 

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
2

3
.0

0
 

E
v

e
n

in
g

s 
1

8
.0

0
-2

4
.0

0
 

4
.5

0
 

N
ig

h
t 

2
4

.0
0

-9
.0

0
 

7
.5

0
 

Lo
st

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

2
3

.0
0

 

 Lo
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
1

.0
0

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

D
e

le
te

d
  

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

3
.0

0
 

6
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.0

0
 

166



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

6
.5

0
 

1
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
D

e
le

te
  

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
1

4
.0

0
 

S
e

a
so

n
 T

ic
ke

t 
–

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

 
7

0
0

.0
0

 

W
e

e
k

ly
  

3
2

.0
0

 

Lo
st

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

1
4

.0
0

 

 N
o

rt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
0

.5
0

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

1
.0

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

D
e

le
te

d
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

5
 h

o
u

rs
 

3
.0

0
 

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.0

0
 

1
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
4

.5
0

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
e

a
so

n
 T

ic
k

e
t 

 
4

7
0

.0
0

 

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
  

8
a

m
-8

p
m

 

 R
o

tt
in

g
d

e
a

n
 W

e
st

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
0

.5
0

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

1
.0

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

 R
o

tt
in

g
d

e
a

n
 M

a
ri

n
e

 C
li

ff
s 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
0

.5
0

 

2
 h

o
u

r 
1

.0
0

 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 a

n
d

 o
v

e
r 

 
2

.0
0

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
e

a
so

n
 T

ic
k

e
t 

 
2

6
.0

0
 

 

167



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

K
in

g
 A

lf
re

d
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
  

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
1

.0
0

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

1
.4

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
  

2
.5

0
 

 H
a

d
d

in
g

to
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
  

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
0

.5
0

 

2
 h

o
u

r 
1

.0
0

 

3
 h

o
u

r 
1

.5
0

 

 B
la

ck
 R

o
ck

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

  

T
im

e
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
1

.0
0

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

3
.0

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.0

0
 

6
 h

o
u

rs
 

D
e

le
te

d
 

9
 h

o
u

rs
  

5
.0

0
 

 R
e

g
e

n
cy

 S
q

u
a

re
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

1
 h

o
u

r 
2

.0
0

 

3
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.5

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

6
.5

0
 

6
 h

o
u

rs
 

9
.5

0
 

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
1

2
.5

0
 

E
v

e
n

in
g

s 
1

8
.0

0
-2

4
.0

0
 

4
.5

0
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
S

e
a

so
n

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

5
2

5
.0

0
 

168



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
e

a
so

n
 T

ic
k

e
t 

 
1

7
5

5
.0

0
 

Lo
st

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

1
2

.5
0

 

  T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
  

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.5

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.0

0
 

6
 h

o
u

rs
 

6
.0

0
 

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

7
.5

0
 

1
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
9

.5
0

 

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
1

2
.5

0
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
S

e
a

so
n

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

5
0

4
.0

0
 

Lo
st

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

1
2

.5
0

 

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

  

T
im

e
  

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

2
.0

0
 

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

4
.5

0
 

6
 h

o
u

rs
 

6
.5

0
 

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

7
.5

0
 

1
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
9

.0
0

 

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
1

0
.0

0
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
S

e
a

so
n

 T
ic

k
e

t 
 

5
3

8
.0

0
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
e

a
so

n
 T

ic
k

e
t 

 
1

9
7

9
.0

0
 

  2
0

1
0

/1
1

 p
e

rm
it

 p
ri

ce
 

P
e

m
it

 t
y

p
e

 

P
ri

ce
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
1

 y
e

a
r 

£
1

0
8

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
3

 m
o

n
th

s 
£

3
2

 

169



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
1

 y
e

a
r 

li
g

h
t 

to
u

ch
 

£
6

3
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
6

 m
o

n
th

s 
li

g
h

t 
to

u
ch

 
£

3
7

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
1

 y
e

a
r 

fu
ll 

sc
h

e
m

e
 l

o
w

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
 

£
5

4
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
3

 m
o

n
th

s 
fu

ll
 s

ch
e

m
e

 l
o

w
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

£
1

6
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
1

 y
e

a
r 

li
g

h
t 

to
u

ch
 lo

w
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 

£
3

2
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
6

 m
o

n
th

s 
li

g
h

t 
to

u
ch

 l
o

w
 e

m
is

si
o

n
 

£
1

9
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
- 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 f
u

ll
 s

ch
e

m
e

 
£

5
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g

e
 -

 l
ig

h
t 

to
u

ch
 

£
5

 

  
  

T
ra

d
e

r 
P

e
rm

it
 3

 m
o

n
th

s 
£

7
5

 

  
  

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 1
 y

e
a

r 
£

1
6

2
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 3
 m

o
n

th
s 

£
5

1
 

  
  

S
ch

o
o

l 1
 y

e
a

r 
£

8
2

 

S
ch

o
o

l 3
 m

o
n

th
s 

£
2

5
 

S
ch

o
o

l 1
 y

e
a

r 
li

g
h

t 
to

u
ch

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

£
4

0
 

S
ch

o
o

l 3
 m

o
n

th
s 

li
g

h
t 

to
u

ch
  

£
2

5
 

  
  

V
is

it
o

r 
 f

u
ll

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

£
2

 

V
is

it
o

r 
li

g
h

t 
to

u
ch

 
£

1
 

  
  

H
o

te
l Z

o
n

e
 C

 
£

5
 

H
o

te
l Z

o
n

e
 N

 
£

1
.5

0
 

  
  

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

C
a

re
r 

B
a

d
g

e
 (

P
C

B
) 

1
 y

e
a

r 
£

2
0

 

  
  

S
u

sp
e

n
si

o
n

s 
p

e
r 

b
a

y
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
  

£
2

0
 

  
  

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

1
 y

e
a

r 
£

2
0

 

  
  

W
a

iv
e

rs
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 

£
3

.7
0

 

  
  

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e

 
£

2
.0

0
 

170



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  
  

C
a

r 
C

lu
b

 (
st

a
rt

 u
p

 c
o

st
s 

2
 y

e
a

r)
 

£
5

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 

C
a

n
ce

ll
a

ti
o

n
s 

b
y

 r
e

a
so

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

S
ta

te
 D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

- 
A

d
ju

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

ll
o

w
e

d
 

1
0

 

A
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

- 
A

d
ju

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 c

o
n

se
n

t 
o

rd
e

r 
4

 

A
d

ju
d

ic
a

to
r 

- 
N

o
 C

o
n

te
st

 
3

4
 

A
p

p
e

a
l 

- 
N

o
t 

C
o

n
te

st
e

d
 

6
4

 

C
a

n
ce

ll
e

d
 -

 A
d

ju
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

A
ll

o
w

e
d

 
1

0
0

 

C
a

n
ce

ll
e

d
 -

 S
p

o
il

e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

is
su

e
 (

P
C

N
 n

o
t 

v
a

li
d

) 
4

9
2

 

C
a

n
ce

ll
e

d
 -

 V
e

h
ic

le
 D

ri
v

e
 A

w
a

y
 

1
0

6
3

 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

  M
e

d
ic

a
l 

R
e

a
so

n
 

3
8

7
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 D
ip

s\
W

a
iv

e
r\

P
C

B
 

1
3

9
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 F
ir

st
 O

ff
e

n
ce

, 
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

 A
p

p
li

e
d

 
1

3
4

5
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 H
o

te
l p

e
rm

it
 I

n
co

rr
e

ct
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

1
4

1
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 H
o

te
l P

e
rm

it
 V

a
li

d
 

7
4

 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 S
p

e
ci

a
l 

C
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
1

1
8

1
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 S
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 
P

C
N

 C
a

n
ce

l 
5

7
9

 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 V
a

li
d

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 B
a

d
g

e
 

6
6

5
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 V
a

li
d

 P
&

D
 

4
0

8
8

 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 V
a

li
d

 R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
P

e
rm

it
 

4
2

2
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
n

g
 -

 V
a

li
d

 V
is

it
o

r 
P

e
rm

it
 

1
0

4
8

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
 I

n
va

li
d

 P
C

N
 -

 C
E

O
 e

rr
o

r 
4

1
7

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
E

m
a

il
 lo

st
 

3
4

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
In

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 s

ig
n

in
g

/L
in

in
g

 
1

8
7

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
In

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v

id
e

n
ce

 
8

9
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
N

T
O

 R
e

p
 O

u
t 

o
f 

T
im

e
 

2
0

7
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
O

ff
ic

e
 I

ss
u

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

2
6

1
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
O

u
t 

o
f 

T
im

e
 (

in
it

ia
l 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
) 

1
9

 

171



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
P

 &
 D

 M
a

ch
in

e
 f

a
u

lt
y

 
2

7
4

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
S

ca
n

n
in

g
 I

ss
u

e
s 

5
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

- 
T

R
O

 I
n

v
a

li
d

 
6

 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

B
a

ck
 o

ff
ic

e
 

1
0

0
 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
p

h
o

to
g

ra
p

h
s 

4
6

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
A

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 P
a

ss
e

n
g

e
r 

7
9

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
C

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 d
ri

v
e

rs
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
3

3
1

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 W
o

rk
 

4
7

7
 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
H

a
n

d
h

e
ld

 V
o

id
 

6
0

5
 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
Lo

a
d

in
g

/u
n

lo
a

d
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 

1
7

6
5

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
P

o
li

ce
 /

e
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 V

e
h

ic
le

 
3

3
 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 D
u

ti
e

s 
7

1
 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
T

e
st

 N
o

ti
ce

 
2

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
V

e
h

ic
le

 b
ro

ke
n

 d
o

w
n

 
4

6
5

 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
V

e
h

ic
le

 s
to

le
n

 
9

9
 

T
R

O
 e

xe
m

p
t 

- 
W

in
d

o
w

 C
le

a
n

e
r 

4
0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

1
7

4
4

8
 

          

172



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 -
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 C
o

n
tr

a
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e

 

  
  

  
  
T
ra
ff
ic
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
c
t 
2
0
0
4
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
O
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
- 
H
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
p
e
n
a
lt
y
 c
h
a
rg
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

  
  

  

  
  
  

  
  

  

C
o
d
e
 

  
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

  
N
o
te
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
1
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 p
re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 h
o
u
rs
 

  
  

5
 m

in
s
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
2
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 o
r 
lo
a
d
in
g
/u
n
lo
a
d
in
g
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
w
h
e
re
 w
a
it
in
g
  

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

a
n
d
 l
o
a
d
in
g
/u
n
lo
a
d
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 f
o
rc
e
  

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
2
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
' 
o
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 u
s
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 

  
T
h
is
 c
o
d
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 o
n
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
o
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 u
s
e
 b
a
y
s
. 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
 p
e
rm

it
, 
v
o
u
c
h
e
r,
o
r 
p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 
fo
r 

  
T
h
is
 c
o
d
e
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 n
o
 

a
tt
e
m
p
t 

  

  
  

th
a
t 
p
la
c
e
 

  
to
 p
a
rk
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 i
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 n
o
th
in
g
, 
o
r 

s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 

  

  
  

  
  

th
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 n
e
v
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
a
lid
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
, 

e
.g
. 
 

  

  
  

  
  

a
 p
e
rm

it
 f
o
r 
a
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
z
o
n
e
, 
n
o
 p
e
rm

it
 o
r 
P
&
D
 t
ic
k
e
t 

th
a
t 
h
a
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

b
e
e
n
 e
x
p
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
4
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
 e
le
c
tr
ic
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
' 
c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
  

  
  

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

h
o
u
rs
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
h
a
rg
in
g
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
6
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 p
e
rm

it
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
 p
e
rm

it
 

  
N
o
t 
fo
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
o
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 u
s
e
 b
a
y
s
. 
A
p
p
lie
s
 i
n
 

p
e
rm

it
  

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

b
a
y
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 u
s
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 

  

  
  

  
  

a
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
, 
c
a
r 
c
lu
b
 a
n
d
 d
o
c
to
rs
 b
a
y
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8
 

  
U
s
in
g
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
n
 a
 p
e
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
r 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 o
r 
e
x
p
o
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
a
le
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
s
 w
h
e
n
 p
ro
h
ib
it
e
d
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
0
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 l
o
a
d
in
g
 g
a
p
 m

a
rk
e
d
 b
y
 a
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
1
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 b
a
y
/s
p
a
c
e
 o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 b
a
y
/s
p
a
c
e
 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
3
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 o
r 
a
re
a
 n
o
t 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
c
la
s
s
 o
f 

  
T
h
is
 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
x
 c
la
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 a
n
d
 

5
 M
in
s
 

173



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

a
p
p
lie
s
 w
h
e
re
 

  
  

v
e
h
ic
le
 

  
a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 o
f 
a
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ta
x
 c
la
s
s
 u
s
e
s
 a
 b
a
y
, 
e
.g
. 
a
 c
a
r 

p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 

  

  
  

  
  

a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 o
r 
a
 c
o
a
c
h
 b
a
y
, 
a
 c
o
a
c
h
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 

m
o
to
rc
y
c
le
 

  

  
  

  
  

b
a
y
. 
T
h
e
 b
a
y
 h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
la
s
s
 

o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
 

  

  
  

  
  

(n
o
t 
a
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
, 
lik
e
 a
 p
e
rm

it
 b
a
y
)a
n
d
 a
n
y
 

v
e
h
ic
le
 o
f 
th
a
t 
c
la
s
s
 c
a
n
 

  

  
  

  
  

p
a
rk
 t
h
e
re
, 
e
.g
. 
a
n
y
 c
o
a
c
h
 c
a
n
 p
a
rk
 i
n
 a
 c
o
a
c
h
 b
a
y
, 

a
n
y
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 c
a
n
 

  

  
  

  
  

p
a
rk
 i
n
 a
 m

o
to
rc
y
c
le
 b
a
y
 -
 n
o
 p
e
rm

it
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
5
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 l
o
a
d
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 o
r 
a
re
a
 n
o
t 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
c
la
s
s
  

  
O
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
lo
a
d
in
g
 b
a
y
s
 

5
 f
o
r 
c
a
rs
  

  
  

o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
 

  
  

1
0
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
6
 

  
V
e
h
ic
le
 p
a
rk
e
d
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
0
 c
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 

  
D
o
u
b
le
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

a
n
d
 n
o
t 
w
it
h
in
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 a
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
to
 a
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
 

  
If
 D
Y
L
 t
h
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 u
n
le
s
s
 b
lu
e
 b
a
d
g
e
 

h
o
ld
e
r 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
s
e
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

is
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
 -
 I
s
s
u
e
 a
s
 a
 0
1
 

  

  
  

  
  

If
 n
o
 y
e
llo
w
 l
in
e
s
 -
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
t 
th
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 o
n
 c
o
d
e
 2
7
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
' 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

  
If
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 s
e
e
n
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 

n
o
t 
d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 b
a
d
g
e
 

  
v
a
lid
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
, 
o
r 
d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 b
a
d
g
e
 t
h
e
 

in
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
w
a
y
 

  

  
  

  
  

th
is
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 P
C
N
 b
e
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
1
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
p
o
lic
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
5
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 t
a
x
i 
ra
n
k
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
6
 

  
S
to
p
p
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 p
ro
h
ib
it
e
d
 (
 o
n
 a
 r
e
d
 r
o
u
te
 c
le
a
rw
a
y
) 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

174



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

4
7
 

  
S
to
p
p
e
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
/s
ta
n
d
 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
8
 

  
S
to
p
p
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
re
a
 o
u
ts
id
e
 a
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
9
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
h
o
lly
 o
r 
p
a
rt
ly
 o
n
 a
 c
y
c
le
 t
ra
c
k
 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
5
 

  
A
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
in
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
rn
ig
h
t 
W
a
it
in
g
 B
a
n
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
6
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
 w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 (
n
o
 o
v
e
rn
ig
h
t 
w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
) 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
7
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
o
a
c
h
 b
a
n
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 (
n
o
 o
v
e
rn
ig
h
t 
w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
) 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
1
 

  
A
 h
e
a
v
y
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
 w
h
o
lly
 o
r 
p
a
rt
ly
 p
a
rk
e
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
, 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

v
e
rg
e
 o
r 
la
n
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
w
o
 c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
s
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
2
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
n
e
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
h
e
e
ls
 o
n
 a
n
y
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 u
rb
a
n
 r
o
a
d
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
 c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 (
fo
o
tw
a
y
 p
a
rk
in
g
) 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
9
 

  
S
to
p
p
e
d
 o
n
 a
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 c
ro
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
/o
r 
c
ro
s
s
in
g
 a
re
a
 m

a
rk
e
d
 b
y
 

  
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

z
ig
 z
a
g
s
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
O
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
- 
L
o
w
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
p
e
n
a
lt
y
 c
h
a
rg
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
o
d
e
 

  
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

  
N
o
te
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
4
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 m

e
te
r 
b
a
y
 w
h
e
n
 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 t
im
e
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
5
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 e
x
p
ir
y
 o
f 
p
a
id
 f
o
r 
ti
m
e
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 e
x
p
ir
y
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
p
a
id
 f
o
r 
ti
c
k
e
t 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
  

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

d
is
p
la
y
 m

a
c
h
in
e
. 
If
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 
h
a
s
 a
 t
im
e
 o
f 

1
3
.0
0
 a
 P
C
N
 

  

  
  

  
  

c
a
n
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a
t 
1
3
.0
5
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
6
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 

  
If
 a
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m

a
c
h
in
e
, 
b
u
t 
h
a
s
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 c
le
a
r 
to
 s
e
e
. 
A
ls
o
 i
f 
n
o
 

p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 

  

  
  

  
  

ti
c
k
e
t 
is
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 p
a
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 n
o
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

175



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

0
7
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
m
a
d
e
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
ta
y
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 i
n
it
ia
l 
ti
m
e
 

  
M
e
te
r 
fe
e
d
in
g
' 
In
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 b
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
a
rk
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
, 
th
e
n
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
a
y
 a
n
d
 

d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 
to
 e
x
te
n
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

th
e
 t
im
e
 t
o
 p
a
rk
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

  

  
  

  
  

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

th
e
n
 w
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
s
s
u
e
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
8
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 a
t 
a
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
o
rd
e
r 
m
e
te
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 h
o
u
rs
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
9
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
ts
 w
h
e
re
 p
ro
h
ib
it
e
d
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 t
w
o
 v
a
lid
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
ts
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
1
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
' 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
  

  
N
o
t 
fo
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

  

  
  

re
s
id
e
n
ts
' 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
e
rm

it
. 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
9
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
' 
o
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 u
s
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
v
a
lid
 

  
A
s
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
d
e
 1
2
, 
th
is
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
o
r 

s
h
a
re
d
 u
s
e
 b
a
y
s
. 
It
 i
s
  

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

p
e
rm

it
, 
a
n
 i
n
v
a
lid
  
v
o
u
c
h
e
r 
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
v
a
lid
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 

  
u
s
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
r 
h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 s
o
m
e
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 p
a
rk
 

c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
a
lid
 o
r 

w
a
s
 v
a
lid
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
 

  

  
  

  
  

ti
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
b
a
y
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
p
e
rm

it
  
th
a
t 

h
a
s
 e
x
p
ir
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

(d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
g
ra
c
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 f
o
r 
e
x
p
ir
e
d
 

p
e
rm

it
s
, 
e
.g
 7
  
d
a
y
s
),
 

  

  
  

  
  

o
r 
a
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 t
ic
k
e
t 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 e
x
p
ir
e
d
 b
y
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
, 
o
r 
a
n
 

  

  
  

  
  

in
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 v
o
u
c
h
e
r.
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
2
 

  
R
e
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 o
r 
z
o
n
e
  
w
it
h
in
 o
n
e
 h
o
u
r 
o
f 
le
a
v
in
g
 

  
O
n
 t
im
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 b
a
y
s
 (
e
.g
. 
3
 h
o
u
r 
m
a
x
 s
ta
y
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 

1
h
o
u
r)
 i
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

is
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
e
t 
o
f 
b
a
y
s
 e
v
e
n
 i
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

h
a
s
 l
e
ft
 a
n
d
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

1
 h
o
u
r 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 t
o
 l
a
p
s
e
d
. 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

176



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

2
4
 

  
N
o
t 
p
a
rk
e
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
 

  
If
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 p
a
rk
e
d
 n
o
t 
fu
lly
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk
in
g
s
 o
f 

th
e
 b
a
y
 a
s
 m

a
rk
e
d
 o
n
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

th
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
. 
( 
O
n
e
 t
h
ir
d
 o
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
  

  

  
  

  
  

m
a
rk
in
g
s
 o
r 
o
n
e
 t
h
ir
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 b
a
y
 i
s
 

o
b
s
tr
u
c
te
d
 )
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
0
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 p
e
rm

it
te
d
 

  
If
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 t
im
e
 l
im
it
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 (
e
.g
.2
 h
o
u
rs
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 

in
 1
 h
o
u
r)
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
  

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 s
e
e
n
 p
a
rk
e
d
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 a
llo
w
a
b
le
 

ti
m
e
 t
h
e
n
 a
 P
C
N
 w
ill
 

  

  
  

  
  

b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
5
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
is
c
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
 d
is
c
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
6
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
is
c
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 p
e
rm

it
te
d
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
3
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 e
n
g
in
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 w
h
e
re
 p
ro
h
ib
it
e
d
  

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
O
ff
 s
tr
e
e
t 
- 
P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C
h
a
rg
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
o
d
e
 

  
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

  
N
o
te
s
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
0
 

  
E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
x
 S
ta
y
 -
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 H
a
d
d
in
g
to
n
 S
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 m

a
x
 s
ta
y
 

  
L
o
w
e
r 
P
C
N
  

In
s
ta
n
t 
 

  
  

is
 3
 h
o
u
rs
  

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
1
 

  
In
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
re
a
 -
 P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 n
o
t 
 

  
  

  

  
  

d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
s
 a
 p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
 

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
 P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
2
 

  
O
v
e
rs
ta
y
in
g
 P
&
D
 t
ic
k
e
t-
 P
a
rk
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
e
x
p
ir
y
 t
im
e
 

  
L
o
w
e
r 
P
C
N
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
3
 

  
N
o
 v
a
lid
 P
&
D
 t
ic
k
e
t 

  
L
o
w
e
r 
P
C
N
 

5
 M
in
s
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
4
 

  
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
m
a
d
e
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 

  
L
o
w
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
5
 

  
In
 p
e
rm

it
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 -
 p
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 p
e
rm

it
 b
a
y
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 a
 v
a
lid
  

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

p
e
rm

it
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
6
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 m

a
rk
in
g
s
 (
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 b
a
y
) 

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

177



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
7
 

  
P
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 a
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
e
rs
o
n
s
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

a
 v
a
lid
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 b
a
d
g
e
 

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
9
 

  
h
e
ig
h
t/
w
e
ig
h
t 
lim

it
 

  
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
1
 

  
W
ro
n
g
 c
la
s
s
 o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
 

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
2
 

  
C
a
u
s
in
g
 a
n
 o
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 -
i.
e
. 
o
n
 r
a
m
p
 o
r 
b
lo
c
k
in
g
 e
x
it
 p
o
in
ts
 

  
H
ig
h
e
r 
P
C
N
 

In
s
ta
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

             

178



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

G
lo

ss
a

ry
 o

f 
T

e
rm

s 

  B
u

s 
La

n
e

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

 A
 b

u
s 

la
n

e
 i

s 
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
 t

o
 b

u
se

s 
a

n
d

 i
s 

u
se

d
 t

o
 s

p
e

e
d

 u
p

 t
h

e
 b

u
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 a

id
e

 in
 t

h
e

m
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 o

n
 t

im
e

. 
In

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 t

a
xi

s 
a

n
d

 b
ic

y
cl

e
s 

ca
n

 a
ls

o
 u

se
 

b
u

s 
la

n
e

s.
 T

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
l b

u
s 

la
n

e
s 

a
re

 e
n

fo
rc

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

T
h

e
 p

o
li

ce
 s

ti
ll

 e
n

fo
rc

e
 t

h
o

se
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

ce
n

tr
a

l 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
. 

 

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

  

 A
n

 o
b

je
ct

io
n

 m
a

d
e

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 b

e
fo

re
 a

 N
o

ti
ce

 T
o

 O
w

n
e

r 
is

 is
su

e
d

. 

  C
a

n
ce

ll
a

ti
o

n
s 

 A
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 C

h
a

rg
e

 N
o

ti
ce

 is
 c

a
n

ce
ll

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 w
e

 b
e

lie
ve

 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

n
ju

st
 t

o
 p

u
rs

u
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
se

 o
f 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
li

ca
b

le
 e

xe
m

p
ti

o
n

. 
 

 C
iv

il
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
–

 C
E

O
 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h

o
 u

se
d

 t
o

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

y
 m

u
st

 b
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

o
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 s
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
o

r.
 I

n
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v

e
 t

h
e

y 
a

re
 e

m
p

lo
y

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 N
S

L 
(f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 N

C
P

).
  

179



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
iv

il
 P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
–

 C
P

E
 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
b

y
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
C

E
O

) 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

 2
0

0
4

. 
 

C
o

n
tr

a
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 

 F
a

il
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
to

ri
st

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

a
s 

se
t 

b
y 

lo
ca

l T
ra

ff
ic

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 O
rd

e
rs

 (
T

R
O

).
  

 C
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 P
a

rk
in

g
 Z

o
n

e
 -

 C
P

Z
 

 A
n

 a
re

a
 w

h
e

re
 p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s 

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 s

p
e

ci
fi

e
d

 t
im

e
s.

 T
h

is
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

a
ll

 m
o

to
ri

st
s 

a
re

 c
a

te
re

d
 f

o
r 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
Si

g
n

s 
a

re
 p

la
ce

d
 a

t 

e
n

tr
y

 p
o

in
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 z

o
n

e
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
d

if
fe

r 
to

 t
h

o
se

 o
n

 e
n

tr
y

. 
T

h
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
ig

n
 d

o
u

b
le

 y
e

llo
w

 l
in

e
s 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
si

n
g

le
 

y
e

ll
o

w
 l

in
e

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
. 

 

 D
e

cr
im

in
a

li
se

d
 

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s 

th
a

t 
it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
il

le
g

a
l 

to
 p

a
rk

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
in

 a
 S

p
e

ci
a

l P
a

rk
in

g
 A

re
a

 a
n

d
 i

s 
th

e
 s

o
le

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

th
e

 p
o

li
ce

. 
P

a
rk

in
g

 i
s 

a
 c

iv
il

 o
ff

e
n

ce
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 c
ri

m
in

a
l 

o
ff

e
n

ce
. 

 U
n

p
a

id
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
a

re
 p

u
rs

u
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

e
b

t 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

 a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
a

n
d

 n
o

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rt
s.

  

 D
e

cr
im

in
a

li
se

d
 P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
–

D
P

E
 

 

180



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
b

y
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
C

E
O

) 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 R
o

a
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

 A
ct

 1
9

9
1

. 
 

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 –

 D
fT

 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 E
n

g
li

sh
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 i
n

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

, 
W

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 N
o

rt
h

e
rn

 I
re

la
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
d

e
vo

lv
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

is
 r

u
n

 b
y 

th
e

 S
e

cr
e

ta
ry

 O
f 

S
ta

te
 f

o
r 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

. 

 D
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

e
n

a
lt

ie
s 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y 

th
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

 2
0

0
4

. 
H

ig
h

e
r 

le
v

e
l c

o
n

tr
a

v
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
a

re
 £

7
0

 a
n

d
 lo

w
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 

a
re

 s
e

t 
a

t 
£

5
0

. 
T

h
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

ch
a

rg
e

s 
re

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

 s
e

ri
o

u
sn

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ff

e
n

ce
. 

 

  F
ix

e
d

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 N
o

ti
ce

 -
 F

P
N

 

 T
h

e
se

 w
e

re
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 i

n
 G

re
a

t 
B

ri
ta

in
 i

n
 t

h
e

 1
9

5
0

s 
to

 d
e

a
l w

it
h

 m
in

o
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 o

ff
e

n
ce

s.
 T

h
e

se
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 i

ss
u

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 p

o
li

ce
. 

 

 Lo
ca

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

la
n

 –
 L

T
P

 

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 a
n

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
W

e
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

m
 a

s 
p

la
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d

 p
re

se
n

t 
th

e
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
. 

 

N
O

  

181



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

N
it

ro
g

e
n

 O
xi

d
e

 

N
O

2
  

 N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

xi
d

e
 

N
o

ti
ce

 T
o

 O
w

n
e

r 
–

 N
tO

 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

o
ti

ce
 t

h
a

t 
is

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 k
e

e
p

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s 

is
su

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 (

P
E

N
A

LT
Y

 

C
H

A
R

G
E

 N
O

T
IC

E
 (

P
C

N
))

. 
T

h
is

 w
il

l 
b

e
 s

e
rv

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 a
 P

E
N

A
LT

Y
 C

H
A

R
G

E
 N

O
T

IC
E

 (
P

C
N

) 
is

 u
n

p
a

id
 f

o
r 

2
8

 d
a

y
s.

 W
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 k
e

e
p

e
r,

 o
r 

th
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
 t

h
e

 

co
u

n
ci

l 
b

e
lie

ve
d

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 k

e
e

p
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

, 
re

ce
iv

e
s 

th
is

 t
h

e
y

 c
a

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

; 

o
 

m
a

k
e

 a
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f

u
ll

 c
h

a
rg

e
  

o
 

m
a

k
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
a

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l)
 

N
S

L 
–

 f
o

rm
e

rl
y

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s 

(N
C

P
) 

 N
S

L 
a

re
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

’s
 p

a
rk

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 u
n

d
e

r 
co

n
tr

a
ct

. 

 O
ff

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s 

 O
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

  

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 k

e
rb

si
d

e
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

p
a

y
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
la

y 
o

r 
p

e
rm

it
 p

a
rk

in
g

  

182



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 (
P

C
N

) 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
is

su
e

d
 t

o
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 t

h
a

t 
is

 b
e

li
e

v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 lo

ca
l 

T
ra

ff
ic

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 O
rd

e
r.

  

 R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 K

e
e

p
e

r 

 T
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
h

o
 i

s 
d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 l

e
g

a
lly

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

a
y

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 P

C
N

. 
T

h
e

se
 d

e
ta

il
s 

a
re

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
ri

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 V
e

h
ic

le
 L

ic
e

n
si

n
g

 A
g

e
n

cy
 

(D
V

LA
) 

 R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

 T
h

is
 i

s 
a

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 P
C

N
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 N

o
ti

ce
 T

o
 O

w
n

e
r 

is
 i

ss
u

e
d

. 
 

 S
p

e
ci

a
l 

P
a

rk
in

g
 A

re
a

  
- 

S
P

A
 

 A
n

 a
re

a
 w

h
e

re
 o

n
-s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 C

iv
il

 P
a

rk
in

g
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

(C
P

E
).

 L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

w
il

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

iv
il 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

 2
0

0
4

 –
 T

M
A

 

 T
h

is
 a

ct
 w

a
s 

p
a

ss
e

d
 b

y 
U

K
 g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

in
 2

0
0

4
. 

T
h

is
 l
a

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 s

tr
e

e
t 

w
o

rk
s 

a
n

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 a
ct

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 s
in

ce
 3

1
st

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8

. 
 

183



It
e
m
 3
4
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 T
ra

ff
ic

 P
e

n
a

lt
y

 T
ri

b
u

n
a

l 
–

T
P

T
 

T
h

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 T

ri
b

u
n

a
l 

d
e

ci
d

e
s 

a
p

p
e

a
ls

 a
g

a
in

st
 p

a
rk

in
g

 p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s 
is

su
e

d
 b

y
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
o

u
ts

id
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

) 
a

n
d

 

W
a

le
s 

a
n

d
 a

g
a

in
st

 b
u

s 
la

n
e

 p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s 
is

su
e

d
 b

y
 C

iv
il

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
o

u
ts

id
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

).
 

T
h

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 P

e
n

a
lt

y
 T

ri
b

u
n

a
l 

is
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

st
a

g
e

 o
f 

a
p

p
e

a
l 
fo

r 
m

o
to

ri
st

s 
o

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 o

w
n

e
rs

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

 p
e

n
a

lt
y
 i

ss
u

e
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
o

u
ts

id
e

 

Lo
n

d
o

n
) 

a
n

d
 W

a
le

s.
  

 T
ra

ff
ic

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 O
rd

e
r 

–
 T

R
O

  

 T
h

is
 i

s 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 l
e

g
a

l d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
y

 e
n

fo
rc

e
a

b
le

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y

 m
e

a
su

re
s.

 

 

184



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 36 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Citywide Parking Review 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Owen Mcelroy Tel: 290417 

 Email: owen.mcelroy@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No: ETSCMM23593 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.    
 
1.1 Brighton & Hove’s Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “reduced traffic 

congestion”, “reduced traffic fumes” and “improving the safety, security and 
attractiveness of streets” as key priorities for sustainable transport. 

 
1.2 The council manages parking in order to reduce congestion, keep traffic moving, 

provide access safely to those who need it most and deliver excellent customer 
service (Parking Annual Report 2010).  The effective management of parking 
contributes to the well being & quality of life of residents, to an enhanced visitor 
experience and to the local economy generally. 

  
1.3 It is proposed to review the way the council manages parking through consulting 

residents, businesses and other stakeholders and learning from the best practice 
of other local authorities.  The purpose of this review is to seek continuous 
improvement in the council’s parking management whilst balancing the needs of 
users overall.    

 
1.4      It is also necessary to take more immediate action to address the most urgent 

areas of parking demand in the city as identified by residents, ward members and 
other stakeholders Although these areas are to be addressed urgently there is a 
timetable for the work to be undertaken which is dictated by the officer resources 
available and is expected to complete by early 2015. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm: 
 

(a) Approves the urgent programme of reviews and/or consultation on 
extensions to parking schemes as described in Appendix A, timetabled in 
Appendix B and set out in the plan drawing, Appendix C; 

 
(b) Agrees that the programme of reviews set out in Appendices A, B and C of 

the report will replace the former timetable of parking reviews agreed on 
24th January 2008; 

 
(c) Notes the summary of requests for parking consultations and parking 

issues raised by residents & other stakeholders set out in appendix D. 

185



 
(d) Instructs officers to undertake a city wide review of parking management 

and to report back within six months of commencement. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 A timetable for parking reviews was agreed at 24 January 2008 Environment 

Committee. 
 
3.2 Due to recent consultations where the level of support was either overwhelmingly 

against the introduction of controlled parking or in favour of controlled parking in 
substantially reduced areas, in October 2010 the Cabinet Member for 
Environment suspended the timetable against the background of local authority 
financial restraint.  

 
3.3 Since that decision there has been growing pressure for immediate consultation 

in areas of high parking demand and conflict evidenced by ward member and 
public support and an expectation of a thorough and detailed review of the 
council’s parking management policies city-wide.  

 
3.4  The four areas identified in Appendix A, namely Richmond Heights (Area C 

extension), Canning Street (Area H extension), London Road (Area J extension, 
north of the railway line & Round hill area) and Preston Park (Area A northern 
extension) are considered to be the highest priority for consultation on the 
grounds of parking demand, conflict, road safety and are the most supported by 
ward members and residents. In each case consideration will be given to the 
provision of on street cycle parking and additional car club spaces and the 
possible improvements to local bus services and accessibility.  Hanover & Elm 
Grove is not considered to be supported by residents since there was a 75% 
“No” vote in the May 2010 consultation.  In the combined West Hove & Portslade 
area it is still difficult to identify a larger geographically viable boundary supported 
by residents and ward members, which if sub-divided would not cause immediate 
displacement.  It is therefore felt that considering this area within the longer term 
city wide review consultation is more appropriate.   

 
3.5 In addition there have been localised requests for resident parking schemes and 

a number of suggestions for policy changes have been raised by residents and 
other stakeholders.   

  
3.6 Other local authorities such as Westminster and Eastbourne have recently 

conducted parking reviews which include postal questionnaires, community 
parking forums, street interviews and vehicle counts.  These reviews have led to 
various recommendations such as changing the hours of operation of parking 
controls, reviews and extensions to schemes, the introduction of new 
technologies such as pay by phone parking and modifications to the Local 
Transport Plans.   

 
3.7  The terms of reference for the longer term review will cover both public on and off 

street parking and include questions about individuals and businesses and their 
parking needs/habits and their perceptions of parking operation, enforcement 
and the amount and availability of different kinds of parking places .  It will 

186



include issues related to sustainable transport such as the provision of additional 
on street cycle parking and car club spaces.  The consultation will consist of a 
postal consultation of about 6000 random addresses across the city with the 
additional facility of being able to contribute via the council’s website.  Relevant 
stakeholders will be contacted directly for their views and where possible 
community focus groups or panels will be engaged.  

 
3.8 The exact detail of the longer term review and the range of questions will be 

determined by officers but this will be in consultation with ECSOSC, the Cabinet 
Member and key internal and external stakeholders.  ECSOSC will act as a 
“critical friend” and meetings and workshops will be held between now and March 
2012 to help develop the content of the review.  ECSOSC findings will be 
reported back to ECMM in spring 2012 and will be taken account of the 
preparation of the longer term city wide review consultation. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1  The details of prior consultation in respect of the proposed urgent timetable for 

resident parking reviews are set out in Appendix A. The longer term city wide 
review consultation will involve residents, businesses and a wide range of 
stakeholders. Internal officers have already been consulted.  

 
4.2   There has been prior engagement with Environment & Community Safety 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee (ECSOSC) and lead officers have briefed 
ECSOSC on how they will influence the review process.      

   
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 Any revenue costs associated with the longer term city wide review 

recommendations will need to be met from City Regulation and Infrastructure 
budgets. Although the exact scope of the consultation element of the review is 
yet to be determined, it is not expected to exceed £25K. The financial impact of 
revenue from any extension to parking schemes will be included within the 
proposed budget for 2012/13 which will be submitted to Budget Council in 
February 2012. 

 
5.2 New parking schemes are capital projects, funded by unsupported borrowings, 

and repaid out of revenue using the income generated.  
 
 Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw Date: 22/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.3 The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 gives the council broad powers to regulate 

traffic and parking through legally enforceable traffic orders. These powers must 
be exercised to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicles and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway having regard so far as is 
practicable to  
(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises; 

187



(b) the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the importance 
of controlling the use of the roads by heavy commercial vehicles; 

(c) national air quality strategy; 
(d) facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and the 

safety/convenience of persons wishing to use; and 
(e) any other matters appearing relevant. 

 
5.4  In 2001 the council took up the powers of decriminalised parking enforcement 

(DPE) under The Road Traffic Act 1991, renamed Civil Parking Enforcement 
(CPE) under the Traffic Management Act 2004. Under CPE, parking enforcement 
is carried out by civil enforcement officers (CEOs) and is the sole responsibility of 
the local authority.  
 

5.5 The use of any surplus income from CPE is governed by section 55 of the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 as amended.  This allows any surplus to be used for 
transport and highways related projects and expenditure such as supported bus 
services, concessionary fares and Local transport Plan projects.  

 
5.6 When carrying out consultation the Council must ensure that the consultation 

process is carried out at a time when proposals are still at their formative stage, 
that sufficient reasons and adequate time are given to allow intelligent 
consideration and responses and that results are taken into account in finalising 
the proposals.  

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Carl Hearsum Date: 01/09/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.7 An EIA has been carried out on the impact of resident parking schemes.  In 

addition full consultation will be carried out in line with the council’s Community 
Engagement Framework.  

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.8 Effective parking management contributes to reducing congestion and improving 

safe access contributing to the promotion of sustainable transport and tackling 
climate change through reduction in carbon emissions.  

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.9 The proposed City wide parking review is not expected to have implications on 

the prevention of crime and disorder  
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.10 Any risks will be identified and monitored as part of the overall project 

management.  Parking is a corporate critical budget; however no major risks 
have yet been identified. 

 
 
 
 
 

188



 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.11 The parking review will contribute mainly to the Sustainable Community Strategy 

Outcomes of “strengthening communities and involving people” and “promoting 
sustainable transport” 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The alternative options for the proposed parking reviews have been considered 

in the report and set out in the appendices  
 
6.2 The alternative to carrying out a longer term City wide parking review 

consultation is to do nothing.  However, the review is an emerging Corporate 
Priority, therefore it is the recommendation of officers that these proposals are 
proceeded with for the reasons outlined within the report. 

  
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To seek approval of a revised timetable of parking reviews which will take into 

account consideration of duly made representations and objections and instruct 
officers to prepare a city wide review of parking management for the reasons 
outlined in the report.  

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A Table showing requests for urgent parking reviews and officer comments  
 
Appendix B Timetable of proposed parking reviews 
 
Appendix C  Plan drawing showing areas proposed for urgent parking reviews 
 
Appendix D  Table of additional requests by residents & other stakeholders for parking 

reviews or policy changes received in the last 12 months 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 
1.  Sustainable Community Strategy  
 
2.  Parking Annual Report 2010  
 
3.  Environment Committee minutes 24 January 2008 

189



190



Item 36 Appendix A 

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Consultations & ReviewsConsultations & ReviewsConsultations & ReviewsConsultations & Reviews with officers comments with officers comments with officers comments with officers comments    

    

SchemeSchemeSchemeScheme &  &  &  & 

recommendatiorecommendatiorecommendatiorecommendatio

nnnn    

Significant Significant Significant Significant 

Road Road Road Road 

Safety Safety Safety Safety 

concernsconcernsconcernsconcerns    

Previous Previous Previous Previous 

council council council council 

consultationconsultationconsultationconsultation    

Ward Ward Ward Ward 

member member member member 

supportsupportsupportsupport    

Level of Level of Level of Level of 

community community community community 

support support support support     

Reviews of smaller scale adjustments or extensions to existing Reviews of smaller scale adjustments or extensions to existing Reviews of smaller scale adjustments or extensions to existing Reviews of smaller scale adjustments or extensions to existing 

schemesschemesschemesschemes recommended to proceed urgently recommended to proceed urgently recommended to proceed urgently recommended to proceed urgently    

Richmond Richmond Richmond Richmond 

Heights Heights Heights Heights     

C extensionC extensionC extensionC extension    

Proceed Proceed Proceed Proceed     

YES YES, 

MAJORITY IN 

FAVOUR  

YES 56% resident 

support, 

consultation 

May 2010. 

Corresponden

ce  

Canning Street, Canning Street, Canning Street, Canning Street, 

H H H H extension extension extension extension     

Proceed Proceed Proceed Proceed     

YES YES, 

MAJORITY IN 

FAVOUR 

YES 73% in favour, 

May 2010. 

Petition from 

residents to 

include in 

Area H. 

Corresponden

ce 

London Road  J London Road  J London Road  J London Road  J 

extensiextensiextensiextension (on (on (on (north north north north 

of the railway of the railway of the railway of the railway 

linelinelineline))))& Round hill & Round hill & Round hill & Round hill 

areaareaareaarea    

ProceedProceedProceedProceed        

YES YES, 

MAJORITY 

OPPOSED  

YES 300 signature 

resident 

petition. 

Corresponden

ce  

Preston Park A, Preston Park A, Preston Park A, Preston Park A, 

nortnortnortnorthern hern hern hern 

extension extension extension extension     

Proceed Proceed Proceed Proceed     

NO YES, 

MAJORITY 

OPPOSED 

YES Subsequent 

ward cllr 

survey of 180 

households, 

large 

majorities in 

favour in 3 

out of 4 

roads.  

Corresponden

ce 

New or larger area reviews, the case for which could be examined New or larger area reviews, the case for which could be examined New or larger area reviews, the case for which could be examined New or larger area reviews, the case for which could be examined 

191



Item 36 Appendix A 

within the longer term ciwithin the longer term ciwithin the longer term ciwithin the longer term city wide reviewty wide reviewty wide reviewty wide review    

Hanover & Elm Hanover & Elm Hanover & Elm Hanover & Elm 

GroveGroveGroveGrove    

    

YES YES, 

MAJORITY 

OPPOSED 

NO Corresponden

ce but 75% 

opposed in 

consultation 

May 2010 

West West West West 

Hove/Portslade Hove/Portslade Hove/Portslade Hove/Portslade 

StationStationStationStation    

    

NO ONLY PART 

OF AREA 

PREVIOUSLY 

CONSULTED 

YES Petitions and 

substantial 

corresponden

ce from roads 

in Wish Park 

area. 

Substantial 

corresponden

ce from 

Bolsover Road 

& other 

isolated roads  

 

192



It
e
m
 3
6
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B
 

Ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
se
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
s 
–
 B
a
se
d
 o
n
 O
n
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

   
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
 

2
0
1
2
 

2
0
1
3
 

2
0
1
4
 

2
0
1
5
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
 

1
  
 2
  
 3
  
 4
  

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

A
re
a
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 H
e
ig
h
ts
, 
A
re
a
 

C
 e
x
te

n
si
o
n
 &

 C
a
n
n
in
g
 

S
tr
e
e
t,
 A

re
a
 H
 e
x
te

n
si
o
n
 –
 

In
 H
o
u
se

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
 

Lo
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 S
ta

ti
o
n
, 

A
re
a
 J
 e
x
te

n
si
o
n
 (
N
o
rt
h
 o
f 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 l
in
e
) 
&
 R
o
u
n
d
 h
ill
 

a
re
a
 –
 W

o
rk
 w

it
h
 

C
o
n
su

lt
a
n
ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
 

 P
re
st
o
n
 P
a
rk
 A

re
a
 A

 

e
x
te

n
si
o
n
 N

o
rt
h
 o
f 
Ti
v
o
li 

C
re
sc

e
n
t 

 -
 I
n
 H
o
u
se

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

193



194



195



196



It
e
m
 3
6
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 D

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
re
q
u
e
s
t/
c
o
m
m
e
n
t

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
 (
P
R
) 
o
r 
o
th
e
r 

O
th
e
r

O
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 R

o
a
d
 

A
re

a
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

M
e
rg

e
 C

P
Z

s
 M

 &
 O

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 l
a
rg

e
r 

z
o
n
e
 a

n
d
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 i
n
 M

P
R

P
a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e
 t
o
o
 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
ti
n
g
. 
 L

a
c
k
s
 w

a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
 L

ia
c
k
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 O

. 

K
e
s
tr

e
l 
C

lo
s
e
, 
H

o
v
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

In
c
lu

d
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
 A

re
a
 O

 C
P

Z
P

R
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 s
a
id

 N
o
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 L

a
c
k
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

M
a
n
o
r 

H
ill

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
to

 e
x
te

n
d
 Z

o
n
e
 H

 n
o
rt

h
w

a
rd

s
P

R
W

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 l
in

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 r
o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
 s

p
e
e
d
s
, 
p
a
rk

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

b
u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

e
n
t 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t.
 P

a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 r

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 e

v
e
n
ts

.

N
e
v
ill

 R
o
a
d
 

R
o
tt
in

d
e
a
n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
lo

c
a
lis

e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e

P
R

In
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

id
e
s
p
re

a
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
is

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
d
jo

in
in

g
 r

o
a
d
s
.

U
p
p
e
r 

L
e
w

e
s
 

R
o
a
d
/L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
 

tr
ia

n
g
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e

P
R

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 P

a
rk

 C
re

s
c
e
n
t 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

. 
 A

re
a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
je

c
te

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

S
m

a
lle

r 
p
a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 e

.g
 P

a
lm

e
ir
a
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 
H

o
v
e

P
R

S
m

a
lle

r 
p
a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e
s
 g

iv
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 l
e
s
s
 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 o
v
e
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 p

a
rk

 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

w
a
it
in

g
 l
is

ts
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rm

it
 o

n
ly

 b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
h
e
n
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
le

a
v
e
s
 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 
 I
f 
th

e
 z

o
n
e
 i
s
 a

s
 s

m
a
ll 

a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t,
 t
h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

 m
a
tt
e
r 

o
f 
y
e
a
rs

.

H
o
v
e
 P

a
rk

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

  
e
.g

. 
T

h
e
 

D
ro

v
e
w

a
y
, 
O

n
s
lo

w
 

ro
a
d

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 p
a
rk

e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
, 
re

q
u
e
s
t 
s
in

g
le

 y
e
llo

w
 l
in

e
s
 

o
r 

m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
t 
o
n
ly

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 b

a
y
s

P
R

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
je

c
te

d
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 
s
in

g
le

 y
e
llo

w
 l
in

e
s
 m

a
y
 c

a
u
s
e
 d

is
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

, 
ti
m

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 b

a
y
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

s
o
lv

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

o
a
d
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
b
u
t 
a
d
jo

in
in

g
 C

P
Z

s
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
e
rm

it
 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 C

P
Z

 e
.g

. 
Q

u
e
e
n
's

 

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d

P
R

R
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 a

 w
id

e
 a

re
a
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 v

o
te

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
In

 s
o
m

e
 z

o
n
e
s
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 s

a
p
re

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
ra

il 

a
 "

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
z
o
n
e
 p

e
rm

it
" 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 a

t 
a
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 r

a
te

 a
n
d
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
t 
a
llo

w
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
  
th

e
 n

e
ra

b
y
 C

P
Z

, 
th

is
 c

o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 d

is
p
a
lc

e
m

e
n
t 
a
lt
g
h
o
u
g
h
 c

o
u
ld

 o
n
ly

 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
  
T

h
e
 d

a
n
g
e
r 

is
 t
h
is

 s
e
ts

 a
 p

re
c
e
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

o
n
g
e
s
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

t 
o
r 

n
e
a
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 m
a
rk

e
d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 

O
th

e
r

T
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 a

d
m

in
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

L
o
c
a
l 
M

P
s
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
, 
lo

a
d
in

g
, 
a
m

b
u
la

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
to

rs
 b

a
y
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

2
4
 h

o
u
r,

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s
/S

u
n
d
a
y
s

O
th

e
r

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 b

a
y
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
g
u
n
. 
 I
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
D

fT
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 C

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
d
o
c
to

rs
' a

n
d
 a

m
b
u
la

n
c
e
 b

a
y
s
 v

a
ry

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

R
e
s
tr

ic
t 
v
e
rg

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 d

u
e
 t
o
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

O
th

e
r

N
e
e
d
s
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 a

 C
P

Z
. 
  
N

e
w

 s
ig

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

fT
 b

u
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 b

y
 t
ra

ff
ic

 

o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 e

n
fo

rc
e
a
b
le

 w
h
e
re

 d
o
u
b
le

 y
e
llo

w
 l
in

e
s
 e

x
is

t.
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
is

s
u
e
 i
n
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

&
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
a
ro

w
 

p
a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f
e
w

 y
e
llo

w
 l
in

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
. 
m

a
y
 n

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 t
ri
a
le

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
te

d
 a

s
 a

 p
ilo

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
s
ig

n
a
g
e
, 
tr

a
ff
ic

 o
rd

e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

n
fo

re
m

e
n
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

Y
 &

 Z
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

(e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

C
la

re
n
c
e
 S

q
u
a
re

)

C
a
n
 w

e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 2

4
 o

u
r 

p
e
rm

it
s
?
  
P

e
rm

it
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s

O
th

e
r

D
is

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
, 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
o
p
e
ra

te
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 7

a
m

 a
n
d
 m

id
n
ig

h
t.
 

C
o
u
ld

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
2
4
h
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
a
rk

in
g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 J

a
n
 2

0
1
3
. 
C

o
u
ld

 c
a
u
s
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

ts
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 u

s
e
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 h

o
u
rs

 a
s
 s

p
a
re

 o
ff
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y

M
P

s
 f
o
r 

H
o
v
e
 &

 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 P

a
v
ili

o
n

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
o
v
e
rl
a
p
 z

o
n
e
s
 a

t 
C

P
Z

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 m

o
re

 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

O
th

e
r

D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 p

e
rm

it
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
s
o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 t
w

o
 p

e
rm

it
s
, 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 o

v
e
rl
a
p
 b

o
n
d
a
ri
e
s
. 
 S

e
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

ro
a
d
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
b
u
t 
a
d
jo

in
in

g
 

C
P

Z
s

M
P

s
 f
o
r 

H
o
v
e
 &

 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 P

a
v
ili

o
n

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 1

5
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

O
th

e
r

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
lly

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
, 
c
re

a
te

s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  
M

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 w

id
e
s
p
re

a
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 C

E
O

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
a
w

a
re

 i
f 
a
 v

is
it
o
r 

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
t-

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e

V
is

it
o
rs

In
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 t
o
 u

s
e
 c

o
in

s
 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 

p
a
y
 b

y
 m

o
b
ile

/o
n
lin

e

O
th

e
r

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
y
 b

y
 p

h
o
n
e
, 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 c

u
re

n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
. 
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

S
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 n
o
 l
im

it
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
t/
v
is

it
o
r 

p
e
rm

it
s

O
th

e
r

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 w
a
it
ig

 l
is

t.
 U

n
lim

it
e
d
 v

is
it
o
r 

p
e
rm

it
s
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
ld

. 
  
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

P
e
rm

it
 f
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

o
lic

y
 e

.g
. 
h
ig

h
e
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 p

e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 

fo
r 

m
o
re

 p
o
llu

ti
n
g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s

O
th

e
r

L
in

k
s
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

re
a
 e

.g
. 
h
ig

h
e
r 

p
o
llu

ti
n
g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
ld

o
m

 u
s
e
d
 m

a
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 l
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
's

 p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
n
 s

m
a
lle

r 
c
c
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 u
s
e
d
 d

a
ily

 f
o
r 

s
h
o
rt

 j
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 i
n
 h

e
a
v
ily

 c
o
n
g
e
s
te

d
 a

re
a
. 
 D

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 a

d
m

is
te

ri
n
g
  
h
ig

h
e
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

2
n
d
 p

e
rm

it
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
rr

iv
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 a

 c
a
re

fu
l 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

.

M
o
to

rc
y
c
le

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p

M
o
to

rc
y
c
le

s
 (

M
/C

s
) 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 p

e
rm

it
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 &

 

e
x
c
lu

s
iv

e
 P

&
D

 b
a
y
s

O
th

e
r

  
C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f
re

e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
 m

/c
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 m

a
jo

r 
a
m

e
n
it
ie

s
 b

u
t 
it
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

rg
u
e
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 m

/c
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 e

.g
. 
L
a
n
e
s
 &

 N
o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
. 
A

ls
o
 s

o
m

e
 b

a
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

u
s
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
p
ro

b
le

m
a
ti
c
 c

a
m

b
e
rs

 (
b
ik

e
s
 f
a
ll 

o
v
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
m

) 
M

A
G

 a
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
tr

ik
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
to

r 
c
y
c
le

s
 w

it
h
 s

id
e
 c

a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 

T
R

O
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p
e
rm

it
te

d
 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 a

 m
o
to

r 
c
y
c
le

 b
a
y
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 a

 P
&

D
 b

a
y
 b

u
t 
p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
w

h
e
re

 t
o
 d

is
p
la

y
 a

 P
&

D
 t
ic

k
e
t.
  
C

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 a

tt
a
c
h
in

g
 

p
e
rm

it
s
 t
o
 m

/c
s
.

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
t,
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 o
r 
p
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s

197



198



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 37 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Old Shoreham Road cycle facilities 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Abby Hone Tel: 29-0390 

 Email: abby.hone@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No: ETSCMM 24045 

Ward(s) affected: Hove Park, Goldsmid 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE    
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 To inform the Cabinet Member for Transport and Public Realm of the results of 

consultation for Old Shoreham Road (OSR) cycle facilities and to seek 
permission to proceed with the implementation of the scheme, including the 
advertising of any necessary Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs). 

 
1.2 The objectives of the cycle facilities along OSR are to achieve long term and 

measurable increases in cycling to benefit the community and pupils travelling to 
schools in the area.  This is to be achieved by creating a safe and legible cycle 
route which encourages people to cycle, thereby increasing the potential for 
physical activity, reducing obesity in children, reducing congestion, improving 
local air quality and reducing carbon emissions. 

 
1.3 The Coalition government set out its policy direction in the new Transport White 

Paper ‘Creating growth, cutting carbon’ (January 2011), emphasising the 
importance of delivering local transport solutions. The government highlights the 
importance of transport investment for: 
§ Supporting economic growth 
§ Reducing carbon emissions 
§ Promoting equality of opportunity 
§ Contributing to better safety, security and health 
§ Improving quality of life 

 
1.4 In accordance with national policy objectives Brighton & Hove’s Local Transport 

Plan 3 (LTP3) has considered a significant number of local 
strategies and plans resulting in a number of key themes and principles, which 
include the need to: 
§ Manage – increasing transport choices for everybody and making the 
transport network more efficient through information and innovation and 
technology; 

§ Improve –providing additional infrastructure to assist travel and improve 
environments e.g better air quality levels and residents’ health; 

§ Maintain – repairing roads, pavements and street lights. 
 
 

199



2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm gives approval to proceed 

with detailed design of OSR cycle facilities as detailed in this report.   
 
2.2 The Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm gives approval to advertise 

the proposed cycle facilities in a TRO and that if any objections are received they 
would be considered at a Special Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Cabinet Members Meeting on 9 November 2011. 

  
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
  
3.1 Officers have reviewed and prioritised potential key strategic cycle facilities for 

the city over the duration of the current LTP delivery plan (2011-14).  This 
prioritisation exercise revealed that resources and available funding are best 
concentrated on key strategic links to fill gaps in the cycle network which will 
benefit the city as whole, supporting the ‘school run’ and other necessary trips. 

 
3.2 The Administration’s manifesto commitment to cycling is to ‘create a core 

network of safe cycling routes across the city’. The OSR route between 
BHASVIC at the junction with Dyke Road up to and including the junction of 
Shirley Drive/The Drive/OSR has been prioritised as the next key strategic link to 
implement cycle and pedestrian facilities. 

 
3.3 Focussing on this stretch of OSR will also begin Full Council’s commitment in 

response to the ‘save The Drive cycle lane’ petition to “instruct officers to identify 
measures both in the immediate and longer term which may increase usage such 
as completing links to the north of the city and developing routes to the east and 
west.” (24th March 2011).   

 
3.4 A consultation for cycle and pedestrian facilities along the full length of OSR was 

held in 2009.  The results were presented to Environment Cabinet on 25th March 
2010 with 66% of those responding as in favour of dedicated cycle facility 
provision along the full length of OSR.  The previous Cabinet Member for 
Environment decided not to proceed with implementation on the basis of 
concerns raised regarding safety of the cycle facility.   

 
3.5 Safety and continuity concerns have been addressed in the current OSR cycle 

facilities scheme which has been developed to incorporate segregated on road 
cycle lanes in each direction between 1.5 and 2.0 metres wide.  Segregation will 
take the form of a low kerb edge from the footway to cycleway and from the 
cycleway to carriageway.    

 
3.6 The scheme will make walking & cycling a genuine choice for the 5000 pupils 

attending schools adjacent to the proposed facilities.  It will also provide a clearly 
designated route by bicycle for parents and children who are currently or perhaps 
considering cycling to school or work. Furthermore, by providing facilities it is 
anticipated that more people who currently do not cycle because of their concerns 
regarding feeling of safety will be encouraged to do so.  The scheme will also provide 
better links to a number of recreation and leisure facilities such as Hove Park.  

 

200



3.7 It is anticipated that the scheme will have a positive impact on speed reduction.  The 
route is being designed in accordance with best practice guidelines and will be further 
subject to pre and post implementation Road Safety Audits by an independent 
assessor.   

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The informal consultation exercise has involved a letter and accompanying plan 

including an artists’ impression being sent directly to 2, 200 residents the vicinity 
of the section of OSR between BHASVIC (Dyke Road) to the junction of The 
Drive/Shirley Drive/OSR (Hove).  These residents were given the option to 
respond by post or through the city council’s on-line consultation portal.  

 
4.2 A link to the consultation was placed on the front page of the city council’s 

website, including on Twitter and Facebook sites.  A press release was also 
circulated to The Argus and a number of local community publications across the 
city.   

 
4.3 On-site briefings have been held for ward councillors and city cycling and 

pedestrian advocacy representatives.  All comments made will be considered 
through the design process.  Councillors in Goldsmid ward have also door-
knocked residents in their ward to proactively address any resident queries in 
relation to the proposals.  Schools & colleges directly affected by the proposals, 
namely: BHASVIC, Cardinal Newman, Cottesmore and Brighton & Hove High 
School have also been consulted directly to circulate proposal information to 
teachers, students and parents. 

 
4.4 The informal consultation closed on Monday 19th September 2011.  A total of 812 

responses have been received.  619 responses were received by post amounting 
to a 28% response rate from direct postal contact.  193 response were 
completed on line.  Overall 74.4% (604 responses) support the proposals for 
pedestrian and cycle facilities along OSR between BHASVIC (Dyke Road) to the 
junction of The Drive/Shirley Drive/OSR (Hove).   

  
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 £125,000 has been identified for OSR cycle facilities within the Local Transport 

Plan capital settlement for 2011/12. Additional funding worth £330,000 has been 
secured from Sustrans ‘Links to School’, which must be spent and accounted for 
in 2011/12. If the recommendations of this report are agreed, it will be proposed 
that a further £185K in capital funding is made available in the 2012/13 LTP 
delivery plan to complete the works.   

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 07/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 gives authorities power to promote the 

economic, social or environment well being of their communities. This project can be 

201



perceived to fall under promotion/improvement of the social and environmental well 
being of members of the community. 

 
5.3 Broadly, the Council’s powers and duties under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

must be exercised to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of all 
types of traffic and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off 
the highway. Also, as far as is practicable, the Council should have regard to any 
implications in relation to:- access to premises; the effect on amenities; the Council’s 
air quality strategy; facilitating the passage of public services vehicles and securing the 
safety and convenience of users; any other matters that appear relevant to the 
Council. 

 
5.4 The Council has specific powers under the Road Traffic Regulation Act to make 

various types of order and the most relevant in relation to the proposals in this report 
are summarised below.  

 
5.5 Section 1 of the 1984 Act enables the Council to make orders prohibiting, restricting or 

regulating the use of roads. The various grounds for such action include safety, 
prevention of congestion and preservation of amenity and are not restricted to the 
roads mentioned in an order but can be for the benefit of other roads. 

 
5.6 Under section 122 of the 1984 Act, the Council has the duty to exercise the functions 

conferred on them by that Act to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe 
movement of vehicles and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of 
suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway having regard so far as 
is practicable to the following- 
(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises; 
(b) the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the importance of 

controlling the use of the roads by heavy commercial vehicles; 
(c) national air quality strategy; 
(d) facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and the safety/convenience of 

persons wishing to use; and 
(e) any other matters appearing relevant to the local authority.  

 
5.7 Before making Traffic Orders, the Council must consider all duly made, unwithdrawn 

objections. In limited circumstances it must hold public inquiries and may do so 
otherwise. It is usually possible for proposed orders to be modified, providing any 
amendments do not increase the effects of the advertised proposals. The Council also 
has powers to make orders in part and defer decisions on the remainder. Orders may 
not be made until the objection periods have expired and cannot be made more than 2 
years after the notices first proposing them were first published. Orders may not come 
into force before the dates on which it is intended to publish notices stating that they 
have been made. After making orders, the steps which the Council must take include 
notifying objectors and putting in place the necessary traffic signs.  

 
5.8 Relevant Human Rights Act rights to which the Council should have regard in 

exercising its traffic management powers are the right to respect for family and private 
life and the right to protection of property.  These are qualified rights and therefore 
there can be interference with them in appropriate circumstances. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 13/09/11 
 

202



 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.9 The scheme will increase accessibility for schools, commuters, residents and 

visitors.   Improving awareness and provision for cycling will increase the overall 
transport choice for residents and visitors, particularly for those without access to 
private motorised transport. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.10 Creating a better cycling and pedestrian environment along the A270 between 

BHASVIC and The Drive will encourage people to cycle and walk instead of 
using less sustainable means of transport thus reducing carbon emissions, 
improving health, and reducing congestion.  Walking and cycling are the most 
sustainable forms of all transport modes, producing zero emissions and also 
improve public health through increased day to day physical activity.   

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.11 There are no crime and disorder implications associated with the implementation 

stage. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.12 All funding offered by Sustrans must be spent in 2011/12 and a work programme 

has been arranged with contractors to mitigate this risk and ensure all funds are 
allocated within this financial year. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.13 The Department of Health’s Active Travel Strategy (2010) highlights plans to put 

walking and cycling at the heart of local transport and public health strategies 
over the next decade. The guiding principles for the strategy are that walking and 
cycling should be everyday ways of getting around – not just for their own sake 
but also because of what they can do to improve public health, tackle congestion, 
reduce carbon emissions and improve the local environment. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.14 The provision of a cycle route on OSR is to facilitate current cyclists with an 

east/west route and encourage more people to move around the city by bike for 
necessary and optional journeys. The design of the cycle route will develop from 
best practice and guidance used in local, national and international schemes.      

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 An alternative option for ‘signing and lining’ was explored in the original 

proposals in 2009 and raised concerns regarding safety of cycle users in 
particular, hence the current proposed scheme for OSR cycle facilities. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The cycle facilities proposed for OSR will make walking & cycling a genuine choice for 

the 5000 pupils attending schools adjacent to the proposed facilities.  It will also 

203



provide a safer journey for parents and children who are currently, or perhaps 
considering, cycling to school or work. 
 

7.2 The consultation for OSR conducted in 2009 clearly demonstrated local support for 
dedicated cycle facilities and the current proposals address concerns raised regarding 
provision of a coherent, safe cycle network to support people to cycle.  The results of 
further consultation demonstrate local and city approval for an enhanced scheme 
which also focuses strongly on resident concerns for safe cycling provision and 
pedestrian access. 
 

7.3 Deferring funds from LTP3 in 2011/12 and confirming commitment to a further £185K 
in 2012/13 allow the city council to benefit from £330K funding from Sustrans ‘Links to 
School’.  This will create a complete link in a key section of the cycle and pedestrian 
network, completing north/south links with existing cycle routes. 

 
 

7.4 By granting approval to implement the scheme the Cabinet Member will allow Officers 
to amend the design in line with the views of local people and key stakeholders. 

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
None  
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 

1. LTP2 (2006/7-2010/11) 
 
2. LTP3   
 

3. LTP3 Delivery Plan(2011/12-2013/14) 

 

204



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 38 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Permission to tender for supported bus network 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Nick Mitchell Tel: 29-2481 

 Email: nick.Mitchell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 Under the 1985 Transport Act, local authorities are empowered to contract with 

bus operators for the provision of bus services which meet the needs of the 
general public, but which are not provided commercially. 

 
1.2 The current batch of contracts was let following an Area Network Review carried 

out during 2007/8.  These contracts expire in September 2012 and due to the 
value of the contracts, if they are retendered, the process will be governed by the 
EU procurement rules. 

 
1.3  The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet Member approval to go out to 

competitive tender for the supported bus network contracts to commence in 
September 2012. This tendering exercise follows the Area Network Review in 
July & August 2011 which involved a full consultation process with elected 
members, user groups, and community groups and data assimilated from 
request made by members of the public.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm authorises the 

competitive tendering process to begin based on the proposed routes contained 
in Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 That a report be brought to a future Environment, Transport & Sustainability 

Cabinet Members Meeting for consideration once tenders from prospective 
contractors have been analysed and recommendations for the future Supported 
Local Bus Network have been formulated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

205



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1 Using powers under the Transport Act 1985, the City Council contracts with bus 

operators, following a competitive tendering exercise, for the provision of bus 
services which are necessary to meet the needs of the community, but which are 
not provided commercially.  The current batch of contracts was let in September 
2008, and expires in September 2012. 

 
3.2 The current supported bus network comprises of a number of complete routes 

and the extension of some commercial routes to operate during the evening or at 
weekends, and some diversions of commercial routes to serve particular 
communities.  This includes services: 

 
Route Route description 

16/66 
Mon – Sat. Portslade – Knoll Estate – Hangleton – Sainsbury 
(66 only) 

21 Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Marina 

47 Mon - Sat. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

52 
Mon - Sat. Woodingdean -Brighton Station/ Cardinal Newman 
School 

56 Mon - Sat. Knoll Estate - Patcham 

57 Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

37B 
Mon - Sat. Bristol Estate - Kemp Town - City Centre - 
Meadowview 

74 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

75 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

76 School Days only. Saltdean Vale - Longhill School 

76A School Days only. Peacehaven - Longhill School 

81 Mon - Sat eves. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

81A Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

81A Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

81B Suns & Public Holidays. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

95 School Days only. Burwash Road - Cardinal Newman School 

95A School Days only. Foredown Drive - Cardinal Newman School 

96 
School Days only. Carden Avenue - Blatchington Mill & Hove 
Park Lower Schools 

91 
School Days only. Coombe Road - Hollingdean - Cardinal 
Newman School 

206



3.3 The proposal to let new contracts in 2012 follows an “Area Network Review” by 
the City Council. This consisted of the consultation process outlined below, 
together with a detailed analysis of the current commercial network, to identify 
any missing links or new services. At the same time a review was undertaken of 
those requests made by passengers for changes to routes, timetables and times 
of operation. 

 
3.4 A proposed timetable for the process from consultation & Area Network Review 

through pre qualification questionnaire, tendering, contract awarding & start of 
contracts is shown in appendix 1. 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The City Council’s Public Transport Team maintains a database of consultees on 

matters relating to public transport.  There are 380 entries on this list, comprising 
resident’s associations, community groups, affinity groups, ward councillors, 
MPs, and user groups.  The input from these groups has been sought to inform 
the Area Network Review. The consultation period lasted from 20 July 2011 to 09 
September 2011. 

 
4.2 The City Council has received responses from around 100 individuals to the 

consultation document and these responses have informed the Area Network 
Review. The comments in the consultation replies, which were received by e-
mail, telephone and by council officers at public meetings, were extremely varied, 
with reference made both to individual bus services and on the supported bus 
network as a whole. The consultation responses are held in the Documents in 
Members’ Rooms.  

 
4.3 The Council has an adopted methodology that is then applied to the current 

supported network and any requests for new routes. This methodology consists 
of a weighted scoring criteria to help ensure that supported bus routes meet the 
needs of the user and provide best value to the Council and the wider 
community.  

 
4.4 The methodology contains a range of criteria including historic services, cost per 

passenger, journey purpose, external funding used and interchange points on 
route. The scoring methodology sheet & criteria used are attached in appendix 2. 

 
4.5 The City Council has liaised with all commercial bus operators serving the City, in 

order to ensure that the supported bus network supplements and enhances the 
commercial network, to provide the best possible journey options for residents and 
visitors and to ensure the Council does not duplicate or support any commercially 
viable routes. 

 
4.6 Next steps.  
  

It is proposed that the tenders will go out in November 2011 and be returned in 
early January 2012. We will make clear in the contract documentation that the 
outcome of the tendering process is dependent on the council having the 
necessary resources to support all or any of the proposed routes, and that the 
invitation to tender does not guarantee that contracts will be let. The tender prices 
will then be analysed and evaluated in January 2012. Once the tenders have been 

207



assessed the options for awarding contracts will be brought forward to a future 
Cabinet Member Meeting in March 2012 for consideration. Any future 
considerations on what routes are supported by the Council will need to be mindful 
of budget constraints. Contract award letters will be issued once final decisions 
have been taken. The new contracts will start in September 2012.  

   
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs of preparing the Area Network Review have been met out of existing 

Public Transport revenue budgets. The extent of any future Supported Bus 
Network will be totally dependant upon the revenue budget available at the time.  
A further report will be brought to Cabinet Members Meeting for approval after 
the completed tenders have been analysed and officers’ recommendations 
made, based on ranking the services by importance in a number of categories. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 16/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 Under section 63 of the Transport Act 1985, the Council has a duty to provide 

subsidised bus services in part or parts of its areas where there are no 
commercial services and where it thinks it appropriate for such services to be 
provided. Services are tendered and let to commercial operators in return for 
payment from the Council. The powers of local authorities to subsidise public 
passenger transport services are subject to detailed tendering provisions laid 
down in the 1985 Act, Regulations made under the 1985 Act, and (where 
contracts exceed specified thresholds) in the EU procurement rules. 

 
5.3  In deciding which services to provide, the Council is required to have regard to 

the transport needs of members of the public who are elderly or disabled; and 
when entering into agreements for bus subsidies, to have regard to the interests 
of the public and of persons providing public passenger services in the Brighton 
& Hove area. Due consideration of these factors would be required before any 
decision to amend or withdraw subsidised services. 

  
 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date: 19/09/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.4 The City Council’s consultation database includes representatives of minority 

communities, to ensure that the needs of these communities are taken into 
account in planning the future supported bus network.  The City Council’s 
contracts specify that vehicles must be wheelchair accessible, in support of the 
City Council’s Equalities Policies, and the City Council’s obligations under the 
Disability Discrimination Act and the Equalities Act 2010. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.5 The City Council’s contract documents specify minimum exhaust emission 

standards for vehicles.  For the current contracts the minimum specified is EURO 

208



3.  For the new contracts the anticipated minimum exhaust emission standards 
will be EURO 4 (or equivalent), in support of the City Council’s Air Quality Action 
Plan. The emissions from engines run on recycled cooking oil are below the 
limits set for Euro 4 engines or equivalent. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.6 It is not considered that there are any Crime & Disorder implications associated 

with the proposed competitive tendering exercise. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.7 It is considered that there is a Risk that the City Council will not be able to let all 

the contracts that are tendered due to the high rise in fuel costs since the 
contracts were last put out to tender in September 2008. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.8 It is not considered that there are any Public Health implications associated with 

the proposed competitive tendering exercise. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9 The consultation exercise was citywide, and will inform the future corporate 

strategy for the supported bus service network. 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The Council does not have an in-house bus fleet to support the requirements of 

operating the supported bus network. In order to set up such an operation there 
would need to be a full evaluation of the legal, practical and financial issues.  It is 
possible, but unlikely, that such an arrangement could deliver a similarly priced 
service to that which the Council has been receiving through contracting.  
However it should be noted that this option would require the provision of 
significant capital investment, additional HR, finance and payroll support beyond 
the service itself.  There would also be a need for more direct involvement in day 
to day management and staff management rather than monitoring of the contract 
as at present. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To ensure that a suitable supported bus network procured by competitive 

tendering is available throughout the City. 
 
7.2 To secure the most cost effective supported bus network across the whole City.  

 
 
 

209



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Procurement timeline 
 
2. Contract tenders scoring methodology & criteria (3 sheets in total) 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
Consultation responses 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 

210



Item 38 Appendix 1

Project

Tender Reference

Procurement Lead

Negotiating Team

Contract Term

Contract Value

Benefits sought

Works/Services/Supply

TUPE Consultation Period

Other Comments

ACTION Duration (Days) Personnel Proposed Day of Week Shortened Actual

Funding Approval 1 Client  in advance

Define Project Team 1
Procurement, 

Stakeholder,Finance Legal
24/05/11 Tue  

Define Requirements 1 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

TUPE - Does this apply  ? 0 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

Draft Project Timetable 0 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

Define Tender Procedure 1 Procurement 26/05/11 Thu

Copy of Current Contract Obtained 7 Procurement 02/06/11 Thu

Develop Advert & PQQ 14 Client/Procurement 16/06/11 Thu

Area Network Review / Meeting Bus 

Operators
21 Client 07/07/11 Thu

CMM 1 Client 07/07/11 Thu

Place Advert  1 Procurement 18/08/11 Thu

Closing date of  Advert/PQQ 42 Procurement 29/09/11 Thu

Evaluation of PQQ 28 Procurement / Team 27/10/11 Thu

PQQ Financials to Finance 7 Procurement 03/11/11 Thu

Specification to be drafted 6 Client/Procurement 09/11/11 Wed

Prepare draft tender 1 Procurement 10/11/11 Thu

Develop Evaluation Criteria 1 Client/Procurement 11/11/11 Fri

Seek Client & Legal approval of ITT 5 Procurement 16/11/11 Wed

Tender issued 1 Procurement 17/11/11 Thu

Letter to unsuccessful PQQ respondents 1 Procurement 18/11/11 Fri

Tender return date 49 Procurement 06/01/12 Fri

Tenders opened 0 Procurement 06/01/12 Fri

Schedule of Offers & distribute to Project 

Team for evaluation
42 Procurement 17/02/12 Fri

Evaluation Meeting 3 Client/Procurement 20/02/12 Mon

Supplier Presentation 1 Client/Procurement 21/02/12 Tue

Post Tender Clarification 14 Procurement / Team 06/03/12 Tue

Cost Analysis 7 Procurement / Client 13/03/12 Tue

CMM 1 Client 27/03/12 Tue

Award Letters / Rejection letters issued 1 Procurement 28/03/12 Wed

Mandatory standstill period 10 Procurement 09/04/12 Mon

Debriefs (if requested) 3 Procurement 12/04/12 Thu

Issue of order/contract, acceptance letter & 

promotion of contract (if applicable)
1 Procurement 13/04/12 Fri

OJEU Award Notice 7 Procurement 16/04/12 Mon

Complete Evaluation Report 0 Procurement 16/04/12 Mon

Contract Start Date 56 Client 05/09/12 Wed

Project timetable produced by

Procurement Project Plan

not applicable

Sharon Stewart

Nick Mitchell

Supported Bus Routes

Sharon Stewart

Sharon Stewart

Action Date

4 years

£870k per annum

improved service, sustainability element, costs savings

services

211



212



It
e
m
 3
8
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

P
u
b
li
c
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
e
n
d
e
r

H
is
to
ri
c
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
s
t 
p
e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn
e
y
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g

In
te
rc
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
o
in
ts
 o
n
 

ro
u
te

T
O
T
A
L

S
C
O
R
IN
G
 S
H
E
E
T
. 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

R
o
u
te

R
o
u
te
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

M
a
x
 5
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 4
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 1
0
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
3
 p
o
in
ts

4
7

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

1
2

2
2

5
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
2

2
1

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
/ 
C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
2

2
1

1
6
/6
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 -
 S
a
in
s
b
u
ry

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
1

2
0

3
7
B

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 K
e
m
p
 T
o
w
n
 -
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
2

1
0

0
2

1
9

8
1
C

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 -
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1
A

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1
A

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 -
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

5
7

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

6
1

2
1
7

2
1

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
a
ri
n
a

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

6
0

2
1
6

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 F
a
lm
e
r

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

2
2

1
0

0
2

1
6

7
8

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 S
ta
n
m
e
r 
P
a
rk
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
M
o
rn
in
g
 &
 E
v
e
n
in
g
 p
e
a
k
s
 

p
lu
s
 l
u
n
c
h
ti
m
e
s

N
e
w

2
0

1
0

1
2

1
5

8
4

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
 t
o
 A
2
5
9

N
e
w

2
0

8
1

1
1
2

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
o
o
d
in
g
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

0
0

1
0

1
1

1
2

4
7

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

0
0

1
0

1
1

1
2

3
9

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 F
iv
e
w
a
y
s
 -
 H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 L
e
w
e
s
 

R
o
a
d
. 

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
2

1
2

1
3

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 -
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 

H
o
v
e

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
2

1
2

213



It
e
m
 3
8
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2

P
u
b
li
c
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
e
n
d
e
r

H
is
to
ri
c
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
s
t 
p
e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn
e
y
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g

In
te
rc
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
o
in
ts
 o
n
 

ro
u
te

T
O
T
A
L

S
C
O
R
IN
G
 S
H
E
E
T
. 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

R
o
u
te

R
o
u
te
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

M
a
x
 5
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 4
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 1
0
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
3
 p
o
in
ts

9
5
A

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 D
ri
v
e
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l
C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

2
0

0
1
1

7
6
A

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
P
e
a
c
e
h
a
v
e
n
 -
 L
o
n
g
h
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
1

0
1
1

7
6

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 V
a
le
 -
 L
o
n
g
h
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

2
0

0
1
1

2
3

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s

N
e
w

2
0

8
0

1
1
1

2
3

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s

N
e
w

2
0

8
0

1
1
1

1
5

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 

R
o
a
d
 -
 K
in
g
s
w
a
y
 -
 N
e
w
 C
h
u
rc
h
 R
o
a
d

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
1

1
1

9
6

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
C
a
rd
e
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 -
 B
la
tc
h
in
g
to
n
 M
ill
 &
 H
o
v
e
 

P
a
rk
 L
o
w
e
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

9
5

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
B
u
rw
a
s
h
 R
o
a
d
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l
C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

7
5

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

7
4

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

5
7

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
6

S
u
n
d
a
y
. 
K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
2

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
2

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

3
5

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
o
ff
 p
e
a
k
. 
W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 -
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 -
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 s
h
o
p
s

N
e
w

0
0

8
0

1
9

1
6

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

1
9

1
6

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

1
9

3
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 v
ia
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
 (
T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll)

N
e
w

0
0

6
0

1
7

9
1

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
C
o
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 

N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

4
1

2
0

0
7

214



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 39 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Highways Winter Service Plan 2011-12 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Christina Liassides Tel: 29-2036 

 Email: christina.liassides@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No: ETSCMM23991 

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The Highways Code of Practice recommends that authorities should formally approve, 

adopt and publish, in consultation with users and key stakeholders, a Winter Service 
Operational Plan based on the principles of this Code.  Brighton & Hove City Council 
has produced an annual Highways Winter Service Plan since unitary status. 

 
1.2 The 2011-12 Highways Winter Service Plan builds on the extensive work, experience 

and research carried out over previous years and particularly following 3 years of 
severe winters.  It incorporates existing good practice and any updates arising from 
implementation of ECSOSC and national recommendations. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability approves the Brighton & 

Hove City Council Highways Winter Service Plan 2011/12 as attached at Appendix A 
to this report. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

Context for Highways Winter Service Plan 
 
3.1 The Winter Service plan outlines the policy and operational mechanisms that this 

authority puts in place to meet its statutory requirement to take measures to prevent or 
remove accumulations of ice and snow from the public highway as far as is reasonably 
practicable. 

 
3.2 The plan is reviewed annually in liaison with other sections and agencies, as part of 

continuous improvement to the service. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

215



Annual review 2011-12 
 

3.3 Following the detailed work that went into reviewing the 2010/11 plan, the Highways 
Winter Service was tested again during December 2010.  This included the operation 
of the service, the accompanying communications strategy, the co-ordination of 
resources across City Infrastructure for snow clearance and the links with other 
sections and agencies. 

 
3.4      Prior to and during winter 2010/11, considerable discussion and consultation took 

place with other council teams and partner services, including via the Sussex/Brighton 
Resilience Forum, the council’s Major Incident Managers Team and individually with 
partners and providers, such as the bus company, schools and the NHS.  Officers 
have also attended residents’ meetings such as Local Action Team meetings.  This 
ensures a good shared understanding of what the council’s highways service can 
provide and how best to target this to support other services’ priorities.  Following the 
last winter, all representatives who had input into the 2010-11 plan were contacted for 
their feedback on this.   Responses received are reproduced at Appendix B. 

 
3.5 The plan covers the whole City Infrastructure delivery unit’s response to cold weather. 
 
3.6 An ECSOSC review of progress on the 2010 recommendations is scheduled on 5 

September 2011. 
 

Service provision 
 
3.7 Through the Highways Winter Service Plan we endeavour to use the resources 

available to us as effectively as possible.  We have a finite supply of materials and 
staff to carry out the work so it is simply not possible to keep all 2,700 of the city's 
public roads, pavements and footpaths free from ice and snow during a severe freeze. 

 
3.8 Our defined routes are all main roads and all bus routes.  The aim is to keep the 

important roads in the city open and to try and reach as many residential areas as 
possible (hence following bus routes).  The routes include roads leading to emergency 
service premises, hospitals and bus depots. 

 
3.9 The Highways Winter Service runs all through the winter, often going unnoticed but put 

into action regularly during frosty or icy conditions.  The majority of focus on the 
service is usually during severe snowfall, when the response is escalated before, 
during and after these weather conditions.  It should be noted that there are specific 
environmental factors that will reduce the effectiveness of salting/gritting.  This means 
that although the council will continue to apply treatments to the identified routes, we 
cannot guarantee that the gritted roads will be free of snow and ice. 

 

3.10  In 2010-11, the Communications strategy ensured that clear and comprehensive 
information about the council’s winter service was given out both just before the 
start of winter and as regular updates during any bout of very cold weather.  This 
involved the Head of Highway Operations working closely with the 
Communications team and with City Infrastructure Contact Centre and social 
media personnel. 

 

216



3.11 The council provides 400+ grit bins throughout the city for self-help.  Compared to 
other authorities, this is a high quantity within what is a relatively small geographical 
area.  This is because we recognise that Brighton & Hove is a mainly urban area with 
steep hills serving a large population.  We will also if required fill grit bins for 
emergency services, and can offer salt/grit in small quantities from our stockpile for 
schools, emergency services and other priority agencies for use on their own property. 

 
3.12 Following an expansion over 5 years which has more than doubled the quantity of grit 

bins provided, we cannot issue any more grit bins on the public highway. This is 
because it would take far too long to fill them quickly during extreme weather and with 
finite resources we cannot keep expanding the number of grit bins that we then need 
to service. 

 
3.13 In line with scrutiny recommendations, during last winter’s snowfalls we carried out grit 

drops for self-help at specified locations round the city as an alternative to permanent 
grit bin provision. 

 
3.14 City Infrastructure also carried out extensive pavement clearance utilising Cityclean, 

Cityparks and Parking staff as well as highway contractors.  Staff could be deployed 
rapidly because of pre-season preparation with maps, equipment and key personnel.  
In accordance with the plan, there was clearance of snow in priority 1 areas (main city 
thoroughfares, hospitals, station) followed by clearance in priority 2 areas, which are 
local shopping parades and important local infrastructure. 

 
3.15 The original budget was calculated on an average of 33 gritting operations per year 

plus one 2 day snow event.  
§ 2007-08 was above average, with 43 gritting operations in total for the winter 

season.   
§ In 2008-09, a total of 62 gritting operations were carried out, of which 27 operations 

were full routes, i.e. our largest coverage of the city.  
§ In 2009-10, a total of 112 gritting operations were carried out of which 62 were full 

routes. 
§ In 2010-11, a total of 64 gritting operations were carried out of which 48 were full 

routes.  Although the end of November to the beginning of January saw cold and 
extreme snow, the rest of the winter was very mild. 

 
Vehicles 

 
3.16 The council has purchased seven new gritter vehicles, all 4x4 and supplied with the 

latest technology such as stainless steel hoppers which will resist salt corrosion. 
 
3.17 A pavement gritting machine which can also be utilised as a street sweeping machine 

has been purchased.  This should enable quicker treatment where pavements are 
wide enough.  

 
3.18 All the vehicle purchases have been funded through unsupported borrowing and so 

future winter budgets must take into account repayment costs for the next 7 years as 
well as Repairs and Maintenance overheads. 
 
 
 

 

217



Salt Stock 
 
3.19 The average amount of salt used per winter is about 800 tonnes. In 2010-11 the 

council used 1,500 tonnes of salt and a further 500+ tonnes of grit (sharp sand) on 
road gritting alone.  Additional tonnages were used on pavement gritting and for grit 
bins/grit drops.  Sharp sand is an accepted treatment for heavy compacted layers of 
snow and ice, often proving more effective than salt alone.   

 
3.20 The council has a contract in place for the supply of salt.  This is delivered by boat 

from one of the two salt mines in the country direct to Shoreham Harbour.  The council 
has not run out of salt in any winter period. 

 
3.21  We are continuing to use additional storage at a depot in West Sussex.  In total, 

we should start the winter season with over 1,500 tonnes.  
 

Reviews and recommendations 
 

3.22 The recommendations from the Scrutiny Panel’s review with officer comments and 
update as of summer 2011 are attached as Appendix C for information. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Working with the Civil Contingencies Officer, highway officers have held several 

planning meetings and maintain ongoing communication with members of the Sussex 
& Brighton Resilience Forums. This includes Category 1 Responders (fire, police, 
NHS, ambulance service), the bus service, schools service, housing management and 
other important city services/premises.  Internally, winter plans have been discussed at 
Major Incident Management meetings. 

 
4.2 There have also been meetings and ongoing liaison with the Communications team 

and Business Continuity Manager regarding the council’s public response to winter 
weather events. 

 
4.3 Highways, Cityclean and Cityparks have worked together on planning the Winter 

Service. 
 
4.4 Local Action Teams and residents’ meetings have been attended to discuss the 

Highways Winter Service. 
 
4.5 A copy of the Winter Service Plan is sent out to the following stakeholders and any 

relevant comments incorporated into the plan/service as far as is reasonably 
practicable: 

 
§ Cityclean 
§ Cityparks 
§ Civil Contingencies 
§ Insurance 
§ Communications team 
§ Police 
§ NHS 
§ Fire Service 
§ Ambulance Service  

218



§ Brighton & Hove Bus Company 
§ Schools 
§ Other Brighton Resilience Forum agencies e.g. Brighton Marina 
§ Seafront services 
§ Southern Rail 

 
4.6 Benchmarking and sharing of good practice has been facilitated through SE7 and 

SEASIG – the south East Authorities Service Improvement Group. 
 
4.7 The Head of Highway Operations works closely with East and West Sussex highway 

managers, including joint contracts with East Sussex for weather forecasting and 
weather stations/winter IT systems. 

 
4.8 Further information sharing will be made with the Economic Partnership and Business 

Forum to manage expectations with the business sector and where appropriate to co-
ordinate planning.   

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs of providing the winter maintenance service are covered by a revenue 

budget, which is £337,460 for 2011-12. This budget includes an additional annual 
investment of £100,000 which was provided out of contingency as part of the 
budget setting process for 2010-11. Any underspend in the revenue budget each 
year is carried over into the Winter Maintenance Reserve, as contingency for 
periods of extreme weather. This fund is used to pay for operatives, gritter fuel, 
gritter maintenance, contractors and other costs associated with an ongoing 
major operation. This reserve has been called upon in financial years 2006-7, 
2008-9, 2009-10 and 2010-11. In recognition of the demands placed on the 
service in recent years, an additional sum of £204,000 was allocated to the 
reserve in 2010-11. The balance in the reserve is currently £430,000. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 22/08/11 
  

Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The Council as highway authority has a statutory duty to maintain publicly 

adopted highways. Since October 2003 this has included a duty to 
ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, that safe passage along a highway is 
not endangered by snow or ice (s41.(1A) Highways Act 1980 as amended by the 
Railways and Transport Safety Act 2003). The proposed Winter Service Plan will 
assist the Council in complying with the duty. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Carl Hearsum Date: 26/08/11 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The Winter Maintenance service covers main routes and all bus routes.  It is a service 

for the public highway, aimed at bringing the maximum benefit to the most used 
thoroughfares.  It is not logistically or economically feasible to cover all roads in the 
city, so by treating bus routes and pavements on a priority basis we ensure that most 

219



areas of the city have some accessible options for travel and target areas of highest 
usage first. 

  
Sustainability Implications: 

 
5.4 Salt has a negative environmental impact e.g. on the water table or vegetation.  Sharp 

sand does not dissolve into solution and has a negative impact on drainage and 
appearance.  Therefore resources are carefully deployed in order to provide a balance 
between network usability and detriment to the local environment.  

  
Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 
5.5 There are no crime and disorder implications identified in this report. 

 
Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 
5.6 The objective is to provide a winter service, which will permit, as far as is reasonably 

possible, the safe movement of traffic on designated roads throughout Brighton and 
Hove and to keep to a minimum delays and accidents brought about by adverse 
weather conditions.   
 
Public Health Implications: 

 
5.7 There are no direct public health implications identified in this report although the 

council highways section works closely with the NHS, ambulance service and 
other health agencies in preparation for winter. 

  
Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
5.8 The winter service is an essential support service for the city’s economy by helping to 

provide an accessible highway network. 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 

 
6.1 The only alternative is not to produce or approve a winter service plan but this would 

be contrary to the Code of Practice. The plan also acts as information about what to 
expect from the service and as a business continuity tool which lays out detailed 
operational directions on how to run the service. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The report ensures that the Winter Service Plan can be formally considered and 

adopted. 
 
 
 
 
 

220



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
A  Highways Winter Service Plan 2011-12 
 
B Responses to Head of Highway Operations’ review of winter 2010/11 
 
C Scrutiny Panel recommendations & officer response 
 
D Map showing full gritter routes & grit bins 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 
None 

221



222



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

1 

Brighton & Hove Highways Winter Service Plan 2011-12 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Structure 

The Highways Winter Service Plan has been structured into two segments. 

Part A comprises of an overview of the essential services and information while Part B 
details the operational and record keeping aspects of the Plan. 

223



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

2 

 
 
 
 

1 Summary 

In cold weather conditions Brighton & Hove City Council provides a Highways winter service 

which endeavours to keep the traffic moving and to minimise delays and accidents. The 

priorities of the service are public safety and keeping the city moving. 

 

The objective is to provide a winter service, which will permit, as far as is reasonably possible, 

the safe movement of traffic on designated roads throughout Brighton and Hove; it also aims 

keep to a minimum delays and accidents brought about by adverse weather conditions.  

Designated footways and cycleways are treated only in severe and prolonged snow 

conditions. 

 

The service operates from 1 November until the end of March, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 

and includes salt gritting the main network in advance of road frost, ice or snow and the 

provision of salt/grit bins at outlying ungritted roads. In prolonged snowfall, the service also 

includes snow ploughing and pavement clearance.  The period may be extended on a day-

to-day basis by the Head of Network Management in cases of severe cold weather 

continuing into April or starting earlier in October. 

 

 

2 Winter Weather Conditions 

Winter weather conditions which are managed are: 

Snow – rare, but it does cause great difficulties due to its infrequency, the topography of the 

city and the resources needed for clearance. 

Ice – occurs when conditions are freezing and wet. 

Hoar Frost – is formed from white ice crystals. We only deal with this when it forms on roads 

making them slippery. This should not be confused with low-level frost, such as the white frost 

that appears on car roofs or vegetation in the mornings. 

Part A 

Overview of Essential Services 

224



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

3 

Freezing rain – is rain which freezes as soon as it hits the road surface. This is a rare occurrence 

but difficult to treat because of the timings between rain washing off the treatment and the 

roads freezing.  

 

 

3 What the Council Does 

Decision-making 

Brighton & Hove City Council has a team of Winter Maintenance Duty Managers in the 

Highways section who use the latest technology in weather forecasting/prediction to decide 

what is required to protect road users during cold weather. They will assess the weather 

forecast for a 24-hour period combined with local road temperature sensor data information 

in order to decide what action is necessary.  

These duty managers are on standby during office hours, out of office hours, at weekends 

and during holiday periods.  

Over a winter season, weather forecasts are approximately 90 percent accurate. Typically, 

this means that there are several days when a road frost or other freezing conditions are not 

forecast but will still occur. Similarly, there are some forecasts which predict ice and snow 

conditions which do not occur. 

Winter Duty Managers are volunteers from within the Highway Operations section of Brighton 

& Hove City Council who all have regular day-to-day jobs. Winter duties are in addition to 

their normal roles so please be aware of this if awaiting a written response to queries.   

 

Routes 

The priority is to keep major routes treated and passable. These are generally all the 'A' roads, 
most of the 'B' and ‘C’ roads and other roads of local importance, e.g. all bus routes. A total 
of 156 miles of main routes around the city will be treated if weather conditions require it. 
 
The aim is to use the resources available to us as effectively as possible. 
 

There are four levels of routes which the Council will use depending on the severity of the 
weather conditions and the variables which can affect it. They are listed below in order of 
severity according to climatic zones and weather conditions: 

 

225



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

4 

3.1.1 Hilltop Routes (Level 1): The routes are mainly based in the northern hill top side 

of Brighton and Hove where frost is more likely to form in marginal conditions.  

3.1.2 Standard Routes (Level 2): This is the most common route used. It covers the 

main roads, bus routes, emergency service depots, hospitals, important 

commuter routes, most schools and shopping centres. These routes are 

commonly used for pre-salting and gritting before frost and icy conditions. 

These routes do not cover the warmest parts of the city. 

 

3.1.3 Full Routes (Level 3): These are extended versions of the Standards Routes and 

cover more of the City’s roads. These routes are commonly used in advance of 

snow or in extremely cold conditions if wet roads are likely to freeze where all 

of the city will be affected. 

3.1.4 Priority Routes (Level 4): These are limited variations of the Full Routes. They are 

used when sustained snow or ice conditions are causing severe disruption and 

the routes need to be reduced to maintain the core of the city.  When there is 

severe or sustained adverse weather conditions the gritting needs to occur 

more intensely on the most important routes in order to try and keep these 

roads operable.   They include roads around the main hospitals and the main 

arterial routes.  These routes may also be employed if for any reason there is a 

reduction in available resources. 

3.2 During periods of prolonged heavy snowfall pavements are cleared in priority order - 

main shopping areas and pedestrian routes first, followed by other important 

pavements and local shopping areas. This work will only be undertaken after the 

main carriageway routes have been cleared, due to resources. 

Designated footways and cycleways are treated only in severe and prolonged snow 

conditions. 

 
 
Treatments 

Precautionary Salting - The application of salt to carriageways on priority routes 

usually in advance of frosty conditions (often referred to as spreading, gritting or pre-

salting). 

Where there is leakage of ground water from the roadside, it will be treated on a 

reactive basis. 

226



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

5 

 

Post-treatment – the application of ploughing, salt, a salt/grit mix or grit (sharp sand) 

to carriageways following snow and depending on the depth and severity of the 

snowfall. 

 

3.3 Available alternative de-icers are regularly reviewed, particularly with a view to their 

use on structures and special paved areas.  However, such alternatives are currently 

prohibitively expensive and may also have their own environmental disadvantages.  

Therefore, as the temperature seldom falls below minus 5°C, salt is used almost 

exclusively as the means of melting ice or snow on the highways (including structures 

and special paved areas).  When conditions remain well below freezing, a salt/grit 

mix may be used to aid traction. This mix may also be used for trouble spots or 

extreme gradients. For extreme snowfall, pure grit may be spread to assist with 

traction. 

 
3.4 The council is dependent on the national salt supply chain to replenish its stocks.  For 

2010-11, national government has issued a warning that if the UK experiences a similar 

severe winter to that of 2009-10, salt supplies could again become depleted during 

mid-winter season.  Brighton & Hove has stored as much salt as it is able to do so in 

advance.  The winter service plan will therefore be carried out to the best of our ability 

but also according to available resources and identified national and local priorities. 

 
 

4 What The Council Does 

4.1 Which Department in The Council Is In Charge? 

 

The Highways section within City Infrastructure in Brighon & Hove City Council take 

responsibility for putting this Winter Servcie Plan into operation and for providing the resources 

and equipment required for the majority of the public highway service during the Winter 

Service Period.   

 

This includes providing the salt and gritting materials, providing the vehicles, providing 

information to the contractors carrying out the work and operating the Winter Service 24/7 

during the period.  

 

227



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

6 

In conjunction with the Highways section, Cityclean and Cityparks within City Infrastructure 

may also provide resources and equipment for hand clearance. 

 

The Highways Winter Service is reliant on Winter Duty Managers (WDM) to perform the 

organisational and operational functions during the Winter Service Period. WDM receive 

regular daily weather updates and decide what level of action is required and when. The 

WDM instructs the contractors about which work needs to be carried out and when, based 

on information received from external sources (Met Office, Police information, weather 

stations)  and information in the “White Book” (Highways Winter Service Plan).  

 

 

4.2 Who Carries Out The Winter Work? 

 

The Highways Winter Duty Manager carries out the decision-making and management of the 

service. 

 

Highways work with City Clean as the Winter Service “Contractor” and as such Cityclean will 

provide the staff required to carry out the machine and manual spreading and ploughing 

operations. Part of this requires that City Clean drivers will maintain a 24 hour stand by rota for 

all of the gritter driving whilst other Cityclean staff may be required to respond to a Winter 

Service event under the direction of the WDM and/or the Head Of Operations at Cityclean.  

 

Highway contractors are also used for tasks such as filling up grit bins and for pavement 

clearance under the direction of the WDM.  Cityparks staff may also assist with vehicle 

provision and clearance in the event of heavy snowfall. 

 

Other sections of the council and other services (such as fire, police and NHS) will also have 

plans in place to deal with severe weather incidents.  The Highways team consult on this 

winter service plan with other service providers to ensure that our highway gritting routes best 

suit their needs as much as is practicable. 

 

 

4.3 Weather Forecasting 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council has several key weather forecasting tools to help in predicting 

and deciding on action to be taken. 

 

228



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

7 

There are 4 weather forecast outstations situated in strategic locations across the city. These 

stations provide various information such as air and road surface temperatures, humidity and 

wind speed /direction. The information is retrieved remotely by computer.  

 

We also have a contract with the Met Office to provide the weather forecasting for the 

region.  During the Winter Period daily forecasts from the Ice Prediction System are sent. 

Additional updates can be asked for by a Winter Duty Manager to confirm or track potential 

changes.  

 

Thermal mapping has also been used for the purposes of establishing gritting routes and 

priority risk areas. Thermal mapping is able to indentify which sections of road are cooler or 

warmer than average due to the lie of the land, type of construction, traffic flows and other 

factors which can affect road temperature. 

 

4.4 Communications 

 

The Communications team will post regular updates on the Councils website informing of 

severe weather conditions, advice on self-help and on driving and movements across the 

city during extreme of adverse weather conditions. 

5 What Do Other Agencies Do? 

 

The Highways Agency is responsible for treating national routes including the A23, M23 and 

A27 trunk roads. They can be contacted on 0845 600 0414.  

What areas do the HA cover? A27, Brighton bypass, A23 north of the A27 Junction. 

What areas does East Sussex County Council cover? Falmer and Saltdean border. 

What areas does West Sussex County Council cover? Fishergate border, Devil’s Dyke border. 

 

 

 

5.1 Co-ordination with Neighbouring Highway Authorities 

 

Highways Authorities will manage their own salting solutions within their own 

boundaries unless assistance is requested. In that event, level of assistance will be 

determined on a day-to-day basis. Due to concerns regarding liability issues, 

reciprocal salting arrangements with other neighbouring Highways Authorities 

ceased in 2006-07. However, in the event of severe and prolonged snow or other 

229



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

8 

business continuity issues the Head of Highway Operations will liaise with members of 

East and West Sussex County Councils. 

 

6 What Can You Do To Help? 

6.1 Self Help  

You can apply table salt to paths, pavements and driveways. During frosty and icy 

conditions one tablespoon per square metre is generally all that is needed. 

Salt/grit mixes can be used from over 400 locally placed salt/grit bins to apply to 

roads and pavements if necessary.  This is best spread in a thin even layer. 

SHOVEL SWEEP SALT  

In heavy snowfall, the best thing to do is to shovel, sweep, and salt.  

Firstly, particularly if the snow is deep, and you’ve got a shovel, try to shovel it out of 

the way, into the gutter, or somewhere it won’t cause a trip hazard. You can then 

sweep away the remaining residue, and apply salt onto the pavement. 

It’s worth bearing in mind that what we put in our grit bins is a mixture of salt and grit 

or pure grit during snowfall, but ordinary salt will usually work just as well, especially if 

the snow is cleared.  All you need is household table salt, and really you don’t need 

that much: usually one tablespoon will do a square metre. So you can use it 

sparingly.   Grit can also work to give traction on icy surfaces. 

Finally, if you are clearing snow, please don’t use any water – boiling or otherwise. 

The problem with the water is that it can very quickly re-freeze, and leave an icy 

patch. The same is true for clearing you car windscreens; obviously water can leave 

icy patches on the road. 

6.2 Driving Advice 

Please remember to drive with caution during freezing weather. The Highway Code 

makes it clear that drivers should always drive according to the weather conditions. 

Before setting out on a wintry day you should:  

• consider whether your journey is absolutely necessary  

• if it is, check the local and national weather forecasts  

• if driving, listen to your local or national radio stations for travel news 

230



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

9 

• Even if roads have been gritted, do not assume that they are free from ice 

and frost. 

Please remember that we are not able to salt all roads.  

Before setting off on a journey make sure you have 

• Ice scraper and de-icer 

• Warm clothes and a blanket 

• First aid kit 

• Torch and spare batteries 

• Reflective warning sign 

• Jump leads 

• Food and a warm drink in a thermos flask 

• And clear the snow from the bottom of your shoes and from the outside of 

your car. 

 

When driving 

• Remember it can take up to 10 times longer to stop in snow and ice 

• Make gentle manoeuvres to remain in control 

• Select second gear when pulling away to avoid wheel spin 

• If hill climbing, try and avoid stopping on the hill. Try and leave lots of distance 

between you and the car in front. Try to keep at a constant speed and try to 
select the best gear before you get to the hill. 

• When driving downhill, use engine braking by selecting lower gears. Leave 

plenty of room between you and the car in front. 

• When using the brakes, use them gently. If you start to skid, take you foot off 

the brakes and reapply.   

 

6.3 Walking Advice 

When there are slippery and icy conditions it is vital to recognise the hazards of 
walking on these surfaces. 

Tips:  

• Don’t wear shoes with smooth surfaces. Try putting stretch socks over your 

shoes to aid grip. You can also try spiked over-shoes, available from catalogues and 
via the internet. 

• Be aware of the surface you are walking on. Don’t try and run for a bus or run 
to cross a street. 

• Use your arms to keep you balanced. Don’t put your hands in your pockets 
when walking and avoid carrying heavy loads which could imbalance you.  

• Try and remove as much snow as possible from the bottom of your shoes as 
you are walking.  

231



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

10 

• Walk “small”. Avoid a tall, erect marching walk.  

• Just because a path has been cleared, do not assume it is free from ice and 
won’t be slippery. 

• Assume all wet and dark areas on pavement are slippery and icy. 

• Be careful when getting in and out of vehicles. Use the vehicle as support 
when getting in and out. 

• Try and walk on grassed areas where possible as this gives better traction.  

• Point your feet out slightly. Spreading your feet like this will increase your centre 
of gravity. Extend your arms to maintain balance and take short steps. 

• If you are going to fall, try and fall on your side. Avoid falling on your knees, 
spine or trying to stop your fall by putting your arm out. 

• If falling, try and relax your muscles. You will injure yourself less if you are 
relaxed. 

• Watch where you are stepping and go SLOWLY!!!!!! 

 

6.4 Salt/Grit Containers 

 

There are over 400 salt/grit bins throughout Brighton and Hove. These bins have been 

made available at sites which are not usually near a gritting route. The aim of the salt 

bins is self help for residents of Brighton and Hove to salt/grit an area which would 

not be on a gritting route. 

 

Additional salt/grit will be placed in strategic locations across Brighton & Hove at the 

discretion of the Winter Duty Manager.   

 

Compared to some other authorities, we supply a high quantity of salt/grit for the 

public, within what is a relatively small geographical area. This is because we 

recognise that Brighton & Hove is a mainly urban area built on hills. Hence the bins 

are supplied for steep areas usually hardest hit by snow and ice.  However, provision 

of grit bins needs to be balanced against the capability to refill within a reasonable 

timescale, as well as available resources such as salt and grit.  

 

It is not possible to supply any more grit bins on the highway. This is because it would 

take far too long to fill them quickly during extreme weather and with finite resources 

we cannot keep expanding the number of grit bins that we then need to service. 

 

 

232



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 Our Equipment 

 

7.1 Brighton & Hove Council Equipment List:  

 

• 7 gritters 

• 7 ploughs for use with the gritters 

• 6 hand spreaders used for footways and cycleways 

• 1 machine pavement gritter 

• We may also have access to 3 tractors in severe weather conditions 

• We may also have the use of 3 JCB’s in severe weather conditions 

 

 

7.2  Salt Storage Capacity 

 

The council has a contract in place for the supply of salt.  This is delivered by boat from one of 

the two salt mines in the country direct to Shoreham Harbour.  It is then stored at our 

Hollingdean Depot and the gritters load up and go out on their routes from here. 

 

The average amount of salt used per winter is about 800 tonnes. 

 

Brighton & Hove has limitations on how much the council can store in advance and must also 

balance purchase against lifespan/likely usage of the stock.  As we have no options to 

increase salt storage within our boundaries, we have arranged for additional storage at a 

depot in West Sussex. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

233



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 Frequently Asked Questions 

 

Why are salted roads sometimes still icy? 

Despite the high level of service provided, no guarantee can be given that treated roads will 

always be completely clear of ice or snow.  

This can be for various reasons. 

• It takes time for the salt to become effective after roads are salted  

• Rain and running water can wash salt off roads leaving them prone to re-icing.  

• In severe cold weather (falling to and below –5°C) even salt will not prevent roads 

from icing.  

• In heavy snowfall, salt treatments are only effective on roads with heavy traffic. 

• If freezing conditions follows rain, salting will normally start after the rain has stopped to 

avoid salt being washed away. Temperatures may fall by as much as 5°C per hour 

and the wet roads may well freeze before the gritter has been able to salt them.  

• Dawn frost occurs on dry roads where early morning dew falls on cold road surfaces 

and freezes on impact. It is not possible to forecast with any accuracy where and 

when this may happen.  

• When rain turns to snow during the rush hours, early salting is washed away and gritters 

are unable to make progress due to traffic congestion.  

• There may be water on the highway due to a number of reasons. These could include 

a water mains leak or vehicles being washed and screens having water poured over 

234



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

13 

them to melt the ice. These quantities of water will result in ice forming if the road 

surface temperature is below zero degrees. The council will treat major water leaks as 

soon as it is made aware but this obviously takes time after receiving reports.  

• Over a season, weather forecasts are approximately 90 percent accurate. In most 

winters, this means that there are several days when a road frost is not forecast but will 

still occur 

Treated roads can still therefore have icy patches and drivers should remain vigilant and 

aware of the need to drive with due care at all times, especially when road frosts or freezing 

temperatures follow rain. 

 

 

 

Why are roads on the gritting routes not always clear during snowfall? 

There are specific environmental factors that will reduce the effectiveness of salting/gritting 

and ploughing.  This is particularly the case in areas outside the main city centre: 

• Salt/grit needs to be tracked in by substantial vehicle or pedestrian traffic in order to 

work well and break down the layers of snow.   Where roads (and pavements) do not 

have heavy traffic, they are more resistant to treatments.  Generally salt will lie inert 

under heavy snowfall until the layers of snow are broken up enough for it to mix in and 

act as a de-icer. 

• Roads in more outlying areas tend to get more snowfall as they are higher up.  

• Roads further out from the city centre areas are generally much colder. 

• Cars abandoned on junctions or badly parked will prevent the larger vehicles such as 

buses & gritters from getting through.  

• Some roads are too narrow for the gritters when they have ploughs on. 

• Ploughing opens up the road but tends to provide a narrower band of clearance so 

leaves less room for manoeuvre for larger vehicles such as buses as well as pushing 

the snow into the kerbside which can make bus stops harder to reach.   

• Ploughing is not very effective over speed humps, steep junctions, pronounced 

cambers and crowned roads.  

 

Grit or Salt? 

235



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

14 

Although most of us call it gritting there is in fact no grit involved in precautionary treatment. 

(Precautionary treatment is where we treat the roads in advance of frost, ice or snow).  What 

we spread on the roads is rock salt taken from an underground mine in Cleveland. 

It is more or less the same as the rock salt you would grind into your food, but of a size and 

composition for road use. 

Grit (or sharp sand) is used as post-treatment on its own or in a mix with salt.  (Post treatment is 

where we treat the roads during or after severe ice or snow).   Grit aids traction and break 

down layers of ice and snow. 

 

What does salting the roads do? 

We spread salt onto the road. This works best when it goes into a solution, which is why we rely 

on the tyres of cars passing over the top of it to crush the salt onto the road. This then forms a 

solution with a higher de-icing capability. 

Water freezes at 0°C, but salt stops water from freezing until -6°C to -8°C.  So the salt solution 

means the snow or ice will freeze less or melt quicker. 

 

Salt has the potential to melt snow at temperatures as low as -20° C but is not a very efficient 

treatment in extreme cold. Salt starts to become much less effective around minus 5°C and 

almost ineffective at lower temperatures.  As a result, its use becomes practically, 

economically and environmentally difficult.  In heavy snowfall, especially on roads with no 

heavy traffic, salt will not make much difference.   

 

In extremely low temperatures, or heavy snowfall, a mix of salt and grit or pure grit may be 

used to aid traction and to break down compacted layers of snow and ice.  Ploughing is also 

used if the depth of snow allows this but cannot clear away all of the snow (e.g. around 

speed humps) 

 

When and how do you salt the roads? 

We salt the roads to prevent icy conditions when we are expecting ice or snow. Each route is 

planned to achieve a maximum of three and a half hour response time from leaving the 

depot to completing the route prior to ice forming.  

236



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

15 

 

Which areas of the city are salted? 

Salting depends on how severe the weather conditions are. It may be necessary to salt the 

coldest areas only or alternatively to salt all main routes. Under severe conditions resources 

are focused according to priorities on identified gritting routes.  Decisions are based on the 

following priorities: 

1) primary roads (all 'A' roads), hospital, ambulance and other emergency service areas  

2) the majority of 'B' roads  

3) other important roads (bus routes) 

ROAD CLOSURES - It is our policy to work with the Police in closing roads. This may include 

where: 

• roads become impassable  

• road conditions become hazardous 

However we do not generally tend to close roads during winter weather.  This is because not 

all roads are treated and because in heavy snowfall even treated roads may still have 

snow/ice on them.  It would not be feasible to close all these roads.  Motorists are advised to 

drive with caution on all city roads during cold winter weather. 

 

Why don't you salt the pavements? 

We have over 1,200 km of pavement in the city. Most pavements are too narrow to be salted 

by machine. We do, however, place salt/grit bins at locations across the city for anyone to 

make use of and we will clear snow away after prolonged heavy snowfall (in order of priority). 

As with roads, salting pavements is only effective if there is heavy footfall to help the 

treatment work.  So we clear most pavements only after snowfall.   We have identified Priority 

1 and 2 pavements, which are where the greatest number of people will be using central or 

local services. 

Pavement clearance is a lengthy labour-intensive task by hand spreading, so operationally 

and practically this work requires a high level of resources.  The ice or snow may melt during 

237



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

16 

the day of its own accord.  Therefore the Duty Manager must decide on priorities, how heavy 

the snowfall is and when the snow may be likely to clear naturally due to improved weather 

conditions as well as when clearance will be most effective (e.g. in heavy and continuous 

snowfall, clearance may need to wait until it stops because all efforts would be immediately 

covered over again). 

 

What are salt/grit bins for? 

Salt bins are provided at over 400 locations in the city, often on steep road junctions or 

hills. They are not usually placed on major salting routes or in flatter, warmer areas of the city. 

They are there for anyone to make use of in icy weather.  

 

How do I ask for a salt/grit bin refill? 

Please email gritbinrequest@brighton-hove.gov.uk  or complete our online application, 

stating the exact location of the bin. 

 

During severe weather we batch up all the requests for grit bin refills and then make a decision on when to refill 

depending on amount of requests, available resources and forecasted weather conditions.  

 

Please note that no new grit bins will be supplied on the public highway.  This is because we 

have now reached the limit of what we can sensibly and practicably keep supplied.  To 

request the removal or relocation of an existing bin only, please e-mail 

gritbinrequest@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 

What can I do to help? 

You can apply salt to paths, pavements and driveways or “Shovel, Sweep and Salt”. 

 
 

 

9 Introduction 

 

Part B 

Operation and Record Keeping 

238



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

17 

This document aims to set out in one plan sufficient detail to inform anyone involved in the 

management of the Winter Service of current Procedures and requirements.  The Winter 

Service plan is also known as the "White Book". 

 

The information contained in the White Book is generally in accordance with the Local 

Authorities Association's Code of Good Practice for Highway Maintenance and associated 

local and national government Winter Reviews. A commentary on each of the Code’s 

recommendations is made in Appendix X, showing how Brighton & Hove City Council’s 

Winter Service Plan accords with these recommendations.   

 
Appendix X 

10 Objective 

The Railways & Transport Act 2003: Section 111 – Highways, Snow & Ice, has a duty, as far as in 

reasonably practicable, that the safe passage along a highway is not endangered by snow 

and ice. 

 

The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a network management duty on the local authority 

to secure the expeditious movement of all users. 

 

The objective is to provide a winter service, which will permit, as far as is reasonably possible, 

the safe movement of traffic on designated roads throughout Brighton and Hove and to 

keep to a minimum delays and accidents brought about by adverse weather conditions.  

Designated footways and cycleways are salted only in severe and prolonged snow 

conditions. 

 

11 Definitions 

11.1 Winter Service Period 

 
The winter period shall be from 1 November each year to 31st March the following year.  

The period may be extended on a day-to-day basis by the Head of Highway Operations 

in cases of severe cold weather continuing into April or starting in October. 

11.2 Precautionary Salting  

 

The application of salt to carriageways on priority routes usually in advance of frosty 

conditions (often referred to as spreading, gritting or pre-salting). 

239



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

18 

 

11.2.1 Hilltops Routes 

Two routes salted on marginal occasions where frost is liable to form on hilltops 

and in known frost hollows furthest from the influence of the sea.  The routes 

usually take approximately 1½ hours each to complete. 

 

11.2.2 Standard Routes 

The most frequently instructed routes but do not cover the warmest areas 

identified by thermal mapping. Six routes cover main road, bus routes, 

emergency service depots, main hospitals, important commuter routes, large 

schools and shopping centres.  The routes usually take approximately 2½ hours to 

complete. 

 

11.2.3 Full Routes  

An extension of each standard route to cover the warmest areas, usually 

instructed when a wet road is liable to freeze or in advance of snow.  The routes 

usually take up to 3½ hours to complete unless it is snowing. 

11.2.4 The routes are defined as pace notes with plans and are kept in the 

Out of Hours office at Hollingdean Depot.  These are summarised in 

Appendix B.  Copies of the notes are also kept on the shared Highways 

Drive >Winter Service Plan 2011-12. 

Appendix B 

11.2.5 Where there is leakage of ground water from the roadside, it will be 
treated on a reactive basis. 

 

11.3 Ploughing 

The removal of snow by means of a plough blade attached to a spreader or such other 

vehicle as may be agreed by the Client, Highway Operations, Brighton & Hove City 

Council. 

 

240



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

19 

11.4 Highway Winter Service Provider (Client) 

The client service provider is the Highways team, City Infrastructure Brighton & Hove City 

Council. 

 

11.5 Winter Service Contractor – WSC   

The in-house service provider for waste management (Cityclean) provides the drivers 

and other operatives for the Winter Service.  For the sole purpose of clarity, they are 

referred to as the Winter Service Contractor (WSC) in this plan.  Details of Rota at 

Appendix F.  The co-ordination of drivers at the Depot will be carried out by the 

Emergency Out of Hours’ Officers, reporting to the Head of Highway Operations.  For the 

purposes of this document, the Out of Hours Officers will also be referred to as the WSC, 

receiving and carrying out instructions from the Winter Duty Managers or the Head of 

Highway Operations (the Client). 

Appendix F 

 

11.6 Winter Duty Manager - WDM 

The Duty Officer is employed by the client and the duties are shown in paragraph 5.2.  

Although the duties are rotated, whoever holds the winter maintenance mobile phone is 

on duty and is known as OSCAR 5.  Details of the rota and contact numbers are in 

Appendix E. 

 
Appendix E 

12 The Client’s Role 

12.1 The Client will be responsible for: - 

-   instructing the contractor  

-   providing salt 

-   providing the spreaders and ploughs and their maintenance requirements. 

-   providing route information and updates where necessary. 

    The Client will operate a round the clock service for the Winter Service    

    period. 

 

241



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

20 

12.2 Winter Duty Manager (WDM) 

12.2.1 The functions of the WDM will be: - 

 

-  to receive and record daily weather forecast including updates 

-  to decide what action is required and when 

-  to inform the Emergency Out of Hours’ officer of every decision 

-  to instruct the WSC in reasonable time to enable the action to be   

   fulfilled  

Appendix H 

   

-  storage of information. 

-  responding to public queries and reports 

- ensure that decisions are also communicated to Cityclean and Cityparks relevant 

staff such as the Operations Managers and Contact Centre. 

-  responding to and recording decision based on police (or other agency) 

information or requests.   Records should be kept on the form detailed in Appendix S. 

Appendix S 

 

12.2.2 The starting time will be determined by the Client and may need to be 
varied due to prevailing weather conditions.  The starting time is the time 
the spreader leaves the depot.  The finish time is the time the spreader 

returns to the depot. 

 

13 The WSC (Winter Service Contractor)’s Role 

13.1 Stand-by Rota 

 
Throughout the Winter Service Period, the WSC shall organise and maintain a 24 hour 

stand-by rota for spreader drivers, fitters and other operatives who will be involved in the 

spreading operations and they shall be contactable by telephone. 

 

The rota shall show the names and telephone number of personnel and shall be given to 

the WDM before the season starts.  See Appendix F. 

Appendix F 

242



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

21 

13.2 Response Time 

  

On receipt of an instruction from the Client the WSC personnel required to carry out 

spreading shall report to the depot in sufficient time to load the spreaders to enable 

them to leave at the time specified by the Client. 

 

13.3 Spreaders and Loading Equipment 

 

a) The WSC will be provided with seven spreaders - 6 for routes and one spare. 7 

ploughs are provided for use in the event of major snow fall.  See Appendix C. 

  

Appendix C 

 

b) The WSC will provide the vehicle washing facilities.  The loading equipment will be 

organised by the Client, but used and maintained by the WSC. 

 

c) The spreaders shall be driven at the speed recommended by the manufacturer to 

achieve the rate of spread of salt specified by the Client. 

 

d) Vehicle and electronic equipment  – WSC to ensure that drivers always use 

equipment in accordance with the instructions manual in Appendix V. Technical 

breakdowns must be reported to the Client officer immediately.  A check should be 

made of the vehicle before a route is started. 

Appendix V 

 

13.4 Handwork in the Event of Snow 

 

Cityclean & Cityparks Operations Managers will be asked if they can provide sufficient 

labour and plant for handspreading of salt/grit in the event of severe snowfall and as 

directed by the WDM.  Contractors may also be used at the agreed rates during a snow 

event. 

Appendix L 

243



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

22 

13.5 Personnel 

Drivers 

i) The WSC shall provide sufficient personnel to enable all the vehicles listed in 

Appendix C to be capable of simultaneous operation.  All personnel will be 

adequately trained for winter duties.  Training shall be to City & Guilds 6159 and 

will cover operation of the prime movers spreaders and ploughs. If necessary, for 

24 hours continuous operation the WSC shall provide additional personnel 

required by the Client.   

 

Before the winter period, any spreader driver who is not familiar with the routes will 

be required to report to the Depot Co-ordinators for familiarisation with at least 

one standard route.  

 

Appendix C 

Appendix A 

   

ii) Also, before the winter period the client shall employ sufficient WSC staff to test 

the spreaders and ploughs.  The WSC shall report back all defects and problems 

so the Client can effect repairs before the Winter Service Period begins.  This is 

called Operation Snowdrop. 

 

Appendix O 

 

iii) The WSC is responsible for the health, safety and welfare of the labour force. 

13.6 Spreader Driver's Mate  

 

The WSC shall be asked to provide personnel to accompany spreader drivers during 

snow-ploughing operations.  This may require doubling up from the drivers’ rota or use of 

Cityclean’s other operatives if agreed with the Head of Operations at Cityclean. 

 

13.7 Driving Hours 

 

244



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

23 

The provision of drivers’ hours is a matter for the Winter Service Contractor and it is also 

the Contractor’s responsibility to ensure that the drivers comply with the appropriate laws 

governing driver hours etc.  Where this has an impact on Cityclean operations, the 

Winter Service budget will pay any costs associated with relief agency cover. 

 

13.8 Records 

 

The WSC completes the Winter Service Action report for each instruction received and 

ensures that any necessary remarks by the drivers are recorded and that the driver signs 

and dates the report upon return to the depot.  The WSC returns the Action Reports daily 

to the Head of Highway Operations.  See Appendix H. 

 

Appendix H 

 
 
 

13.9 Breakdowns  

In the event of a breakdown the WSC will contact the Spreader Maintenance fitter directly.  

See Appendix G. 
 

Appendix G 

 
 

13.10 The WSC is responsible for refuelling the spreaders.  Refuelling will mainly be carried 

out at Hollingdean Depot but should fuelling need to take place at a garage, the 

WSC is responsible for passing the receipts to the Head of Highway Operations.  Fuel 

cards are kept on each spreader key ring. 

 

 
 

14 Operations 

 

14.1 Pre-Salting 

 

14.1.1 All routes to be pre-salted shall accord with the Client's current 
objective. 

 

245



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

24 

14.1.2 Salting Procedures shall take the following into account: - 

 

i) Weather forecast  

ii) Timing  

iii) Rates of spread  

iv) Previous action 

 

14.1.3 In general, the spread rates will start at 10g/m2 for pre-salting and up to 

40g/m² in advance of snow. 

 

14.1.4 Brighton & Hove City Council’s waste management section, City Clean, 

or other council sections may contact the WDM for help with pre-

salting or snow clearance on refuse routes that are not on the usual 

gritting routes.   The WDM will make the final decision on whether this 

work can be carried out, based on citywide needs, driver availability, 

salt stock, future forecasts and other priority factors that may need 

resources to be directed elsewhere.  Any additional gritting decisions 

must be recorded by the WDM on the relevant form at Appendix S 

including reasons for the decision. 

Appendix S 

 

14.2 Snow Clearance - Carriageways 

14.2.1 At the onset of snow, the Head of Highway Operations or the WDM can 

instruct the highway teams (Highway Inspectors, Network Co-

ordination, Parking Infrastructure and/or Highway Enforcement) to 

gather information about the overall situation in areas of the city.  This 

information is to be fed back to WDM by 1000 hrs on the first morning 

and a current situation report at the same time each day thereafter or 

more frequently if instructed by the WDM. 

 

14.2.2 Priority and effort is to be devoted to clearing the full routes.  Once the 

routes are open and can be kept open attention may be turned to other 
public highways and is based on feedback from the teams.  The WDM shall 

246



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

25 

decide on that priority based on citywide needs, driver availability, salt stock, 
future forecasts and other priority factors that may need resources to be 
directed elsewhere. 

 

14.2.3 When heavy snow is forecast, at the direction of the WDM, the ploughs 

will be fitted to spreaders in readiness for use. 

 

14.2.4 If precautionary salting has been carried out, ploughing will usually 

commence when the depth of snow exceeds 30 mm.  A mix of salt and 

grit may be used in any salting operation during ploughing.  Vehicles 

must retain some salt/grit load in the back of the vehicle to ensure 

sufficient weight when ploughing. 

 

14.2.5 If precautionary salting has not been carried out, snow will be salted 

until the depth of snow exceeds 30 mm when ploughing will usually 

commence. 

 

14.2.6 Section 67 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 gives police the 

authority to place road closure signs and close any road in 

extraordinary circumstances.  In the event of a road becoming 

blocked with snow or dangerous due to ice, the WDM in association 

with Sussex Police may close that road temporarily to facilitate 

clearance.   

 

For prolonged closure the Police may ask the Highway Authority to 

formally close that road with an Emergency Notice and then the 

Highway Authority will arrange appropriate signage.   

 

14.3 Snow Clearance - Footways 

 

14.3.1 Snow clearance of footways will only be carried out during severe and 

prolonged snow events.  Town centre and main pedestrian routes are 

to be cleared first.  Use of salt/grit will be at the decision of the WDM or 

Head of Highway Operations. The decision regarding operational staff 

247



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

26 

to clear snow will be made by the Heads of Operations of City Clean 

and Cityparks 

 

Private shopping precincts and private forecourts are not to be 

treated. Attention is then given to important linking footway and local 

shopping areas. In the last phase residential footways may be tackled 

but only with the prior consent of the Head of Delivery.  Footway 

clearance is a lengthy labour-intensive task and therefore the WDM 

must decide on priorities and when the snow may be likely to clear 

naturally due to improved weather conditions.  See Appendix M. 

Appendix M 

 

14.4 Snow Clearance - Night-time working 

 

Night-time working is only permitted in highest priority areas e.g., main roads and 

town centre footways where deemed necessary by the WDM. 

 

 

14.5 Snow Clearance - Provision of Labour and Payment Thereof 

 

14.5.1 Before winter the Client is to approach its contractors and local plant 

hire companies to it to see if they would be willing to help in snow 

clearance.  This is to identify the number of men available, plant, unit 

rates, communication arrangements, hire procedures and 

ability/previous experience in working on the highway. An annual 

register of snow clearance organisations is to be compiled by Client.  If 

required for snow clearance, organisations on the register are to be 

approached before contact is made with any other organisations.  See 

Appendix L. 

Appendix L 

14.5.2 Only the WDM can instruct snow clearance contractors. Uninstructed 

work will not be paid for.  

 

248



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

27 

15 Weather Forecasting 

 

15.1 The forecast outstations are situated on: 

• the A270 Old Shoreham Road at the junction with Hangleton Link Road 

• Bexhill Road, Woodingdean 

• The Fiveways junction 

• Saddlescombe Road 

 

The forecast outstations are equipped with sensors to monitor air and road surface 

temperatures, precipitation, humidity, road surface conditions and residual salt on the 

road surface, wind speed and direction.  Data from the Forecast Outstation is retrieved 

remotely by computer. 

Appendix Q 

 

15.2 Thermal mapping was used to identify sections of road which are cooler or warmer 

than average due to topography, type of construction, traffic flows and other 

factors affecting road surface temperature.  This information was utilised for the initial 

route planning.  

 

15.3 A Weather Forecasting Centre provides daily forecasts via an Ice Prediction System 

during the months November - March inclusive.  Forecasts will be available by 

1400hrs each day.  During October and April a general forecast is provided but the 

service can be extended by authorisation of the Head of Highway Operations to 

provide more detailed forecasts if required. 

 

15.4 An outline of the current Ice Prediction System is given in Appendix J.   Detailed 

information on access and use is contained in its User Manual.    

Appendix J 

15.5 The forecast will consist of the following elements; 

 

i)       A ‘General Forecast’ for Brighton and Hove for the following 24 hours; 

 

249



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

28 

ii) 'Site Specific' temperature forecast for the outstations together with a written text 

forecast. 

 

iii) Morning Updates issued at around 8am each day, giving a résumé of the previous 

night's weather, and an indication of likely conditions for the coming night; 

 

iv) 2-5 day forecasts are also provided to show the expected trend in the weather. 

 

15.6 The WDM will print out a copy of the weather forecast at the time of making their 

decision and ensure that this copy is safely filed. 

 

15.7 Updates will be made as necessary by the Weather Forecasting Centre and the 

WDM will be telephoned by the Centre if they deem it necessary.  Should the WDM 

need to change the decision, they will inform the WSC immediately. 

  

15.8 Outside of the Winter Service season, severe weather warnings are received by the 

Civil Contingencies Office and will be acted upon accordingly. 

  

15.9 Details of condition indicator system for 'Road Danger Warnings' plus other weather 

information are given in Appendix I. 

Appendix I 

 

15.10 If for any reason the weather forecast is unavailable, precautionary salting is to be 

carried out when falling air or road temperatures reach +1°, provided the prevailing 

humidity, residual salt and cloud cover warrant that decision. 

 

16 Communications 

 

16.1 The communications available between the WDM & WSC are e-mail, telephone and 

fax.  Communication between the WSC and its spreader drivers are the WSC's 

250



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

29 

responsibility and shall be maintained at all times.  Mobile phones are provided to all 

drivers. 

 

16.1.1 Telephones - Appendix K contains the mobile and home telephone 

numbers of persons who could be involved in the winter service.  

Appendix K 

16.1.2 Fax - also shown in Appendix K are fax numbers which may be useful 

during emergency situations.  It is possible that the fax machine may 

not be manned out of normal working hours and an immediate 

response may not be made.  

 

16.1.3 During periods of adverse winter weather conditions, the WDM may 

send a colleague to the Police Control Room in John Street, Brighton to 

ensure the latest information on road conditions is co-ordinated 

between the two Authorities.  The WDM remains in control.   The 

council’s traffic control room may also be used for joint working such as 

with a representative from the bus companies. 

16.2 The Communications Team 

• The Communications team will provide regular internal updates during 

periods of severe weather via The Wave and BHCC website. Emails will also 

be issued to managers to cascade to their teams.  

• Preparation for Heads of Service to cascade information via the councils 

external email portal. Can be used from any computer with online access. 

• Implementation of an hourly service and advice updates to print radio and 

television news desks. 

• Use of social media, such as Facebook, Twitter and YouTube to provide 

frequent updates to residents of Brighton & Hove. 

• Provide a Highways Winter Service Special in the Autumn edition of City 

News. 

• Provide clear legal advice regarding liability for clearing snow from the 

pavement.  

• Shovel, Sweep, Salt message to be widely publicised. 

251



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

30 

• Discussions with the CVSF and other third party organisations so that 

information can be passed onto residents prior to or during severe weather to 

reassure, inform and mobilise them. 

 

17 Co-ordinating with Neighbouring Highway Authorities 

 

17.1 Reciprocal salting arrangements ceased in 06-07 due to nationwide concerns 

regarding liability issues.  BHCC will take responsibility for the notice of closure at Old 

Boat Corner if directed by ESCC WDM. 

 

17.2 In the event of snow, clearance will be managed by each HA within its own 

boundaries, unless the Duty Officers of each authority agree on a day to day basis 

to assist each other. 

Appendix S 

 

17.3 In the event of severe and prolonged snow or other business continuity issues, the 

Head of Highway Operations will liaise with counterparts in East and West Sussex as 

required and with BHCC’s Civil Contingencies Officers. 

 

18 Salt 

18.1 Salt (Sodium Chloride) will melt ice and snow at temperatures as low as minus 21°C.  

However, salt starts to become much less effective at minus 5°C and almost 

ineffective at lower temperatures.  As a result, its use becomes practically, 

economically and environmentally infeasible.   

 

18.2 Available alternative de-icers are regularly reviewed, particularly with a view to their 

use on structures and special paved areas.  However, such alternatives are currently 

prohibitively expensive and may also have their own environmental disadvantages.  

Therefore, as the temperature seldom falls below minus 5°C, salt is used almost 

exclusively as the means of melting ice or snow on the highways (including structures 

252



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

31 

and special paved areas).  For trouble spots or extreme gradients, grit may be 

spread to assist with traction. 

 

18.3 The salt currently in use is Crystalline Rock Salt complying with BS3247: 1991 Table 1.  It 

is 6mm nominal size (Fine Grade).  See Appendix C for current maximum stock 

allowed and method of procurement. 

Appendix C 

18.4 In extremely low temperatures, or heavy snowfall, a mix of salt and grit, or pure grit, 

may be used to aid traction. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

19 Salt/Grit Containers 

 

19.1 A mixture of salt/grit is stored in bins at various roadside sites throughout Brighton and 

Hove as a self help for residents.   

 

19.2 The general principles for providing a bin are as follows: - 

 

19.2.1 Bins would not normally be situated on spreader routes unless there was 

considered to be a special need. 

 

19.2.2 Hills, steep junctions and places where water can seep across the 

carriageway, are general siting considerations. 

  

253



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

32 

19.3 Location of salt/grit containers are shown in Appendix N.  Currently there are over 

400 bins throughout the City. 

Appendix N 

 

19.4 Certain organisations such as police, fire, schools, may collect small quantities of salt 

from Hollingdean Depot for use around their premises.  Authorisation for this must 

come from the WDM, and visitors must adhere to risk assessment procedures for 

collecting salt, shown in Appendix R. 

Appendix R 

 
 
 
 

20 Budget 

 

20.1 The budget allows for precautionary salting of the Standard Routes 30 times per 

winter plus a two day snow event. 

 

20.2 All costs incurred in Winter Service should be charged to the winter service budget 

which is administered centrally by the Client. 

 

20.3 Appendix P indicates how any costs should be allocated. 

Appendix P 

 

20.4 Any under spend of the Highways Winter Service budget is added to the Corporate 

Contingency Fund and is carried forward to cover additional costs as a result of 

severe cold weather events and for any extraordinary requirements for the service 

such as technical/vehicular support.   

A major snow period lasting up to 5 days would utilise much of this contingency fund 

in covering the additional ongoing costs of operatives, fuel, vehicle maintenance 

and contractor work required to run such a major operation.  During a serious snow 

event or an extraordinarily cold winter it has been necessary to draw down from this 

fund, and amounts have been drawn down in 2006-07, 2008-09, 2009-10, and 2010-

254



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

33 

11 for precisely this reason.  If the fund falls below £250,000 it may be topped up by 

the environment budget at the year end, should funds be available. 

 
 

21 Health and Safety 

 

21.1 It is particularly important that Health and Safety precautions are strictly observed by 

the Contractor during pre-salting and snow clearing operations.  At these times road 

conditions are likely to be very poor with additionally poor visibility and weather. 

 

21.2 If a spreader is overdue to return to the depot or contact is lost, the WSC                                            

shall be responsible for re-establishing contacts or instigating a search. 

  

 

22 Performance and Monitoring 

22.1 The Contractor is required to provide data relating to the execution of salting and 

salt used during winter maintenance to the WDM to permit the monitoring of winter 

service operations.   

 

22.2 The Salt Monitoring spreadsheet must be maintained by the WDM throughout 

the season, detailing amount used in each 24 hour period and any tonnage delivered.  This is 

available on the shared drive and should be completed by the WDM on duty each week. 

Appendix H 

22.3  “Well Maintained Highways – A Code of Good Practice 2005”, with updates, sets 

Standards and Performance Indicators for Winter Service activities.  These are given in 

Appendix T.  Suggested targets for these indicators have been set out by the Audit 

Commission and also appear in Appendix T. 

Appendix T 

 

23 Business Continuity/Emergency Events 

255



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

34 

23.1 The usual rota for gritter drivers are 6 on shift per week. The rota utilises 2 shits, each 

shift being off duty one week then on duty the next week. There are 15 members of 

staff trained to operate gritters. In reduced staffing conditions, drivers may be asked 

to be on shift for 2 weeks at a time.  More staff are to be trained 2011-12, once time 

permits and new gritters are in place in order to increase resilience in extreme 

conditions which require 24/7 operations. 

 

23.2 Drivers’ hours’ legislation must be observed unless there is a compelling emergency 

reason to override these.  If necessary, the service will be reduced to emergency 

main routes only already identified and documented in partnership with the 

emergency services.  Depending on the length of time that this situation continues, 

press communication must be given out to the public to notify of potential reduced 

safety compared to normal gritting routes. 

 

23.3 In a major snow event, a Winter Duty Manager will go as soon as practicable to the 

Depot and assist the Co-ordinators in overseeing the service operation.  This will 

ensure that decisions can be made on the ground in real-time.   

 

23.4 If it is not possible to treat the usual routes, either due to heavy snowfall, staff 

shortages or other major event, a priority network has been agreed with the 

emergency services and bus company.  The priority emergency route list can be 

found at Appendix B (Spreader Route Information) 

Appendix B 

 

23.5 Communication to the public and other agencies will be co-ordinated via the 

Communications team and Civil Contingencies office. 

Communications to members, the communications team and Strategic Leadership 
Board will be co-ordinated by the Head of Highway Operations. 

 
 

24 White Book Updates 

 

256



  

 
Last Revision Date: 5 October 2011 

35 

White Book Updates will be made as required and each update will be incorporated into the 

annual winter service plan.  Any updates made during the winter season will be recorded on 

an update form (a copy of which is included in Appendix Y.)   

 

Appendix Y 

 

Salting routes will be reviewed before each winter period to take account of network and 

bus route changes as well as partner agencies’ priorities where practicable. 

 

The Highways team are continually working with the Civil Contingencies Team and the Sussex 

Resilience Forum to maintain and update the adverse weather plans. 

 

 

25 Distribution List 

A list showing holders of the White Book is shown in Appendix Z. 

 

Appendix Z 

 

26 Appendices 

 
A list of Appendices is shown at the commencement of the Appendix Section. 
 
 

 
 
 

257



258



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

Partner Agencies: review of 2010-11 winter 

 

In May 2011, the Head of Highway Operations contacted various partner 

agencies and other council sections in order to review the operation of 

the Highways Winter Service Plan during winter 2010-11, particularly 

regarding the two snow events which lasted several days each. 

 

Council sections contacted were those represented on the Civil 

Contingencies’ list for Major Incidents, which includes premises 

management, social care, housing, environmental health, seafront, 

communications team, etc.  The response was that the Transport Cell was 

the main area of interest and that the highways issues had been 

previously well discussed.  Winter discussions have continued through this 

forum, with the latest being in July 2011 at time of writing this report. 

 

Partner agencies were those represented on the Brighton Resilience 

Forum which includes the emergency services, the NHS, the main bus 

company and certain businesses such as the Marina. 
 

The responses received back are listed below: 
 

Police 
The police stated that from their perspective, the Highways Winter Service was 

handled well. Specifically the comments were that: 

* All of the standard and main critical routes previously identified by the Roads 

Policing Unit were kept clear. 

* The gritting of the roads worked well and re-gritting was our priority during the 

snow/ice event. 

 

Road collision data for the period 30/11/10 to 04/12/10 showed 12 collisions.  

There was no specific pattern in where the collision took place and data does 

not show whether they are directly attributable to snow and/or ice. 

 

 

NHS 

 

Sent: 27 April 2011 09:37 

 

  

Please see the following comments from Brighton & Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust: 

  

This Winter's gritting in BHCC was much improved on the previous year . 

  

The Royal Sussex County Hospital benefited from the Highways team kindly gritting right up the 
ambulance slope to A&E entrance. 

  

259



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

The pavements seemed much safer following the extensive pavement gritting programme the 
team carried out and we certainly did not see the huge surge in attendances due to slips and falls 
on ice as we had done the year before.  

  

Most of the key bus route were kept clear and the busses managed to continue running a 
reduced service where ever possible which made a big difference to our critical staff, many of 
whom rely on public transport to get to work 

  

The communication plan was very effective and as the emergency planner at the trust I felt I was 
kept well informed of the gritting plans before the Winter came and also of issues that arose 
during the snow. 

  

Thank you 

 

 
 

 

 

Buses 
Thank you for your email.  It’s my belief that your team did really well under very difficult 
circumstances and this observation was part of my submission to the Scrutiny Panel.  I think we 
just need to keep doing what we do, keep the lines of communication open and make sure we 
don’t lose sight of what we have learned when the going gets tough. 
 
 

 

From: Christina Liassides 

Sent: 03 May 2011 15:09 

 

 

Thanks very much for your detailed reply.  We will collate all of the information 

for our winter service plan review and we’ll give fuller feedback at a later date, 

but in the meantime I wanted to let you know that the information that you gave 

us last year was incorporated into our plan – and gritting work – during this last 

winter. 

 

Basically we included everything requested bar a couple of the outlying areas. 

We mapped all of the turn around points apart from one which was on a 

roundabout which would already be taken care of on a standard and priority 

route, so there was no need for this as an additional action.  The drop off points 

for grit piles (emergency grit bins) were also identified using your turn around 

points so hopefully that will work in conjunction with your scheduled turn 

around points.  I’ve attached the relevant maps for your information.  We made 

sure that we carried out all these grit drops and ran these routes many times 

during both snowfalls.  Perhaps you could let us know whether there were 

260



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

specifics that prevented the buses turning around in cases where our priorities 

match up with yours? 

 

Unfortunately as you know, some roads just don’t respond well to treatment no 

matter what we put down, and these are usually the more lightly trafficked, 

hillier areas but a lot of the main roads were open quite quickly providing we 

weren’t experiencing continuous snow.  You can see from the summary I 

attached originally that we concentrated initially on main routes and then gave 

extra attention to those outlying areas in an effort to open them up as quickly as 

possible.  I am not sure if there is much more we can do but happy to work 

further with you during summer on additional turn around points if this will 

help push your service outwards as we clear more routes. 

 

As promised, we will look at all the points below in detail for our 2011-12 plan. 

 

 

 

 

From: Mike Best  

Sent: 28 April 2011 11:52 

 
 
Thank you for your email.  All things considered I thought the City Council did very well in keeping 
the city moving in really tough conditions.  The key issues for Brighton & Hove Buses are: 
 

• Keeping North Street and Edward Street open as a top priority when conditions are at 
their very worst to enable a basic cross-city bus service from Portslade to Kemp Town via 
the RSCH.  As Portland Road, New Church Road and Eastern Road are flat, the hilly 
North Street and Edward Street become critical for this route.  

 

• Similar comments for Terminus Road as conditions improve because this gives buses 
access to large parts of the west and north of the city along the flat Cromwell Road and 
Dyke Road.  

 

• As conditions further improve we can get to more parts of the city, but the key issue is 
then how to turn buses round at non-scheduled points.  Foe example, we can often get 
as far as the Downs Hotel but no further, so as long as buses can turn round we can get 
that far.  But unless buses can turn round there we can't get anywhere near 
Woodingdean.  There are many other similar examples across the city.   

 

• We need co-operation with East Sussex, because there are times when we can only 
serve Rottingdean and Saltdean along the A259 as long as we can turn round at Sutton 
Avenue roundabout in Peacehaven.  If the section of the A259 within East Sussex (from 
Telscombe Tye to Peacehaven) isn’t gritted then we can't serve Rottingdean or Saltdean 
because again we can't turn round.  

 

• The attached PDF shows a map (over 2 pages) of key routes we can serve depending on 
the severity of the conditions.  It is one I submitted to Andreas Homeyer earlier in the 

261



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

year.  It shows the network we hope to operate and locations of unscheduled turning 
points.  It would be good to have grit available at these points to keep turning points 
clear.  

 

• Abandoned cars were a problem in some areas, in some cases like Queen’s Park Road 
for some considerable time.  I wonder if we can deal with this problem more effectively?  

 

• There was one occasion when all the gritters went back to the depot to re-stock at the 
same time; as the snow was falling heavily we couldn’t keep key roads clear and this 
made conditions difficult.  

 

• We used snow chains on buses for the first time and this proved really successful.  Snow 
chains are useful for breaking up the solid ice and working the salt into the snow.  We 
hope to expand this next time.  

 

• Communication with the gritting team through the mobile phone number was very good.  
 

• We did receive some feedback from residents of Westdene after the event that it took a 
long time to get back into that area.  It’s really hilly but perhaps we could look at clearing 
Valley Drive more quickly?  Most other places found themselves within a reasonable 
walking distance to a working bus route most of the time.  

 
I hope this information is useful and do let me know if I can be of any further help. 
 
Regards 
Mike Best 

 
Operations Director 
Brighton & Hove Bus and Coach Company Ltd 
 

 

Sent: 26 April 2011 09:33 

Subject: FW: Highways Winter Service: post-winter summary 

 

Dear all 

 

I am contacting you because although winter is now officially over,  BHCC’s 

Highway team carry out a continuous programme of review to our Winter 

Service Plan.  So I’d be grateful for any feedback you may have from this winter. 

This helps with the review of our Winter Service Plan for 2011-12 as well as 

giving us general information about the whole city’s services and resilience. 

 

It’s also an opportunity to feedback to you about our Highways Winter Plan for 

2010-11 so below is a brief resume of what we did. 

 

As you know, we worked with all of you last year on various aspects of winter 

service, including your own resilience plans as well as our Highway one.  As a 

result, we made some additions to our gritter routes, increased the amount of 

grit bins in the city, mapped out our pavement clearance priorities and agreed 

262



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

grit drop locations with specific partners, especially the bus company.  We 

supplied and filled some grit bins for non-highway premises on the proviso that 

future refills would be the responsibility of that agency.  This is because 

Highways has limited storage facilities and needs to ensure its salt stock is 

managed throughout the winter for public roads and pavements. 

 

In consultation with our partner agencies, we also refined our priority routes 

which are designed to be used in extreme circumstances when it is necessary to 

concentrate resources on a reduced network.   

• Full Routes cover 254 km or approximately 41% of the total road network 

in the city including all A & B roads, most C roads, roads to emergency 

services’ premises and all bus routes.   

• Priority Routes cover 212 km or approximately 33% of the total road 

network including all A roads, most B roads, roads to emergency services’ 

premises and key bus routes.  

 

We also worked hard on our communications plan, and made sure that during 

winter we kept our website and other social media up to date with information 

about what we were doing and with maps of our routes, grit bins and grit drop 

locations.  Information was distributed to partner services prior to the winter 

season. 

 

The original budget for the Highways Winter Service is based on 30 gritting runs 

per year plus a 2 day snow event.  This year, we carried out 62 gritting runs in 

total, and the city experienced 2 snow events both lasting several days.  For your 

information, I have attached a spreadsheet showing the breakdown of gritting 

runs. As you can see, Highways go out road gritting whenever it is cold enough 

to give frosty or icy conditions not just in major snowfall so general winter 

feedback is useful, not just on the snow events. 

 

Our 400+ grit bins were filled 5 or 6 times over the entire winter period and we 

carried out additional grit drops to over 50 locations. 

 

Pavement gritting was carried out daily throughout the city during and after 

both snow events although on one day of continuous snow fall, we concentrated 

on routes around the hospitals, station and main town centre only.  The second 

snowfall left a fair bit of ice on untreated roads and pavements so we continued 

to carry out road/pavement gritting for several days up to the Christmas break. 

 

263



Highways Winter Service Plan   Appendix B 

 

I have attached a summary of Highway actions during the first snow event 

which I hope will give you a good flavour of the operation that goes on.  In the 

time between the first December snow and the second, we carried out major 

logistical operations with regard to gritting materials.  Salt supplies were hauled 

in from holding depots in East and West Sussex as well as receiving some direct 

from our salt supplier.  Sharp sand was delivered to Hollingdean Depot, Stanmer 

Park and Hove Park so we could run operations out of various locations utilising 

Cityclean and Cityparks staff. 

 

We used 1585 tonnes of salt and 487 tonnes of sharp sand mostly on road gritting 

with a further several hundred tonnes of grit on pavements and grit bin refills. 

Usage was not as high as expected due to very mild weather in October, 

February and March. 

 

We held 1,500 tonnes of salt prior to the start of the season and received a further 

800 tonnes during the winter.   

 

If you have any comments, I’d be grateful if you could reply by 11 May to collate 

them for discussion at our Highways meeting later in May. 

 

With regards 

Christina 

264



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

     

R
e
c
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
 a
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 4
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
M
M
  

D
a
te
 

U
p
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
E
C
S
O
S
C
 

2
0
1
1
 

1
 

G
re
a
te
r 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 
a
n
d
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

is
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
b
u
il
d
in
g
 
u
p
o
n
 

e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 

o
f 

g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 
T
h
e
 
W
S
P
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

w
it
h
 
in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 

C
a
n
 
u
s
e
 
th
e
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

a
n
d
 

H
o
v
e
 

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 
F
o
ru
m
 
to
 
d
o
 

th
is
. 
T
h
is
 
g
ro
u
p
 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
 

a
ll 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 
1
 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 m
a
jo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
.  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
o
f 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 
&
 

H
o
v
e
 
R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 
F
o
ru
m
 

h
a
v
e
 
ta
k
e
n
 
p
la
c
e
 
p
lu
s
 

w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 
a
n
d
 

H
o
v
e
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
 

'S
e
v
e
re
 
W
e
a
th
e
r 

O
ff
ic
e
' 

w
it
h
 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 
a
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 

d
u
e
 
to
 
b
e
 
te
s
te
d
 
a
t 
a
n
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 
a
t 
H
o
v
e
 
T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll 
o
n
 
4
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 
T
h
e
 

C
iv
il 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 
T
e
a
m
 

is
 
a
ls
o
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
o
n
 
a
 

re
v
is
e
d
 
s
e
v
e
re
 
w
e
a
th
e
r 

p
la
n
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
m
o
re
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
to
 
th
e
 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

a
t 
ti
m
e
s
 o
f 
s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 b
u
t 

W
S
P
 2
0
1
0
-1
1
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 

in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

B
H
C
C
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 C
iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
e
a
m
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 w
in
te
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
n
d
 

a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
0
. 
 T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
, 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 s
o
m
e
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 i
n
to
 g
ri
tt
in
g
 

ro
u
te
s
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 g
ri
t 

d
ro
p
s
 o
r 
g
ri
t 
b
in
s
 n
e
a
r 

k
e
y
 p
re
m
is
e
s
, 

a
g
re
e
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 r
o
u
te
s
 

fo
r 
e
x
tr
e
m
e
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
  

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 W
S
P
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 4
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 a
n
d
 

265



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 w
in
te
r,
 i
n
te
r-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

te
le
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 h
e
ld
 

fo
r 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
s
n
o
w
 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 H
u
b
 

a
c
ti
v
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 
C
h
ri
s
tm
a
s
-

N
e
w
 Y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 

c
a
s
e
 o
f 
s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r.
  
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

te
a
m
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
o
n
 r
o
u
te
s
. 
 

P
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 k
e
y
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 -
 e
.g
. 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 –
 g
iv
e
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
. 

 S
e
e
 A
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
5
 

 

266



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

2
 

 A
ll
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 
re
g
u
la
rl
y
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 
s
n
o
w
 
re
s
il
ie
n
c
e
 

p
la
n
s
 
th
a
t 
fe
e
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 

W
S
P
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
 W
ill
 f
o
rm
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

re
v
ie
w
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 s
p
e
c
if
y
 h
ig
h
 

ri
s
k
s
 

T
h
e
 S
u
s
s
e
x
 R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 

F
o
ru
m
 (
S
R
F
) 
h
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 S
u
s
s
e
x
 P
o
lic
e
 a
re
a
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
s
e
v
e
re
 

w
in
te
r.
 T
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
u
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

p
ro
tr
a
c
te
d
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o
f 

s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 T
h
e
 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 

o
f 
a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

fa
c
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r.
 T
h
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
a
c
k
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
R
F
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 

2
8
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

p
la
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fo
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 w
in
te
r.
 T
h
e
y
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

w
a
rn
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
la
n
. 
 

 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1
1
 b
u
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

B
H
C
C
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 W
in
te
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 

w
it
h
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 B
H
C
C
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 p
la
n
s
. 
 

B
H
C
C
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 &
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
s
 

w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 r
o
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 

tu
rn
-a
ro
u
n
d
 p
o
in
ts
 a
s
 

w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
p
 t
o
 

d
a
te
 d
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

 B
H
C
C
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 

h
a
s
 a
lw
a
y
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
d
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

267



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

3
 

A
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

g
ri
tt
in
g
 

ro
u
te
s
 
is
 
m
a
d
e
 
o
n
 
a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is
. 

T
h
is
 

re
v
ie
w
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 
ta
k
e
 
in
to
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

T
h
is
 
re
v
ie
w
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ls
o
 
ta
k
e
 
in
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 p
ro
b
le
m
 a
re
a
s
 

n
o
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 
o
n
 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 

ro
u
te
s
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
  

S
e
e
 p
o
in
t 
1
 a
n
d
 2
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 h
a
v
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 w
it
h
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 o
n
 m
o
re
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e
.g
. 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
r 
h
o
w
 

b
e
s
t 
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
u
tl
y
in
g
 

b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 r
o
u
ti
n
g
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

e
x
tr
e
m
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 r
o
u
te
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
 1
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
b
u
t 

if
 m
a
jo
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

g
ri
tt
in
g
 r
o
u
te
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

th
is
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 

ti
m
e
, 
ro
u
te
 r
e
-

m
a
p
p
in
g
, 

IT
/G
P
S
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

a
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 
  

B
H
C
C
 W
S
P
: 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
o
u
te
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 

G
ri
tt
in
g
 r
o
u
te
s
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

s
o
m
e
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 

e
.g
. 
b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
 r
o
u
n
d
 

M
ill
 V
ie
w
, 
M
a
ri
n
a
 b
u
s
 

ro
u
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
a
s
tg
u
a
rd
 

s
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 N
o
t 
a
ll 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
e
t 

e
.g
. 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
’ 
la
n
d
 a
s
 t
h
is
 

w
o
u
ld
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
to
c
k
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
 

A
ls
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 n
e
w
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 
 P
la
n
s
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
g
a
in
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 w
in
te
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2
.  

268



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

4
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
 u
p
o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

ta
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
n
o
w
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 w
id
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r.
 L
is
ts
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
il
e
d
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

c
a
ll
 c
e
n
tr
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
la
rg
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o
f 

p
ro
lo
n
g
e
d
 s
n
o
w
fa
ll
 t
o
 

d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
c
a
ll
s
. 
 

A
g
re
e
 i
n
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
, 

C
it
y
c
le
a
n
 a
n
d
 C
it
y
p
a
rk
s
. 
 

B
ri
n
g
in
g
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 H
R
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 u
n
io
n
s
, 

e
tc
. 
T
o
 p
re
p
la
n
 s
ta
ff
 

re
d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

s
e
v
e
re
 w
in
te
r 
w
e
a
th
e
r 
w
ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
W
ill
 

a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
P
P
E
, 
e
tc
. 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

c
e
n
tr
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
: 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 

h
a
n
d
 w
it
h
 A
S
C
 s
in
g
le
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 

H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 -
 b
e
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

te
a
m
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
 r
o
le
s
 i
n
 

w
in
te
r 
e
.g
. 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 a
n
d
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 b
u
t 

a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

W
S
P
 t
ra
in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 w
it
h
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
y
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
w
in
te
r 

s
e
a
s
o
n
 2
0
1
0
 

C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

te
a
m
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
e
ll 

to
g
e
th
e
r.
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 s
ta
ff
, 

c
o
m
m
s
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
/e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

s
ta
ff
. 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
c
k
 s
e
n
t 

to
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
e
d
 

in
 s
h
o
v
e
l 
lo
a
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 4
 

x
 4
 d
ri
v
in
g
 s
o
 c
o
u
ld
 

s
w
it
c
h
 t
o
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

w
in
te
r 
d
u
ti
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

  

269



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

5
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
lo
s
u
re
 p
o
li
c
y
 

in
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
n
o
w
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
la
ri
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

th
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 

a
ll
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

w
it
h
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 c
lo
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 

m
o
d
e
l 
le
tt
e
r 
to
 s
e
n
d
 t
o
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 i
f 
s
n
o
w
/c
lo
s
u
re
 i
s
 

lik
e
ly
. 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

h
a
v
e
 w
o
rk
e
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

ro
u
te
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

w
it
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 r
e
 

s
n
o
w
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

d
o
n
a
te
d
 s
o
m
e
 g
ri
t 
fo
r 

p
re
m
is
e
s
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 

6
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 

b
e
 

g
iv
e
n
 

to
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 

p
u
b
li
c
 
b
o
th
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 s
n
o
w
 e
v
e
n
ts
: 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
ra
ft
e
d
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 

o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
u
tu
m
n
 (
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
) 
a
n
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 a
n
y
 c
ri
s
is
 

B
y
 m
id
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
it
y
 

N
e
w
s
 N
o
v
 1
0
 –
 

fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 

p
re
p
a
re
 

•
 
W
e
b
s
it
e
 p
a
g
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 W
S
P
 

•
 
L
in
k
s
 f
ro
m
 h
o
m
e
 

p
a
g
e
 t
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

u
s
e
fu
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
V
id
e
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

v
ia
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 S
e
e
 A
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
1
, 
2
 &
 

3
 

270



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

6
a
) 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
 

o
f 

s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r 

a
re
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

th
o
u
g
h
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 

g
iv
e
n
 
a
s
 
to
 
h
o
w
 
th
is
 

o
c
c
u
rs
 
if
 
s
ta
ff
 
c
a
n
n
o
t 

re
a
c
h
 
th
e
ir
 
p
la
c
e
 
o
f 

w
o
rk
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 –
 w
e
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

d
o
in
g
 t
h
is
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
is
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

te
a
m
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
g
ra
tu
la
te
d
 

v
e
rb
a
lly
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie
w
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

it
s
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
in
te
rn
a
l 

u
p
d
a
te
s
. 
W
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
ill
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
lly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 

th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 

‘b
u
lle
ti
n
s
’ 
o
n
 t
h
e
 W
a
v
e
 a
n
d
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
u
t 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
 e
m
a
il 
is
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

a
ll 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 t
e
a
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

L
in
e
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 

u
s
e
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 n
o
rm
a
l 

w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 w
ill
 f
o
rm
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
ra
ft
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
u
rl
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 p
ri
n
t 
ra
d
io
 a
n
d
 

te
le
v
is
io
n
 n
e
w
s
 d
e
s
k
s
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 
a
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 

p
la
tf
o
rm
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
. 

T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
 

is
 a
ls
o
 p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
h
e
a
d
s
 

o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 

c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 v
ia
 

e
m
a
il 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
e
m
a
il 
p
o
rt
a
l 
s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 d
o
 t
h
is
 f
ro
m
 

a
n
y
 o
n
lin
e
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r.
 T
h
e
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

L
in
e
 i
s
 r
e
a
d
y
 t
o
 u
s
e
 w
h
e
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
C
o
m
m
s
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
o
ls
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
o
ta
’d
 2
4
/7
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 

o
f 
a
n
y
 s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 –
 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

re
p
e
a
te
d
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
lly
. 

•
 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 2
 o
r 
3
 

ti
m
e
s
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
 t
o
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
L
B
 

•
 
R
e
g
u
la
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 v
ia
 r
a
d
io
, 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
T
w
it
te
r 

a
n
d
 F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 

s
a
y
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
w
e
 h
a
d
 

d
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
e
 

w
e
re
 d
o
in
g
 n
e
x
t 

•
 
G
ri
tt
in
g
 r
o
u
te
 m
a
p
s
, 

g
ri
t 
b
in
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 g
ri
t 
d
ro
p
s
 a
ll 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

•
 
V
id
e
o
 o
n
 Y
o
u
 T
u
b
e
 

a
n
d
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 c
a
n
 d
o
 

to
 h
e
lp
 

•
 
S
h
o
v
e
l,
 s
w
e
e
p
, 
s
a
lt
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 

•
 
M
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 o
n
 b
u
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
l 

ti
m
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
  

 S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
1
 –
 

271



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

A
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
4
 –
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il
lo
rs
 

a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

272



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

6
b
) 

U
s
e
 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 a
s
 i
t 

a
ll
o
w
s
 

fo
r 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 
to
 
re
a
c
h
 
la
rg
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

d
ir
e
c
te
d
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 
th
e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 -
 w
e
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

d
o
in
g
 t
h
is
 w
it
h
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

In
d
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 u
s
e
 o
f 

s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

re
c
e
n
t 
s
n
o
w
 c
ri
s
e
s
 w
a
s
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 a
s
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 I
&
D
e
A
's
 r
e
c
e
n
t 

'L
o
c
a
l 
b
y
 S
o
c
ia
l' 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

S
o
c
it
m
's
 "
T
w
it
te
r 
G
ri
tt
e
r"
 

re
p
o
rt
. 
It
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 p
ra
is
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 I
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
, 

w
e
 w
ill
 m
a
k
e
 f
u
ll 
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
a
jo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

in
te
ra
c
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 w
e
ll-
re
a
d
 

b
lo
g
s
, 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 m
ic
ro
-b
lo
g
g
in
g
 s
it
e
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

it
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
o
c
ia
l 

m
e
d
ia
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
, 

T
w
it
te
r,
 F
lic
k
r 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
T
u
b
e
. 
W
e
 w
a
re
 p
ri
m
e
d
 

to
 d
e
p
lo
y
 v
is
u
a
l,
 a
u
d
io
 a
n
d
 

te
x
t-
b
a
s
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
la
tf
o
rm
s
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
fu
ll 
u
s
e
 

m
a
d
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
. 
 

C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
s
 

te
a
m
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 v
ia
 

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
, 
T
w
it
te
r,
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
T
u
b
e
. 
 

A
ls
o
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 

ro
u
te
s
. 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
in
te
r 
a
ll 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 C
it
y
c
le
a
n
 

w
e
n
t 
u
p
 b
y
 5
%
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 

C
a
ll 
v
o
lu
m
e
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

w
e
re
 2
9
%
 l
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 

o
n
lin
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
a
s
 u
p
 

4
2
%
. 
 

W
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
re
e
 

to
 f
o
u
r 
ti
m
e
s
 m
o
re
 h
it
s
 

th
a
n
 u
s
u
a
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 o
n
 m
a
n
y
 

o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
n
o
w
, 
b
u
t 
s
a
w
 o
n
ly
 a
 

s
m
a
ll 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
a
lls
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
im
e
s
. 

T
h
is
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

273



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
e
 w
e
re
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 

a
n
d
 p
u
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

o
u
r 
w
in
te
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
. 

 S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
1
  

6
c
) 

C
it
y
 N
e
w
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

c
o
n
ta
in
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
to
 d
o
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

s
e
v
e
re
 

c
o
ld
 

w
e
a
th
e
r.
  

A
g
re
e
d
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 p
u
b
lis
h
 a
 

w
in
te
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

in
fo
rm
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
is
 

p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 m
a
k
e
 

p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

a
n
y
 c
o
ld
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

e
d
it
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 '
s
n
o
w
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l' 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

n
e
w
s
, 
fe
a
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

re
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 C
o
p
y
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

E
d
it
io
n
 c
o
m
e
s
 

o
u
t 
o
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
1
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
  

 S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
2
 

274



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

6
d
) 

C
le
a
r 

le
g
a
l 

a
d
v
ic
e
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 
li
a
b
il
it
y
 
fo
r 

c
le
a
ri
n
g
 
s
n
o
w
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 

p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 w
id
e
ly
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 -
 w
e
 w
ill
 d
e
p
lo
y
 t
h
e
 

'S
h
o
v
e
l,
 S
w
e
e
p
, 
S
a
lt
' 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 a
g
a
in
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

a
 m
in
i-
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 w
e
ll
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 N
o
te
: 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
w
e
a
th
e
r 

c
ri
s
is
, 
th
is
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
d
lin
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 f
ro
n
t 
p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
it
y
's
 m
a
jo
r 
n
e
w
s
 m
e
d
iu
m
, 

th
e
 A
rg
u
s
 -
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

u
lt
im
a
te
 g
o
a
l 
o
f 
m
e
d
ia
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

a
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
. 

A
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

w
ill
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 r
o
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
 

'S
h
o
v
e
l,
 S
w
e
e
p
, 
S
a
lt
' 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
 m
in
i-

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
. 

P
ri
o
r 
to
 a
n
y
 

fo
re
c
a
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
v
e
re
 c
o
ld
 

w
e
a
th
e
r 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
it
y
 

N
e
w
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 

L
in
k
 f
ro
m
 B
H
C
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 
  

 S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
1
 &
 3
 

6
e
) 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

h
e
ld
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
C
V
S
F
 
a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 

th
ir
d
 

s
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
s
o
 
th
a
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

p
a
s
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
to
 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 o
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
v
e
re
 

w
e
a
th
e
r 

to
 
re
a
s
s
u
re
, 

in
fo
rm
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
b
il
is
e
 

th
e
m
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 

C
V
S
F
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

w
in
te
r 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

d
e
p
lo
y
 t
h
e
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
 

D
o
n
e
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

 

275



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

7
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

in
 b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 g
ri
t 

ro
a
d
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
 g
ri
tt
in
g
 

ro
u
te
s
. 
G
ri
tt
in
g
 p
o
in
ts
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 m
a
rk
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 g
ri
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 o
ff
 b
y
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 w
h
e
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
fe
lt
 

in
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 e
x
tr
a
 g
ri
tt
in
g
 

b
in
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
s
t-

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 -
 b
u
t 
w
it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
is
 w
ill
 o
n
ly
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 

w
h
e
re
 s
e
v
e
re
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
lo
n
g
e
d
 s
n
o
w
fa
ll 
is
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 f
o
r 

s
n
o
w
fa
ll 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 

to
 m
e
lt
 r
a
p
id
ly
 o
r 
is
 f
a
ir
ly
 

lig
h
t.
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
g
ri
t 
b
in
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 m
e
t 

a
g
re
e
d
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 
 G
ri
tt
in
g
 

p
o
in
ts
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 

g
a
p
s
 e
x
is
t,
 w
h
e
re
 m
o
s
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 (
e
.g
. 
s
te
e
p
 s
lo
p
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 n
o
 g
ri
t 
b
in
s
 a
re
 

in
 p
la
c
e
. 

B
y
 1
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

G
ri
t 
b
in
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 

5
0
+
. 
 G
ri
t 
d
ro
p
s
 t
o
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 b
o
th
 s
n
o
w
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 –
 m
a
in
ly
 i
n
 

s
te
e
p
 c
o
ld
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
s
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

n
o
d
e
s
. 
 L
is
t 
o
f 
g
ri
t 

d
ro
p
s
, 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 r
o
u
te
s
 &
 

g
ri
t 
b
in
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
  

 S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
1
 

 

8
 

A
 
n
e
w
 
fl
e
e
t 
o
f 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
 
is
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 
p
a
n
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
th
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

fu
n
d
s
 
fo
r 
th
is
; 
in
 
fu
tu
re
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

re
p
la
c
e
d
 
o
n
 
a
 
ro
ll
in
g
-

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

m
o
re
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
a
n
 e
v
e
ry
 1
0
 

y
e
a
rs
. 
A
d
e
q
u
a
te
 
s
ta
ff
 

ti
m
e
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
 

th
e
 

b
e
s
t 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
 M
a
rk
e
t 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 

in
to
 n
e
w
 g
ri
tt
in
g
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 D
u
e
 

to
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
, 
n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 n
e
w
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

b
y
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 w
in
te
r 

s
e
a
s
o
n
 b
u
t 
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 

p
ro
c
e
e
d
 a
s
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
 A
n
y
 f
le
e
t 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
4
 

w
h
e
e
l 
d
ri
v
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 
W
ill
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 m
a
rk
e
t 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

s
p
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
s
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 f
o
r 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

&
 H
o
v
e
's
 t
e
rr
a
in
 e
.g
. 

n
a
rr
o
w
 s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
s
te
e
p
 h
ill
s
, 

h
ig
h
 c
a
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
e
d
 

h
u
m
p
s
. 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
in
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 L
e
g
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 c
a
n
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 t
o
 

s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
n
th
s
. 
C
a
n
 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 t
o
 2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 

g
ri
tt
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 o
n
c
e
 

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

g
ri
tt
e
r 
fl
e
e
t 
b
y
 

1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
 O
th
e
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

a
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

V
e
h
ic
le
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 

s
ta
g
e
s
 e
n
d
 A
u
g
-S
e
p
t 

276



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

o
f 
a
 m
a
c
h
in
e
 f
o
r 
p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 

g
ri
tt
in
g
. 
 

o
rd
e
re
d
 

277



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

9
 

A
 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 
s
a
lt
 
b
a
rn
 
a
t 

th
e
 
H
o
ll
in
g
d
e
a
n
 
D
e
p
o
t 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 T
h
is
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 
a
s
 

p
a
rt
 
o
f 

a
n
y
 
fu
tu
re
 

u
p
g
ra
d
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
o
t.
  

A
g
re
e
d
. 
 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 D
e
p
o
t 
a
re
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 s
o
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

w
in
te
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

lo
g
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 

In
 t
h
e
 m
e
a
n
ti
m
e
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 

s
o
m
e
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
t 
o
n
e
 o
f 

W
e
s
t 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 d
e
p
o
t 
b
u
t 
s
a
lt
 

w
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 

ta
rp
a
u
lin
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 s
ti
ll 

th
e
re
fo
re
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
im
it
e
d
 

s
to
ra
g
e
 l
if
e
. 

H
a
v
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

c
o
v
e
r 
b
u
t 
e
v
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
fi
n
e
d
 

s
p
a
c
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 A
ls
o
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
a
lle
d
 a
re
a
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
o
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 

e
re
c
t 
a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

th
is
 s
e
a
s
o
n
. 
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

h
a
v
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
it
h
 s
u
rv
e
y
o
r 
a
n
d
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
d
e
p
o
t 
c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
rs
. 

L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 -
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 

D
e
p
o
t 

re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

T
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 b
u
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
d
e
p
o
t 

s
a
fe
ty
 w
o
rk
s
 a
re
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
-

te
rm
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
a
lt
 i
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
a
lt
 s
to
re
d
 

a
t 
W
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 E
a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 a
n
d
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
in
 

a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 

C
h
ri
s
tm
a
s
. 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

s
a
lt
 s
to
re
d
 a
t 
W
S
C
C
 

fo
r 
w
in
te
r 
1
1
-1
2
 

1
0
 

T
h
e
re
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 
re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 

in
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
e
 
a
d
a
p
to
rs
 

fo
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 
s
ta
ff
 

to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
th
e
m
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

s
e
v
e
re
 

s
n
o
w
 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
is
 i
n
 a
n
y
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

re
v
ie
w
s
. 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 f
o
r 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

&
 C
it
y
c
le
a
n
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 b
u
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 n
o
t 

s
e
e
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

ro
b
u
s
t.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 a
ll 

s
ta
ff
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w
it
h
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
P
P
E
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
. 

O
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
. 

 A
ls
o
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
4
 –
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 f
ir
s
t 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
s
n
o
w
fa
ll
 &
 a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 

6
 –
 p
h
o
to
g
ra
p
h
s
 f
ro
m
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

 

278



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

 

N
e
w
 B
H
C
C
 g
ri
tt
e
r 
c
h
a
s
s
is
 

279



H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 

  

280



�
�
��
��
�
�
�	


��
�


��
�
��
��
��


��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�

	�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�	
��


	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

 
�
!!"

 
�
!!�
�

 
�
!!�
�

 
�
!!�
�

 
�
!!�
�

 
�
!!�
�

#�
$�
%
��
&
�
�%
�
'
�
�	
�
(
�)
�

!!�
�	
�
(
��
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
)�
+
	�
�
�
�
�
,�
�
�
�
�
�
�
"
"
"
-�


�	
�
(
��
�
�.
�/
�
*
�
�%
	�
�
�%
�
�
�
�
	!)
��
�
�
�
)�
%
	�
	�
�
�0
�
*
�
�
!�
�
#0
$�
�
�
'
�
�	
�
(
��
1
�
�2
(
�
��
�
�
3�
4�
��
�
�	
�
�
#0
$�
�
��
�
'
-�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
&
�
�%
�
'
�
�	
�
(
��
#�
$�


!!�
�	
�
(
��
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
)

�
,�
�
-"
�
�

�
�
�
!�
,�

�
�
�
�

"
�
�

�
-�
�
�

�
-�
�
�

�
�
�

5
�
��
��

281



282



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY CABINET 
MEMBERS MEETING 

Agenda Item 40 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Permission to Consult – Communal Recycling Trial 
City Centre 

Date of Meeting: 4 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Gillian Marston Tel: 29-4725 

 Email: gillian.marston@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: Brunswick and Adelaide 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.    
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The council’s Waste Management Strategy Action Plan was adopted by the 

Council in March 2010 and sets out a commitment to trial communal recycling in 
the city centre to increase recycling rates.  

 
1.2 Through the council’s Community Waste Forum an area of Brunswick and 

Adelaide Ward has been put forward as a potential trial area. 
 
1.3 This report seeks permission to consult with residents in the area on introducing 

a communal recycling trial.  The outcome of the consultation will be reported 
back to this meeting to inform the decision on the implementation of the trial. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Environment & Sustainability endorses proposals to 

consult with residents in the identified streets on the introduction of communal 
recycling. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 A weekly recycling collection service is provided in the city centre.  However 

many residents have limited room to store their recycling and a high turnover of 
population means that not all residents are aware of how to access the weekly 
black box recycling service.   

 
3.2 To address some of these issues the council’s Waste Management Strategy 

Action Plan includes an action to trial communal recycling to make it easier for 
residents to recycle and to increase recycling rates. 

  
3.3 Increasing recycling is a priority for the council and ward councillors for 

Brunswick and Adelaide ward have suggested the trial is run in their area, 
subject to consultation.  

 

283



3.4 A map of the proposed trial area is attached as Appendix 1.  It would consist of: 
§ Roads between Western Road and Lansdowne Road, from Holland Road in 

the West across to Norfolk Road in the East. 
§ The roads south of Western Road from Brunswick Street East and Western 

Street/ Norfolk Square. 
 
3.5 Approximately 5,200 households would be included in the trial.  
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 This report seeks permission to consult on a trial.  If permission is granted we will 
consult and engage with residents to seek their views on: 
§ The current recycling service  
§ Whether they are in favour of being part of the trial 
§ What if any concerns they have about the trial and how these might be 

mitigated 
§ Views on the types of recycling containers that could be used and their 

positioning. 
 

4.2 The consultation will include: 
§ a focus group to help develop detailed proposals for the trial; 
§ attendance at residents association meetings and other relevant meetings to 

gain views on the proposals; 
§ a mail out to all households in the trial area to seek their views on the 

proposed trial. 
 

4.3      If approval is granted the consultation will run in November and December 2011. 
 

4.3.1 The results of the consultation will be brought back to a later Cabinet Member 
Meeting for consideration. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The cost of the consultation is estimated to be approximately £10,000. This will 

be funded through the Waste PFI reserve, from funds set aside for the 
implementation of the waste strategy. The cost of the trial is expected to be no 
more than £140,000 and this will also be funded through the Waste PFI reserve 
set aside for the implementation of the waste strategy. The exact costs will be 
determined based on the outcome of the consultation. Approval for the trial will 
be sought on completion of the consultation. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 08/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. The Council has powers 

to specify and to provide the types of receptacles to be used for depositing waste 
for collection and may also require particular locations, including the highway, to 
be used. The results of consultation will need to be taken into account in coming 
to decisions 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date:07/09/11 

284



 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 Recycling services need to be accessible for all residents.  Proposals for the trial 

will be subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment to identify potential equality 
implications and take appropriate measures to address these implications.   The 
council provides an assisted service for people who are not able to use 
communal bins or handle refuse and recycling containers.  This service has been 
developed with various groups across the city such as the Federation for 
Disabled People.  It will operate in the proposed recycling trial area and will be 
advertised so those in need are able to access it 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The purpose of the trial is to see whether it increases recycling rates.  This will be 

monitored and evaluated as part of the trial. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 There are no implications for crime and public disorder 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 There are no particular risks associated with the proposed consultation.  The 

consultation itself will help inform any risks associated with any proposed trial.  
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 There are no implications for public health. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 If the trial is successful it could lead to an increase in recycling rates.  If this was 

the case, and residents response to the trial is positive, the council could 
consider extending the scheme subject to consultation with residents and ward 
councillors. .  

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 Communal recycling is the only main alternative to the current door step 

collection service.  Options as to how it can best be implemented will be explored 
with residents as part of the consultation and evaluated as part of the process. 

  
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The trial has been identified as an action in the council’s Waste Management 

Strategy.  Further requests for the trial have been received through the 
Community Waste Forum. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

285



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Map of proposed trial/ consultation area 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Brighton & Hove City Council Municipal Waste Management Strategy  
 

286



287



288



Notes for Cllr Pete West 

Permission to Consult – Communal Recycling Trial City Centre 

 
• Many residents in the city centre do not find the weekly recycling 

service user friendly because they do not have a lot of room to 

store recycling. 

• There is also a high turnover of population in the city centre and 

often new residents do now know how to access the service.  

• To address these issues the council’s waste strategy sets out a 

commitment to trial communal recycling in the city centre. 

• Requests for a communal recycling trial in Brunswick and 

Adelaide Ward were put forward through the Community Waste 

Forum. 

• This report seeks permission to consult on a communal recycling 

trial in this ward. 

• If permission is granted the consultation will run in November and 

December and the results will be brought back to a Cabinet 

Member Meeting the spring for consideration. 

289



290


	Agenda
	20 Minutes of the previous meeting
	21 Minutes of the Special Meeting, 17 August 2011
	24 Petitions
	25a Keep The Level a green open space
	Item 25A(ii) Petition Report - The Level, 21/07/2011 Council

	25b Save The Big Lemon Bus
	Item 25B(ii) Petition Report - Save the Big Lemon Bus, 21/07/2011 Council

	27 Deputations
	31 Citywide Amendment Traffic Order: various traffic changes to Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) and areas outside of CPZ
	Item 31 Appendix A
	Item 31 Appendix B
	Item 31 Appendix C

	32 Speed Limit Review (A&B Class Roads)
	Item 32 Appendix A

	33 Speed Limit review 20mph Speed Limits
	Item 33 Appendix 1A
	Item 33 Appendix 1B

	34 Parking Annual Report 2010/11
	Item 34 Appendix 1

	36 Citywide Parking Review
	Item 36 Appendix A
	Item 36 Appendix B
	Item 36 Appendix C
	Item 36 Appendix D

	37 Old Shoreham Road cycle facilities
	38 Permission to tender for supported bus network
	Item 38 Appendix 1
	Item 38 Appendix 2

	39 Highways Winter Service Plan 2011-12
	Item 39 Appendix A
	Item 39 Appendix B
	Item 39 Appendix C
	Item 39 Appendix D

	40 Permission to Consult on Communal Recycling Trial
	Item 40 Appendix 1
	Cabinet Member Meeting Report for Permission to Consult on Communal Recycling Trial enc. 2


